












































































































































































POWER TRANSMISSION SECTOR
In the electricity sector’s value chain, the transmission sector is critical. 
Increased generation capacity, the integration of renewable energy, and the 
government’s focus on distributing power to rural areas have resulted in a 
significant expansion of the country’s transmission and distribution (T&D) 
infrastructure. In addition, there has been a rise in demand for transmission 
networks to transport bulk power over larger distances while minimising 
losses and improving grid connectivity.

In India, the transmission network runs at various voltages to meet the needs 
of the industries. Extra high voltage (EHV), High Voltage, Medium Voltage, and 
Low Voltage are the different voltage levels.

The majority of India’s transmission network is still made up of 200 kV and 
400 kV transmission lines. Higher voltage transmission lines improve network 
performance because they have a higher transfer capacity than other lines 
and have lower technical losses, resulting in a smaller overall number of 
lines necessary to offer similar capacity. Due to the federal government’s 
substantial investment, 800 kV lines increased at a rapid pace as well.

Covid-19 has caused a global health crisis and a global economic slowdown 
and recession since its outbreak in late 2019. Various restrictive measures 
enacted by the Indian government resulted in a slowing of economic growth 
in FY 2020-21. During the Covid-19 lockdown, the MoP classified power 
transmission as an important service, and so power transmission projects 
continued to operate according to the country’s norms and protocol. During 
this time, the transmission system was kept at a high level of availability. 
During this time, the transmission system was kept at a high level of 
availability.

The lockdown had a severe impact on industrial and commercial activities, 
resulting in a large reduction in electricity demand in these sectors. This has a 
substantial influence on Indian power providers’ liquidity.

Historically, investments in the transmission sector have been low compared 
to the generation sector, but with increased private participation, the average 
growth in the transmission sector has been on par with the average growth in 
the generation capacity for the past five years. Investments in the sector are 
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expected to be driven by the need for robust and reliable inter and intra state 
transmission systems, requirement to evacuate power from capacity additions 
in renewable energy generation and rural electrification.

In the transmission sector, private sector participation has been increasing, 
with roughly 7.5% participation in FY 2020-21. In the coming years, 
transmission capacity is likely to expand rapidly. Between fiscal years 2021 
and 2025, roughly 330-350 GVA transformation capacity (above 220 kV) is 
expected to be built, bringing the total transformation capacity to 1,300-1,350 
GVA by 2025. Because of their importance in interstate transmission lines, 
high voltage lines of 400 kV and 765 kV are likely to increase rapidly.
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POWER DISTRIbuTION SECTOR
Power distribution is the final step in the power sector value chain, it 
connects the transmission utilities to the final consumers such as residential, 
commercial, agricultural, and industrial consumers. Distribution is the most 
critical step for the entire power sector as this is where the revenues are 
generated and thereto, transferred to the first two segments of generation 
and transmission. The process is mostly carried out by state-owned 
distribution companies (discoms). The industrial segment brings the highest 
revenue for the discoms followed by agriculture and domestic sectors.

The Covid-19 pandemic has further adversely impacted the discoms. Due 
to the lockdowns imposed across the country, the electricity demand went 
down by 16% in first quarter of FY 2020-21 on a year-to-year basis from the 
Commercial & Industrial customers. To support the sector, the Government of 
India came out with a liquidity relief scheme of Rs. 90,000 crore (eventually 
increased to Rs. 1.25 lakh crore) for the state discoms, in form of loans against 
receivables, from Power Financial Corporation (PFC) and the Rural Electrical 
Corporation (REC).

AT&T Losses
Aggregate Technical & Commercial (AT&C) loss is the difference between 
units input into the system and the units for which the payment is collected. 
It can be divided into technical (transmission) and non-technical losses 
(commercial). Low levels of investment in distribution have resulted in 
overloaded systems, leading to higher technical losses. Theft and pilferage 
of power is a key reason for high commercial losses for discoms. Lack 
of metering and poor billing and collection systems also contribute to 
commercial losses.

Consistent improvement in the billing and collection activities have gradually 
helped reducing the AT&C losses of the country. The overall AT&C losses were 
around 20.93% in FY 2019-20. Even though the losses have come down, they 
were much higher compared to other countries around the world. Even within 
the country, there was a stark variation observed in performance of various 
states. The losses are mainly due to poorly maintained and overburdened 
distribution networks, inadequate metering and theft of electricity.
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CHALLENGES 
Power Purchase Agreements (PPA)
PPAs are bilateral contracts between the discoms and the generators. 
PPAs have a specific set of terms and conditions setting out the rights and 
obligations of the generators and the discoms. This includes the price at 
which electricity would be bought, conditions for adjusting tariffs for select 
events, mutually agreed conditions for sharing and termination of the PPAs. 
Generally, the PPAs are long term in nature i.e. around 20-25 years.

Power procurement is one of the critical components to be considered by the 
discoms and makes almost 80% of the discom’s expenses. Discoms generally 
enter into PPAs with the generation companies to avoid variability in the tariff 
structure. The tariffs rates especially for renewable power have come down 
considerably in the last 5-7 years, which means that the discoms that had 
already entered into PPAs at a higher tariffs in the past are at a disadvantage.

Theft
India has one of the highest AT&C losses in the world. As per the Central 
Electricity Authority of India, over 27% of the total power produced is lost 
due to either dissipation from wires or theft. Meter tampering by households, 
electricity theft by industrial companies, tapping into bare wires are some of 
the methods of theft.

Inadequate Demand 

The country continues to face both energy deficit and peak deficit, although 
at marginal level. In FY 2019-20, the energy deficit was 0.51% and peak deficit 
was 0.68%.

Usually, discoms face a power deficit during the day time and a power 
surplus during the night. At times of power deficit, the discoms purchase 
the additional power required from the open market and at time of power 
surplus, the discoms sell the surplus power on the open market. However, the 
cost of power sold on the exchange is significantly lower compared to the 
cost of purchase. For instance as per the Rajasthan’s Electricity Regulatory 
Commission (RERC) tariff order of FY 2019-20, it was noted that the discoms 
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in Rajasthan sold power on the exchange at the price of Rs. 2.11 per kwh 
between 12:00 AM to 7:00 AM in FY19. The average price at which power was 
bought in FY 2018-19 was Rs. 4.27 per kwh. The discoms incurred a loss of Rs. 
2.16 per kwh on every unit of power sold between 12:00 AM to 7:00 AM.

Political Challenges
There have been several reforms brought in from time to time to improve 
the commercial viability of the discoms but are yet to make a long lasting 
impact. The political aspect is visible in the rural areas where the powerful 
farmer’s lobby is hard for the politicians to ignore in a country where majority 
of the population still makes its living from agriculture. Even now, the 
discoms continue to make losses due to lack of political will among the state 
governments to come out with a strong solution for the problem.

Inadequate Capacity utilization of Thermal 
Power Plants
The generation capacity has been increasing over the years but at the same 
time the capacity utilization of the thermal plants (Plant Load factor or PLF) 
declined to 61% in FY 2018-19 from 78% in FY 2009-10. Low PLF indicates 
that the thermal plant are lying idle, this can be due to non-availability of 
fuel, surplus capacity or low demand for power. According to the Standing 
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Committee on Energy (2017) highlights that the inadequate capacity 
utilization is due to several factors in the power sector. Firstly, even though 
there is enough generation capacity, the distressed condition of the discoms 
result in suppressed demand for power, which leads to underutilization of 
capacities. Secondly, substantial fall in solar tariff and a low gestation period 
possess threat to the economic viability of the thermal power plants. While, 
growth in solar energy is a positive sign for the country, thermal energy will 
continue to remain an important source of energy in the future.

billing and Collection
Billing efficiency is the measure of proportion of energy that has been billed 
(includes both metered and unmetered sales) to consumers w.r.t. energy 
supplied to an area. Billing efficiency improved from 83.91% in FY 2018-19 to 
85.36% in FY 2019-20.

Collection efficiency is the measure of proportion of amount that has been 
collected from consumers w.r.t. amount billed to them. All the consumers 
are billed on the basis of energy consumed by them which is obtained from 
meter reading and assessment of unmetered energy of consumers. The billed 
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amount is computed on the basis of tariff fixed by regulatory commission for 
applicable customer category. However, there are quite a few consumers who 
have tendency to default in their payments for various reasons. Thus utility is 
not able to recover entire amount billed by it, resulting in commercial losses.

The distribution sector continues to remain the weakest in spite of being the 
most critical link in the power sector value chain. While the Government has 
taken various initiatives in the past to improve the sector, most of the discoms 
in India continue to be under financial distress. Though, there has been some 
improvement in the performance of the discoms in the recent years, the 
financial distress is expected to remain in the short run.

The lockdown restrictions amid the second wave of Covid-19-led to a reduction 
in power demand across the country which further impacted the discoms. The 
lockdown hindered the business and commercial activity, thereby reducing the 
demand of power. The lower power demand from the industrial and commercial 
customers which pay higher tariffs, adversely impacted the discoms. The 
widening revenue gap of cash-strapped discoms has already impacted their 
ability to pay generators. It is estimated that the overdue level is likely to 
remain high due to the expected rise in under-recoveries and the slow progress 
of the Atmanirbhar Bharat Abhiyaan towards loan disbursement.

The liquidity package announced by the Government for the discoms 
would provide relief to the sector in the near term. However, for sustained 
improvement in the distribution sector the effective implementation of 
various measures such privatization of discoms, installation of smart prepaid 
meters, DBT for the subsidy are vital. Further, the reform-based and result-
linked RDSS scheme announced in June 2021, reflects the strong focus of 
the Government to improve the sector which augurs well for the sector in the 
long term. However, the success of this scheme depends largely on the pace & 
effectiveness of implementation and efforts taken by the utilities to undertake 
the operational improvements.

Power Sector Scenario in Mumbai
The power sector of Maharashtra has played a critical role in supporting 
the economic growth of the state. It is the largest producer and consumer 
of electricity in India and one of the front runners in areas such as financial 
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performance of state utilities, quality of power supply, adoption of digital 
technologies and promotion of clean energy. It has achieved 100% household 
electrification and effectively managed urban as well as rural power supply 
including handling a large volume of agricultural consumers. While the 
performance has been noteworthy, the state power sector needs to continually 
evolve to address challenges by increasing operational efficiencies, reducing 
costs of delivery and addressing varying needs of a diverse consumer base.

The power sector in Maharashtra has been evolving at a fast pace. Supported 
by enabling policy and regulatory measures, each of the generation, 
transmission and distribution segments has implemented various measures to 
increase access, reliability, reduce costs and serve the consumer better.

Maharashtra has the largest installed capacity in India of 44,143 MW. 
Maharahtra’s transmission network currently stretches over 46,217 circuit km 
and has a transformation capacity of over 1,23,846 MVA and 660 substations.

KEy GROWTH DRIvERS
• Future of the power sector looks bright as by FY 2026-27, all India power 

generation installed capacity will be nearly 620 GW, 38% of which will be 
from coal and 44% from renewable energy

• Total installed capacity as on April 2021 was 382 GW of which 36.5% was 
generated from renewable sources

• Urban and rural population growth will trigger demand of power generation

• Renewable energy will account for 55% of the total installed power capacity 
by 2030. As per the Central Electricity Authority (CEA) estimates, by FY 
2029-30, the share of renewable energy generation would increase from 
18% to 44%, while that of thermal is expected to reduce from 78% to 52%

• A transition to clean energy is a huge economic opportunity while India is 
particularly well-placed to become a global leader in renewable batteries 
and green hydrogen; these and other low-carbon technologies could create 
a market worth up to $80 billion in India by 2030

• India aims to reach net zero emissions by 2070 and to meet 50% of its 
electricity requirements from renewable energy sources by 2030 is a hugely 
significant moment for the global fight against climate change
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• The rapid growth in fossil energy consumption also means India’s annual 
CO2 emissions have risen to become the third highest in the world; 
however, the Country’s CO2 emissions per person put it near the bottom 
of the world’s emitters, and they are lower still if you consider historical 
emissions per person

Government Initiatives
Electricity consumption is one of the most important indices that decide 
the development level of a nation. The Government of India is committed 
to improving the quality of life of its citizens through higher electricity 
consumption. The aim is to provide each household access to electricity, 
round the clock. The ‘Power for All’ program is a major step in this direction.

Government committed to reduce India’s total projected carbon emission by 
1 bn tonnes by 2030, reduce the carbon intensity of the nation’s economy by 
less than 45% by the end of the decade, achieve net-zero carbon emissions by 
2070 and expand India’s renewable energy installed capacity to 500 GW by 
2030.
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Deen Dayal upadhyaya Gram Jyoti yojana 
(DDuGJy)
The Government of India launched the Deendayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti 
Yojana (DDUGJY) in 2015 for rural electrification. The scheme objectifies 
providing electrification to every part of the India, especially the rural segment 
of the India. The Government has invested `43, 033 crore for this scheme out 
of which `33, 453 crore has been spent. Under this scheme, a special category 
state will be given a grant of 85% and other states will be given a grant of 
60%. A total of 1,27,68,620 households have been covered under DDUGJY.

ujwal DISCOM Assurance yojana (uDAy)
The scheme was launched by GoI on November 20, 2015 for operational and 
financial turnaround of state-owned discoms. UDAY aims at:

• Improving operational efficiency of the state discoms

• Reduction in cost of power

• Reduction in interest cost of discoms

• Bring financial discipline in the discoms through alignment with state 
 finances

Under the scheme, states assume 75% of the discoms’ debt, thereby reducing 
their interest costs and partly future losses as well. Improvement in the 
operational efficiencies of the discoms are planned through smart metering 
upgrading of infrastructure including transformers, use of energy efficient 
lighting devices and bulbs, pumps and other heavy electric equipment. So far, 
the scheme has helped the distressed discoms in cutting down their debt and 
the total AT&C losses. However, it is yet to address the challenges of cross 
subsidies and power procurement costs.

Under the Union Budget 2020-21, the Government launched ‘UDAY 2.0’ 
scheme, with an aim to install smart prepaid metres, prompt payments by 
DISCOMs, ensure short-term availability of coal and revive gas-based plants.
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Pradhan Mantri Sahaj bijli Har Ghar yojana – 
“SAubHAGyA”
The scheme announced on September 25, 2017 by Prime Minister of India, 
with the objective of achieving universal household electrification in the 
country, through last mile connectivity and providing access to electricity 
to all un-electrified households in rural areas and poor households in 
urban areas. SAUBHAGYA scheme is one of the world‟s biggest universal 
electrification initiatives with collaborative and concerted efforts of the 
centre and states. Currently, 99.99% households of the country have been 
electrified as per the SAUBHAGYA dashboard of the Ministry of Power. 
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Only 18,734 households remain to be electrified throughout the country. 
DISCOMs/Power Departments also adopt innovative mechanisms like 
dedicated web-portal/Mobile App for collection/consolidation of application 
form in electronic mode and also capturing process of release of electricity 
connections. 2.82 crore households have been electrified since the launch of 
scheme as on March 31, 2021. The total financial implications of the project 
was Rs. 16,320 crore while the Gross Budgetary Support (GBS) was Rs. 12,320 
crore. The outlay for the rural households was Rs. 14,025 crore while the 
GBS was Rs.10,587.50 crore. During the Covid-19 pandemic, Uttar Pradesh 
continued to implement SAUBHAGYA scheme and electrified households in 
2020-21. Uttar Pradesh has reaped the maximum benefits under the scheme 
by electrifying 79,80,568 households, which is 27.83% of the total households 
in the state. Now, 100% of the 2,91,76,763 total households in the state are 
electrified.

While the set objectives of the scheme have been achieved, SAUBHAGYA has 
continued its work of providing 24x7 quality power supply to all. All states 
have been requested to launch special campaigns in their respective states 
to identify any left out un-electrified households and subsequently provide 
electricity connections to them. A dedicated toll-free helpline has also been 
launched for that purpose.

COMPANy OvERvIEW
Adani Electricity Mumbai Limited (‘AEML’ or ‘The Company’) is a wholly 
owned subsidiary of Adani Transmission Ltd (ATL) that is involved in power 
distribution. It was formed after the acquisition of Reliance Infrastructure 
Limited’s integrated Generation, Transmission, and Distribution utilities. The 
Company meets over 2,000 MW of the city’s demand and have the most 
efficient power distribution network.

Being the city’s powerhouse, it offers a wide range of consumer convenience 
services, including bill issuance in different languages, over 2,000 payment 
options, a 24-hour multi-lingual toll-free number, modern customer support 
centres, and a slew of additional technology-driven and value-added services. 
Today, our distribution network encompasses over 400 square kilometres, 
serving the electrical demands of over 2.9 million people. AEML serves 
Suburban Mumbai from Bandra to Bhainder on the western side and Sion to 
Mankhurd on the eastern side.
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OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
Adani Electricity Mumbai Limited (AEML) is a subsidiary of Adani Transmission 
Limited, which is the largest transmission company in India. Adani 
Transmission Limited is part of Adani Group, a leading infrastructure group 
in India with businesses in power and energy, mining, logistics, agriculture 
and others. The Company is a licensee and an integrated utility for power 
distribution, transmission and generation business that currently serves more 
than 3 million consumers across a license area of approximately 400 square 
kilometers in and around city of Mumbai, the world’s seventh-largest city by 
size of population. The Company’s market share of Mumbai is approximately 
87% by license area, 67% by consumers served and 55% by electricity supplied.  

As an organization, AEML believes in the motto - The Power of Service. It 
is born of the will to make a difference and change things for the better. 
AEML continues the quest of providing best quality service to the customers, 
entrusted with the brand motto of the ‘Power of Service’. 

FINANCIAL REvIEW
The Company sold 7,972 million units of electricity to its own consumers in 
FY 2021-22. During the year under review, the Company’s operating EBIDTA 
registered at Rs. 2,083 crore and PBT stood at Rs. 271 crore as on March 31, 
2022.
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RISK MANAGEMENT
AEML has an active risk mitigation strategy that gives it a comprehensive 
perspective of the internal and external environment, allowing it to handle 
risks as early as feasible.

Contractual Disputes
With the shifting legal and regulatory landscape in the country, several 
legal difficulties have arisen as a result of corporate expansion. Because 
disagreements take longer to resolve, there is a danger that contracts will not 
be completed on schedule.

Regulatory and Compliance Risk
Regulatory issues like financial viability of the Distribution companies, 
payment of dues, reduction in AT&C losses, roll out of Smart metering in 
prepayment mode, timely issuance of tariff orders, timely disposal of the 

Particulars FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21

Total Income 7,318.59 6,470.94

Total Expenditure 7,729.94 6,717.43

Profit/(Loss) Before Rate Regulated

Activities, Exceptional Items and Tax (411.35) (246.49)

Add/(Less): Regulatory Income/(Expenses) (Net) 682.47 582.81

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 271.12 336.32

Tax Expenses 148.96 77.15

Net Profit/(Loss) 122.16 259.17

Other Comprehensive Income/(Expenses)
- Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

14.17 27.51

Effective portion of gains and losses on designated portion 
of hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge

(151.87) (100.66)

Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense) (137.70) (73.15)

Total other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) (15.54) 186.02
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petitions, promotional tariff for the EV charging stations etc comes for power 
distribution Companies.

Climate Change Risk
All power distribution companies, including AEML, face physical and transition 
risks as a result of climate change. The firm may be impacted by the hazards 
associated with rising sea levels, water stress situations, increased heat waves, 
irregular rainfall, and frequent natural disasters. In terms of carbon tax and 
cess, rising climate change concerns and threats may pose future legislative 
and regulatory issues.

Digital Expansion
EML’s strategic aims and financial performance are influenced by important 
industry developments like decarbonization and digitization. We may not 
be able to adequately plan for or adjust to dynamics that can take years to 
play out. Its ability to continuously improve itself is critical to its long-term 
operating outcomes and competitive position. Any deficiency or variation could 
disrupt business operations, affecting its capacity to provide uninterrupted 
services and, as a result, its profitability.

Business Growth and Diversification
Electricity demand is expected to continue to rise as a result of rising economic 
growth related to rapid urbanisation and greater industrial activity. To fulfil 
the rising demand, power generating units must increase their output. Power 
firms must also diversify their company and expand their global reach to secure 
profitability and future cash flows.

upgradation
To maintain competitiveness, the Company upgrades its generation, 
transmission, and distribution systems on a regular basis. It also necessitates 
unplanned Adhoc maintenance or repairs in the event of faults or problems 
developing, or as a result of new planning laws or regulations, natural disasters, 
sabotage, physical and cyber terrorist attacks, or other events that can result 
in consumer service interruptions, network failures, breakdowns, or unplanned 
outages. This may cause temporary disruptions in operations, affecting the 
overall operation of the Company.
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HuMAN RESOuRCE MANAGEMENT
AEML’s most important asset and primary differentiator is its workforce. 
The Company aspires to have best-in-class HR practices by cultivating an 
atmosphere that promotes employee growth, development, and well-being. 

The Company’s relentless focus is on attracting, retaining, and nurturing the 
best of talents – leading the organization towards its strategic goals. The 
Company strives to create a work environment that is free of prejudice and 
bias, and gives equal opportunity to all employees. 

We’ve created alternate streams to foster gender diversity by providing 
chances for women, such as Saksham, which focuses on skill development 
and empowerment. As a dedicated premier organization for skill development 
among women, we manage the Indian Institute for Women Skills (IIWS). Our 
leadership is dedicated to increasing workforce diversity in terms of gender, 
ethnicity, and disability. Our team now comprises a well-balanced mix of ages, 
languages, and cultures, which has aided AEML in creating a pleasant working 
environment.

INTERNAL CONTROL SySTEM
The Company has put in place robust internal control systems and best-in-
class processes, commensurate with its size and scale of operations. There is 
well-established system of multi-disciplinary Management Audit & Assurance 
Services (MAŠAS) that comprises professionally qualified accountants, 
engineers and SAP experienced executives. The team conducts extensive 
audit throughout the year across all functional areas and submits its reports 
to the Management and Audit Committee. The reports contain information 
regarding the compliance with internal controls and efficiency, along with 
effectiveness of operations and key process risks.

The key features of the Company’s internal control system includes:

• Documenting policies and guidelines adequately

• Planning and monitoring annual budgets through monthly review for all 
operating service functions

• Preparing of a risk-based internal audit scope by the MA&AS department. 
The audit frequency is decided by risk ratings of areas/functions. The risk-
based scope is further discussed between the MA&AS team, functional 
heads/process owners/CEO, and CFO. The audit plan is then formally 
reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee of the Board

100



• Managing the web-enabled internal audit processes online by the 
Company’s Audit Management System

• Monitoring system of the Company, run online, with a strong compliance 
management system

• Approving well-defined delegation of power with authority limits for 
approving revenue and Capex expenditure, which is reviewed and suitably 
amended on an annual basis

• Accounting, consolidation, and management: 
The company uses an ERP system (SAP) to record data for accounting, 
consolidation, and management information purposes and connects to a 
different location for efficient exchange of information

CAuTIONARy STATEMENT
Statements in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, describing the Company’s 
objectives, projections, estimates, expectations, and others, may constitute ‘forward-looking 
statements’ within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results 
may defer from those expected or implied. Several factors that could significantly impact 
the Company’s operations include economic conditions affecting demand, supply and price 
conditions in the markets, changes in technology, changes in the Government regulations, 
tax laws and other statutes, climatic conditions, and such incidental factors over which the 
Company does not have any direct control. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly 
update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, 
future events, or otherwise.
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To

The Members,

Your Directors present the 14th Annual Report together 
with audited financial statement of the Adani Electricity 
Mumbai Limited (hereinafter “Company” or “AEML”) for 
the year ended 31 March, 2022.

Financial HigHligHts

Summary of the financial results is as under:

(` in Crores)
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Total Income 7318.59 6,470.94
Total Expenditure 7729.94 6,717.43
Profit/(Loss) Before Rate 
Regulated 
Activities, Exceptional 
Items and Tax

(411.35) (246.49)

Add/(Less): Regulatory 
Income/(Expenses) (Net)

682.47 582.81

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 271.12 336.32
Tax Expenses 148.96 77.15
Net Profit/(Loss) 122.16 259.17
Other Comprehensive 
Income / (Expenses) 
-    Items that will not be 

reclassified to profit or 
loss

14.17 27.51

Effective portion of gains 
and losses on designated 
portion of hedging 
instruments in a cash flow 
hedge

(151.87) (100.66)

Other Comprehensive 
Income / (Expense)

(137.70) (73.15)

Total other Comprehensive 
Income / (Loss)

(15.54) 186.02

During the year under review, the Company’s operating 
EBIDTA registered at ̀  2083 crore and PBT stood at ̀  271 
crore as on 31 March, 2022.

The audited financial statements of your Company as on 
31 March, 2022, prepared in accordance with the relevant 
applicable IND AS and provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, forms part of this Annual Report.

There are no material changes and commitments 
affecting the financial position of the Company between 
the end of the financial year and date of this report.

PerFormance oF tHe comPanY

Business operations

Adani Electricity Mumbai Limited (AEML) is a subsidiary 
of Adani Transmission Limited, (ATL) which is one of the 
largest private sector power transmission companies in 
India with a presence across the western and northern 

Directors’ rePort

regions of India. ATL currently operate more than 14,279 
circuit km of transmission lines and around 20,765 MVA 
of power transformation capacity.

The Company is a licensee for an integrated power 
distribution, transmission and generation business that 
currently serves more than 12 million consumers across 
a license area of approximately 400 square kilometers in 
and around city of Mumbai, the world’s seventh largest 
city by size of population

The Company’s market share of Mumbai is approximately 
87% by license area, 67% by consumers served and 55% 
by electricity supplied.

As an organisation, AEML believes in the motto – 
The Power of Service. It is born of the will to make a 
difference and change things for the better. AEML 
continues the quest of providing the best quality service 
to the customers entrusted with the brand motto of the 
Power of Service.

Distribution Business

AEML’s licensed area in Mumbai covers 400 square 
kilometers and includes the suburban area of Mumbai 
(approximately 75 percent of Greater Mumbai) and the 
Mira-Bhayander Municipal Corporation area in Thane 
District. The entire licensed area is urban with a mix of 
residential, commercial and industrial consumers.

1. Consumers:

  The number of Consumers using the Company’s 
network as on 31 March, 2022 was 30.8 Lacs. The 
Company has added 78,362 consumers in 2021-22.

2. Network Augmentation:

  AEML holds a distribution license granted under 
Section 14 of the Electricity Act and in force 
for a period of 25 years starting from 16 August, 
2011. AEML distributes power primarily through 
underground cable network. As on March 2022, 
the distribution network comprised 4,973 circuit 
kilometers of high-tension cables and 20,304 
circuit kilometers of low-tension cables (including 
service cables and St. light cables). The power 
transformer installed capacity increased to 4,295 
MVA and distribution transformer installed capacity 
increased to 5,288 MVA with addition of new and 
augmentation of 11 Distribution Substations (DSS). 
The Company added 177 new Consumer Substations 
(CSS) totaling to 6,943 CSS in its supply area as on 
31 March, 2022.

3. System Demand:

  The coincident peak demand of distribution system 
in 2021-22 was 1,737 MW (Mar 2022) as against 
1,594 MW (May 2020) in 2020-21.
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4. Operating Performance

  AEML measures its operating performance in terms 
of system distribution losses and reliability indices. 
AEML system distribution losses were brought down 
from 7.82% in 2020-21 to 6.55% in 2021-22. Most 
of the existing loss of energy in distribution system 
is due to heat losses in the various component of 
distribution system with a small portion of the loss 
attributable to meter defects, errors in metering 
and theft of energy. The superior reliability of AEML 
network can be gauged from the fact that SAIDI 
(System Average Interruption Duration Index) for the 
whole year is 23 minutes. SAIDI is average duration 
in minutes of sustained interruptions per consumer. 
Due to this the Average System Availability Index 
(ASAI) remains at 99.99%.

  To optimize the effective utilization of our network 
and manpower, AEML has installed the Supervisory 
Control and Data Acquisition System (“SCADA 
System”). The SCADA System covers all 33-22/11 
kV distribution substations and strategic 11/0.4 
kV consumer substations for data acquisition and 
control. AEML has laid optical fiber cable in the 
licensed area in Mumbai connecting the distribution 
substations. This optical fiber cable is used as a 
communications medium for the SCADA System. 
In addition to ensuring improved reliability and 
reduced interruption in supply, the SCADA System is 
used for energy management and for improvement 
in overall system performance.

5.	 Distribution	Loss	and	Collection	Efficiency:

  The Company achieved 103.41% collection 
efficiency for 2021-22 as against 100.58% during 
2020-21 . Distribution loss of the Company for 2021-
22 is 6.55% as against 7.82% for the 2020-21.

6. Sales and Revenue:

  The Company sold 7972 million (PY 7,169 million) 
units of electricity to its own consumers in 
2021-22. Also, the Tata Power Company Limited 
(TPC) consumers connected to the network of 
the Company consumed 1,474 million (PY 1489 
million) units of electricity in 2021-22. Open access 
consumers connected to the network of the 
Company consumed 280 million (PY 232 million) 
units of electricity in 2021-22. The sales revenue of 
the Company from Distribution Operation for 2021-
22 was ` 6325 crore (PY ` 5566 crore) including 
wheeling revenue of ` 1,332 crore (PY 1313 crore) 
based on the tariff determined by the Hon’ble 
Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission 
(MERC) for 2021-22 vide Multi Year Tariff Order 
dated 31 March, 2020.

generation Business

The Company owns and operates a coal-fired 500 MW 
thermal power station at Dahanu (the “Adani Dahanu 
Thermal Power Station or ADTPS”) in the State of 
Maharashtra located approximately 120 kilometers from 
AEML’s licensed distribution area in Mumbai. ADTPS 
operates 2 x 250 MW generating Units. The first Unit of 
the ADTPS started commercial operations in July, 1995 
and the second Unit started commercial operations in 
January 1996. ADTPS continues to maintain its numero-
uno operational position among the power stations in 
the country. During Financial Year 2021-22, the Plant 
Load Factor was 76.21 % which was largely on account 
of low demand in the western grid and backing down 
of generation as per State Load Dispatch Centre (SLDC) 
instructions. The station generated 3338 million units 
(MUs) along with plant availability of 91%.

transmission Business

AEML holds transmission license, granted under Section 
14 of the Electricity Act, and is valid for a period of 25 
years starting from August 16, 2011. AEML’s distribution 
system in Mumbai is connected to AEML’s power 
transmission system to supply power from the Adani 
Dahanu Thermal Power Station and from the State Grid. 
AEML transmission system comprises of eight 220 KV/33 
KV EHV stations (with installed transformation capacity 
of 3,250 MVA) and around 572 circuit kilometers of 220 
KV lines, including both overhead and underground 
cable systems. The power received at various EHV 
stations is supplied mainly through underground cables 
to AEML distribution receiving stations for onward 
distribution to consumers. There are interconnecting 
220 KV lines between all EHV stations in AEML licensed 
area in Mumbai. The transmission system is also 
connected to the transmission systems of Maharashtra 
State Electricity Transmission Company Limited and 
Tata Power Limited at different interconnection points, 
which helps bring additional power into Mumbai via the 
State Grid and strengthens the Mumbai power system. 
The Company always strives to adopt best practices, 
along with efforts to keep the high standards of 
maintaining network system availability. For fiscal year 
ended 31 March, 2022, the Company registered 99.68% 
system availability, which is above the norms set by the 
regulator, thereby company is operating consistently in 
the incentive zone.

AEML-T has obtained Regulator’s approval for major DPR 
schemes in 2021-22 , e.g.

•  1000 MW HVDC (VSC Based) Aarey-Kudus 
connectivity Scheme in favor of Adani Electricity 
Mumbai Infra Limited (AEMIL) (Subsidiary of AEML)



104

Statutory Reports

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)

•  220kV BKC EHV DPR

•  220 kV AIS to GIS conversion at Aarey EHV Sub 
Station DPR

During the financial year 2021-22, the Company has 
successfully commissioned 220kV 48-120 MVAR Variable 
Reactor scheme at Gorai EHV sub-station for Reactive 
Power Compensation. This is the 1st 220kV Reactor 
scheme implemented in Maharashtra for reactive Power 
Management in Transmission Network in MMR Region.

AEML-T is currently executing Scheme for Borivali 
-Ghodbunder -Boisar LILO line Augmentation (220kV 
GIS Switching Station) and 220/33 kV EHV Substation 
at Bandra Kurla Complex, a prime commercial location 
in Mumbai City. 220 kV AIS to GIS DPR scheme at 
Aarey EHV Sub Station is under execution, which will 
upgrade old AIS equipment with latest GIS technology 
and optimize space utilization for upcoming Bulk Power 
injection Schemes.

In addition to this, AEML-T has planned six new 220/ 
33kV EHV Station schemes and associated connectivity 
to upgrade existing Transmission network in Mumbai 
and to facilitate reliable power to Mumbai consumers.

At AEML-Transmission, new technologies are 
continuously explored and deployed for improvement 
in operation and maintenance practices. In 2022, Auto 
reclose Scheme for Hybrid lines ( EHV Line + Cable) 
using Line Differential Protection is implemented 
for 3 Nos. of 220kV lines emanating from Aarey EHV 
Sub Station, thereby improving System Availability & 
Reliability. Deployment of SCADA Centralized Patch 
Management System for regular update of OS Patches 
and anti-virus updates in all SCADA application servers, 
operator workstations and gateways machines across all 
transmission sub-stations.

a. regulatory updates for aeml:

 1)  Hon’ble MERC has granted its In-principle 
approval to ‘1x1000 MW HVDC VSC based Link 
between MSETCL 400 kV Kudus EHV S/s and 
AEML 220 kV Aarey S/s (HVDC DPR) amounting 
to ` 6,691 crore for implementation by Adani 
Electricity Mumbai Infra Limited (AEMIL), a 
wholly owned subsidiary of AEML.

 2)  Hon’ble MERC has issued order on 28 May, 2021 
on Grid Failure in Mumbai Metropolitan Region 
(MMR) on 12 October, 2020 based on the 
report submitted by its appointed High-Level 
Committee. MERC has held that a Committee 
shall be necessary for closely monitoring the 
progress of identified project schemes such 
400kV Kharghar-Vikhroli project, HVDC project 

and associated transmission schemes within 
and around MMR region which are critical 
for strengthening of Mumbai transmission 
network. Measures identified by High-Level 
Committee are to be implemented in timebound 
manner. Hon’ble MERC has given the action 
plan along with timelines and responsibilities 
and has constituted a Monitoring Committee.

 3)  Hon’ble MERC has issued Order dated 1 June, 
2021 in Case 34 & 35 of 2021 filed by AEML 
for taking on record the changes in lenders of 
AEML and has accorded in principle approval 
for continuation of assignment of Transmission 
& Distribution license in favor of SBICAP 
Trustee Co. Ltd.

 4)  On the petition filed by AEML before Hon’ble 
MERC seeking approval of procurement of 
1000 MW of power from grid connected 
Renewable Energy (RE) Power Projects, 
complemented with firm power from thermal 
Power Project having domestic coal linkage 
in India on Round the Clock (RTC) basis, under 
Tariff-based Competitive Bidding process 
issued by Ministry of Power (MoP), Hon’ble 
MERC has issued Order dated 12 July, 2021 in 
Case No. 140 of 2020. Hon’ble MERC allowed 
the petition partly to allow AEML to initiate 
bidding process for procurement of power upto 
500 MW.

   Subsequently, AEML has filed Case No. 32 of 
2022 before MERC seeking for approval of 
Long-Term procurement of power qua 1000 
MW (500 MW + additional 500 MW under green 
shoe option) from grid connected Renewable 
Energy Power Projects, complemented with 
Power from Coal based Thermal Power Projects 
in India on Round the Clock (RTC) basis, under 
Tariff-based Competitive Bidding process. The 
matter is ongoing before Hon’ble MERC.

 5)  Hon’ble MERC has issued Order dated 7 
October, 2021 regarding commencement 
of commercial arrangement of Deviation 
Settlement Mechanism (DSM) Regulations. 
Initial stabilization period is for 6 months from 
11 October, 2021 to 10 April, 2022. SLDC has 
started issuing weekly bills.

 6)  Hon’ble MERC has granted in-principle approval 
to AEML for setting up of 220kV EHV Sub-
station at Bandra Kurla Complex for ` 1,094 
crore
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 7)  AEML had filed a Petition before Hon’ble MERC 
seeking reconciliation of the issue of Standby 
Charges as decided by Hon’ble MERC in MYT 
Order of TPC-Generation dated 30 March, 
2020 with the Clarificatory Order issued by 
the Supreme Court dated 20 August, 2019. 
Hon’ble MERC had issued the Order reversing 
its decision in MYT Order of TPC-Generation 
allowing it to recover standby charges from the 
Distribution Licensees of Mumbai. TPC filed 
appeal before Hon’ble APTEL in Appeal No. 34 
of 2021. Hon’ble APTEL issued judgment dated 
18 February, 2022 dismissing TPC appeal.

 8)  AEML SEEPZ Limited (ASL), a wholly owned 
subsidiary of AEML has participated in the EOI 
issued by SEEPZ-SEZ Authority for distribution 
of electricity to consumers in SEEPZ-SEZ 
area in Andheri (East), Mumbai and has 
emerged successful. SEEPZ-SEZ Board has 
granted approval to ASL as a co-developer for 
distribution of electricity in SEEPZ-SEZ area. 
Subsequently, two petitions have been filed 
before MERC, one petition by AEML u/s 17 (3) 
of EA’ 03 seeking transfer of assets within 
SEEPZ area to ASL and second petition by ASL 
petition u/s 14 of EA 03 for taking on record 
the deemed distribution license status and for 
issuance of Specific Conditions of Distribution 
License to ASL. Both the petitions are on going 
with MERC.

 9)  Domestic Terminal and Cargo Terminal of 
Mumbai International Airport switched over its 
supply and network from TPC to AEML. This 
will increase 60 MU per year sales on AEML 
network.

 10)  Since April 2021, Hon’ble MERC has given 
in-principle approval to Capital Expenditure 
schemes worth about ` 1,500 crore in AEML 
Distribution and ` 1,239 crore in AEML 
Transmission, execution of which is spread 
over the duration of the MYT Control Period.

B.  sustainable Performance targets & renewable 
Purchase obligation:

  As a part of our commitment for sustainable 
business operations to increase renewable power 
procurement to 30% by FY23 and 60% by FY27.

  AEML is also bound by the RPO Regulations of 
MERC. AEML always pursue to exceed the target 
set by Regulator and as a step towards this AEML 
has signed long term PPA for purchase of 700 MW 
Hybrid wind solar power to meet its cumulative RPO 

and the said plant is expected to be commissioned 
in 2022-23. The Company has purchased 282.50 
MUs of Non-Solar and 461.01 MUs of Solar energy 
to meet its Renewable Purchase Obligation for 
2021-22. Hon’ble MERC in Case No 281 of 2019 
dated 08 January, 2020 has allowed AEML to fulfill 
cumulative shortfall in RPO.

c. safety & Health

  The Company always view employee’s health and 
safety as a priority in the Organization. It always 
ensures that a rigorous health and safety policy is 
in place to protect the employees against possible 
occupational risks and reduces the likelihood of 
accidents in the workplace.

 i. Safety

  Safety First :

   AEML maintains Zero fatality record and 
strives to achieve Zero harm. Special emphasis 
is being given to leading parameters, which is 
periodically monitored by top management. 
Indicators like Incidents, Safety Concerns, 
Near misses, Safety Risk Field Audit (SRFA), 
Vulnerability Safety Risk Assessment (VSRA), 
Safety Interactions are directly logged into 
safety portal. Safety training were imparted 
across all verticals for all categories of 
employees, contract labors and vendors which 
covered 18524 Nos. participants & 48423 of 
Man Hours. 1745 Safety Interactions were done 
by management to improve the safety culture.

   During the year, various initiatives were 
rolled out during this financial year as a part 
of improvement journey. 5 different task 
forces were formed to facilitate and expedite 
the implementation of safety procedures at 
ground level. Special efforts were made on 
vendor engagement & development through 
Contractor Safety Management.

   AEML demonstrated Zero-tolerance towards 
violation of the policy and established 
procedures, Consequence Management 
Procedure was implemented. Employee 
participation and consultation ensured through 
various well defined governance structure 
on periodic basis. Forums like Monthly Joint 
Safety Committee Meeting, Apex, Joint 
Safety Committee Meeting, Unit level Safety 
Committee Meetings, Safety Samvaad, Safety 
Interaction are used to ensure participation 
of our stake holders. Workers & other stake 
holders are continuously encouraged to report 
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Safety concern and Near Miss at all forums and 
there is consistent improvement in the same. 
Many awareness & promotional activities like 
Celebration of National Safety Week, Road 
Safety Month, Fire Safety Week, Electrical 
Safety Week were observed at all locations. 
Workers were recognized by the leadership 
and were awarded for their contribution 
towards promoting Environmental, Health and 
Safety culture. Industry experts were invited to 
share their valuable inputs on every occasions. 
Even during the pandemic, AEML provided 
services by adopting stringent safety measures 
and vaccinated every employee to ensure well-
being of its people & stake holders.

 ii . Health

   Coronavirus outbreak has plunged the world 
into severe crisis. During the pandemic, our 
medical team contributed significantly to 
ensure Business continuity at AEML. AEML 
Company’s medical team played significant 
role in raising awareness regarding symptoms, 
complications and prevention of Covid-19. 
Various preventive measures were undertaken 
by AEML medical team to combat COVID-19. 
Social distancing, Use of masks, hand 
hygiene were made mandatory for everyone. 
Arrangement of onsite awareness sessions 
were made for outdoor employees at all the 
locations to educate them on the symptoms, 
complications & preventive measures for 
Covid-19. Webinars were conducted and 
mailers were sent regularly to the employees 
to make them aware about precautionary 
measures during pandemic. Masks, sanitizers 
& nutritional supplements were distributed 
among employees. Antigen testing drive along 
with MOH MCGM was conducted at Office 
locations for identification of Asymptomatic 
Covid-19 carriers.

   Therapeutic measures: Medical team also 
ensured that Medical centers remain functional 
throughout the Lockdown for all the employees. 
In-Person & tele-consultation facilities were 
made available to the employees and their 
family members who had flu like symptoms. 
Tests were recommended & possible support 
was provided to them in getting them tested. 
AEML also liasioned with many Covid hospitals 
for securing admissions for affected employees 
& their family members. Regular follow ups 

were done on their clinical condition. Various 
guidelines were issued for Return to work after 
recovery/quarantine/travel.

   Covid-19 vaccination: AEML applied for & 
received it’s own private CVC ID & started 
vaccination drive for Adani Group employees 
& families in Mumbai & around at it’s AEMI 
campus & ADTPS & have inoculated more than 
18500+ doses so far. The vaccination program 
also covered contractual & outsourced 
employees as well.

   Apart from Covid-19 activity, following health 
related activities were undertaken:

  a.  30+ Awareness Session on various medical 
conditions were conducted including 
sessions on Monsoon ailments.

  b.  Webinars conducted on Back pain 
management & post covid care

  c.  Certified First Aid training sessions (in-
person) conducted for First Responders. 
Medical team along with our team. The 
Company has been conducting a Certified 
First aid training for our identified First 
Aiders through a DISH certified First 
aid training institute. This is a one full 
day First aid training session wherein 
the attendees are trained in identifying 
Routine & Emergency Medical situations 
and imparting First aid.

  d.  350+ hospitalizations advances & 
reimbursements administered.

  e.  Completed Statutory Periodic Medical 
examination of employees (80%) for 2021-
22 with Covid-appropriate precautions, 
including follow-up of high risk cases

  f.  Periodic Health Check-up Camps -Periodic 
medical examination of all employees is 
has been initiated.

D. learning and development

  Learning and development is about creating 
the culture and environment for individuals and 
organisation to learn and grow. The Company has 
world class infrastructure at two of locations in 
its supply area - Adani Electricity Management 
Institute (AEMI) and Versova Technical Training 
Center (VTTS), which are well equipped with Hi-Tech 
infrastructural facilities for conducting different 
courses on technical as well as management 
subjects covering the needs of the Indian Power 
and allied Energy sectors.
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  Our Generation business has Ministry of Power, 
Central Electricity Authority, GoI certified Technical 
Training center in A Grade (Category – I) at Dahanu, 
which is well equipped with all infrastructural 
facilities for conducting different courses on 
technical, behavioral, IT as well as management.

  During the year under review, the Company has 
conducted various initiatives along with the other 
programs during the planned learning calendar 
for it’s employees. The programs were conducted 
both by internal & external faculties. The initiatives 
included programs like AEMarvels for Leadership 
development, Understanding Financial Aspects of 
Utility sector, technical program like Power System 
Simulation Studies, Battery Energy Storage Systems, 
Predictive Maintenance and Health Monitoring of 
MV Cables & many more.

  Many programs on safety, health & wellness programs 
were conducted like Manogat, Manan, ergonomics, 
mindfulness etc. There were special intiatives such 
as WINspiration - Adani Electricity Mentorship 
Program for our GETs, Unique Certification Program 
under NAPS Scheme, Webinars for students & 
faculty of Engineering College. AEML also provided 
4 months training to 76 Diploma Apprentices & 1 
month training to 37 Interns, which included both 
classroom & online training.

  gyan sagar : To constantly meet the evolving 
needs of its employees, AEML has initiated Gyaan 
Sagar, a knowledge-sharing platform and have 
launched interview on the Ae-varsity portal. This 
platform will facilitate sharing & retention of 
valuable organisational knowledge/ideas from 
our experienced executives. Under this initiative, 

interviews of experienced executives will be 
uploaded on the Ae-varsity portal.

  coursera & evidyalaya: Employees were encouraged 
to self-learn through platforms like Coursera & our 
internal platform of evidyalaya (percipio), the total 
number of courses attended on Coursera were 275 
courses by 813 executives & on evidyalaya many 
executives attended bootcamps, Live event & 
Leadercamps.

  train the trainer: To sharpen the training skills 
of the executives who are Internal facultites or 
interested to become an internal faculty, Train the 
Trainer Certificate Program was organized.

  To improve & develop Leadership skills of our 
executives, Company has arranged working 
Executive MBA Course for 31 Employees from 
Emirates University of 11 months duration.

e.  Business excellence: Business excellence Journey 
at aeml

  Aligning with our vision to be a world-class leader 
and our aspiration to institutionalize a culture of 
Business Excellence, the Generation-Transmission 
& Distribution businesses of AEML, have made rapid 
progress in achieving these goals. The Company 
has adopted world-class approaches, to improve 
the maturity and capability of its processes, leading 
to improved business results. These approaches 
will help in meeting our Strategic and Operational 
objectives, besides meeting the expectations of our 
Stakeholders.

  The foundation of our Business Excellence journey 
at AEML, is based on the following pillars:
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 i. ISO Journey :

   The Quality journey of AEML G-T-D businesses began in 1997, when the Company achieved its first certification 
for ISO 9001 (Quality Management System). Several milestones, have since been achieved along this ISO 
journey. The businesses are certified as below:

sn system objective aeml-g aeml-t aemlD

management standards Certification Since

1 ISO 9001:2015 QMS: Ensure Quality in processes for 
desired output and reliable customer 
services

1998 1997 1998

2 1S0 14001:2015 EMS: Address impact of operation on 
environment, Climate change, ensuring 
Environment compliances

1999 2010 2014

3 ISO 45001: 2018 Occupational Health & Safety practices / 
compliances

2008 2019 2020

4 ISO 50001:2020 EnMS: Address climate change & Energy 
Management compliance

2011 2021 2020

5 ISO 55001:2014 AMS: Asset Lifecyle management 2016 2016 2014

risk Protection standards

6 ISO 27001:2013 ISMS: Ensuring data security 2008 2018 2012

7 IS0 27031 :2011 IRBC: Information & communication 
technology readiness for business 
continuity

2019 2021 2021

8 ISO 22301:2012 BCMS: To safeguard against disruptive 
events and ensure business continuity

2019 In- 
process

2021

Business excellence standard/guidelines

9 ISO 26000:2010 SR: Social Responsibility assessment & 
compliance.

2019 In 
process

In-process

10 SA 8000: 2014 SA: Promotion of work culture fostering 
employee satisfaction, ethical business 
practices & Social Accountability 
Compliance.

2007 In 
process

In-process

11 ISO 20000-1 ITSM: IT Service Management- - In-process

12 ISO / IEC 17025 Accreditation for testing laboratory 
by National Accreditation Board of 
Laboratory (NABL)

2013 - 2009

13 Certificate Single Use Plastic Assessment Certificate 2021 -

14 Certificate Zero Waste to Landfill Certificate. 2021 -

15 Certificate Water Efficiency Management System. 2021

16 Certificate Biodiversity assessment study for all 3 
sessions. Rainy and winter season already 
completed. Summer season planned in 
coming summer.

2022 - -

17 5-S 5-S certificationn 2020 
Platinum

2014 
JUSE

AWMA in 
process

   The Company is well poised to achieve its goal 
of being comprehensively certified for at least 
10 ISO standards.

 ii.  Structured Problem-Solving Methodologies

   AEML has adopted multiple approaches and 
tools, aimed at engaging its employees across 
the organizational hierarchy viz. a) Lean Six-

Sigma, b) Quality Circle c) Adani Workplace 
Management System (AWMS). In this process, 
the Company have created a bank of over 260 
Lean Six-Sigma Green Belt executives, over 
90 Six-Sigma Blackbelts, over 325 employees 
trained on Quality Circle tools and techniques, 
over 400 ISO internal auditors, 22 ABEM 
assessors and over 115 AWMS internal auditors. 
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Multiple improvement projects have been 
undertaken by the respective teams under 
each of these approaches, leading to greater 
maturity of our processes and creating a culture 
of structured problem solving by engagement of 
our employees. The movement has enabled the 
Company to gain top recognitions at Regional, 
National & International competitions.

 iii. ABEM Journey at AEML

   Ever since the launch of “Adani Business 
Excellence Model” (ABEM), a series of 
improvement initiatives were identified and 
completed, based on Self-assessment exercise 
conducted for the ABEM categories. These 
initiatives are led and mentored by senior 
leaders and well supported by various support 
function teams. Employee base of over 1600 
executives, has been formally sensitized on the 
need for Business Excellence and the salient 
features of ABEM. Multiple rounds of internal 
and external assessments have been done 
leading to continual improvements.

   As a recognition of improving maturity, 
the Company has bagged the ‘IMC RBNQA 
Performance Excellence Award’ in the Service 
Sector, during the 2021 award cycle. RBNQA 
is the highest award, given to any company 
in service sector in this cycle. Earlier, the 
Generation business had bagged the ‘IMC 
RBNQA Performance Excellence Award – 
2019’ in Manufacturing category and ‘IMC 
Ramkrishna Bajaj National Quality Performance 
Trophy – 2008’ in respective award cycle. 
These recognitions will further reinforce our 
commitment towards continual improvement 
and Business Excellence.

F. corporate social responsibility

  AEML as a responsible corporate entity undertakes 
appropriate Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
measures having positive economic, social, and 
environmental impact to transform lives and to help 
build more capable and vibrant communities by 
integrating its business values and strengths. In its 
continuous efforts to positively impact the society, 
especially the areas around its sites and offices, 
the Company has formulated guiding policies for 
social development, targeting the inclusive growth 
of all stakeholders under various specific categories 
including promoting education, environment 
sustainability and health care.

 CSR initiatives by AEML

 a)  Utthan – Education programme ‘Utthan’ was 
launched in 25 BMC schools in and around 
Chembur, which aims to foster learning abilities 
in students. It entails adopting government 
primary schools, tutoring Priya Vidyarthis 
(progressive learners), arresting dropout rates 
and collaborating for staff’s capacity building. 
Teachers and parents are brought onboard to 
enhance foundational learning and numeracy 
skills among students.

 b)  Organ Donation Drive : AEML has partnered 
with MOHAN Foundation, an NGO experienced 
in this field to initiate “Jeevan Amrut” an organ 
donation drive across all the offices of the 
Company. More than 500 employees pledged 
to donate their organs posthumously and share 
the gift of life with people in need.

 c)  Single Use Plastic & Recycling – AEML has 
initiated drive to say no to “single use plastic”. 
AEML has also launched Milk Bag collection 
and Recycle Drive. It will not only help to 
conserve our environment but also result in 
recycling and convert Milk bags into utility 
products.

 d)  Old clothes collection Drive : Like every year, 
old clothes collection drive was conducted 
from 21st Dec 2021 to 15 January, 2022, 
where employees were urged to donate old 
clothes to support the underprivileged as their 
contribution to society.

 e)  Integrated Tribal development project 
(Ongoing): ADTPS in association with 
NABARD initiated a program “Integrated Tribal 
Development Project in selected 10 villages of 
Dahanu Block from May 2016. The project is 
implemented through the agency Maharashtra 
Institute of Technology Transfer in Rural Areas 
(MITTRA). This project has catered economic 
up-liftman of tribal covering 1000 land owing 
families phased over 7 years, for developing 1 
acre “Wadi” and to benefit at least 100 landless 
tribal families with livelihood support. The 
farmers have started earning income from 
wadi, vegetable and jasmine crop and happy 
for mangoes plantation flourish with blossom.

 f)  Distribution of Dura oxygen cylinders to nearby 
hospitals during Covid Pandemic : Dahanu 
Sub District Hospital was provided with 4 
Dura Oxygen cylinders, Vedant Hospital and 



110

Statutory Reports

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)

Research Centre Dhundalwadi with 2 nos. and 
Kasa Sub District Hospital and Palghar District 
Hospital with 1 no. each to deal with COVID-19 
pandemic treatment.

 g)  Installation of Water Filtration units and 
construction of shed: ADTPS provided & 
maintained drinking water filtration units 
at three locations of village – Agwan. Sheds 
were also constructed to keep the filtration 
units safe. With this initiative approximately 
800 people including school students were 
benefited.

 h)  Community Infrastructure Development: 
ADTPS has also constructed two schools for 
Zilla Parishad in Dahanu Taluka.- a) Z.P. School, 
Dhakti Dahanu and b) Z.P. School, Kotbi – 
Bujadpada.

g rewards & recognitions

  During the Financial Year 2021-22, AEML got 
recognition from various authorities for its 
performance.

 •  IMC RBNQ (Ramkrishna Bajaj National Quality 
Award) Performance Excellence Awards 2021 
- Performance Excellence trophy in Service 
Sector for 2021 – AEML-D

 •  IDC Future Enterprise Awards 2021

  	 	Future enterprise of the year 2021

  	 	Special Awards for Digital Resiliency

 •  Techcircle Business Transformation Symposium 
& Awards 2021

  	 	Leaders in Business Transformation Award

 •  16th Employer Branding Awards 2021-22 
-16th Employer Branding Awards 2021-22 – 
Maharashtra State Best Employer Award to 
AEML.

 •  “Excellent Energy Efficient Unit” award in 
“22nd National Award for Excellence in Energy 
Management 2021” from CII

 •  International Convention on Quality Control 
Circles 2021 - All 4 participating teams won the 
PAR-EXCELLENCE award

 •  ADTPS also declared as “National Energy 
Leader“ for achieving Excellent Energy Efficient 
Unit Award consecutively for 3 years

 •  ADTPS won APEX India CSR Excellence award 
2020 - Livelihood Creation in GOLD category

 •  ADTPS Quality Improvement Team – Urja 
(Electrical Maintenance) won the awards at 

National conference of Quality Circle Forum of 
India (QCFI) in “Par Excellence” category.

 •  ADTPS declared “Certificate Of Excellence “in 
“16th State level Energy conservation Award 
2021“ by MEDA

 •  ADTPS Training Centre Received recognition of 
Category I training institute from CEA

 annual return

  The Annual Return of the Company as on 31 March, 
2022 is available on the Company’s website and can 
be accessed at https://www.adanielectricity.com/
Investor-Relations.

 Dividend

  The Board of Directors of your Company, after 
considering holistically the relevant circumstances 
and keeping in view the growth opportunities in 
the energy sector that the Company is currently 
engaged with, has decided that it would be prudent 
not to recommend any Dividend for the year under 
review.

 reserves

  The Company has not transferred any amount to 
the General Reserves during the year under review.

 subsidiary companies

  As on date, Adani Electricity Mumbai Infra Limited 
and AEML SEEPZ Limited are subsidiaries of the 
Company.

  A statement containing the salient features of the 
subsidiary is provided in AOC-1 as annexure a.

  changes in Directors in Key managerial Personnel 
(KmPs)

  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, (“Act”) Mrs. Chandra Iyengar 
(DIN: 02821294) was appointed as an Additional 
Director (Non-Executive) of the Company with 
effect from 27th October 2021. Further, the terms 
and conditions of appointment of Independent 
Directors are as per Schedule IV of the Act. In 
accordance with the provisions of the Act, Mrs. 
Chandra Iyengar (DIN: 02821294) holds office 
up to the date of the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting. Pursuant to Section 160 of the Act, the 
Company has received a notice in writing from a 
member proposing the candidature of Mrs. Chandra 
Iyengar (DIN: 02821294) for the office of Director 
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the 
members. It is therefore proposed to recommend 
the appointment of Mrs. Chandra Iyengar (DIN: 
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02821294) as a Director of the Company at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting. For a period of 5 
years with effect from 27th October 2021.

  The Company has received confirmations from Mr. 
K Jairaj and Mrs. Chandra Iyengar, independent 
director(s) stating that they meet with the criteria 
of independence as prescribed under subsection 
(6) of Section 149 of the Act and there has been 
no change in the circumstances which may affect 
their status as Independent Directors during the 
year under review.

  Pursuant to the requirements of the Act and Articles 
of Association of the Company, Mr. Anil Sardana (DIN 
00006867), Director is liable to retire by rotation 
and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment 
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The 
Board recommends the re-appointment of Mr. Anil 
Sardana (DIN 00006867) for your approval.

  Mr. Kunjal Mehta was appointed as a Chief 
Financial Officer of the Company with effect from 
2 May, 2022. Mr. Rakesh Tiwary resigned as a Chief 
Financial Officer of the Company with effect from 1 
April, 2022.

  During the year, Mrs. Chitra Bhatnagar resigned 
from Directorship of the Company with effect from 
27th October 2021. The Board places on record its 
appreciation for the valuable contributions made by 
Mrs. Chitra Bhatnagar during her tenure as Director 
of the Company.

 Directors’ responsibility statement

  Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of 
Directors to the best of their knowledge and ability 
state the following:

 a.   that in the preparation of the annual accounts, 
for the year ended 31 March, 2022, the 
applicable accounting standards have been 
followed along with proper explanation relating 
to material departures, if any;

 b.   that the Directors had selected such accounting 
policies and applied them consistently and 
made judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 
as on 31 March, 2022 and of the profit of the 
Company for that period;

 c.   that the Directors had taken proper and 
sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act, 2013 for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

 d.   that the Directors had prepared the annual 
accounts on a going concern basis;

 e.   that the Directors had devised proper systems 
to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were 
adequate and operating efficiently.

 Board meetings

  The Board of Directors met 4 times during the 
financial year 2021-22 on the following dates: 3 
May, 2021, 2 August, 2021, 27 October, 2021 and 1 
February, 2022

 independent Directors’ meeting

  The Independent Directors met on 28 March, 
2022, without the attendance of Non-Independent 
Directors and members of the Management. The 
Independent Directors reviewed the performance 
of non-independent directors and the Board as 
a whole; the performance of the Chairperson of 
the Company, taking into account the views of 
Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors 
and assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness 
of flow of information between the Company 
Management and the Board that is necessary for 
the Board to effectively and reasonably perform 
their duties.

 re-constitution of committees of the Board

  In the view of appointment of Mrs. Chandra Iyengar 
as an Additional Director of the Company and 
resignation of Mrs. Chitra Bhatnagar Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee 
were reconstituted as under -

  nomination & remuneration committee members:

name Position
Mr. K Jairaj
(Non-Executive & Independent 
Director)

Chairman

Mrs. Chandra Iyengar
(Non-Executive & Independent 
Director)

Member
(appointed as 
member w.e.f. 
27th October 
2021)

Mr. Sagar Adani
(Non-Executive & Non-
Independent Director)

Member

Mr. Quinton Choi
(Non-Executive & Non-
Independent Director)

Member
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 audit committee members:

name Position
Mr. K. Jairaj

(Non-Executive & Independent 
Director)

Chairman

Mr. Sagar Adani

(Non-Executive & Non-
Independent Director)

Member

Mrs. Chandra Iyengar

(Non-Executive & Independent 
Director)

Member

(appointed as 
member w.e.f. 
27th October 
2021)

  The terms of reference and scope of the above 
committees are in compliance with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 along with relevant 
rules forming part of the same as amended.

 auditors and auditors report

  M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered 
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 117366W/W-
100018) Statutory Auditors of the Company holds 
the office until the conclusion of 15th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company.

  The observations and comments given by the 
Auditors in their report together with notes to 
Accounts are self-explanatory and hence do not call 
for any further comments under Section 134 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014.

  The Auditors have not reported any instance of 
fraud on or by the Company under Section 143(12) 
of the Companies Act, 2013.

  The Auditors Report is enclosed with the financial 
statements in this Annual Report.

 cost auditors

  Your Company has re-appointed M/s Devarajan 
Swaminathan and Co, Cost Accountants (Firm 
Registration Number 100669) to conduct audit of 
its cost records for the year 31 March, 2023.

  The Cost Audit Report for the year 2020-21 was filed 
before the due date with the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs.

  The Company has maintained the cost accounts 
and records in accordance with Section 148 of the 
Act and rules made thereunder.

 secretarial audit

  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act 
and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 

of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company 
has appointed M/s. Ashita Kaul & Associates, 
Company Secretaries in Practice to undertake 
the Secretarial Audit of the Company. There is no 
qualification, reservation or adverse remark made 
by the Secretarial Auditor in the Secretarial Audit 
Report. The Audit Report of the Secretarial Auditor 
is attached hereto as annexure B.

 Fixed Deposits

  During the year under review, the Company has not 
accepted deposits within the meaning of Section 
73 of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

 Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments

  The provisions of Section 186 of the Act, with respect 
to loan, guarantee or security are not applicable to 
the Company as Company is engaged in providing 
infrastructural facilities which is exempted under 
Section 186 of the Act. The details of Investments 
made by the Company during the year under review 
are provided in the financial statements.

 related Party transactions

  There have been no materially significant related 
party transactions between the Company and the 
Directors, the management, or the relatives except 
for those disclosed in the financial statements. All 
the related party transaction entered into during 
the financial year were on an arm’s length basis and 
were in the ordinary course of business.

  Accordingly, particulars of contracts or arrangements 
with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) 
along with the justification for entering into such 
contract or arrangement in Form AOC-2 does not 
form part of the report.

 insurance

  The Company has taken appropriate insurance for 
its all assets against foreseeable perils.

 Particulars of employees

  Statement pursuant to Section 197 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 forming part of 
the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 March, 
2021 is annexed to this Report as Annexure C.

  conservation of energy, technology absorption 
and Foreign exchange earnings and outgo

  The information on conservation of energy, 
technology absorption and foreign exchange 
earnings and outgo stipulated under Section 134(3)
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(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of 
The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended 
from time to time is annexed to this Report as 
annexure-D.

 Vigil mechanism

  In accordance with Section 177 of the Act the 
Company has formulated a Vigil Mechanism to 
address the genuine concern, if any of the directors 
and employees and uploaded the same on website 
of the Company at https://www.adanielectricity.
com/Investor-Relations.

 Board evaluation

  The Board adopted a formal mechanism for 
evaluating its performance and as well as that of 
its Committees and individual Directors, including 
the Chairman of the Board. The exercise was 
carried out through an evaluation process covering 
various aspects of the Board functioning such 
as composition of the Board and Committees, 
experience and competencies, performance of 
specific duties and obligations, contribution at the 
meetings and otherwise, independent judgment, 
governance issues etc.

 Prevention of sexual Harassment at Workplace

  The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual 
harassment at the workplace and has adopted a 
policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of 
sexual harassment at workplace in line with the 
provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder.

  As per the requirement of the Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & 
Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, 
your Company has constituted Internal Complaints 
Committee (ICC) which is responsible for redressal 
of complaints related to sexual harassment. During 
the year under review, there were no complaints 
pertaining to sexual harassment.

 corporate social responsibility

  The Company has constituted a Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) Committee and has framed a 
CSR Policy. The Annual Report on CSR activities is 
annexed to this Report as annexure-e.

  The CSR Policy is uploaded on website of the 
Company at https://www.adanielectricity.com/
Investor-Relations.

 internal Financial controls and their adequacy

  The Company has in place adequate internal 
financial controls. During the year under review, 
such controls were tested and no reportable 
material weaknesses in the design or operation 
were observed.

 risk management Policy

  The Company has formulated and implemented Risk 
Management Policy including identification therein 
of the elements of risks, which in the opinion of the 
Board may threaten the existence of the Company.

  Significant and Material Orders passed by the 
regulators or courts or tribunals

  No orders have been passed by the regulators or 
courts or tribunals impacting the going concern 
status and the Company’s operations during the 
year under review.

 secretarial standards

  The Company has complied with the applicable 
Secretarial Standards.

 acknowledgement

  Your Directors are highly appreciative and grateful 
for all the guidance, support and assistance received 
from the Government, Financial Institutions and 
Banks. Your Directors thank esteemed customers, 
suppliers and business associates for their faith, 
trust and confidence reposed in the Company.

  Your Directors also wish to place on record their 
sincere appreciation for the dedicated efforts and 
consistent contribution made by the employees at 
all levels, to ensure that the Company continues to 
grow and excel.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

anil sardana
Place: Ahmedabad Chairman
Dated: 2 May, 2022 (DIN: 00006867) 
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Part a subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be 
presented with amounts in `)

1. Sl. No. 1

2. Name of the subsidiary : aeml seePZ limited

3.  The date since when subsidiary was acquired :  
8 December, 2020

4.  Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 
different from the holding company’s reporting 
period. 1 april, 2021 to 31 march, 2022

5.  Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the 
last date of the relevant Financial year in the case 
of foreign subsidiaries. not applicable

6. Share capital: 1.00.000

7. Reserves and surplus: (44,240)

8. Total assets: (565,085)

9. Total Liabilities: (565,085)

10. Investments: - nil

11. Turnover: - nil

12. Profit before taxation: (31,389)

13. Provision for taxation: not applicable

14. Profit after taxation: (31,389)

15. Proposed Dividend: not applicable

16.  Extent of shareholding (in percentage): 100%

annexure-a

Form aoc-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of  
subsidiaries or associate companies or joint ventures

Part a subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be 
presented with amounts in `)

1. Sl. No. 1

2.  Name of the subsidiary : adani electricity mumbai 
infra limited

3.  The date since when subsidiary was acquired :  
3 January, 2020

4.  Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 
different from the holding company’s reporting 
period. 1 april, 2021 to 31 march, 2022

5.  Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the 
last date of the relevant Financial year in the case 
of foreign subsidiaries. not applicable

6.  Share capital: 1.00.000

7.  Instrument Entirely Equity in Nature : (` in Lacs): 
10,471.85

8.  Reserves and surplus (Rs in Lacs): (8.35)

9. Total assets (` in Lacs): 22,265.88

10. Total Liabilities (` in Lacs): 22,265.88

11. Investments: - nil

12. Turnover: - nil

13. Profit before taxation (` in Lacs): (0.31)

14. Provision for taxation: - nil

15. Profit after taxation (` in Lacs): (0.31)

16. Proposed Dividend: not applicable

17. Extent of shareholding (in percentage): 100%
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To
The Members,
aDani electricitY mumBai limiteD
Adani Corporate House, Shantigram, 
Near Vaishno Devi Circle,
S. G. Highway, Khodiyar 
Ahmedabad 382421, Gujrat, India

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the 
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 
the adherence to good corporate practices by adani 
electricity mumbai limited (hereinafter called “the 
company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner 
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating 
the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and 
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of adani electricity mumbai 
limited’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the company 
and also the information provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and authorized representatives during 
the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report 
that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit 
period covering the year ended 31 March, 2022 complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also 
that the Company has proper Board–processes and 
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, 
forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company for the year ended 31 March, 2022 
according to the provisions of:-

1.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules 
made thereunder;

2.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 
(‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder- Not 
applicable;

3.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and 
Bye-laws framed thereunder;

4.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and 
the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct 
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings-

5.  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed 
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

annexure B

Form no. mr-3

secretarial auDit rePort
For tHe Year enDeD marcH 31, 2022

[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 09 of the Companies  
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’)- Not applicable;

 (a)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

 (b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
1992;

 (c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2009;

 (d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

 (e)  The Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008;

 (f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the 
Companies Act and dealing with the client;

 (g)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulation, 2009; 
and

 (h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

6. Other laws specifically applicable to the company:-

 (a)  The Electricity Act, 2003 and the rules & 
regulations made thereunder;

The adequate systems and processes are in place to 
monitor and ensure compliance with general laws like 
labour laws, environmental laws etc. to the extent of 
their applicability to the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable 
clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has 
complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned 
above.

We further report that, the Board of Directors of the 
Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 
Non-Executive Directors, Executive Directors and 
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition 
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of the Board of Directors that took place during the 
period under review were carried out in compliance with 
the provision of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the 
Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance, and system 
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting 
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings are carried out 
unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meetings 
of Board of Directors.

We further report that, there are adequate systems and 
processes in the company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure 
compliances with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines.

We further report that, during the audit period no special 
Resolution were passed.

     For ashita Kaul & associates
       company secretaries
 

Proprietor
Date: 2 May, 2022 FCS 6988/ CP 6529
Place: Mumbai  UDIN: F006988D000254171

ANNExuRE B (Contd.)
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Disclosure unDer section 134(3)(m) oF tHe 
comPanies act, 2013, reaD WitH rule 8 oF tHe 
comPanies (accounts) rules, 2014 regarDing 
conserVation oF energY anD tecHnologY 
aBsorPtion

a. conservation of energy

 Adani Dahanu Thermal Power Station

 a.  Energy Conservation measures taken at Power 
Stations and Offices:

  Following initiatives taken in ADTPS 2021-22

  i.  Replacement of High Pressure (HP) & 
Intermediate Pressure (IP) Turbine and 
Annual Overhauling (AOH) of Low Pressure 
(LP) Turbine of Unit-01.

  ii.  Reduction in slip loss of Boiler Feed Pump 
(BFP) 1B hydraulic coupling in Unit-1.

  iii.  De–staging of – Condensate Extraction 
Pump (CEP) 1B.

  iv.  Installation of Coal Feeder Variable 
Frequency Drive (VFD) panel.

 b.  Impact of measures outlined at (a) above on 
Energy Consumption:

  i.  Heat rate improvement by @ 36kcal/Kwh 
in Unit-1 due to Replacement of HP & IP 
Turbine - AOH of LP Turbine.

  ii.  Auxiliary Power consumption reduced by 
584 KW due to Reduction in slip loss of 
BFP 1B hydraulic coupling in U-1.

  iii.  Auxiliary Power consumption reduced by 
83 KW due De–staging of - CEP 1B

  iv.  Auxiliary Power consumption reduced by 
6.75 KW due installation of coal Feeder 
VFD Drive panel.

 c.  The capital investment on energy conservation 
equipments:

  i.  Replacement of refurbished HP & IP 
Turbine.

  ii.  Replacement of BFP 1B with modified 
Hydraulic coupling.

  iii.  De- staging of CEP 1B.

  iv.  Installation of Coal Feeder VFD Drive 
panel.

 Distribution Business

 a. Energy Conservation measures undertaken:

   The Company conducts energy conservation 
and energy efficiency (EC and EE) programs 

annexure – c

to create awareness in the society on the 
importance of energy conservation and smart 
usage of energy in order to reduce damage to 
environment due to Green House Gas (CHG) 
emission. The ultimate goal is to make every 
citizen in the AEML’s licensed area, a part of 
this initiative and develop citizen’s movement. 
Various initiatives were undertaken during 
financial year 2021-22 in all verticals of AEML.

   The Company continued to pursue walkthrough 
energy audit services at no cost to consumers 
not only to identify energy saving potential but 
also to enhance energy efficiency awareness. 
Under this initiative company has covered over 
61 consumers and identified potential saving 
of around 0.9 million units (MUs) to these 
consumers.

  •  Under large scale DSM program, AEML 
continued to offer it’s residential 
customers, with approved quantity pf 
50,000 super-efficient (Brush Less Direct 
Current) BLDC ceiling fans i.e. Bureau of 
Energy Efficiency (B.E.E.) certified 5 Star 
rated ceiling fan. In this financial year 
the Company has distributed 850 new 
BLDC technology, 28 watts ceiling fans 
resulting in annual savings of 0.16 million 
units (MUs). Till date total replacements 
are 1643 fans resulting in savings of 0.36 
million units (MUs).

  •   On similar lines, AEML has another initiative 
“large scale DSM program” of replacement 
of 20,000 inefficient refrigerator of AEML 
residential consumers. In this financial 
year, Company has replaced 658 old 
refrigerators by 5-Star refrigerators, which 
resulted in saving of 0.7 million Units. 
Till date total replacements are 2342 
refrigerators resulting in savings of 2.1 
million units (MUs)

  •   The Company through Urja Samvardhan 
Upakaram programme, continued to 
conduct workshops in various academic 
institutions, offices, banks, hospitals, 
industrial estates, housing societies, slum 
areas, etc. This year company reached out 
to around 650+ people through on site/ 
on-line/digital/telephonic platform and 
educated them on ‘Why to conserve and 
how to conserve energy’.



118

Statutory Reports

 b.  Impact of measures outlined at (a) above on 
Energy Consumption:

   Energy savings estimated due above initiatives 
taken during this financial year are 0.87 million 
units amounting to approximately 800 tonnes 
of CO2 reduction.

 c.  The capital investment on energy conservation 
equipment:

   In 2021-22, approx. ` 5 Lacs subsidy is granted 
by the Company for residential consumers 
under 5 star BLDC ceiling fan program and ` 30 
Lacs subsidy for 5 star Refrigerator program.

B. technology absorption

 Adani Dahanu Thermal Power Station

 a.  The Efforts made towards technology 
absorption

  i.  Installation of modified hydraulic coupling 
with new gear ratio to reduce auxiliary 
power consumption.

  ii.  Installation of air pressure booster system 
for Boiler feed pump (BFP) recirculation 
valve (RC) to increase the air pressure 
locally.

  iii.  Installation of Noise level measurement 
system for FGD Booster fan.

  iv.  Temperature monitoring of Electronic 
cards & Motor terminals through Thermo 
vision camera.

  v.  Up gradation of turbine control from 
Iskematic system to MAX DNA

  vi.  Up gradation Automated Voltage 
Regulator (Analog AVR) to Digital 
Automated Voltage Regulator (DAVR)

  vii.  Implementation of Deviation Settlement 
Mechanism (DSM).

 b. Benefits derived

  i.  Benefit in terms of power saving per day 
during daily operation.

  ii.  After installation of air boosters in all 
Boiler feed pump (BFP) recirculation 
valve valves, loading/Unloading setting of 
compressor system reduced and results in 
Energy saving per day.

  iii.  Increase in FGD reliability by reduction in 
equipment failures.

  iv.  Equipment failure detected in advance 
hence availability is increased.

  v.  By Upgrading to new MAX DNA reliability 
is increased.

  vi.  Digitalization of AVR with latest available 
technology helps in achieving smooth 
functioning and more accuracy in 
operation.

  vii.  DSM is a mechanism by which grid 
stability is achieved by imposing penalty 
and incentives for over drawl/injection or 
under drawl/injection from the schedule.

 Transmission Business

 a.  The efforts made towards technology 
absorption:

  i. Cyber Security Initiatives for OT System.

   a.  Third party assessment of current 
Cybersecurity posture for OT 
Infrastructure.

   b.  Preparation of “Cyber Crisis 
Management Plan” (CCMP) & “CII 
Identification & Assessment report” 
as per guidelines of NCIIPC.

   c.  Deployment of SCADA Centralized 
Patch Management System for 
regular update of OS Patches and 
anti-virus updates in all SCADA 
application servers, operator 
workstations and gateways machines 
across all transmission sub-stations.

  ii.  Implementation of Controlled Switching 
Device (CSD) for reactor switching at 
220kV AEML Gorai EHV Station.

 b. Benefits derived:

   i.  Cyber security Controls for SCADA will 
enhance the security posture of SCADA 
system against any cyber incidents

  ii.  The controlled switching device (CSD) 
for high voltage circuit breaker reduces 
the contact wear and the stress on 
circuit breaker and equipment failure 
by minimizing the switching surge by 
ensuring optimal switching of circuit 
breaker

ANNExuRE C (Contd.)
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 c.  In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the 
financial year):

sr 
no

technology imported Year of import status

I. Distributed Acoustic Sensing (DAS) system for proposed HVDC 
cable scheme between Aarey-Kudus.

2024-25 Process Initiated.

II. Deployment of Centralization of Patch management System at 
AEML-T resulting into enhancement of cyber security posture of 
transmission SCADA system.

2021-22 Completed

III. Travelling Wave Fault locator 2020-21  Absorbed
IV. Optical CT (To enable auto re-closure of hybrid transmission lines) 2020-21  Absorbed
V. Online DC Earth fault detection system 2020-21 Absorbed

VI. Intrusion detection system for underground EHV Cable System 2019-20 Absorbed

VII. Augmented reality technology for outage management in 220kV 
EHV Station & 220kV Cable System

2018-19  Absorbed

 Distribution Business

  AEML in pursuit of delivering quality and reliable 
power supply to the esteemed consumers of 
Mumbai always keeps focus on Safety, Quality, Cost 
competitiveness, Space saving (compactness). AEML 
has adopted the latest technology benchmarked by 
customising it to meet its requirement to enhance 
its operations. The company is constantly adopting 
technological innovations to meet it’s Customers’ 
demands and expectation of business. To achieve 
these objectives, various technologies were 
explored and deployed in AEML during 2021-22.

  The salient features and benefits derived or likely to 
be derived out of the technology absorption are as 
under:

 Intelligent Rack in Rack out device

 • Safety from hazard of Electrical Flashover

 •  Cost effective solution for PLC controlled 
accurate RI/RO operations of CB

 •  Overstress on Racking mechanism avoided 
thereby enhancing mechanism life

  Tower type substation (RCC Column Type 
Substation)

 • Compact Footprint  - (LxBxH) 2.3mx2.2mx5.25m

 •  Preferable in slums to mitigate non- 
availability of space for substation

 Mini pillar with insulated busbar

 • Restricted access prevents possibility of theft.

 •  Insulated busbars restricts unauthorized cable 
connections.

 •  Elimination of crimping type cable connections 
facilitates faster installations

 LI-ion battery for RMu

 •  Enhanced service life compared to VRLA SMF 
batteries

 •  Practically maintenance free

 •  Dedicated battery health monitoring system

 •  Lesser self-discharge

 Hybrid LV panel for large LV supply release

 •  Space saving solution as no separate panel 
required for catering large LV loads and 
conventional loads

 On load changeover switch with metering unit

 •  Compact and easy to install

 •  Single panel with On-load change over 
switch arrangement accommodates supply 
requirement for fire-fighting system (NFF & 
AFF) resulting elimination of existing two 
separate SDF metering units

 Arc Flash Relay –

 •  Reduce shutdown risk, minimize damage, and 
optimize the maintenance effort

 •  Safety of people and installation

 •  Light as well as light + current based protection

 •  Point sensor, line sensor and/ or fast earthing 
switch

 •  Pilot completed for two 11kV switchboards for 
retrofitting at Sahar Plaza and Juhu North R/S

 MV Hybrid cable

 •  Embedded Fiber Optic Cables inside HT cable 
using Composite cable construction.

 •  Elimination of access charges in laying FOC 
separately.
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 •  Elimination of RI Cost for laying FOC separately

 •  Enhanced CSS Connectivity with Fiber optic 
cable.

 •  Provide platform for new technologies- DTS 
and other cable diagnostic techniques.

 Twin Ferrule and Long Barrel Joints

 •  Cable Fault repairing using twin ferrule, long 
barrel Joints

 •  Highly suitable for repair site with space 
constraint

 •  Require 50% less excavation for fault repair 
activity

 •  Single joint is used for repairing instead of 2 
joints.

 •  Require 50% less time for completing repair 
activity.

 Twin Dry DTs

 •  Two CCAs Horizontally placed or vertically 
stacked in one enclosure.

 •  50% Redundancy in case of Failure of any one 
CCA

 •  19% less footprint vis a vis conventional design

 •  Interchangeability hence fast to restore

 •  Fire safe design suitable for slum projects.

 Customized Compact Substations –

 •  25% to 75% footprint reductions w.r.t 
conventional solutions

 •  Restricting DT capacity to improve HT/LT ratio

 •  Improved power supply reliability

 Li-ion Battery -DSS

 •  Compact footprint (60% less compared to Ni-
Cd Battery System)

 •  Practically maintenance –free

 •  Dedicated battery health monitoring system

 •  Lesser self-discharge

 SMPS Battery Charger -DSS

 •  Enhancing overall efficiency in the absence of 
magnetics in SMPS technology

 •  Modular in design, redundancy and hot 
swapping of modules ensured

 •  Single controller for charger control, protection 
and monitoring of charger parameters

 •  Intelligent management of BMS prolongs 
battery’s life

  AR/VR	System-	Applications/benefits	of	Immersive	
Technology

 •  Equipment Switching Operation Assistance & 
Maintenance Guidance

 •  Expert Remote Support at Field Troubleshooting

 •  Effective Knowledge Sharing/ training

 •  Virtual FAT or Site Activity Inspection

 Cable Diagnostics

  Cable Diagnostic and testing guidelines 
implemented in line with IEEE 400.2 and IEEE 
400.3 guides. DC testing abolished for MV cables.

 a.  VLF, Tan delta and Partial discharge testing 
sets commissioned in all Divisions of AEML-D. 
LT Portable Cable fault locator commissioned 
in Chembur Zone.

 b.  Process for Trend analysis implemented by 
creating SAP measurement points for IR and 
Tan delta results for MV cables.

 c.  Online PD conducted for 100 sections. Based 
on PD results, offline PD conducted & potential 
joint failures were averted.

 d.  Consultancy Project with IIT for Transition 
Joints. Based on findings, OEM offers evaluated 
for “Apply & Supply Tender”. Material properties 
and evaluation parameters have been updated 
for prospective vendors.

 Retro-filling	of	Transformers	with	Natural	Ester	oil

 •  Enhanced life and loading capacity.

 •  30 distribution transformers retro-filled at site.

 •  Benefits derived are extended life of 
transformer insulation and fire safety

 New initiatives in instruments and tools

 •  Digital Wireless system for Disaster 
Management – New Wireless system 
commissioned.

 •  Salient features are built-in GPS Receiver/ 
Antenna, built-in Bluetooth for hands-free 
operation.

 Digitization of process at AEML:

  The company has realized that digital initiatives 
are critical to the success of any business. 
We are constantly adopting Strategic Digital 
interventions across people, process & customer 
to ensure sustainable growth for all stakeholders. 
Holistic transformation of Business Process using 
Automation & Data Driven Decision making has 
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reduced cost & completion time and helped 
in improving process efficiency and quality. 
Empowered Digital Workforce, strong IT network 
backbone, exposure to latest technologies, unified 
communications & collaboration & improved 
Cybersecurity posture & maturity are the strengths 
of our business. The principal differentiators in 
achieving objectives of digitization during the 
review are as under:

 •  Successful implementation of SAP Instance 
Consolidation & Suite on HANA Migration

 •  Visual Data Analytics- 200 plus analytics 
reports/dashboards developed and published

 •  Advanced Analytics- AI models developed and 
deployed for

   Consumer Affluency

    Payment behavior during COVID-19 
lockdown

   HT Cable Faults prediction

   Demand Load Forecasting

 •  Implementation of ITIL Based Service Delivery 
Management Processes

 •  RPA Bot Deployment: 20+ Business Process 
Automated using RPA BOT

 •  Implementation of Data Visualisation tools 
to support & promote Data backed decision 
making

 •  Digital interventions for customers & 
employees: Digital Empowerment of Customers 
& Employees to ensure sustainable adoption of 
Digital Interventions such as:

    Customer Communication Management 
(CCM) Enhanced Customer 
Communication efficiency to reduce Cost 
of Communication and build rich data for 
Customer behavioral analytics

   Green Energy Initiative

    Self Help Customer Mobile Application 
with Submit meter reading.

    Mobility Solutions: My Work Mobile 
App. & Auto work allocation process- To 
ensure sustainable adoption of Digital 
Interventions among employees, My Work 
& Asset Care Application were successfully 
implemented

    Data-based decision making with the help 
of Power BI.

 • Cyber Security:

   As digitisation picks up speed, the importance 
of cybersecurity increases. In order to, reduce 
the risk of cyber-attacks and protect the 
systems, network and technologies against the 
unauthorised exploitation below major steps 
were taken:

    Successful segregation of IT-OT Network 
covering AEML Core network deployment 
across AEML offices and DDLO Data 
Centre Network

    Enhanced Data Security with encryption 
feature through deployment of Bit locker- 
disk, RSA Authentication deployment for 
Cyber Security

    Successful completion of AEML Security 
surveillance Project, which provides 
centralized access through Network 
Operation Control, covering 1200 CCTVs.

    Successful completion of ISO 27001 re-
certification audit with zero NC (non-
compliance)

   Successful Go Live of Contact Centre DR
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C.  In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial 
year):

sr 
no

technology imported Year of import status

I. Deployment of Centralization of Patch management System at AEML-T 
resulting into enhancement of cyber security posture of transmission 
SCADA system.

2021-22 Completed

II. Travelling Wave Fault locator 2020-21 Completed
III. Optical CT (To enable auto re-closure of hybrid transmission lines) 2020-21 Completed
IV. Online DC Earth fault detection system 2020-21 Completed
V. Intrusion detection system for underground EHV Cable System 2019-20 Completed
V. Augmented reality technology for outage management in 220kV EHV 

Station & 220kV Cable System
2018-19 Completed

 expenditure incurred on r&D: NIL

c. Foreign exchange earnings and outgo

 Total foreign exchange earnings and outgo for the financial year are as follows:

 i. Total foreign exchange earnings  :  NIL

 ii.  Total foreign exchange outgo  :  ` 2092.28 crore
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annual rePort on corPorate social resPonsiBilities (csr) actiVities as Per section 135 oF tHe 
comPanies act, 2013

1. Brief outline on csr Policy of the company.

  The Company has framed Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy which encompasses its philosophy and 
guides its sustained efforts for undertaking and supporting socially useful programs for the welfare & sustainable 
development of the society.

  The CSR Policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company at https://www.adanielectricity.com/Investor-
Relations.

2. the composition of the csr committee

sr. 
no

name of Director Designation 
/ nature of 

Directorship

number of meetings of 
csr committee held 

during the year

number of meetings of 
csr committee attended 

during the year
1 Mr. Kandarp Patel Chairman 2 2
2 Mr. Sagar Adani Member 2 1
3 Mr. K Jairaj Member 2 2
4 Mr. Quinton Choi1 Member 2 2

3.  Provide the web-link where composition of csr committee, csr Policy and csr projects approved by the board 
are disclosed on the website of the company

 https://www.adanielectricity.com/Investor-Relations

4.  Provide the details of impact assessment of csr projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the 
companies (corporate social responsibility Policy) rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report)

 Not Applicable

5.  Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the companies (corporate 
Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any:

sr. no Financial Year amount available for set-off from 
preceding financial years (in `)

amount required to be set-off 
for the financial year, if any (in `)

Not Applicable

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): ` 282.60 crore

7. (a)  Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5):  ` 6.37 crore (including unspent CSR 
amount of ` 0.72 crore pertaining to 2019-20)

 (b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: NIL

 (c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL

 (d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): ` 6.37 crore

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

(` In crore)
total amount 
spent for the 
Financial Year.

amount unspent
total amount transferred to unspent 
csr account as per section 135(6).

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
schedule Vii as per second proviso to section 135(5).

amount. Date of transfer. name of the Fund amount. Date of transfer.
6.41 Nil N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

annexure D



124

Statutory Reports

 
(b

) 
D

et
ai

ls
 o

f 
C

S
R

 a
m

ou
nt

 s
pe

nt
 a

ga
in

st
 o

ng
oi

ng
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

fi
na

nc
ia

l y
ea

r:

(`
 In

 c
ro

re
)

sl
. 

n
o.

n
am

e 
of

 t
he

 P
ro

je
ct

.
it

em
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 li
st

 
of

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

in
 

sc
he

du
le

 V
ii 

to
 t

he
 

a
ct

.

lo
ca

l 
ar

ea
 

(Y
es

/
n

o)
.

lo
ca

ti
on

 o
f 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t.

Pr
oj

ec
t 

du
ra

ti
on

.
a

m
ou

nt
 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
fo

r t
he

 
pr

oj
ec

t

a
m

ou
nt

 
sp

en
t 

in
 t

he
 

cu
rr

en
t 

fi
na

nc
ia

l 
Ye

ar

a
m

ou
nt

 
tr

an
sf

er
re

d 
to

 u
ns

pe
nt

 
c

sr
 

a
cc

ou
nt

 
fo

r t
he

 
pr

oj
ec

t 
as

 
pe

r s
ec

ti
on

 
13

5(
6

)

m
od

e 
of

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

 
- D

ir
ec

t 
(Y

es
/

n
o)

.

m
od

e 
of

 im
pl

em
en

ta
ti

on
 - 

th
ro

ug
h 

im
pl

em
en

ti
ng

 a
ge

nc
y

st
at

e.
D

is
tr

ic
t.

n
am

e
c

sr
 r

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

nu
m

be
r.

1.
P

ro
m

ot
io

n 
of

 h
ea

lt
h 

ca
re

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

pr
ev

en
ti

ve
 h

ea
lt

h 
ca

re
 a

nd
 s

an
it

at
io

n,
 a

nd
 

di
sa

st
er

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
do

na
ti

on
 t

ow
ar

ds
 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
so

ft
w

ar
e 

su
pp

or
t 

to
 T

at
a 

M
em

or
ia

l H
os

pi
ta

l, 
M

um
ba

i

P
ro

m
ot

io
n 

of
 

he
al

th
 c

ar
e,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

pr
ev

en
ti

ve
 

he
al

th
 c

ar
e 

an
d 

sa
ni

ta
ti

on
,

Ye
s

M
ah

ar
as

ht
ra

M
um

ba
i

3 
ye

ar
s

6
.1

3
6

.1
3

N
A

N
o

A
da

ni
 

Fo
un

da
ti

on
A

da
ni

 F
ou

nd
at

io
n

(N
o.

 
C

SR
0

0
0

0
0

26
5)

 
(c

) 
D

et
ai

ls
 o

f 
C

S
R

 a
m

ou
nt

 s
pe

nt
 a

ga
in

st
 o

th
er

 t
ha

n 
on

go
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 f

or
 t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l y

ea
r:

(`
 In

 c
ro

re
)

sl
. 

n
o.

n
am

e 
of

 t
he

 
Pr

oj
ec

t.
it

em
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 li
st

 o
f 

ac
ti

vi
ti

es
 in

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
V

ii 
to

 t
he

 a
ct

.
lo

ca
l 

ar
ea

 
(Y

es
/

n
o)

.

lo
ca

ti
on

 o
f 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t.

a
m

ou
nt

 s
pe

nt
 

fo
r t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 

(in
 `

).

m
od

e 
of

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

ti
on

 - 
D

ir
ec

t 
(Y

es
/n

o)
.

m
od

e 
of

 im
pl

em
en

ta
ti

on
 - 

th
ro

ug
h 

im
pl

em
en

ti
ng

 a
ge

nc
y

st
at

e.
D

is
tr

ic
t.

n
am

e
c

sr
 r

eg
is

tr
at

io
n 

nu
m

be
r.

1
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
 t

he
 N

at
io

na
l 

A
ss

oc
ia

ti
on

 
of

 D
is

ab
le

d’
s 

En
te

rp
ris

es

P
ro

m
ot

in
g 

ed
uc

at
io

n,
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

 s
pe

ci
al

 e
du

ca
ti

on
 a

nd
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

en
ha

nc
in

g 
vo

ca
ti

on
 s

ki
lls

 e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 a

m
on

g 
ch

ild
re

n,
 w

om
en

, 
el

de
rly

 a
nd

 t
he

 d
if

fe
re

nt
ly

 a
bl

ed
 a

nd
 

liv
el

ih
oo

d 
en

ha
nc

em
en

t 
pr

oj
ec

ts

Ye
s

M
ah

ar
as

ht
ra

M
um

ba
i

0
.0

6
5

Ye
s

--
--

2
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
 

Si
dd

hi
vi

na
ya

k 
G

re
en

 In
di

a

En
su

rin
g 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l s
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
, e

co
lo

gi
ca

l b
al

an
ce

, 
pr

ot
ec

ti
on

 o
f f

lo
ra

 a
nd

 fa
un

a,
 a

ni
m

al
 w

el
fa

re
, a

gr
of

or
es

tr
y,

 
co

ns
er

va
ti

on
 o

f 
na

tu
ra

l r
es

ou
rc

es

Ye
s

M
ah

ar
as

ht
ra

M
um

ba
i

0
.1

1
Ye

s

3
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
 S

ad
bh

av
an

a 
Se

w
a 

Sa
m

it
i

P
ro

m
ot

in
g 

ed
uc

at
io

n,
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

 s
pe

ci
al

 e
du

ca
ti

on
 a

nd
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

en
ha

nc
in

g 
vo

ca
ti

on
 s

ki
lls

 e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 a

m
on

g 
ch

ild
re

n,
 w

om
en

, 
el

de
rly

 a
nd

 t
he

 d
if

fe
re

nt
ly

 a
bl

ed
 a

nd
 

liv
el

ih
oo

d 
en

ha
nc

em
en

t 
pr

oj
ec

ts

Ye
s

M
ah

ar
as

ht
ra

M
um

ba
i

0
.0

59
Ye

s
-

-

4
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
 

Tr
ib

al
 a

re
as

P
ro

m
ot

in
g 

ge
nd

er
 e

qu
al

it
y,

 e
m

po
w

er
in

g 
w

om
en

, s
et

ti
ng

 
up

 h
om

es
 a

nd
 h

os
te

ls
 fo

r w
om

en
 a

nd
 o

rp
ha

ns
; s

et
ti

ng
 u

p 
ol

d 
ag

e 
ho

m
es

, d
ay

 c
ar

e 
ce

nt
re

s 
an

d 
su

ch
 o

th
er

 f
ac

ili
ti

es
 

fo
r s

en
io

r c
it

iz
en

s 
an

d 
m

ea
su

re
s 

fo
r r

ed
uc

in
g 

in
eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

fa
ce

d 
by

 s
oc

ia
lly

 a
nd

 e
co

no
m

ic
al

ly
 b

ac
kw

ar
d 

gr
ou

ps

Ye
s

M
ah

ar
as

ht
ra

M
um

ba
i

0
.0

5
Ye

s

A
N

N
E

x
u

R
E

 D
 (

C
on

td
.)



125

Statutory Reports

 (d) amount spent in administrative overheads: NIL

 (e) amount spent on impact assessment, if applicable: NIL

 (f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): ` 6.41 crore

 (g) excess amount for set off, if any: 0.04

sr. no Particular amount (in crore.)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per 

section 135(5)
` 6.37 crore (including unspent CSR amount 
of ` 0.72 crore pertaining to 2019-20)

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 6.41
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 0.04
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or 

activities of the previous financial years, if any
--

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial 
years [(iii)-(iv)]

0.04

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

(` In crore)
sr. 
no

Preceding 
Financial 
Year

amount 
transferred to 
unspent csr 

account under 
section 135 (6)

amount 
spent in the 

reporting 
Financial 

Year

amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 

section 135(6), if any.

amount remaining 
to be spent in 

succeeding 
financial years. 

(in `)
name of 
the Fund

amount (in `). Date of 
transfer.

1 2019-20 0.72  0.72 -- -- -- Nil

 (b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

(` In crore)
sl. 
no.

Project iD. name of the Project. Financial 
Year in 

which the 
project was 
commenced

Project 
duration

total 
amount 

allocated 
for the 
project

amount 
spent on 

the project 
in the 

reporting 
Financial 

Year

cumulative 
amount 
spent at 

the end of 
reporting 
Financial 

Year. (in `)

status of 
the project - 
completed /

ongoing.

1. CSR-Adani 
Foundation

Promotion of health care, 
including preventive health 
care and sanitation, and 
disaster management 
including donation towards 
providing software support 
to Tata Memorial Hospital, 
Mumbai

2019-20 3 years 6.13 6.13 8.38 Completed

10  in case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired 
through CSR spent in the financial year: Not Applicable

 (asset-wise details).

 (a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).

 (b) amount of csr spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.

 (c)  Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, 
their address etc.

 (d)  Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the 
capital asset).

11.  Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 
135(5) - n.a.

Kandarp Patel K Jairaj
 Managing Director & CEO

(DIN 02947643)
 Director

(DIN 01875126)
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introDuction

DNV represented by DNV Business Assurance India 
Private Limited (‘DNV’) has been commissioned by 
the management of Adani Electricity Mumbai Limited 
(‘the Company’ or ‘AEML’, with Corporate Identification 
Number: U74999GJ2008PLC107256) to carry out an 
independent verification of the of the performance 
against following Key Performance Indicator’s (KPI’s) 
and Sustainability Performance Targets (SPTs) taken by 
the Company under its Sustainability Linked Bond (‘SLB’) 
Framework issued related to Integrated Power Utility 
business in Mumbai, India and disclosed in AEML’s GHG 
Emissions and Renewable Power Share Report 2021-22 
version 1.0 dated 27 June, 2022 (‘GHG Report') for the 
period 1 April, 2021 – 31 March, 2022:

Key Performance Indicator’s (KPI’s) and Sustainability 
Performance Targets (SPTs)

•  KPI-1: Increase Renewable power mix in the overall 
power purchase mix

•  Attain at least 60% of renewable power procurement 
mix by end of 2026-27

•  KPI 2: Reduction in GHG Emission Intensity (Scope 
1 and Scope 2) (GHG Emission Scope 1 and Scope 2 
emissions measured by tCO2 divided by EBITDA of 
AEML)

•  SPT 2: Reduce GHG Emission Intensity (Scope 1 and 
2) by 60% by end of 2028-29, compared with 2018-19

AEML has prepared its GHG Inventory in accordance 
with the requirements of the “Greenhouse Gas Protocol 
– A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard 
(Revised edition)” published by World Business Council 
for Sustainable Development (WBCSD) and World 
Resources Institute (WRI) and GRI Standards adopted for 
sustainability reporting and in its own bespoke spread 
sheets.

We performed our verification (Type 2, Moderate level) 
activities based on AccountAbility's AA1000 Assurance 
Standard v3, and DNV’s assurance methodology 
VeriSustainTM1. In doing so, we evaluated the qualitative 
and quantitative disclosures related to KPI’s and SPT’s 
presented in the GHG Report prepared based on and the 
Guiding Principles of WBCSD Framework, together with 
AEML’s protocols for measuring, recording and reporting 
GHG and associated performance data. This verification 
applies a

±5% materiality threshold towards errors and omissions 
based on DNV VeriSustain.

inDePenDent VeriFication statement: PerFormance 
against sustainaBilitY PerFormance target

AEML is responsible for the collection, analysis, 
aggregation, preparation (conversion factors, 
assumptions, methodology, calculations) and 
presentation of GHG Emissions and all power purchased 
as part of its disclosures. Our responsibility of performing 
this work is to the management of Company and in 
accordance with terms of reference agreed with the 
Company.

The verification engagement is based on the assumption 
that the data provided to us is complete, sufficient, true 
and free from material misstatements. DNV disclaims 
any liability or co-responsibility for any decision a 
person or entity would make based on this verification 
statement. The verification was carried out during May 
2022 – June 2022 by a team of qualified sustainability 
and GHG assessors.

scoPe, BounDarY anD limitations oF VeriFication

The scope of work agreed upon with Company includes 
verification of its GHG Inventory as below:

•  Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1 emissions) 
covering fossil fuels (Diesel, Petrol, LDO, Liquefied 
Petroleum Gas (LPG)) used in stationery and mobile 
equipment’s and coal used in electricity generation 
process and releases of SF6 and refrigerant gases 
used in equipment.

•  Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2 emissions) 
arising from consumption of purchased electricity 
towards auxiliary power consumed in generation, 
transmission and distribution assets owned by 
AEML and T&D losses incurred.

•  Verification of GHG emission intensity (performance 
against SPT-2) – Scope 1 and 2 i.e GHG Emission 
Intensity (Scope 1 and 2 measured by tCO2 divided 
by EBITDA of AEML)

•  Verification of mix of Renewable power sourced by 
AEML to meet its Renewable power obligations and 
its commitment to source certain amount of green 
power in its power purchase portfolio (performance 
against SPT-1)

The operational boundary selected by AEML for reporting 
and consolidation of direct, indirect and other indirect 
GHG emissions data and power purchased is based on 
the operational control criterion and includes its 100% of 
Integrated Power Utility Business for power distribution 
to consumers in Mumbai, Maharashtra. We did not come 
across any limitations to the agreed scope of work. The 

1 The VeriSustain protocol is available on request from www.dnv.com and is based on our professional experience, international assurance best 
practices including the International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (ISAE 3000) Revised (Assurance Engagements other than 
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information) and GRI’s Reporting Principles. GRI’s Principles for defining Report Content and Quality.
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reported data on economic performance and other 
financial data (EBITDA) of AEML within the Report are 
based on audited financial statements which have been 
subjected to a separate independent statutory audit 
process and is not included in our scope of work.

VeriFication metHoDologY

The verification was conducted by DNV in accordance 
with the requirements as set out in AA1000AS and 
VeriSustain for a limited level of verification, that is, a 
customised engagement was performed based on the 
principles of completeness, accuracy and reliability, 
while adopting a risk-based approach towards selection 
of samples for assessing the robustness of the underlying 
data management system, information flow and controls. 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic and associated travel 
restrictions, we carried out hybrid assessments with 
AEML in line with DNV’s audit methodology. We carried 
out the following activities:

•  Desk review of the Company’s Power purchased, 
Energy and GHG emissions data for 2021-22 for 
the business sites including embedded generation) 
provided in AEML’s bespoke spreadsheet.

•  Review of the Power and GHG data management 
system used to generate, aggregate and report 
GHG emission data, as well as assessment of the 
completeness, accuracy and reliability of the data.

•  Onsite assessments at Adani Dahanu Thermal 
Power Plant at Dahanu, Transmission business 
sites (Aarey, Versova and Goregaon) and remote 
site assessments of distribution sites at Mumbai in 
India to review and confirm the identified emission 

sources, activity data and related evidence 
maintained by the management teams at the 
respective plants on a sample basis.

•  Sample based review of the system in place for 
collection of data pertaining to Power purchase 
and GHG emission, as well as associated emission 
factors and calculation methodologies and internal 
governance mechanism.

•  Interaction with key managers and data owners to 
review data consolidation systems of the Company 
and sampled operational plants including reviews 
of emission factors and assumptions used for 
calculations of selected KPI.

•  Review of the performance against Renewable 
Power mix (SPT-1), consolidated GHG Scope 1 and 
Scope 2 emission categories and Emission Intensity 
(SPT-2) as mutually agreed with the environment 
and sustainability teams of AEML.

conclusion

Based on our verification methodology and scope of 
work agreed upon, nothing has come to our attention 
to believe that the Renewable Power mix in power 
portfolio (SPT-1) and GHG Emission Intensity (SPT- 2) as 
brought out in the table below are not materially correct 
and is not a fair representation of the performance 
against SPT’s taken by company during 2021-22 for its 
operational entities in Mumbai India. We observed minor 
data inaccuracies during the verification process, and 
these were found to be attributable to transcription, 
interpretation and aggregation errors and the errors 
have been communicated and corrected.

reneWaBle PoWer mix in PurcHaseD electricitY (KPi-1): units in million (mus)

Description 2018-19 (3) 2021-22
Procurement of electricity from the eligible renewable energy 
sources(1)

a 280.73 716.98

Procurement of electricity from other than renewable energy 
sources(2)

b 9,032.91 8,110.32

Total electricity procured c=a+b 9,313.64 8,827.30
Percentage of procurement of electricity from the eligible 
renewable energy sources

a/c 3.01% 8.12%

Notes:

1.  Eligible Renewable Energy sources are considered as per ‘Renewable Purchase Obligation, its Compliance and Implementation of Renewal 
Energy Certificate Framework Regulations, 2019’ issued by Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (the “Regulation”) which 
means renewable sources such as mini hydro, micro hydro, small hydro, wind, Solar, biomass including bagasse, bio fuel cogeneration, 
urban or municipal waste and such other sources as are recognised or approved by Ministry of New and Renewable Energy, Government 
of India.

2.  This includes utilisation of 3,268.16 Mus in FY 2018-19 and 2,974.87 Mus in FY 2021-22 through embedded captive generation as per 
power purchase arrangement for the years ended on March 31,2019 and March 31, 2022.

3. The FY2018-19 (Baseline year) numbers are referred from assured numbers reported by AEML.
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gHg emissions (scoPe-1 & scoPe-2) summarY

scope emission source total gHg emissions 
2021-22 (tco2e)

Scope-1 Fossil fuels (Coal, Diesel, Petrol, LDO, LPG) used in stationery and mobile 
equipment’s and coal used in electricity generation process, SF6 and 
Refrigerants used in operations & maintenance activities

2,690,622

Scope-2 Emissions arising from consumption of purchased electricity towards 
auxiliary power consumed in generation, transmission and distribution assets 
owned by AEML and T&D losses incurred

547,204

gHg emission intensitY (KPi-2):

Boundary of emission within the company 2018-19 2021-22
GHG tCO2e AEML: Scope 1 & Scope 2 3,750,069 3,237,826

EBITDA in INR- in Crore AEML 1,664 2,083
Emission Intensity (tCO2e/ EBITDA in INR in Crore) 2,254 1,554

Notes:

•  The reported data on EBITDA of AEML within the Report are based on audited financial statements of respective year.

• 1 Crore = INR 100,000,00

•  The FY2018-19 (Baseline Year) numbers are referred from assured numbers reported by AEML.

statement oF comPetence anD inDePenDence

DNV applies its own management standards and compliance policies for quality control, in accordance with ISO IEC 
17021:2015 - Conformity Assessment Requirements for bodies providing audit and certification of management systems, 
and accordingly maintains a comprehensive system of quality control including documented policies and procedures 
regarding compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

We have complied with the DNV Code of Conduct2 during the assurance engagement and maintain independence where 
required by relevant ethical requirements as detailed in DNV VeriSustain. This engagement work was carried out by an 
independent team of sustainability assurance professionals. DNV was not involved in the preparation of any statements 
or data included in the Report except for this Verification Statement. DNV maintains complete impartiality toward 
stakeholders interviewed during the assurance process. DNV did not provide any services to AEML or its subsidiaries 
in the scope of assurance during FY 2021-2022 that could compromise the independence or impartiality of our work.

For DNV

vadakepatth, 
Nandkumar

Digitally signed by  
Vadakepatth, Nandkumar 
Date: 2022.06.27  
17:13:48 +05’30’

Radhakrishnan, 
Kiran

Digitally signed by 
Radhakrishnan, Kiran  
Date: 2022.06.27  
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Vadakepatth Nandkumar  
Lead Verifier
DNV Business Assurance India Private Limited, India.

Kiran Radhakrishnan  
Technical Reviewer
DNV Business Assurance India Private Limited, India.

Bengaluru, India, 27 June, 2022.

DNV Business Assurance India Private Limited is part of DNV – Business Assurance, a global provider of certification, verification, assessment 
and training services, helping customers to build sustainable business performance. www.dnv.com

2 The DNV Code of Conduct is available on request from www.dnv.com (https://www.dnv.com/about/in-brief/corporate-governance.html)
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inDePenDent auDitor’s rePort

to the members of adani electricity mumbai limited

rePort on tHe auDit oF tHe stanDalone 
Financial statements

opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial 
statements of adani electricity mumbai Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 
31st March 2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement 
of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information 
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards 
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, 
as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at 31st March  2022, and its profit, total 
comprehensive expense, its cash flows and the changes 
in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial 
statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act 
(SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the 
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are independent  of  the  Company  
in  accordance  with  the  Code  of  Ethics  issued  by  
the  Institute  of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) 
together with the ethical  requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the standalone financial statements under 
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by 
us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

inFormation otHer tHan tHe Financial 
statements anD auDitor’s rePort tHereon

• The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible 
for the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the Directors’  
report, but does not include the consolidated 
financial statements, standalone financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

• Our opinion on the standalone financial statements 
does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

• In connection with our audit of the standalone 
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the standalone financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

• If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

management’s resPonsiBilitY For tHe 
stanDalone Financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for 
the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the  preparation  of  these  standalone  
financial statements that give a true and fair view of 
the financial position, financial performance including 
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes 
in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind 
AS and other accounting principles generally accepted 
in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance 
of  adequate accounting records in accordance  with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds  
and  other  irregularities;  selection  and  application  of  
appropriate accounting  policies;  making  judgments  
and  estimates  that  are  reasonable  and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the standalone financial statement 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, 
management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or 
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to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 
to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for 
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

auDitor’s resPonsiBilitY For tHe auDit oF tHe 
stanDalone Financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the standalone financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these standalone financial 
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the standalone financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial 
control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section  143(3)(i) of the Act, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the 
management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the standalone 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the 
standalone financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
standalone financial statements that, individually or 
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic 
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
standalone financial statements may be influenced. 
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the 
effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone 
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

rePort on otHer legal anD regulatorY 
requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on 
our audit we report, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the 
information and explanations which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for 
the purposes of our audit. 
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b) In our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of 
those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, 
the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement 
of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report 
are in agreement with the relevant books of 
account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone 
financial statements comply with the Ind AS 
specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

e) On the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors as on 31st March, 
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, 
none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st 
March, 2022 from being appointed as a director 
in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our separate Report 
in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an 
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and 
operating effectiveness of the Company’s 
internal financial controls over financial 
reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as 
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the remuneration paid by the 
Company to its directors during the year is in 
accordance with the provisions of section 197 
of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,  
2014, as amended in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigations on its financial position 
in its standalone financial statements. 

ii. The Company has made provision, as 
required under the applicable law or 

accounting standards, for material 
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were 
required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the 
Company.

  iv. (a) The Management has represented 
that, to the best of it’s knowledge and 
belief, other than as disclosed in the 
notes to the accounts no funds (which 
are material either individually or in 
the aggregate)  have been advanced 
or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or 
any other sources or kind of funds) 
by the Company to or in any other 
person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities  (“Intermediaries”), 
with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the Intermediary shall, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other

    persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

   (b) The Management has represented, 
that, to the best of it’s knowledge and 
belief, other than as disclosed in the 
notes to accounts, no funds (which 
are material either individually or in 
the aggregate)  have been received 
by the Company from any person(s) 
or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities  (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Company 
shall, directly or indirectly, lend or 
invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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   (c)   Based on the audit procedures that 
has been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, 
nothing has come to our notice that 
has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause 
(i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided 
under (a) and (b) above, contain any 
material misstatement.

  v. The company has not declared or paid any 
dividend during the year.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, 
we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & sells llP
Chartered Accountants

 (Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018) 

        mohammed Bengali
(Partner)

Place: Mumbai (Membership No.105828)
Date: 02 May, 2022 (UDIN: 22105828AIHHUB7552)  

INDEPENDENT AuDITOR’S REPORT (Contd.)
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annexure “a” to tHe inDePenDent auDitor’s rePort
(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even 
date)

rePort on tHe internal Financial controls 
oVer Financial rePorting unDer clause (i) oF 
suB-section 3 oF section 143 oF tHe comPanies 
act, 2013 (“tHe act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of Adani Electricity Mumbai Limited 
(“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2022 in conjunction 
with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that 
date.

management’s resPonsiBilitY For internal 
Financial controls

The Company’s management is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 
of its business, including adherence to company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013.

auDitor’s resPonsiBilitY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the 
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit

evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting.

meaning oF internal Financial controls oVer 
Financial rePorting

A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets 
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements.

inHerent limitations oF internal Financial 
controls oVer Financial rePorting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud 
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over
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financial reporting to future periods are subject to the 
risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the Company 
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and 
such internal financial controls over financial reporting 
were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2022, based 
on the criteria for internal financial control over financial 

reporting established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & sells llP
Chartered Accountants

 (Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018) 

        mohammed Bengali
(Partner)

Place: Mumbai (Membership No.105828)
Date: 02 May, 2022 (UDIN: 22105828AIHHUB7552)  

ANNExuRE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AuDITOR’S REPORT (Contd.)
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annexure “B” to tHe inDePenDent auDitors’ rePort
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the 
Members of Adani Electricity Mumbai Limited of even date)

(i) In respect of the Company’s property, plant and equipment:

(a) (A)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in progress and relevant details of right-of-use 
assets.

 (B)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b)   The Company has a program of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-
progress and right-of-use assets so to cover all the items in a phased manner over a period of three years 
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 
Pursuant to the program, certain assets were due for verification during the year and were physically verified 
by the Management during the year. Also, certain assets that were due for verification in earlier years, however 
weren’t verified due to COVID-19 and were planned to be verified in current year, were physically verified by 
the Management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. However, we are informed that distribution system being 
underground is not physically verifiable.

(c)   Based on the examination of the registered sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed / possession certificate 
/ Encumbrance certificate provided to us, we report that, the title deeds of all the immovable properties, (other 
than those that have been taken on lease and self-constructed properties) disclosed in the financial statements 
included in property, plant equipment and capital work-in progress are held in the name of the Company as at 
the balance sheet date. The title deeds of certain immovable properties which were transferred from Reliance 
Infrastructure Limited consequent to a scheme of arrangement are in the erstwhile names of the Company viz: 
“Bombay Suburban Electric Supply Limited” / “Reliance Energy Limited” / “Reliance Infrastructure Limited” and 
the Company is in process of updating the same from erstwhile Company’s name to the name of the Company. 
In respect of immovable properties that have been taken on lease and disclosed in the financial statements as 
property, plant and equipment, right-of use asset and capital-work-in-progress as at the balance sheet date, 
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company, except for the following:

Description of 
immovable 
properties 
taken on lease

gross 
carrying 

value as at  
31 march 2022 
(rs. in crores)

carrying 
value  

(as at 31 
march 2022 

(rs. in crores)

Held in 
name of

Whether 
promoter, 

director or 
their relative 
or employee

Period held –
indicate 

range, where 
appropriate

reason for not 
being held in 
name of 
company

Leasehold land at 
various locations

0.65 0.63 NA NA NA Title deeds 
in respect of 
the same are 
currently not 
traceable.

Right of use 
Leasehold land at 
BKC

510.00 506.56 NA No Since 18 
September 

2021

The Company 
has entered 
into  
memorandum 
of 
understanding 
and will 
enter into 
formal lease 
agreement on 
completion 
of the 
construction of 
the substation 
as per the 
applicable 
regulatory 
requirements 
(Refer note 5(b)
(iii) of Financial 
Statement).
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(d) The Company has not revalued any of its 
Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right 
of Use assets) and intangible assets during the 
year.

(e)    According to the information and explanations 
given to us, no proceedings have been initiated 
or is pending against the company as at 31 
March 2022 for holding any benami property 
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) 
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules 
made thereunder.

(ii) In respect of the Company’s Inventories:

 (a) The inventories except for goods in transit and 
those lying with a third party, were physically 
verified during the year by the Management 
at reasonable intervals. In our opinion and 
based on information and explanations given 
to us, the coverage and procedure of such 
verification by the Management is appropriate 
having regard to the size of the Company 
and the nature of its operations. In respect of 
goods in transit, the goods have been received 
subsequent to the year end. Confirmation has 
been obtained in respect of inventories in 
custody of a third party. No discrepancies of 
10% or more in the aggregate for each class 
of inventories were noticed on such physical 
verification of inventories when compared with 
books of account.

(b) The terms and conditions of the extension of 
the above-mentioned intercorporate deposit, 
employee loans and advance in the nature of 
loan, during the year are, in our opinion, prima 
facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c) In respect of above intercorporate deposit, 
employee loans and advance in the nature of 

 (b) According to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has been sanctioned 
working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, 
in aggregate, at points of time during the year, 
from banks on the basis of security of current 
assets. In our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, the 
quarterly statements comprising raw material, 
stores and spares, finished goods, advances for 
power purchase and coal, book debts (including 
unbilled revenue) and other receivable (<90 
days) reduced by relevant trade payables (i.e. 
net of provisions, regulatory payables and 
other payables) filed by the Company with 

  such banks are in agreement with the 
unaudited books of account of the Company of 
the respective quarters based on draft figures 
at the point of time of reporting and no material 
discrepancies have been observed.

(iii) The Company has not made any investments in, 
provided any guarantee or security, and granted any 
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured 
or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or any other parties during the year, 
except for loans to employees, advance in nature 
of loan to a related party during the year and an 
unsecured intercorporate deposit granted to a 
related party during the earlier years falling due 
during the year whose tenure and repayment date 
were extended during the year.

loan provided by the Company, the schedule of 
repayment of principal and payment of interest 
has been stipulated. Repayment of principal of 
the intercorporate deposit was not due during 
the year and the receipts of interest are regular 
as per stipulation. Repayment of principal and 
receipts of interest were regular as per  

(a) The details of said loans are given below:

Particulars intercorporate deposit 
in nature of loans to 
adani Properties Private 
limited (related party)

advances in nature 
of loans to adani 
enterprises limited 
(related party)

loans to employees

Aggregate amount 
extended / advanced 
during the year 

Rs. 1,040 Crores Rs. 607.22 Crores Rs. 5.41 Crores

Balance outstanding as 
at balance sheet date in 
respect of above 

Rs. 1,040 Crores Rs. Nil Rs. 35.41 Crores
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 stipulation for employee loans and advance in 
nature of loan. 

(d) According to information and explanations 
given to us and based on the audit procedures 
performed, in respect of intercorporate deposit, 
employee loans and advance in the nature 

 (f) According to information and explanations 
given to us and based on the audit procedures 
performed, the Company has not granted any 
loans without specifying any terms or period of 
repayment during the year. The intercorporate 
deposit in nature of loan as stated above is for 
a period of 3 years and is repayable on demand 
or on maturity of 3 years whichever is earlier.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the 
Act in respect of grant of loans, making investments 
and providing guarantees and securities, as 
applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposit or 
amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, 
reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not 
applicable.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified 
by the Central Government under section 148(1) 
of the Act. We have broadly reviewed the cost 
records maintained during the year by the Company 
pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and 
Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended and prescribed by 
the Central Government under sub-section (1) of 
Section 148 of the Act, and are of the opinion that, 
prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been

of loan provided by the Company, there is no 
overdue amount remaining outstanding as at 
the balance sheet date.

(e) The details of such intercorporate deposit in 
nature of loan that fell due and extended by 
modifying the terms during the year are stated 
below:

made and maintained by the Company. We have, 
however, not made a detailed examination of the 
cost records with a view to determine whether they 
are accurate or complete.

(vii) According to the information and explanations 
given to us, in respect of statutory dues:  

 (a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods 
and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ 
State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custom, 
cess and other material statutory dues 
applicable to the Company have been regularly 
deposited by it with the appropriate authorities 
in all cases during the year.  We have been 
informed that there have not been payables 
towards Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Excise, 
Value Added Tax during the year.

        (b)  There were no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of Goods and Services tax, Provident 
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, 
duty of Custom and corresponding cess and 
other material statutory dues in arrears as at 
March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable. 

         (c)   Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-
clause (a) above which have not been deposited 
as on March 31, 2022 on account of disputes 
are given below:

name of the 
Party

aggregate
amount 
that fell due
during the year

aggregate 
amount of 
existing loans 
extended

Date of 
extension

Details of
the
extension
granted
during

Percentage of 
the aggregate to 
the total 

Adani Properties 
Private Limited

Rs. 1,040 crores Rs. 1,040 crores 3 May 2021 Extension of 
the tenure and 
repayment date 
by 3 years.

100%

name of statute nature of Dues Forum where Dispute is 
Pending

Period to which 
amount relates

amount 

Finance Act, 1994 Service tax Central, Excise and Service 
Tax Appellate Tribunal, 
Mumbai

October 2011 to 
December 2016

25.61*

Finance Act, 1994 Service tax Mumbai High Court July 2012 to  
June 2017

307.34

* Net of Rs. 20.60 crore paid/ adjusted under protest.
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 There were no dues of Goods and Services tax, 
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, 
Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and other 
material statutory dues applicable to the 
Company which have not been deposited as on 
March 31, 2022 on account of disputes.

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously 
unrecorded income that were surrendered or 
disclosed as income in the tax assessments under 
the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the 
year.

(ix) (a)    In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not defaulted in the repayment of loans or 
other borrowings or in the payment of interest 
thereon to any lender during the year.

     (b)  The Company has not been declared wilful 
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or any government authority.

        (c) To the best of knowledge and belief, in our 
opinion, term loans availed by the Company 
were, applied by the Company during the year 
for the purposes for which the loans were 
obtained.

        (d) On an overall examination of the financial 
statements of the Company, funds raised on 
short-term basis have, prima facie, not been 
used during the year for long-term purposes by 
the Company.

   (e) On an overall examination of the financial 
statements of the Company, the Company has 
not taken any funds from any entity or person 
on account of or to meet the obligations of its 
subsidiaries. The Company did not have any 
associate or joint venture during the year. 

        (f) The Company has not raised loans during the 
year on the pledge of securities held in its 
subsidiaries.

(x) (a)  The Company has not raised moneys by way 
of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) during the year 
and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the 
Order is not applicable.

 (b) According to the information and explanations 
given to us, during the year, the Company has 
not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or convertible debentures 
(fully or partly or optionally) and hence, 
reporting under paragraph (x)(b) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a)  To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by 
the Company and no material fraud on the 
Company has been noticed or reported during 
the year.

      (b)    To the best of our knowledge, no report 
under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as 
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government, during the year and upto the date 
of this report.

        (c)    As represented to us by the Management, there 
were no whistle blower complaints received by 
the Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, 
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not 
applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company is in 
compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, 
where applicable, for all transactions with the 
related parties undertaken during the year and the 
details of such related party transactions have been 
disclosed in the standalone financial statements as 
required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a)  In our opinion the Company has an adequate 
internal audit system commensurate with the 
size and the nature of its business.

 (b)   We have considered, the internal audit reports 
issued to the Company during the year and 
covering the period upto (December 2021) and 
the draft of the internal audit reports were 
issued after the balance sheet date covering 
the period (January 2022 to March 2022) for 
the period under audit.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, during the year the 
Company has not entered any non-cash transactions 
with its Directors or persons connected to its 
Directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the 
Act are not applicable.

(xvi)  (a)  The Company is not required to be registered 
under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 
(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

         (b)  The Group does not have any Core Investment 
Company (CIC) as part of the Group and 
accordingly clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not 
applicable.
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(xvii)The Company has not incurred cash losses during 
the financial year covered by our audit and the 
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii)There has been no resignation of the statutory 
auditors of the Company during the year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and 
expected dates of realization of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the financial statements and 
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
Management plans and based on our examination 
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, 
nothing has come to our attention, which causes 
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists 
as on the date of the audit report  indicating that 
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities 
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when 
they fall due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this 
is not an assurance as to the future viability of 
the Company. We further state that our reporting 
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit 

report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will 
get discharged by the Company as and when they 
fall due.

(xx) The Company has fully spent the required amount 
towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and 
there are no unspent CSR amount for the year 
requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule 
VII to the Companies Act or special account in 
compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of 
section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting 
under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable for 
the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & sells llP
Chartered Accountants

 (Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018) 

        mohammed Bengali
(Partner)

Place: Mumbai (Membership No.105828)
Date: 02 May, 2022 (UDIN: 22105828AIHHUB7552)  
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Balance sHeet
AS AT 31 MARCH, 2022

 (` in Crores)
Particulars note  as at  

31 march, 2022 
 as at  

31 march, 2021 
assets
non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 5  13,487.71  12,985.27 
Capital Work-In-Progress 5c  315.48  363.56 
Right-of-Use Assets 5a  592.79  141.49 
Intangible Assets 5b  1,038.19  1,004.30 
Intangible Assets Under Development 5d  -    15.41 
Financial Assets
(i) Investments 6a  204.64  204.97 
(ii) Loans 7  1,068.40  1,073.11 
(iii) Other Financial Assets 8  700.23  639.82 
Income Tax Assets (net) 9a  3.91  3.91 
Other Non-current Assets 10  71.90  288.56 
total non-current assets  17,483.25  16,720.40 
current assets
Inventories 11  204.49  193.50 
Financial Assets
(i) Investments 6b  24.84  -   
(ii) Trade Receivables 12  485.85  578.06 
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 13  74.41  151.89 
(iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above 14  624.48  886.56 
(v) Loans 7  7.01  6.72 
(vi) Other Financial Assets 8  623.59  491.10 
Other Current Assets 10  145.95  385.22 
total current assets  2,190.62  2,693.05 
total assets before regulatory Deferral account  19,673.87  19,413.45 
regulatory Deferral account - assets  1,121.92  439.45 
total assets  20,795.79  19,852.90 
equitY anD liaBilities
equity 
Share Capital 15  4,020.82  4,020.82 
Other Equity 16  673.99  689.53 
total equity  4,694.81  4,710.35 
liabilities
non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities 
(i) Borrowings 17  11,864.65  10,544.70 
(ii) Trade Payables 18

(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and  -    -   
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 

small enterprises.
 32.22  31.93 

(iii) Lease Liabilities 19  26.25  50.70 
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 20  66.02  63.12 
Provisions 21  572.28  542.20 
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 29  179.35  78.17 
Other Non Current Liabilities 22  245.47  282.89 
total non-current liabilities  12,986.24  11,593.71 
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As per our attached report of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & sells llP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
chartered accountants aDani electricitY mumBai limiteD
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 117366W/W-100018

mohammed Bengali anil sardana Kandarp Patel
Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. 105828 DIN: 00006867 DIN.: 02947643

Kunjal mehta Jaladhi shukla
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 2 May, 2022 Date : 2 May, 2022

 (` in Crores)
Particulars note  as at  

31 march, 2022 
 as at  

31 march, 2021 
current liabilities
Financial Liabilities 
(i) Borrowings 23  -    916.68 
(ii) Trade Payables 18

(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and  25.07  28.99 
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 

small enterprises.
 1,465.88  1,158.69 

(iii) Lease Liabilities 19  18.59  42.89 
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 20  976.01  817.82 
Provisions 21  63.80  58.55 
Current Tax Liabilities 9b  2.13  -   
Other Current Liabilities 22  291.70  253.66 
total current liabilities  2,843.18  3,277.28 
total liabilities before regulatory Deferral account  15,829.42  14,870.99 
regulatory Deferral account - liabilities  271.56  271.56 
total equity and liabilities  20,795.79  19,852.90 
See accompanying notes forms part of the financial statements  -    -   
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statement oF ProFit anD loss
FOR THE yEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2022

 (` in Crores)
Particulars note For the year ended 

31 march, 2022 
For the year ended 

31 march, 2021 
income :
Revenue from Operations 24  6,908.94  6,049.27 
Other Income 25  409.65  421.67 
total income  7,318.59  6,470.94 
expenses :

Cost Of Power Purchased  2,736.41  1,914.51 
Cost of Fuel  1,065.99  972.56 
Transmission Charges  477.84  468.52 
Purchases of traded goods  0.76  1.46 
Employee Benefits Expense 26  798.68  856.17 
Finance Costs 27  1,160.38  1,096.98 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 5,5a&5b  651.58  644.56 
Other Expenses 28  838.30  762.67 

total expenses  7,729.94  6,717.43
Profit/(Loss) Before Movement in Regulatory Deferral Balance, 
exceptional items and tax                                  

 (411.35)  (246.49)

Add/(Less): Net Movement in Regulatory Deferral Balance  682.47  582.81 
Profit Before Exceptional Items and Tax                                   271.12  336.32 
Exceptional items  -    -   
Profit Before Tax        271.12  336.32 
tax expense: 29

Current Tax  47.78  49.40 
Deferred Tax  101.18  27.75 

 148.96  77.15 
Profit after tax total a  122.16  259.17 
other comprehensive income / (expense)
(a)    Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

-Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans  17.17  33.34 
-Income Tax Impact  (3.00)  (5.83)

(b)    Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
- Effective portion of gains and losses on designated portion 
of hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge

 (151.87)  (100.66)

other comprehensive expense total B  (137.70)  (73.15)
total comprehensive income Total (A+B)  (15.54)  186.02 
earnings Per share (ePs) (in `) 30
(Face Value ` 10 Per share)
Basic / Diluted earnings per Equity Share before net Movement 
in Regulatory Deferral Balance

 (1.10)  (0.55)

Basic / Diluted earnings per Equity Share after net Movement in 
Regulatory Deferral Balance

 0.30  0.64 

See accompanying notes forms part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & sells llP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
chartered accountants aDani electricitY mumBai limiteD
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 117366W/W-100018

mohammed Bengali anil sardana Kandarp Patel
Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. 105828 DIN: 00006867 DIN.: 02947643

Kunjal mehta Jaladhi shukla
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 2 May, 2022 Date : 2 May, 2022
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a.  equitY sHare caPital

(` in Crores)

Particulars  no. shares amount
Balance as at 01 april, 2020 4,02,08,23,535  4,020.82 
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year  -   -
Balance as at  31 march, 2021  4,02,08,23,535  4,020.82 
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the current year  -    -   
Balance as at 31 march, 2022  4,02,08,23,535  4,020.82 

B.  otHer equitY

For the year ended 31 march, 2022 (` in Crores)

Particulars  reserves and surplus items of 
other 

compre-
hensive 
income

total

capital 
reserve

contingency 
reserve 

Fund

share 
Premium 
account

retained 
earnings

cashflow 
Hedge 

reserve
Balance as at  01 april, 2020  230.78  196.95  120.43  (31.41)  (13.24)  503.51 
Profit for the year  -    -    -    259.17  -    259.17 
Other comprehensive Income / (Expense) for the 
year  -    -    27.51  (100.66)  (73.15)
total comprehensive income / (expense) for the 
year  -    -    -    286.68  (100.66)  186.02 
Transfer to Contingency Reserve  -    22.74  -    (22.74)  -    -   
Balance as at 31 march, 2021 230.78  219.69  120.43  232.53  (113.90) 689.53 
Balance as at  01 april, 2021 230.78  219.69  120.43  232.53  (113.90) 689.53 
Profit for the year  -    -    -    122.16  -    122.16 
Other comprehensive Income / (Expense) for the 
year  -    -    -    14.17  (151.87)

 
(137.70)

total comprehensive income / (expense) for the 
year  -    -    -    136.33  (151.87)  (15.54)
Transfer to Contingency Reserve  -    25.74  -    (25.74)  -    -   
Balance as at 31 march, 2022  230.78  245.43  120.43  343.12  (265.77)  673.99 

statement oF cHanges in equitY 

As per our attached report of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & sells llP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
chartered accountants aDani electricitY mumBai limiteD
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 117366W/W-100018

mohammed Bengali anil sardana Kandarp Patel
Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. 105828 DIN: 00006867 DIN.: 02947643

Kunjal mehta Jaladhi shukla
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 2 May, 2022 Date : 2 May, 2022
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(` in Crores)

Particulars  For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

a. cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax  271.12  336.32 

Adjustments for:

Interest Income  (309.34)  (334.32)

Delayed Payment Charges  (22.90)  (27.00)

Unrealised Foreign Exchange Gain from Borrowings net of Hedging  155.64  166.80 

Amortisation of Consumer Contribution  (10.30)  (9.22)

Gain On Sale / Fair Value Of Current Investments Measured at FVTPL  (1.13)  (39.73)

Gain On Sale / Fair Value Of Current Investments Measured at FVTPL - 
Contingency Reserve Fund

 -    (1.33)

Finance Costs  1,004.74  930.18 

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense  651.58  644.56 

(Profit)/Loss on sale of Fixed Assets (Net)  (0.42)  (1.87)

Sundry credit balances written back  (57.41)  -   

Provisions no longer required written back  (38.74)  -   

Bad Debts Written Off  18.31  22.52 

Operating Profit before working capital changes  1,661.15  1,686.91 
Changes in Working Capital:

Adjustments for (Increase) / Decrease in Assets :

Trade Receivables  103.77  (48.58)

Inventories  (10.99)  317.92 

Financial Assets - Current / Non Current  (132.43)  40.61 

Other Assets  - Current / Non Current  240.98  (73.82)

Regulatory Deferral Account - Assets  (682.47)  (191.72)

Adjustment for Increase / (Decrease) in Liabilities :

Trade Payables  369.84  (253.14)

Financial Liabilities - Current / Non Current  (6.04)  (71.15)

Provisions - Current / Non Current  52.50  327.35 

Other Liabilities  - Current / Non Current  (14.42)  (31.31)

Regulatory Deferral Account - Liability  -    (232.77)

cash generated from operations  1,581.89  1,470.30 
Tax paid (Net)  (48.65)  (83.35)

net cash from operating activities (a)  1,533.24  1,386.95 

B. cash flow from investing activities
Capital expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment  & Intangible Assets  (1,235.43)  (1,191.82)
Proceeds from Sale of Proeprty, Plant and Equipment  8.46  4.30 
(Purchase) / Sale of Mutual Funds / Other Investments-Net  (27.41)  21.87 
Investment in Subsidiary  -    (0.01)
Bank balances not considered as Cash & Cash Equivalents  237.28  (773.13)
Advances  - Given  (607.22)  -   
Advances - received back  607.22  -   
Loans / Advances (given) / repaid (net)  4.42  590.11 
Delayed payment charges received  22.90  27.00 
Interest Received  299.82  297.96 

net cash used in investing activities (B)  (689.96)  (1,023.72)

statement oF casH FloW
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW (Contd.)

(` in Crores)

Particulars  For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

c. Cash flow from financing activities
Increase in Service Line Contribution  25.34  14.29 

Proceeds from Long-term borrowings  2,231.98  767.54 

Repayment of Long-term borrowings  (1,369.40)  (33.33)

Proceeds from Short-term borrowings  1,535.53  3,673.70 

Repayment of Short-term borrowings  (2,418.88)  (3,774.66)

Payment of Lease Liability Obligation  (16.12)  (10.43)

Interest of Lease Liability Obligation  (6.25)  (6.92)

Interest & Other Borrowing Cost  (902.96)  (964.22)

Net cash used in financing activities (C)  (920.76)  (334.03)

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (77.48)  29.20 

cash and cash equivalents as at 01 april, (opening Balance)  151.89  122.69 

cash and cash equivalents as at 31 march, (closing Balance)  74.41  151.89 

 as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

cash and cash equivalents includes

Balances with banks 

- In current accounts  64.51  104.52 

- Fixed Deposits  -    20.00 

Cash On Hand  0.80  2.40 

Cheques / Drafts On Hand  9.10  24.97 

total cash & cash equivalents  74.41  151.89 

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & sells llP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
chartered accountants aDani electricitY mumBai limiteD
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 117366W/W-100018

mohammed Bengali anil sardana Kandarp Patel
Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. 105828 DIN: 00006867 DIN.: 02947643

Kunjal mehta Jaladhi shukla
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 2 May, 2022 Date : 2 May, 2022
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notes to Financial statements
FOR THE yEAR ENDED ON 31 MARCH, 2022 

1 corPorate inFormation

  Adani Electricity Mumbai Limited (“AEML”) (“The 
Company”) is a public limited company incorporated 
and domiciled in India having  its registered office at 
Adani Corporate House, Shantigram, Near Vaishno 
Devi Circle, S. G. Highway, Khodiyar, Ahmedabad 
382421, Gujarat, India. It is subsidiary of Adani 
Transmission Limited (ATL) (“the Holding Company”) 
and ultimate holding entity is S. B. Adani Family Trust 
(SBAFT). 

 The integrated Mumbai Generation, Transmission and 
Distribution (GTD) Business, under a license, transmits 
and distributes electricity to consumers in and around 
suburbs of Mumbai inclusive of areas covered under 
the Mira Bhayender Municipal Corporation, making it 
the country’s largest private sector integrated power 
utility.

 These financial statements of the Company for the 
year ended March 31, 2022 were authorised for issue 
by the board of directors on 02 May, 2022.

2 summarY oF signiFicant accounting 
Policies

2.1 statement of compliance

 The financial statements of the Company have been 
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (IndAS) as notified under the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with 
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) (as 
amended from time to time).

2.2 Basis of preparation and presentation

 The financial statements have been prepared on a 
historical cost basis except for the following assets 
and liabilities which have been measured at fair value.

 •   certain financial assets and liabilities that are 
measured at fair value;  

 •   defined benefit plans - planned assets measured 
at fair value; 

 The financial statements have been prepared 
in “Indian Rupees” which is also the Company’s 
functional currency and all amounts, are rounded to 
the nearest Crore with two decimals, (Transactions 
below ` 50,000.00 denoted as ` 0.00), unless 
otherwise stated.

 Accounting policies have been consistently applied 
except where a newly issued accounting standard is 
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting 
standard requires a change in the accounting policy 
hitherto in use.

2.3 Current versus Non-Current Classification 

 The Company presents assets and liabilities in 
the balance sheet based on current/ non-current 
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or 
consumed in normal operating cycle; or

• Held primarily for the purpose of trading; or 

• Expected to be realised within twelve months 
after the reporting period; or

• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from 
being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 
least  twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating 
cycle; or 

• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or 

• It is due to be settled within twelve months after 
the reporting period; or 

• There is no unconditional right to defer the 
settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period

 The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-
current.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as 
non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

 The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition 
of assets for processing and their realisation in cash 
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified 
twelve months as its operating cycle.

2.4 1 Property, plant and equipment (“PPe”)

 Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost 
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any.

 In respect of Property, Plant and Equipment 
(“Assets”) pertaining to Mumbai Generation, 
Transmission and Distribution business acquired 
from Reliance Infrastructure Limited under a 
Court sanctioned scheme of arrangement with an 
appointed date of 01 April, 2018, in line with the 
requirements of the Court Scheme, the Company 
has accounted for such Assets at their respective 
fair values as at 01 April, 2018 based on valuation 
done by a Government registered valuer.
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 Subsequent additions to the assets on or after 
01 April, 2018 are accounted for at cost. Cost 
includes purchase price (net of trade discount 
& rebates) and any directly attributable cost 
of bringing the asset to its working condition 
for its intended use and for qualifying assets, 
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with 
IndAS 23. Capital work-in-progress is stated at 
cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. 
When significant parts of plant and equipment 
are required to be replaced at intervals, the 
Company depreciates them separately based on 
their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major 
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in 
the carrying amount of the plant and equipment 
as a replacement if the recognition criteria are 
satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs 
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss 
as incurred.

 Decapitalisation

 An item of property, plant and equipment is 
derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected to arise from 
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss 
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item 
of property, plant and equipment is determined 
as the difference between the sales proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the asset and is 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

 Depreciation

 Depreciation commences when an asset is 
ready for its intended use. Freehold land is not 
depreciated.

 Regulated Assets:  subject to the below, 
depreciation on property, plant and equipment in 
respect of Mumbai Generation, Transmission and 
Distribution business of the Company covered 
under Part B of Schedule II of the Companies 
Act, 2013, has been provided on the straight line 
method at the rates using the methodology as 
notified by the regulator.

 For certain types of assets in respect of which 
useful life is not specified in MERC Multi Year 
Tariff Regulations (“MYT regulations”), useful life 
as prescribed under Schedule-II of Companies 
Act, 2013 is considered. 

 In respect of assets (other than Dahanu Thermal 
Power Station-DTPS) which have been accounted 
at fair value, considering life as specified in MYT 
regulations, depreciation is provided on Straight

 Line Method (considering a salvage value of 
5%)  over their balance useful life.  In respect of 
DTPS based on technical evaluation, the balance 
useful life has been determined as 15 years as on 
01 April, 2018. 

 Salvage value in respect of assets which have not 
been accounted at fair value has been considered 
at 10% except in respect of  Furniture & Fixture, 
Vehicles, Office Equipment and Electrical 
Installations which has been considered at 5%  
and Computers & Software at Nil (Consequent 
to amendment in tariff regulations, the Company 
has changed the Salvage value of  Computers 
from 5% to Nil  w.e.f. 01 April, 2020). 

 The estimated useful lives, residual values and 
depreciation method are reviewed at the end 
of each reporting period, and the effect of 
any changes in estimate is accounted for on a 
prospective basis.

 Estimated useful lives of assets other than assets 
at DTPS  are as follows:-

type of asset useful lives

Building 30-60 Years

Plant and Equipment (Except 
Meters & Batteries)*

25-35 Years

Plant and Equipment - Meters* 10 Years

Plant and Equipment - Batteries* 5 Years

Distribution Line / Transmission 
Cable 

35 Years

Street Light 25 Years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years

Office Equipment 5 Years

Computers, Servers & Related 
Network

6 Years

Vehicles 8 - 10 Years

* Consequent to amendment in tariff regulations, 
w.e.f. 01 April, 2020 the Company has changed 
the useful life (years) in respect of meters (from 
25 to 10), batteries (from 25 to 5), Computers 
(from 3 to 6) and Substations put to use post 01 
April, 2016 (Plant & Equipment) (from 25 to 35).

2 intangible assets

 Intangible assets are stated at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any.
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 Consequent to amendment in tariff regulations, 
the Company has changed the Salvage value of 
Computers Software from 1% to Nil w.e.f. 01 April, 
2020.

3 intangible assets under Development - software

 Development costs that are directly attributable 
to the design and testing of identifiable and 
unique software products controlled are 
recognised as intangible assets where the 
following criteria are met:

• it is technically feasible to complete the 
software so that it will be available for use

• management intends to complete the 
software and use or sell it

• there is an ability to use or sell the software

• it can be demonstrated how the software 
will generate probable future economic 
benefits

• adequate technical, financial and other 
resources to complete the development and 
to use or sell the software are available, and

• the expenditure attributable to the software 
during its development can be reliably 
measured.

 Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as 
part of the software include employee costs and 
an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

 Capitalised development costs are recorded as 
intangible assets and amortised from the point 
at which the asset is available for use.

4 impairment of PPe and intangible assets

 PPE (including CWIP) and intangible assets 
with definite lives, are reviewed for impairment, 
whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that their carrying values may not be 
recoverable. Intangible assets having indefinite 
useful lives are tested for impairment, at-least 
annually and whenever circumstances indicate 
that it may be impaired.

 For the purpose of impairment testing, the 
recoverable amount (that is, higher of the fair 
value less costs to sell and the value-in-use) is 
determined on an individual asset basis, unless 
the asset does not generate cash flows that 
are largely independent of those from other 
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is 
determined at the cash generating unit (“CGU”) 
level to which the said asset belongs. If such

 In respect of Intangible Asset (“Assets”) 
pertaining to Mumbai Generation, Transmission 
and Distribution business acquired from Reliance 
Infrastructure Limited under a Court sanctioned 
scheme of arrangement with an appointed date 
of 01 April, 2018, in line with the requirements of 
the Court Scheme, the Company has accounted 
for such Assets at their respective fair values 
as at 01 April, 2018 based on valuation done by 
professional valuation firm.

 Subsequent additions to the assets on or after 01 
April, 2018 are accounted for at cost.

 Derecognition of intangible assets.  

 An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, 
or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses 
arising from derecognition of an intangible 
asset, measured as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount 
of the asset, and are recognised in statement of 
profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

 useful life

 Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised 
over the useful economic life and assessed for 
impairment whenever there is an indication 
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The 
amortisation period and the amortisation method 
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are 
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting 
period. Changes in the expected useful life or 
the expected pattern of consumption of future 
economic benefits embodied in the asset are 
considered to modify the amortisation period 
or method, as appropriate, and are treated 
as changes in accounting estimates. The 
amortisation expense on intangible assets with 
finite lives is recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss unless such expenditure forms 
part of carrying value of another asset. 

 Intangible Assets with Indefinite lives are not 
amortised but are tested for impairment on 
annual basis.

 Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets 
are as follows

type of assets useful lives

Transmission License Indefinite

Computer Software 3 years
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 to the acquisition of financial assets or financial 
liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 
are recognised immediately in the statement of profit 
and loss.

2.8 Financial assets

 All regular way purchases or sales of financial 
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade 
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are 
purchases or sales of financial assets that require 
delivery of assets within the time frame established 
by regulation or convention in the market place. 
All recognised financial assets are subsequently 
measured in their entirety at either amortised cost 
or fair value, depending on the classification of the 
financial assets.

1 Financial assets at amortised cost

 Financial assets are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest rate 
method if these financial assets are held within a 
business whose objective is to hold these assets 
in order to collect contractual cash flows and 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding.

2 Financial assets at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVtoci)

 A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair 
value through other comprehensive income if it 
is held within a business model whose objective 
is achieved by both collecting contractual 
cash flows and selling financial assets and the 
contractual terms of the financial asset give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding.  

 On initial recognition, the Company makes 
an irrevocable election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis to present the subsequent 
changes in fair value in other comprehensive 
income pertaining to investments in equity 
instruments, other than equity investment 
which are held for trading. Subsequently, they 
are measured at fair value with gains and losses 
arising from changes in fair value recognised in 
other comprehensive income and accumulated 
in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments through 
other comprehensive income’. The cumulative 
gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on 
disposal of the investments.

 individual assets or CGU are considered to be 
impaired, the impairment to be recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss is measured by 
the amount by which the carrying value of the 
asset / CGU exceeds their estimated recoverable 
amount and allocated on pro-rata basis.

 Impairment losses are reversed in the statement 
of profit and loss and the carrying value is 
increased to its revised recoverable amount 
provided that this amount does not exceed the 
carrying value that would have been determined 
had no impairment loss been recognised for the 
said asset / CGU in previous years.

2.5 cash & cash equivalents 

 Cash & cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, 
cash at bank and short term deposit with an original 
maturity of three months or less, which are subject 
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash 
& cash equivalents include balance with banks 
which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.  
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash 
& cash equivalents consists of cash at banks and 
short term deposits as defined above, as they are 
considered an integral part of the Company’s cash 
management.

2.6 cash Flow statement

 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, 
where by profit before tax is adjusted for the effects 
of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or 
accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or 
payments and item of income or expenses associated 
with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows 
from operating, investing and financing activities of 
the Company are segregated.

2.7 Financial instruments

 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to 
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability 
or equity instrument of another entity.  

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised 
when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments.  

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially 
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of 
financial assets and financial liabilities are added 
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial 
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial 
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
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 On initial recognition, the Company makes 
an irrevocable election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis to present the subsequent 
changes in fair value in other comprehensive 
income pertaining to investments in equity 
instruments, other than equity investment 
which are held for trading. Subsequently, they 
are measured at fair value with gains and losses 
arising from changes in fair value recognised in 
other comprehensive income and accumulated 
in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments through 
other comprehensive income’. The cumulative 
gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on 
disposal of the investments.

3 Financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss (FVtPl)

 All financial assets that do not meet the criteria 
for amortised cost are measured at FVTPL.

 4 impairment of investments 

 The Company reviews its carrying value 
of investments carried at cost annually, or 
more frequently when there is indication for 
impairment. If the recoverable amount is less 
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is 
accounted in the statement of profit and loss.

 5 Derecognition

 A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part 
of a financial asset or part of a group of similar 
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. 
removed from the Company’s balance sheet) 
when:

- the right to receive cash flows from the 
asset have expired, or

- the Company has transferred its right to 
receive cash flows from the asset or has 
assumed an obligation to pay the received 
cash flows in full without material delay 
to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ 
arrangement; and either (a) the Company 
has transferred substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has 
neither transferred nor retained substantially 
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 
transferred control of the asset.

 When the Company has transferred its right to 
receive cash flows from an asset or has entered 
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if 
and to what extent it has retained the risks 

 and rewards of ownership. When it has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred 
control of the asset, the Company continues to 
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of 
the Company’s continuing involvement. In that 
case, the Company also recognises an associated 
liability. The transferred asset and the associated 
liability are measured on a basis that reflects 
the rights and obligations that the Company has 
retained.

 6 Impairment of financial assets

 The Company assesses at each date of balance 
sheet whether a financial asset or a group of 
financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires 
expected credit losses to be measured through a 
loss allowance. The Company recognises lifetime 
expected losses for all contract assets and / or 
all trade receivables that do not constitute a 
financing transaction. For all other financial 
assets, expected credit losses are measured 
at an amount equal to the 12 month expected 
credit losses or at an amount equal to the life 
time expected credit losses if the credit risk on 
the financial asset has increased significantly 
since initial recognition.

2.9 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

 1 Classification as debt or equity

 Debt and equity instruments issued by The 
Company are classified as either financial 
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the 
substance of the contractual arrangements 
and the definitions of a financial liability and an 
equity instrument.

 2 equity instruments

 An equity instrument is any contract that 
evidences a residual interest in the assets of 
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.  
Equity instruments issued by The Company are 
recognised at the proceeds received, net of 
direct issue costs.

 3 Financial liabilities

 All financial liabilities are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. Gains and losses are recognised 
in statement of profit and loss when the 
liabilities are derecognised as well as through 
the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) amortisation 
process. 
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 Amortised cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on acquisition 
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance 
costs in the statement of profit and loss.

 4 Derecognition

 A financial liability is derecognised when the 
obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial 
liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the 
terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification 
is treated as the derecognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The 
difference in the respective carrying amounts is 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.10 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

 The Company determines classification of financial 
assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After 
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for 
financial assets which are equity instruments and 
financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt 
instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is 
a change in the business model for managing those 
assets. Changes to the business model are expected 
to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management 
determines change in the business model as a result 
of external or internal changes which are significant 
to the Company’s operations. Such changes are 
evident to external parties. A change in the business 
model occurs when the Company either begins or 
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to 
its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial 
assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively 
from the reclassification date which is the first day 
of the immediately next reporting period following 
the change in business model. The Company does 
not restate any previously recognised gains, losses 
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

2.11 Offsetting of financial instruments

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and 
the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if 
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset 
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle 
the liabilities simultaneously.

2.12 inventories 

 Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on 
weighted average basis. Net realisable value represents 
the estimated selling price for inventories less all 
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary 
to make the sale. Cost of inventory includes cost of 
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition. 
Unserviceable/damaged stores and spares are identified 
and written down based on technical evaluation.

2.13 Business combinations and goodwill

 “The Company accounts for its business combinations 
under acquisition method of accounting. Acquisition 
related costs are recognised in statement of profit 
and loss as incurred. The acquiree’ s identifiable 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet 
the condition for recognition are recognised at their 
fair values at the acquisition date.

 If the initial accounting for a business combination 
is incomplete as at the reporting date in which the 
combination occurs, the identifiable assets and liabilities 
acquired in a business combination are measured at 
their provisional fair values at the date of acquisition. 
Subsequently adjustments to the provisional values are 
made within the measurement period, if new information 
is obtained about facts and circumstances that existed 
as of the acquisition date and, if known, would have 
resulted in the recognition of those assets and liabilities 
as of that date; otherwise the adjustments are recorded 
in the period in which they occur.

 Purchase consideration paid in excess of the fair 
value of net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. 
Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities 
exceed the cost of acquisition, after reassessing the 
fair values of the net assets and contingent liabilities, 
the excess is recognised as capital reserve.

 Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess 
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred 
and the amount recognised  for the net identifiable 
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair 
value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the 
aggregate consideration transferred, the Company 
re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of 
the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed 
and reviews the procedures used to measure the 
amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. 
If the reassessment still results in an excess of the 
fair value of net  assets acquired over the aggregate 
consideration transferred, then the gain is

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

151

Financial Statements



 recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) and 
accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if 
there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the 
entity recognises the gain directly in equity as capital 
reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

 After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost 
less any accumulated impairment losses. For the 
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in 
a business combination is, from the acquisition date, 
allocated to each of the Group’s cash generating units 
that are expected to benefit from the combination, 
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of 
the acquiree are assigned to those units.

 A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been 
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more 
frequently when there is an indication that the unit 
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the 
cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, 
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the 
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit 
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based 
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any 
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or 
loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not 
reversed in subsequent periods.

2.14 Foreign currencies

 The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee ₹ 
Income and expenses in foreign currencies are recorded at 
exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. 
Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and 
liabilities are translated at the exchange rate prevailing 
on the balance sheet date and exchange gains and losses 
arising on settlement and restatement are recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss.

 Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured 
in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are not 
retranslated.

 Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which 
they arise except for exchange differences on foreign 
currency borrowings relating to assets under construction 
for future productive use, which are included in the cost of 
those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to 
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings.

2.15 Derivative financial instruments and hedge 
accounting

 initial recognition and subsequent measurement:

In order to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange 
and interest rate risks, the Company enters into 
forward,

 option, swap contracts and other derivative financial 
instruments. The Company does not hold derivative 
financial instruments for speculative purposes.

 Such derivative financial instruments are initially 
recognised at fair value on the date on which 
a derivative contract is entered into and are 
subsequently re-measured at fair value.

 Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the 
fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when 
the fair value is negative.

 Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair 
value of derivatives are taken directly to the statement 
of profit and loss, except for the effective portion of 
cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later 
reclassified to the statement of profit and loss when 
the hedge item affects profit or loss. When the hedged 
item is the cost of a non-financial asset or non-
financial liability, the amounts recognised as OCI are 
transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-
financial asset or liability.

 For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are 
classified as:

 Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to 
changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or 
liability or an unrecognised firm commitment.

 Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to 
variability in cash flows that is either attributable 
to a particular risk associated with a recognised 
asset or liability or a highly probable forecast 
transaction or the foreign currency risk in an 
unrecognised firm commitment.

 The full fair value of a hedging derivative is 
classified as a non-current asset or liability when 
the remaining maturity of the hedged item is 
more than 12 months; it is classified as a current 
asset or liability when the remaining maturity of 
the hedged item is less than 12 months.

 At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company 
formally designates and documents the hedge 
relationship to which the Company wishes to apply 
hedge accounting.

 The documentation includes the Company’s risk 
management objective and strategy for undertaking 
hedge, the hedging/ economic relationship, the 
hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk 
being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will 
assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging 
instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to
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 changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows 
attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are 
expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting 
changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed 
on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually 
have been highly effective throughout the financial 
reporting periods for which they were designated.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge 
accounting are accounted for, as described 
below: 

 i) Fair value hedges

 Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are 
designated and qualify as fair value hedges are 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss 
immediately, together with any changes in the 
fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are 
attributable to the hedged risk.

 When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated 
as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change 
in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable 
to the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability 
with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in 
statement of profit and loss.

 Hedge accounting is discontinued when the 
Company revokes the hedge relationship, the 
hedging instrument or hedged item expires or is 
sold, terminated, or exercised or no longer meets the 
criteria for hedge accounting.

 ii) cash flow hedges

 The effective portion of the gain or loss on the 
hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash 
flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is 
recognised immediately in the statement of profit and 
loss.  

 Amounts recognised in OCI are transferred to profit 
or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or 
loss, such as when the hedged financial income or 
financial expense is recognised or when a forecast 
sale occurs. When the hedged item is the cost of 
a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the 
amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to the 
initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or 
liability.

 If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated 
or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part 
of the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a 
hedge is revoked, or when the hedge no longer meets 
the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative 
gain or

 loss previously recognised in OCI remains separately 
in equity until the forecast transaction occurs or the 
foreign currency firm commitment is met.

2.16 revenue recognition 

 Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised 
when control of the goods or services are transferred 
to the customer at an amount that reflects the 
consideration to which the Company expects to be 
entitled in exchange for those goods or services

 1 transmission of Power

 Revenue from transmission of power is 
recognised net of cash discount over time for 
transmission of electricity. The Company as 
per the prevalent tariff regulations is required 
to recover its Annual Revenue Requirement 
(‘ARR’) comprising of expenditure on account of 
operations and maintenance expenses, financing 
costs, taxes and assured return on regulator 
approved equity with additional incentive for 
operational efficiencies.

 Input method is used to recognise revenue 
based on the Company’s efforts or inputs to 
the satisfaction of a performance obligation to 
deliver power 

 As per tariff regulations, the Company determines 
ARR and any surplus/shortfall in recovery of the 
same is accounted as revenue.

 2 sale of Power - Distribution

 Revenue from sale of power is recognised net 
of cash discount over time for each unit of 
electricity delivered at the pre determined rate. 
Sales of power under Deviation settlement 
mechamism is recognised at variable cost.

 3 rendering of services

 Revenue from a contract to provide services is 
recognised over time based on output method 
where direct measurements of value to the 
customer based on survey’s of performance 
completed to date. Revenue is recognised net of 
cash discount at a point in time at the contracted 
rate.

4 interest on overdue receivables / Delay 
Payment charges

 Consumers are billed on a monthly basis and are 
given average credit period of 15 to 30 days for 
payment. No delayed payment charges (‘DPC’) / 
interest on arrears (‘IOA’) is 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

153

Financial Statements



 charged for the initial 15-30 days from the 
date of invoice to customers. Thereafter, 
DPC / IOA is charged at the rate prescribed in 
the tariff order on the outstanding amount. 
Revenue in respect of delayed payment charges 
and interest on delayed payments leviable as per 
the relevant contracts are recognised on actual 
realisation or accrued based on an assessment 
of certainty of realisation supported by either an 
acknowledgement from customers or on receipt 
of favourable order from regulator / authorities.

 5 sale of traded goods :

 Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when 
the goods are delivered and titles have passed, 
at which time all the following conditions are 
satisfied:

• The Company has transferred to the 
buyer the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of the goods;

• the amount of revenue can be measured 
reliably; and

• it is probable that the economic benefits 
associated with the transaction will flow to 
The Company.

 There is no significant judgement involved while 
evaluating the timing as to when customers 
obtain control of promised goods and services.

 6 amortisation of service line contribution

 Contributions by consumers towards items of 
property, plant and equipment, which require 
an obligation to provide electricity connectivity 
to the consumers, are recognised as a credit to 
deferred revenue. Such revenue is recognised 
over the useful life of the property, plant and 
equipment.

 7 interest income:

 Interest income from a financial asset is 
recognised when it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount 
of income can be measured reliably. Interest 
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference 
to the principal outstanding and at the effective 
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that 
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts 
through the expected life of the financial asset 
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial 
recognition. 

2.17 regulatory Deferral account

 The Company determines revenue gaps (i.e. surplus/
shortfall in actual returns over returns entitled) in 
respect of its regulated operations in accordance 
with the provisions of Ind AS 114 “Regulatory Deferral 
Accounts” read with the Guidance Note on Rate 
Regulated Activities issued by ICAI and based on 
the principles laid down under the relevant Tariff 
Regulations/Tariff Orders notified by the Electricity 
Regulator and the actual or expected actions of the 
regulator under the applicable regulatory framework. 
Appropriate adjustments in respect of such revenue 
gaps are made in the regulatory deferral account of the 
respective year for the amounts which are reasonably 
determinable and no significant uncertainty exists 
in such determination. These adjustments/accruals 
representing revenue gaps are carried forward as 
Regulatory deferral accounts debit/credit balances 
(Regulatory Assets/Regulatory Liabilities) as the case 
may be in the financial statements, which would be 
recovered/refunded through future billing based 
on future tariff determination by the regulator in 
accordance with the electricity regulations

 The Company presents separate line items in the 
balance sheet for:

i. the total of all regulatory deferral account debit 
balances; and

ii. the total of all regulatory deferral account credit 
balances.

 A separate line item is presented in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss for the net movement in regulatory 
deferral account. Regulatory assets/ liabilities on 
deferred tax expense/income is presented separately 
in the tax expense line item 

2.18  Borrowing costs

 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of qualifying assets, which 
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period 
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are 
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as 
the assets are substantially ready for their intended 
use or sale.

 Substantial time is defined as  time  required  for 
commissioning of the assets considering industry  
benchmarks/MERC tariff regulations.

 Interest income earned on the temporary investment 
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
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 qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing 
costs eligible for capitalisation.

 All other borrowing costs are recognised in statement 
of profit and loss in the period in which they are 
incurred. Borrowing cost also includes exchange 
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment 
to the borrowing costs.

2.19  Employee benefits

1 Defined contribution plan:

 Payments to defined contribution retirement 
benefit plans are recognised as an expense when 
employees have rendered service entitling them 
to the contributions.

 2 Defined benefit plans:

 The cost of providing benefits under the defined 
benefit plan is determined using the projected 
unit credit method. Remeasurements, comprising 
of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the 
asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net 
interest on the net defined benefit liability and 
the return on plan assets (excluding amounts 
included in net interest on the net defined 
benefit liability), are recognised immediately in 
the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or 
credit to retained earnings through OCI in the 
period in which they occur. Remeasurements are 
not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent 
periods. Past service costs are recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss on the earlier of:

- The date of the plan amendment or 
curtailment, and

- The date that the Company recognises 
related restructuring costs

 Net interest is calculated by applying the 
discount rate to the net defined benefit liability 
or asset. The Company recognises the following 
changes in the net defined benefit obligation as 
an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

- Service costs comprising current service 
costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on 
curtailments and non routine settlements; 
and

- Net interest expense or income.

 A liability for a termination benefit is recognised 
at the earlier of when the entity can no longer 
withdraw the offer of the termination benefit

 and when the entity recognises any related 
restructuring costs

 The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan 
and the present value of the gratuity obligation 
are determined using actuarial valuations. An 
actuarial valuation involves making various 
assumptions that may differ from actual 
developments in the future. These include 
the determination of the discount rate, future 
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the 
complexities involved in the valuation and its 
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is 
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. 
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting 
date.

 The parameter most subject to change is the 
discount rate. In determining the appropriate 
discount rate for plans operated in India, the 
management considers the interest rates of 
government bonds. The mortality rate is based 
on publicly available mortality tables. Those 
mortality tables tend to change only at interval in 
response to demographic changes. Future salary 
increases and gratuity increases are based on 
expected future inflation rates.

3 current and other non-current employee 
benefits

 A liability is recognised for benefits accruing 
to employees in respect of wages and salaries, 
annual leave and sick leave in the period the 
related service is rendered at the undiscounted 
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in 
exchange for that service.

 Liabilities recognised in respect of current 
employee benefits are measured at the 
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected 
to be paid in exchange for the related service.

 Liabilities recognised in respect of other non-
current employee benefits are measured at 
the present value of the estimated future cash 
outflows expected to be made by the Company 
in respect of services provided by employees up 
to the reporting date.

4 short-term and other long-term employee 
benefits

 A liability is recognised for benefits accruing 
to employees in respect of wages and salaries, 
annual leave and sick leave in the period the 
related service is rendered at the undiscounted 
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 amount of the benefits expected to be paid in 
exchange for that service. Liabilities recognised 
in respect of short-term employee benefits are 
measured at the undiscounted amount of the 
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for 
the related service. Liabilities recognised in 
respect of other long-term employee benefits are 
measured at the present value of the estimated 
future cash outflows expected to be made by 
the Company in respect of services provided by 
employees up to the reporting date.

2.20 leases

 At inception of a contract, the Company assesses 
whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract 
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the 
right to control the use of an identified asset for a 
period of time in exchange for consideration.

 The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and 
a lease liability at the lease commencement date 
except for leases with a term of twelve months or less 
(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these 
short-term and low value leases, the lease payments 
associated with these leases as an expense on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term.

 Lease term is a non-cancellable period together with 
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if 
the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that 
option; and  periods covered by an option to terminate 
the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to 
exercise that option.

 The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, 
which comprises the initial amount of the lease 
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or 
before the commencement date, plus any initial direct 
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle 
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the 
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less 
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset 
is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line 
method from the commencement date to the end of 
the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership 
of the underlying asset to the Company by the end 
of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset 
reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase 
option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be 
depreciated over the useful life of the underlying 
asset. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically 
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for 
certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

 The lease liability is initially measured at the present 
value of the lease payments to be paid over the 
lease term at the commencement date, discounted 
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that 
rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s 
incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company 
uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount 
rate. Subsequently, the lease liability is measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.21 taxation

 Tax on Income comprises current tax and deferred 
tax. These are recognised in Statement of Profit and 
Loss except to the extent that it relates to a business 
combination, or items recognised directly in equity or 
in other comprehensive income.

 1 current tax

 Current income tax assets and liabilities 
are measured at the amount expected to 
be recovered from or paid to the taxation 
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to 
compute the amount are those that are enacted 
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in 
the countries where the Company operates and 
generates taxable income.

 Current income tax relating to items recognised 
outside statement of profit and loss is recognised 
outside statement of profit and loss (either 
in other comprehensive income or in equity). 
Current tax items are recognised in correlation 
to the underlying transaction either in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity. 
Management periodically evaluates positions 
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations 
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to 
interpretation and establishes provisions where 
appropriate.

 2 Deferred tax

 Deferred tax is recognised on temporary 
differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities in the financial statements 
and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax 
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable 
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are 
generally recognised for all deductible temporary 
differences to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profits will be available against which 
those deductible temporary differences can be
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 utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities 
are not recognised if the temporary difference 
arises from the initial recognition of assets and 
liabilities in a transaction other than a business 
combination that affects neither the taxable 
profit nor the accounting profit.

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is 
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow 
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. 
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed 
at each reporting date and are recognised to the 
extent that it has become probable that future 
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset 
to be recovered.

 “Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured 
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
period in which the liability is settled or the asset 
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted by 
the end of the reporting period.

 Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside 
profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss 
(either in other comprehensive income or in 
equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in 
correlation to the underlying transaction either 
in OCI or directly in equity.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they 
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation 
authority and the relevant entity intends to settle its 
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

 Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative 
Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws 
in India, which is likely to give future economic 
benefits in the form of availability of set off 
against future income tax liability. Accordingly, 
MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the 
balance sheet when the asset can be measured 
reliably and it is probable that the future 
economic benefit associated with the asset 
will be realised. The Company reviews the “MAT 
credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date 
and writes down the asset to the extent that it 
is no longer probable that it will pay normal tax 
during the specified period.

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused 
tax losses (excluding unabsorbed depreciation) 
to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profit will be available against which the losses 
can be utilised. 

 Significant management judgement is required 
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets 
that can be recognised, based upon the likely 
timing and the level of future taxable profits 
together with future tax planning strategies.

2.22  earnings per share

 Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing 
the net profit attributable to the equity holders of 
the Company by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted 
earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the 
net profit attributable to the equity holders of the 
Company by the weighted average number of equity 
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per 
equity share and also the weighted average number 
of equity shares that could have been issued upon 
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for 
the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been 
actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market 
value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive 
potential equity shares are deemed converted as of 
the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later 
date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined 
independently for each period presented.

 The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive 
equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all 
periods presented for any share splits and bonus 
shares issues including for changes effected prior to 
the approval of the financial statements by the Board 
of Directors.

2.23 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent 
assets.

 1 Provisions

 Provisions are recognised when the Company 
has a present obligation (legal or constructive) 
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the 
Company will be required to settle the obligation 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation.

 The amount recognised as a provision is the 
best estimate of the consideration required to 
settle the present obligation at the end of the 
reporting period, taking into account the risks 
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 
When a provision is measured using the cash 
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, 
its carrying amount is the present value of those 
cash flows (when the effect of the time value of 
money is material).
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 Present obligations arising under onerous 
contracts are recognised and measured as 
provisions with charge to statement of profit and 
loss. An onerous contract is considered to exist 
where the Company has a contract under which 
the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations 
under the contract exceed the economic benefits 
expected to be received from the contract

 2 contingent liability

 A possible obligation that arises from past events 
and the existence of which will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of 
one or more uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the enterprise are disclosed 
as contingent liability and not provided for. 
Such liability is not disclosed if the possibility of 
outflow of resources is remote.

 3 contingent assets

 A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises 
from past events and whose existence will 
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the 
entity. Contingent assets are not recognised 
but disclosed only when an inflow of economic 
benefits is probable.

2.24 Dividend distribution to equity shareholders of the 
company 

 The Company recognises a liability to make 
dividend distributions to its equity holders when the 
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no 
longer at its discretion. As per the corporate laws in 
India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved 
by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is 
recognised directly in equity.

 In case of Interim Dividend, the liability is recognised 
on its declaration by the Board of Directors.

3.1 stanDarDs issueD But not eFFectiVe

 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new 
standard or amendments to the existing standards 
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules as issued from time to time. On 23 March, 2022, 
MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from 
01 April, 2022, as below:

ind as 16 – Property, Plant and equipment - 
Proceeds beflore intended use

 The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from 
deducting from the cost of property, plant and

 equipment amounts received from selling items 
produced while the Company is preparing the asset 
for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise 
such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. 
The Company does not expect the amendments to 
have any impact in its recognition of its property, 
plant and equipment in its financial statements.

 ind as 37 – Provisions, contingent liabilities and 
contingent assets – onerous contracts - costs of 
Fulfilling a Contract 

 The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of 
fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate 
directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly 
to a contract can either be incremental costs of 
fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct 
labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that 
relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment 
is essentially a clarification and the Company does 
not expect the amendment to have any impact in its 
financial statements. The Company has evaluated the 
amendment and expect the amendment to have no 
impact in its financial statements.

 ind as 103 – Business combination - reference to 
conceptual Framework

 The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition 
as part of applying the acquisition method, the 
identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities assumed 
must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in 
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 
under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual 
Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These 
changes do not significantly change the requirements 
of Ind AS 103. The Company does not expect the 
amendment to have any significant impact in its 
financial statements.

 ind as 107 – Financial instruments - annual 
improvements to ind as (2021)

 The amendment clarifies which fees an entity 
includes when it applies the ‘10%’ test of Ind AS 109 in 
assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. 
The Company does not expect the amendment to have 
any significant impact in its financial statements.

 ind as 116 – leases  - annual improvements to ind 
as (2021)

 The amendments remove the illustration of the 
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the 
lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion 
regarding the treatment of lease incentives that
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 might arise because of how lease incentives were 
described in that illustration. The Company does not 
expect the amendment to have any significant impact 
in its financial statements.

4 critical accounting JuDgements anD KeY 
sources oF estimation uncertaintY

 In the application of the Company’s accounting 
policies, management of the Company is required 
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The 
estimates and associated assumptions are based 
on historical experience and other factors that are 
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ 
from these estimates.

 The estimates and underlying assumptions are 
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the 
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that 
period, or in the period of the revision and future 
periods if the revision affects both current and future 
periods. Detailed information about each of these 
estimates and judgements is included in relevant 
notes together with information about the basis of 
calculation for each affected line item in the financial 
statements.

  The areas involving critical estimates or judgements 
are:   

 Estimation of current tax and deferred tax expense - 
Note 29 

 Estimates used for impairment of transmission license 
- Note 31

 Assessment of lease classification in respect of 
long term power purchase agreement  - Note 32 (I) 
(c) 

 Judgement to estimate the amount of provision 
required or to determine required disclosure related 
to litigation and claims against the Company -  
Note 33 

 Estimation of defined benefit obligation - Note 37

 For the purpose of captilisation of borrowing cost,  
substantial time is defined as  time  required  for 
commissioning of the assets considering industry  
benchmarks/MERC tariff regulations.  

 Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. 
They are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectations of future events 
that may have a financial impact on the Company 
and that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances.
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relevant 
line item in 

Balancesheet

Decription 
of 

Property

gross 
carrying 

value 
(` in 

crores)

title deeds held in 
the name of

Whether title deed 
holder is a promoter, 
director or relative 

of promoter/director 
or employee of 

promoter/director

Property 
held since 
which date

reason for not being held in the name of 
the company

Property, 
Plant and 
Equipment

Land (Free 
hold)

 2,477.47 BSES / Reliance 
Energy / Reliance 
Infrastructure 
Limited 

No 28 August, 
2018

The title deeds in respect of land and 
certain residential properties are either 
in the erstwhile names of the Company 
viz: “Bombay Suburban Electric Supply 
Limited” / “Reliance Energy Limited” / 
“Reliance Infrastructure Limited”. The 
Company is in process of updating the 
same from erstwhile Company’s name to 
the name of the Company.

Property, 
Plant and 
Equipment

Building - 
Residental 
/Others

 584.58 BSES / Reliance 
Energy / Reliance 
Infrastructure 
Limited

No 28 August, 
2018

Right-of-Use 
Assets

Leasehold 
Land

 7.88 BSES / Reliance 
Energy / Reliance 
Infrastructure 
Limited

No 28 August, 
2018

(iii)  Consequent to amendment in tariff regulations w.e.f. 01 April, 2020, the Company in previous year had changed 
the useful life in respect of batteries and meters and accordingly depreciation for the year ended 31 March, 2021 is 
higher by ` 81.19 Crores.

Further in line with the tariff regulations w.e.f. 01 April, 2020, the Company in previous year had changed 
the useful life in respect to certain Plant & Machinery and IT Equipment, accordingly depreciation for the  
year ended 31 March, 2021 is lower by ` 13.40 Crores.
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5a rigHt oF use 

(` in Crores)

Particulars  right of use

 land  Building  right of Way  total 

gross carrying amount 

As at 01 April, 2020  13.75  129.30  40.16  183.21 

Additions  -    14.14  -    14.14 

Derecognition  -    4.78  -    4.78 

closing gross carrying amount as on 31 march, 2021  13.75  138.66  40.16  192.57 

accumulated amortisation & impariment

As at 01 April, 2020  0.32  23.80  1.80  25.92 

Amortisation charge of the year  0.36  22.99  1.81  25.16 

Derecognition  -    -    -    -   

closing accumulated amortisation as on 31 march, 2021  0.68  46.79  3.61  51.08 

net carrying amount - 31 march, 2021  13.07  91.87  36.55  141.49 

gross carrying amount 

As at 01 April, 2021  13.75  138.66  40.16  192.57 

Additions  510.32  -    -    510.32 

Derecognition  -    36.57  -    36.57 

closing gross carrying amount as on 31 march, 2022  524.07  102.09  40.16  666.32 

accumulated amortisation & impariment

As at 01 April, 2021  0.68  46.79  3.61  51.08 

Amortisation charge of the year  3.63  19.74  3.02  26.39 

Derecognition  -    3.94  -    3.94 

closing accumulated amortisation as on 31 march, 2022  4.31  62.59  6.63  73.53 

net carrying amount - 31 march, 2022  519.76  39.50  33.53  592.79 

5B intangiBle assets 

(` in Crores)

Particulars   computer 
software  

 transmission 
license  

 total 

gross carrying amount

As at 01 April, 2020  24.20  981.62  1,005.82 

Additions  18.94  -    18.94 

Disposal  -    -    -   

closing gross carrying amount as on 31 march, 2021  43.14  981.62  1,024.76 

accumulated amortisation & impariment

As at 01 April, 2020  14.24  -    14.24 

Amortisation charge for the year  6.22  -    6.22 

Eliminated on disposal of assets  -    -    -   

closing accumulated amortisation as on 31 march, 2021  20.46  -    20.46 

net carrying amount - 31 march, 2021  22.68  981.62  1,004.30 

gross carrying amount

As at 01 April, 2021  43.14  981.62  1,024.76 

Additions  49.51  -    49.51 
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Particulars   computer 
software  

 transmission 
license  

 total 

Disposal  -    -    -   

closing gross carrying amount as on 31 march, 2022  92.65  981.62  1,074.27 

accumulated amortisation & impariment

As at 01 April, 2021  20.46  -    20.46 

Amortisation charge for the year  15.62  -    15.62 

Eliminated on disposal of assets  -    -    -   

closing accumulated amortisation as on 31 march, 2022  36.08  -    36.08 

net carrying amount - 31 march, 2022  56.57  981.62  1,038.19 

notes:

(i)  The above Intangible Assets are other than internally generated Intangible Assets. 

 (ii)   Transmission License was acquired as part of the business acquisition. The License is valid for 25 years 
from 16 August, 2011 to 15 August, 2036. The license can be further extended at minimal cost, considering 
similar extensions have happened in the past. Based on an analysis of all of the relevant factors, the license is 
considered by the Company as having an indefinite useful life, as there is no foreseeable limit to the period over 
which the transmission business related assets are expected to generate net cash inflows for the Company.

 (iii) The title deeds in respect of certain lease hold land properties are in the erstwhile names of the Company viz: 
Bombay Suburban Electric Supply Limited” / “Reliance Energy Limited” / “Reliance Infrastructure Limited”. The 
Company is in process of updating the same from erstwhile Company’s name to the name of the Company. 

  Further during the year, the Company had entered into memorandum of understanding in name of the Company with 
M/s. Superheights Infraspace Private Limited (SIPL) (related party) for an amount of ̀  510.00 Crores towards acquiring 
leasehold rights of land parcel at BKC, Mumbai for construction of Extra High Voltage (EHV) Substation to meet the 
incremental load requirement. The Company has obtained possession of the said land after giving capital advance of  
` 431.00 Crores and commenced substantial pre-construction activities.

  The leasehold land amounting to ` 510.00 Crores is included in the right of use assets. The Company will 
enter into formal lease agreement on completion of the construction of the substation as per the applicable 
regulatory requirements.

(iv) Transmission License is pledged as security with the Lenders against borrowings.

(` in Crores)

Depreciation / amortisation  For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

Depreciation on Tangible Assets  612.82  613.18 

Amortisation on Intangible Assets  15.62  6.22 

Amortisation on Right of Use  26.39  25.16 

total  654.83  644.56 

Less : Transferred to Capital work in progress  (3.25)  -   

Net depreciation charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss  651.58  644.56 
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5c caPital WorK-in-Progress 

(a) capital-work-in progress ageing schedule:

(` in Crores)

Particulars amount in cWiP for a period of  total 

<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years  > 3 years 

as at 31 march, 2022

- Projects in progress  236.75  30.94  8.62  36.98  313.29 

- Projects temporarily suspended  0.22  0.87  0.95  0.15  2.19 

total  236.97  31.81  9.57  37.13  315.48 

as at 31 march, 2021

- Projects in progress  285.97  28.64  23.51  24.56  362.68 

- Projects temporarily suspended  0.21  0.51  0.07  0.09  0.88 

total  286.18  29.15  23.58  24.65  363.56 

(b) capital-work-in progress, which has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan: 

(` in Crores)

cWiP to be completed in  total 

<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years  > 3 years 

as at 31 march, 2022

- Projects in progress

  220kV 120MVAR Reactor at AEML Gorai  0.19  -    -    -    0.19 

- Projects temporarily suspended

  Low Tension network projects  0.17  -    -    0.17 

total  0.36  -    -    -    0.36 

as at 31 march, 2021

- Projects in progress

  Low Tension network projects  0.15  -    -    -    0.15 

- Projects temporarily suspended

  Low Tension network projects  0.25  -    -    -    0.25 

total  0.40  -    -    -    0.40 

Cost Overruns upto (+-) 10% are envisaged by the management’s original plan, and hence not considered in above table.

(c) capital-work-in progress, whose completion is overdue compared to its original plan:

(`in Crores)

cWiP to be completed in  total 

<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years  > 3 years 

as at 31 march, 2022

- Projects in progress

Main Plant DPR Jobs  0.23  -    -    -    0.23 

Main Plant Non DPR Jobs  0.01  -    -    -    0.01 

11KV Substation jobs  0.06  -    -    -    0.06 

Receiving Station Jobs  0.82  -    -    -    0.82 

Low Tension Network jobs  0.02  -    -    -    0.02 

Others Non DPR Jobs  0.06  -    -    -    0.06 
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(` in Crores)

cWiP to be completed in  total 

<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years  > 3 years 

- Projects temporarily suspended

Receiving Station Jobs  0.05  -    -    -    0.05 

total  1.25  -    -    -    1.25 

As at 31 March, 2021

- Projects in progress

Main Plant DPR Jobs  0.68  -    -    -    0.68 

- Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   

total  0.68  -    -    -    0.68 

Time Overruns due to delay in statutory approvals and right of way issues, and approved by the management’s 
revised plan are not considered in above table.     

5D  intangiBle assets unDer DeVeloPment aging scHeDule:

 (a) intangible assets under Development ageing schedule:

(` in Crores)

Particulars amount in cWiP for a period of  total 

<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years  > 3 years 

as at 31 march, 2022

- Projects in progress  -    -    -    -    -   

- Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   

total  -    -    -    -    -   

as at 31 march, 2021

- Projects in progress  12.76  2.65  -    -    15.41 

- Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   

total  12.76  2.65  -    -    15.41 

(b)  intangible assets under Development, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its 
original plan:

(` in Crores)

cWiP to be completed in  total 

<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years  > 3 years 

as at 31 march, 2022  -  -  -  -  - 

as at 31 march, 2021  -  -  -  -  - 

6 inVestments

 6.a non-current investments (` in Crores)

Face Value 
of ` unless 
otherwise 
specified

no of shares  as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

(` in crores) (` in crores)

investment in equity shares of subsidiary 
(unquoted) (cost)
Adani Electricity Mumbai Infra Limited 10 (10)  10,000 (10000)  0.01  0.01 
AEML SEEPZ Limited 10 (10)  10,000 (10000)  0.01  0.01 
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Face Value 
of ` unless 
otherwise 
specified

no of shares  as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

(` in crores) (` in crores)

investment in government securities at 
amortised cost
contingency reserve investments (quoted)
7.16% Central Government of India - 2050 100 (100) 1,87,50,000  201.78  202.07 

(1,87,50,000)
9.23% Central Government of India - 2043 100 (100) 2,20,000  2.84  2.88 

(2,20,000)
total  204.64  204.97 
aggregate market Value of quoted investments  188.31  198.81 
aggregate carrying Value of quoted 
investments  204.62  204.95 
aggregate carrying Value of unquoted 
investments  0.02  0.02 
aggregate amount of impairment in the value of 
investments  -    -   

 6.B current investments

Face Value 
of `  unless 
otherwise 
specified

no of units  as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

(` in crores) (` in crores)

contingency reserve investments
Investment in Tresury Bills at FVTPL (Quoted) 100 25,00,000  24.84  -   

(Nil) (Nil)
 24.84  -   

aggregate market Value of quoted investments  24.84  -   
aggregate carrying Value of quoted 
investments  24.84  -   

7 loans   - at amortiseD cost

Particulars  non-current current 
 as at  

31 march, 2022 
as at 

31 march, 2021
as at 

31 march, 2022
as at 

31 march, 2021
(` in crores) (` in crores) (` in crores) (` in crores)

Housing loans to employee against 
hypothecation of the property 
(Secured, considered good)

 19.86  25.96 3.47  3.74 

Inter Corporate Deposit given to related party 
(Unsecured, considered good)  1,040.00  1,040.00  -   -

Loans to employees   
(Unsecured, considered good)  8.54  7.15 3.54  2.98 

 1,068.40  1,073.11  7.01  6.72 
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type of Borrowers amount of loan or advance  
in the nature of loan  

outstanding

Percentage to the total 
loans and advances  

in the nature of loans

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

(` in crores) (` in crores) (` in crores) (` in crores)

Promoter  -    -    -    -   
Director  -    -    -    -   
Key Managerial Personnel  0.62  0.18 0.06% 0.02%
Related Party  1,040.00  1,040.00 96.71% 96.31%

(i)  Loans to Key Managerial Personnels are not repayable on demand and has defined repayments schedule and 
as per the Company’s Employees Loan Policy 

(ii)  Inter Corporate Deposit given to related party is for a period of 3 years and repayable on demand or on 
maturity of 3 years wichever is erlier.

8 otHer Financial assets - at amortiseD cost

(` in Crores)

Particulars  non-current current

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise 
stated)
Security Deposits - Unsecured

Considered Good  18.64  18.70  -    -   
Considered doubtful  1.05  1.05  -    -   

 19.69  19.75  -    -   
Less : Provision For Doubtful Deposits  (1.05)  (1.05)  -    -   
total  18.64  18.70  -    -   
Fixed Deposit with Banks*  516.34  477.99  -    -   
Derivative instruments designated in hedge 
accounting relationship#  165.25  143.13  -    -   

Unbilled Revenue  -    -    507.56  491.10 
Other Financial Assets  -    -    116.03  -   

 700.23  639.82  623.59  491.10 

note :  

*Represents deposits towards Debt Service Reserve Account (DSRA), Capex Reserve Account (CRA) and Margin money.

# Refer footnote to Note 17 for security/charges created on hedging instruments.   

 9a. income tax assets (net)

(` in Crores)

 as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

Income Tax Assets (net)  3.91   3.91    
 3.91  3.91 

 9b. current tax liabilities (` in Crores)

 as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

Current Tax Liabilities 2.13 -
2.13 -
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10 otHer assets (unsecured, considered good)

(` in Crores)

non-current current

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

Advance to Suppliers  -    -    125.19  366.43 
Balances with Government authorities  -    -    0.05  4.51 
Prepaid Expenses  1.32  2.72  16.79  8.81 
#Capital advances  68.55  283.50  -    -   
Advance to Employees  2.03  2.34  3.92  5.47 

 71.90   288.56  145.95  385.22 

#Capital Advance  of ` 271.00 Crores given to Sunbourne Developers Private Limited (SDPL) (related party) towards 
property in BKC in earlier years is returned on cancellation of relevant agreement during the year.

11 inVentories (stated at lower of cost and net realisable Value)

(` in Crores)

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

Fuel  127.40  128.06 
Fuel - In Transit  35.83  19.06 
Stores & spares  41.26  46.38 

 204.49  193.50 

Above inventories are pledged as security with the Lenders against borrowings (Refer Note No 17).

12 traDe receiVaBles

(` in Crores)

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

(unsecured otherwise stated)  450.49  536.31 
Unsecured, considered good  35.36  41.75 
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk  1.39  1.39 
Credit Impaired  487.24  579.45 
Less : Provision for doubtful Trade receivables  (1.39)  (1.39)

 485.85  578.06 

note :

(i)    The Company holds security deposit in respect of trade receivables - Refer Note No 20

(ii)   Above trade receivables are pledged as security with the Lenders against borrowings (Refer Note No 17).

(iii)  As at 31 March, 2022 - ` 77.15 Crores (31 March, 2021 : ` 69.55 Crores) is due from Maharashtra State Electricity 
Transmission Company Limited and ` 43.70 Crores (31 March, 2021 : ` 49.51 Crores) is due from Municipal 
Corporation of Greater Mumbai which represents Company’s large customer who owes more than 5% of the 
total balance of trade receivables. 

(iv)  The average credit period for the Company’s receivables from its transmission and distribution (including street 
light maintenance ) business is in the range of 15 to 30 days. No interest or delayed payment is charged on 
trade receivables till the due date. Thereafter, one time delayed payment charges at the rate of 1.25% & interest 
after 30 / 60 days from bill date is charged in the range of 12% to 15% per annum 

(v)   In case of transmission business, regulator approved tariff is receivable from long-term transmission customers 
(LTTCs) and Discoms that are highly rated companies or government parties. Counterparty credit risk with 
respect to these receivables is very minimal.  
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(vi)  The Company considers for impairment its receivables from customers in its Mumbai distribution business. 
The risk of recovery in these businesses is reduced to the extent of security deposits already collected and 
held as collateral. Balance amount receivable over and above the deposit is assessed for expected credit loss 
allowances. The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance 
for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss 
experienced and adjusted for forward- looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on 
ageing of the days the receivables are due. 

12.1 trade receivables ageing schedule

Particulars outstanding for following periods from due date of receipt
not Due less than  

6 months
6 months 

- 1 year
1-2 years 2-3 

years
more than 

3 years
total

 as at 31 march, 2022 
(i)    Undisputed Trade receivables – 

considered good  244.67  160.47  1.97  40.61  -    -  447.72 
(ii)   Undisputed Trade Receivables – 

which have significant increase 
in credit risk  6.25  18.08  3.87  7.12  -    -  35.32 

(iii)  Undisputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired  -    -    -    1.39  -    -  1.39 

(iv)  Disputed Trade Receivables 
considered good  0.60  1.66  0.36  0.15  -    -  2.77 

(v)   Disputed Trade Receivables - 
which have significant increase 
in credit risk  0.01  0.03  -    -    -    -  0.04 

(vi)  Disputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -  -   

(vii) Provision for Doubtful Debts  -    -    -    (1.39)  -    -  (1.39)
total  251.53   180.24  6.20  47.88  -  -  485.85 

as at 31 march, 2021 
(i)    Undisputed Trade receivables – 

considered good  187.16  262.34  83.25  0.92  -  -  533.67 
(ii)   Undisputed Trade Receivables – 

which have significant increase 
in credit risk  2.67  19.39  8.70  10.98  -  -  41.74 

(iii)   Undisputed Trade Receivables 
– credit impaired  -    -    1.39  -    -  -  1.39 

(iv)   Disputed Trade Receivables 
considered good  0.87  1.15  0.33  0.29  -  -  2.64 

(v)   Disputed Trade Receivables - 
which have significant increase 
in credit risk  -    0.01  -    -    -  -  0.01 

(vi)   Disputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -  -  -   

(vii)  Provision for Doubtful Debts  -    -    (1.39)  -    -  -  (1.39)
total  190.70  282.89  92.28  12.19  -  -  578.06 

 12.2 movement in the allowance for doubtful trade receivables

 as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

(` in Crores) (` in Crores)
Balance at the beginning of the year  1.39  64.70 
Add/(Less) : Provision made / (Written off) during the year (net of recoveries)  -   (63.31)
Balance at the end of the year  1.39  1.39 

 The concentration of credit risk is very limited due to the fact that the large customers are mainly government  
bodies / departments and remaining customer base is large and widely dispersed and secured with security deposit.
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13 casH anD casH equiValents - at amortiseD cost

(` in Crores)

 as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

Balances with banks 
- In current accounts  64.51  104.52 
- Fixed Deposits  -    20.00 
Cash On Hand  0.80  2.40 
Cheques / Drafts On Hand  9.10  24.97 
total cash & cash equivalents as per statement of cash Flows  74.41  151.89 

reconciliation of liabilities from Financing activities

Particulars   as at  
01 april, 2021 

cash flows non-cash 
transaction

 as at  
31 march, 2022 Proceeds repayment

Non-current Borrowings (including 
Current Maturities of Non-current 
Borrowings)  10,578.03  2,231.98  (1,369.40)  424.04  11,864.65 
Current Borrowings 
(Excluding Bank Overdraft)  883.35  1,535.53  (2,418.88) - -
total  11,461.38  3,767.51  (3,788.28)  424.04  11,864.65 

reconciliation of liabilities from Financing activities

Particulars   as at  
01 april, 2020 

cash flows non-cash 
transaction

 as at  
31 march, 2021 Proceeds repayment

Non-current Borrowings (including 
Current Maturities of Non-current 
Borrowings)  10,184.03  767.54  (33.33)  (340.21)  10,578.03 
Current Borrowings  
(Excluding Bank Overdraft)  984.31  3,673.70  (3,774.66)  -    883.35 
total  11,168.34  4,441.24  (3,807.99)  (340.21)  11,461.38 

note: :  
Non-cash transactions represents movement in revaluation of foreign currency borrowings.

14 BanK Balance otHer tHan casH anD casH equiValents - at amortiseD cost

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

*** Bank Deposits with Original Maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 
months      624.48  886.56 

 624.48  886.56 

*** Includes deposits placed towards Margin Money and Debt Service Reserve Account (DSRA) amounting to ` Nil 
(31 March, 2021: ` 3.70 Crores). 

15 sHare caPital

(` in Crores)

 as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

authorised share capital
5,000,000,000 (5,000,000,000) equity shares of ` 10 each.  5,000.00  5,000.00 

 5,000.00  5,000.00 
issued, subscribed and Paid-up share capital
4,020,823,535 (4,020,823,535) fully paid up equity shares of ` 10 each.  4,020.82  4,020.82 

 4,020.82  4,020.82 
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a. reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year   

equity shares  as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

 no. shares  no. shares 
At the beginning of the Year 4,02,08,23,535  4,02,08,23,535 
Issued during the year  -    -   
Outstanding at the end of the year  4,02,08,23,535  4,02,08,23,535 

 Details of shares alloted for consideration other than cash    

During the year ended 31 March, 2020 62,07,73,535 numbers Equity Shares of ` 10 each at a premium of ` 1.94 per 

share, have been issued through Preferential allotment to Parent Company on conversion of intercorporate deposit 

(including interest accrued) ` 460.25 Crores and unsecured perpetual Instrument.    

b. terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares 

is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend if proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the 

shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company the holders of 

the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential 

amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

c. Details of shareholding of the promotors and shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company 
equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid as at 31 march, 2022 as at 31 march, 2021

no. shares % held no. shares % held
Adani Transmission Limited and its nominees 
(Promoters)##  3,01,15,96,827 74.90%  3,01,15,96,827 74.90%

Qatar Holding LLC ##  1,00,92,26,708 25.10%  1,00,92,26,708 25.10%
 4,02,08,23,535 100.00%  4,02,08,23,535 100.00%

## Shares Pledged

No. of equity  shares pledged to Lenders - 
100% (PY 100%)  4,02,08,23,529  4,02,08,23,529 

16 otHer equitY

(` in Crores)

a. capital reserve as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

 230.78  230.78 

Capital Reserve represents the gain arising on accounting of business combination, wherein on the acquisition-

date the net amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed exceeded the consideration 

amount paid.           

(` in Crores)
b. effective portion of cashflow Hedge as at 

31 march, 2022
as at 

31 march, 2021
Opening Balance  (113.90)  (13.24)
Add : Effective portion of cash flow hedge for the year  (151.87)  (100.66)
Closing Balance  (265.77)  (113.90)

The cash flow hedging reserve represents the cumulative effective portion of gains or losses arising on changes in 

fair value of designated portion of hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges. The cumulative gain or 

loss arising on changes in fair value of the designated portion of the hedging instruments that are recognised and 

accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve will be reclassified to profit or loss only when the 

hedged transaction affects the profit or loss, or included as a basis adjustment to the non-financial hedged item.
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c. contingency reserve Fund as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

Opening Balance  219.69  196.95 
Transfer from Retained Earnings  25.74  22.74 
Closing Balance  245.43  219.69 

As per the provisions of MERC MYT Regulations read with Tariff orders passed by MERC, the Company being a 
Distribution and Transmission Licensee, makes an appropriation to the Contingency Reserve Fund to meet with 
certain exigencies. Investments have been made in Securities issued by Government of India.

d. share Premium account  120.43  120.43 

Securities Premium Reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares and is utilised in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

e. retained earnings as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

(Retained Earnings are the profits of the Company earned till date net of 
appropriations)
Opening Balance  232.53  (31.41)
Add : Profit for the year  122.16  259.17 
Other Comprehensive Income arising from remeasurement  
of Defined Benefit Plans(net of tax)  14.17  27.51 

Transfer to Contingency Reserve Fund  (25.74)  (22.74)
Closing Balance  343.12  232.53 
total  673.99  689.53 

17 BorroWings (at amortiseD cost)    

(` in Crores)

non-current $$$ current*

as at  
31 march, 2022

as at  
31 march, 2021

as at  
31 march, 2022

as at  
31 march, 2021

secured
Rupee Term Loans from Banks - 8.50%  -    33.33  -    33.33 
External Commercial Borrowings in Foreign 
Currency
Senior Secured Note - 3.949%  7,512.41  7,235.63  -    -   
Term Loans from Banks - 2.99938% (3.9466%)  -    1,248.77  -    -   
Sustainability Linked Notes - 3.867%  2,246.10  -    -    -   
unsecured
External Commercial Borrowings in Foreign 
Currency
Shareholders Affiliated Debts - 6.365%  2,106.14  2,026.97  -    -   
total  11,864.65  10,544.70  -    33.33 

*     Amount disclosed under the head “current borrowings” (Refer note 23)

$$$ Incudes processing fees netted of ` 125.72 Crores (31 March, 2021 -  ` 140.76 Crores)
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Borrowings security terms of repayment of 
Borrowings

Rupee Term 
Loans from 
Banks - 8.50% 

a)   a first pari passu mortgage over certain Identified Immovable Properties; 
 
b)    a first pari passu charge on the movable assets of the Project (both 

present and future); 

c)    a first pari passu charge on all book debts, operating cash flows, 
receivables (excluding Past Period Regulatory Assets, monies in the 
Debenture Liquidity Account and the post distribution cash flows), 
commissions or revenues whatsoever arising out of the Project (both 
present and future); 

d)    a first pari passu charge on the Accounts under the Project Accounts 
Deed (except the Excluded Accounts (which means the AEML PPRA 
Account, the Debenture Liquidity Account, each of the AEML Post 
Distribution Cash Flow Accounts; any accounts opened for the purpose 
of managing any Excluded Cash Flows; and the AEML Distributions 
Account)) and amounts lying to the credit of such Accounts (both 
present and future); 

e)    a first pari passu assignment in relation to Transmission License and 
Distribution License, subject to approval from the MERC; 

f)     a pledge over 100%  of the entire paid up equity and preference share 
capital of the Company; 

g)     a non-disposal undertaking over immovable properties other than 
certain identified immoveable properties; 

h)     a non-disposal undertaking over the immoveable and moveable 
assets (including all book debts, operating cash flows, receivables, 
commissions or revenues whatsoever) of the Service Company (both 
present and future); and 

i)      a non-disposal undertaking over 100% of the equity and preference 
share capital of the Service Company. 

In addition to the aforesaid, the Collateral shall also include such security 
interest as may be required to be created by other group entities of the 
Issuer in the future, and such collateral may be shared in the same manner 
as aforementioned with other lenders of the Company, and such future 
obligors.

ranking of security 
The Collateral will be a first charge ranking pari passu among the debt 
security holders, without any preference or priority and shall rank pari passu 
with all the senior secured debt of the Company in accordance with the 
Senior Secured Note Documents and the intercreditor agreement.

During the year, the Company 
prepaid Rupee term loans from 
Banks in full. As at 31 March, 2021, 
the terms of repayment were : 
two equal annual instalments of  
` 33.33 Crores starting from March 
2021.

Senior Secured 
Note - 3.949% 
(and related 
hedging 
instruments)

By way of bullet payment in 
February 2030 with an obligation 
to prepay the debt on occurrence 
of certain events. The Company 
can voluntarily prepay the Bond on 
payment of premium.

Term Loans 
from Banks 
- 2.99938% 
(3.9466%) (and 
related hedging 
instruments)

During the year, the Company 
prepaid term loans from Banks. 
As at 31 March, 2021, the terms of 
repayment were as  given below: 

By way of bullet payment with an 
obligation to prepay the debt on 
occurrence of certain events. The 
Company can voluntarily prepay 
the Term Loan either in full or part.

The Future annual repayment 
obligations on principal amount 
are as under:-

a)   1 Installment amounitng to   
` 511.77 Crores in 2022-23. 

b)    2 Installment of amounting to 
` 767.65 Crores in 2022-23.

Impact of recognition of 
borrowings at amortised cost 
using effestive interest method 
was ` (30.65) Crores.

Sustainability 
Linked Notes 
- 3.87% (and 
related hedging 
instruments)

By way of bullet payment in 
July 2031 with an obligation to 
prepay the debt on occurrence of 
certain events. The Company can 
voluntarily prepay the Bond on 
payment of premium.

Buyers credit As at 31 March, 2022 there are no 
working capital and buyers credit 
outstanding. For working capital 
or buyers credit outstanding on 31 
March, 2021, the rate of interest 
for Secured  loans from banks 
ranged from 1.55% to 5.7%.

Working capital 
short term loan 

Shareholders 
Affiliated Debts 
- 6.365%

(i)    First-ranking fixed charge over all its present and future right, title, benefit 
and interest in the Excluded Loan Accounts

(ii)    First-ranking floating charge over all of its present and future right, title, 
benefit and  interest in the equity distribution account

Shareholders Affiliated Debts 
are repayable commencing from 
February 2027 through February 
2040 with an obligation to 
prepay the debt on occurrence of 
certain events. The Company can 
voluntarily prepay the debt on 
payment of premium.

Working capital 
short term loan 

Unsecured loans from banks As at 31 March, 2022 there are no 
working capital outstanding. For 
working capital outstanding on 31 
March, 2021, the rate of interest 
for Unsecured loans from banks 
was 4.25% 
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18 traDe PaYaBles

(` in Crores)

non-current current 
as at  

31 march, 2022
 as at  

31 march, 2021 
as at  

31 march, 2022
 as at  

31 march, 2021 
(A)   total outstanding dues of micro 

enterprises and small enterprises; and  -    -    25.07  28.99 
(B)   total outstanding dues of creditors 

other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises.  32.22  31.93  1,465.88  1,158.69 

 32.22  31.93  1,490.95  1,187.68 

This information as required to be disclosed under Micro and Small Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues 
(including interest on outstanding dues), which are outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date. The above information 
has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the 
Company. This has been relied upon by the auditors. 

(` in Crores)

as at  
31 march, 2022

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

(a)   the principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each 
accounting year (including payable for Property, Plant & equipment)  104.41  28.41 

(b)   Interest due on principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the 
end of each accounting year  0.62  0.58 

(c)      the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), 
along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 
appointed day during each accounting year.  -    -   

(d)   the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 
year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;  0.62  0.58 

(e)   the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 
accounting year; and  0.62  0.58 

(f)  the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually 
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible 
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006.  0.62  0.58 

trade Payables ageing schedule
Particulars outstanding for following periods from due date of payment*

not Due <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years more than 
3 years

 total 

as at 31 march, 2022
(a)  MSME  9.77  9.49  2.10  2.46  1.25  25.07 
(b)  Others  160.59  1,058.51  127.80  49.58  9.55  1,406.03 
(c)  Disputed dues – MSME  -    -    -    -    -    -   
(d)  Disputed dues - Others  -    92.07  -    -    -    92.07 
total  170.36  1,160.07  129.90  52.04  10.80  1,523.17 
as at 31 march, 2021 
(a) MSME  18.15  8.53  1.56  0.43  0.32  28.99 
(b) Others  54.76  807.06  263.92  23.56  41.32  1,190.62 
(c) Disputed dues – MSME  -    -    -    -    -    -   
(d) Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -    -   
total  72.91  815.59  265.48  23.99  41.64  1,219.61 
* Ageing for provisions have been considered based on transaction date.
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19 lease liaBilities

(` in Crores)

non-current current

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

Lease Obligation  26.25  50.70  18.59  42.89 

 26.25  50.70  18.59  42.89 

20 otHer Financial liaBilities (at amortised cost)

(` in Crores)

non-current current

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  -    -    113.91  99.24 

Payable towards purchase of PPE  -    -    315.14  191.58 

Security Deposit from Consumers  -    -    471.70  474.80 

Regulatory Liabilities other than Distribution  -    -    2.94  6.53 

Security Deposit from Customers / Vendors  -    -    15.25  7.99 

Other Financial Liabilities  -    -    -    6.61 

Derivative Instruments designated in hedge 
accounting relationship#  66.02  63.12  57.07  31.07 

 66.02  63.12  976.01  817.82 

 #Refer footnote to Note 17 for security/charges created on hedging instruments.

21 ProVisions 

(` in Crores)

non-current current

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

Provision for Gratuity  160.10  132.02  32.57  31.96 

Provision for Compensated absences  393.31  390.17  28.07  23.61 

Provision for Other Employment Benefits  18.87  20.01  3.16  2.98 

total  572.28  542.20  63.80  58.55 

22 otHer liaBilities

(` in Crores)

non-current current

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

Deferred Revenue - Service Line Contributions 
from Consumers  245.47  231.77  11.12  9.78 

Statutory dues payable  -    -    210.66  182.92 

Advances From Customer  -    51.12  66.74  58.39 

Other Payables  -    -    3.18  2.57 

 245.47  282.89  291.70  253.66 
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23 BorroWings (at amortised cost)

(` in Crores)

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

secured loans from banks

Current maturities of long-term borrowings  -    33.33 

Buyers credit  -    92.35 

Working capital short term loan   -    486.00 

unsecured loans

Working capital short term loan   -    305.00 

 -    916.68 

 security and rate of interest

 (i)   For Security of Current maturities of long-term borrowings,Short Term Loans, Buyers Credit and Working Capital 
Loans - (Refer Note No 17)           

 (ii)  As at 31 March, 2022 there are no working capital or short term loans or buyers credit outstanding. For working 
capital and buyers credit outstanding on 31 March, 2021, the rate of interest for Secured / unsecured  loans 
from banks ranged from 1.55% to 5.70%. 

 (iii)  There are no charges or satisfaction which are to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the 
statutory period.           

 (iv)  The Company has been sanctioned working capital from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The 
Company in this regard has been duly submitting with all such banks from whom such facilities are taken, the 
quarterly statements comprising details of said current assets viz. raw material, stores and spares, finished 
goods, advances for power purchases and coal, book debts (including unbilled revenue) and other receivable 
(<90 days) reduced by relevant trade payables (i.e net of provisions, regulatory payables and other payables). 
The said quarterly statements are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company of 
the respective quarters based on draft figures at the point of time of reporting and there are no material 
discrepancies. 

24 reVenue From oPerations 

(` in Crores)

For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

a)  income from sale of Power and transmission charges

Income from Sale of Power and Transmission Charges (Net)  6,673.94  5,881.61 

(Less)/Add: Income to be adjusted in future tariff determination (Net)  3.59  21.97 

 6,677.53  5,903.58 

b)  other operating income

Insurance Claim Received  2.55  0.01 

Income in respect of Services rendered  42.04  6.55 

Sale of Coal Rejects / Fly Ash  16.59  8.94 

Street Light Maintenance Charges  141.77  101.83 

Amortisation of Service Line Contribution  10.30  9.22 

Miscellaneous Revenue  17.40  17.51 

 230.65  144.06 
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(` in Crores)

For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

c)  sale of traded goods

Sale of Traded Goods  0.76  1.63 

 0.76  1.63 

total  6,908.94  6,049.27 

 Details of Revenue from Contracts with Customers (disagrregated by type and nature of prodcut or services)

(` in Crores)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

Income from Sale of Power  6,334.58  5,566.00 

Income from Transmission Charges (Net)  342.95  337.58 

Income in respect of Services rendered  42.04  6.55 

Sale of Coal Rejects / Fly Ash  16.59  8.94 

Street Light Maintainence Charges  141.77  101.83 

Sale of Traded Goods  0.76  1.63 

Add:  Cash  Discount/Rebates  etc  31.29  26.54 

total revenue as per contracted Price  6,909.98  6,049.07 

transaction Price - remaining Performance obligation

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be 
recognised as at the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognise 
these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed 
the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts as the revenue recognised corresponds 
directly with the value to the customer of the entity’s performance completed to date.

There are no aggregate value of performance obligations that are completely or partially unsatisfied as of 31 March, 
2022, other than those meeting the exclusion criteria mentioned above.

contract Balances 

(` in Crores)

For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

contract assets
Recoverable from Consumers 

Non-current  -    -   

Current  -    -   

Total Contract Assets  -    -   

contract liabilities
Liabilities towards Consumers

Non-current  -    -   

Current  2.94  6.53 

Total Contract Liabilities  2.94  6.53 

receivables
Trade Receivables (Gross)  487.24  579.45 

Unbilled Revenue for passage of time  507.56  491.10 

(Less): Allowance for Doubtful Debts  (1.39)  (1.39)

net receivables  993.41  1,069.16 
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Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. Contract 
liability is the entity’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the entity has received 
consideration from the customer in advance. Contract assets are transferred to receivables when the rights 
become unconditional and contract liabilities are recognised as revenue as and when the performance obligation 
is satisfied. 

Significant changes in the contract assets and the contract liabilities balances during the year are as follows :

(` in Crores)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

opening Balance

Recoverable from consumers  -    -   

Liabilities towards consumers  116.04  155.47 

A  116.04  155.47 

Income to be adjusted in future tariff determination in respect of earlier  
year

 -    (9.55)

Income to be adjusted in future tariff determination (Net)  (3.59)  (12.42)

Adjusted on completion of performace obiligation/Others  (42.77)  (17.46)

B  (46.36)  (39.43)

closing Balance

Recoverable from consumers  -    -   

Liabilities towards consumers  69.68  116.04 

(A+B)  69.68  116.04 

25 otHer income

(` in Crores)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

a) interest income

On Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost

Bank Deposits  106.31  98.59 

Overdue Trade Receivables  22.45  30.00 

Contingency Reserve Fund Investment - Non Current  13.30  3.84 

Contingency Reserve Fund Investment - Current  0.53  13.06 

Other Investments  -    23.74 

On Intercorporate Deposits  114.40  116.87 

Other interest  51.50  47.24 

Interest on Security Deposits - Lease  0.85  0.98 

b) gain/(loss) on investments

Gain On Sale / Fair Value Of Current Investments Measured at FVTPL  1.13  39.73 

Gain On Sale / Fair Value Of Current Investments Measured at FVTPL - 
Contingency Reserve Fund 

 -    1.33 

c) other non-operating income 

Bad Debts Recovery  4.95  3.00 

Sale of Scrap  11.79  8.63 

Rental Income  0.27  0.21 
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(` in Crores)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

Delayed Payment Charges  22.90  27.00 

Foreign Exchange Gain (net)  -    4.96 

Profit / (Loss) on Sale of Assets  0.42  1.87 

Incentive Received  1.44  -   

Sundry credit balances written back  57.41  -   

Miscellaneous Income  -    0.62 

total  409.65  421.67 

26  emPloYee BeneFits exPenses

(` in Crores)
Particulars For the year ended 

31 march, 2022 
For the year ended 

31 march, 2021 
#Salaries, Wages & Bonus  680.35  744.53 
Contribution To Gratuity  48.07  46.08 
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds  57.52  51.91 
Contribution to Superannuation Fund  7.76  7.91 
Compensated absences  42.00  56.71 
Staff Welfare Expenses  99.02  89.76 

 934.72  996.90 
Less : Staff Cost Capitalised  (136.04)  (140.73)
total  798.68  856.17 

#Net of wage provisions no longer required written back of ` 38.74 Crores (31 March, 2021 : Nil)

27  Finance costs

(` in Crores)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

a)  interest expense
 Borrowings -  amortised cost 
 Rupee Term Loans   1.71  8.40 

 $ Senior Secured Note  322.04  315.66 

 $ Shareholders Affiliated Debts     138.00  135.66 

 $ External Commercial Borrowings (Note 1 below)  47.99  42.02 

 $ Sustainability Linked Notes  66.12  -   

 Working Capital Loans  44.44  78.32 

 Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Gain(net)-Borrowings (Note 3 below)  155.64  166.80 

 Interest - Hedging Cost  400.24  348.42 

 others 
 Security Deposits From Consumers at amortised cost  18.71  21.06 

 Interest on lease obligation  6.25  6.92 

 Interest - Others  0.24  1.48 

 1,201.38  1,124.74 

 Less : Interest Cost Capitalised  (42.45)  (30.10)
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(` in Crores)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

 1,158.93  1,094.64 

b)  other Borrowing costs  

 Other Finance Cost  1.45  2.34 

 total  1,160.38  1,096.98 

note :

$ - In Foreign Currency,

 1 Includes ` 28.45 Crores (31 March, 2021: ` Nil) (unamortised upfront fees) charged off on settlment of External 
Commercial Borrowings.

 2 The weighted average capitalisation rate on the Company’s general borrowings is 8.76% (31 March, 2021: 
7.98%) per annum.

 3 Including Mark to Market gain of ` 252.56 Crores (31 March, 2021: loss of ` 512.11 Crores) on Derivative 
Instruments designated in hedge accounting relationship.

28 otHer exPenses

(` in Crores)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

Consumption Of Stores & Spares  56.59  37.82 

Repairs & Maintenance 

 -  Plant & Machinery  367.77  355.36 

 -  Buildings  20.22  17.83 

 -  Others  26.18  13.36 

@Short Term Lease Rental of Land,Building,Plant & Machinery Etc  12.62  11.35 

Vehicle Hire Charges  16.97  19.57 

Rates and Taxes  19.44  20.38 

Legal & Professional Expenses  149.40  120.93 

Directors' Sitting Fees  0.08  0.06 

Bank Charges  6.04  9.62 

@@Payment to Auditors  1.74  1.60 

Communication Expenses  7.96  9.68 

Travelling  & Conveyance Expenses  8.45  10.57 

Insurance Expenses  9.76  23.73 

License fees  1.74  1.65 

Security Charges  31.17  32.25 

Seminar & Training Expenses  3.17  2.10 

Software Expenses  18.15  13.05 

Bad debt Write off  (Refer Note 12.2)  18.31  22.52 

Bill Print/Collection/ Distribution  11.88  9.95 

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Loss(net)  1.20  -   

Call Center Expenses  8.37  3.64 

Donations  0.30  -   

@@@Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses  5.69  3.56 
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(` in Crores)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

Electricity Expenses  0.51  0.41 

Printing & Stationery  1.38  1.60 

Advertisement & Publicity  9.26  3.50 

Water charges  3.68  4.17 

Other Miscellaneous Expenses  20.27  12.41 

total  838.30  762.67 

@Lease Rentals inrespect of low value assets is immaterial.

@@  Payment to auditors

(` in Crores)
For the year ended 

31 march, 2022 
For the year ended 

31 march, 2021 
as auditor: 
Statutory Audit Fees  1.32  1.25 
# Other Services  0.14  0.10 
Out of Pocket Expenses  0.01  -   
Applicable taxes  0.27  0.24 

 1.74  1.60 

#Excluding fees of ` 1.25 Crores (plus taxes 0.22 Crores) for services towards Sustainability linked bond issue which 
is netted off in borrowings for purposes of calculating Effective Interest Rate.

@@@Details of corporate social responsibilities under section 135 of companies act

(` in Crores)
Particulars For the year ended 

31 march, 2022 
For the year ended 

31 march, 2021 
(i)    Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year  5.65  3.56 
(ii)   Total of previous years shortfall amounts  0.72  -   
(iii)  Amount of expenditure incurred:
      (a)   Construction or acquisition of any assets  -    -   
      (b)   on purpose other than (a) above  0.28  0.59 
       -  Donation to related party trust (not controlled by the Company)  6.13  2.25 
total amount of expenditure incurred  6.41  2.84 
(iv)  (Excess) / Shortfall at the end of the year  (0.04)  0.72 
(v)   Provision made towards CSR expenditure  -    0.72 

 (vi)  Reason for shortfall : Nil (31 March, 2021 : Company intended to spend the unutilised amount in subsequent 
year and had deposited the amount with Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility Account)  

 (vii)  Nature of CSR activities : Primary Education, Community Health and Sanitation, Sustainable Livelihood 
Development and Urban / Rural Infrastructure Development.

29 tax exPenses

1 Income Taxes recognised in the statement of profit & loss

(` in Crores)
For the year ended 

31 march, 2022 
For the year ended 

31 march, 2021 
Current Income Tax  (MAT)  47.78  49.40 
Deferred Tax  101.18  27.75 

 148.96  77.15 
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2 income tax recognised in other comprehensive income  

(` in Crores)

For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

Current Income Tax 

-Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans  3.00  5.83 

Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income  3.00  5.83 

Bifurcation of the income tax recognised in other comprehensive income 
into:

Items that will be reclassified to statement of profit and loss  -    -   

Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss  3.00  5.83 

 3.00  5.83 

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit Before Tax        271.12  336.32 

income tax using the company's domestic tax rate  94.74  117.52 

tax effect of :

-  Non deductible Expenses  2.09  1.24 

-  MAT credit not recognised  47.78  49.40 

-  Tax on other Items  4.35  (0.85)

- Deferred Tax Asset on unabsorbed Depreciation in respect of earlier years  -    (90.16)

Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss  148.96  77.15 

notes

 a The tax rate used for the years 31 March, 2022 and 31 March, 2021 reconciliations above is the corporate tax 

rate of 34.944%  payable by corporate entities in India on taxable profits under the Indian tax law.

 b The rate used for calculation of Deferred tax is 34.944%, being statutory enacted rate at respective Balance 

Sheet date.

 c The Union Cabinet on 20 November, 2019 approved the proposal for introducing the Taxation Laws (Amendment) 

Bill, 2019 in order to replace the Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, on 25 November, 2019, the Taxation Laws 

(Amendment) Bill, 2019 (Bill) was introduced which received the assent of the President of India on 12 

December, 2019. The Taxation Laws Amendment Bill  inserted Section 115BAA in the Income Tax Act, 1961 

which provides domestic companies a non-reversible option to pay corporate tax at reduced rates effective  

01 April, 2019 subject to certain conditions. The Company has decided not to avail the benefit provided under 

the above Bill, however the Company would evaluate its option in the future based on business developments.

unrecognised unused tax credits

(` in Crores)

For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

Unrecognised Tax Credits  50.78  55.23 
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The expiry of unrecognised unused MAT credits is as described below:

(` in Crores)

as at 
 31 march, 2022

as at  
31 march, 2021

Within One Year  -    -   

Greater than one year, less than five years  -    -   

Greater than five years  194.01  143.23 

No expiry date  -    -   

Total  194.01  143.23 

3 Deferred tax

(` in Crores)

For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

Deferred tax Assets  1,335.37  1,088.71 

Deferred tax Liabilities  1,514.72  1,166.88 

net Deferred tax assets  / (liabilities)  (179.35)  (78.17)

2021-22

opening Balance recognised in 
Profit & Loss 

closing Balance 

Deferred tax assets in relation to

Allowance for Doubtful Debts, Deposits, Advances and 
property tax payable

 5.67  2.03  7.70 

Provisions for employee benefits and others  201.89  12.69  214.58 

Unabsorbed Depreciation  881.16  231.94  1,113.10 

 1,088.71  246.66  1,335.37 

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to

Property, Plant & Equipment  1,166.88  347.84  1,514.72 

 1,166.88  347.84  1,514.72 

Deferred tax asset/(liability) (net)  (78.17)  (101.18)  (179.35)

2020-21

opening Balance recognised in 
Profit & Loss 

closing Balance 

Deferred tax assets in relation to

Allowance for Doubtful Debts, Deposits and Advances  -    5.67  5.67 

Provisions for employee benefits and others  -    201.89  201.89 

Unabsorbed Depreciation  764.89  116.27  881.16 

 764.89  323.82  1,088.71 

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to

Property, Plant & Equipment  815.31  351.57  1,166.88 

 815.31  351.57  1,166.88 

Deferred tax asset/(liability) (net)  (50.42)  (27.75)  (78.17)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

183

Financial Statements



30 earnings Per sHare (ePs)

(` in Crores)

For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

(a) Before net movement in regulatary Deferral Balance

Profit / (Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders  122.16  259.17 

Add/(Less): Net Movement in Regulatory Deferral Balance  682.47  582.81 

Income tax on Regulatory Income / (expense)  (119.24)  (101.83)

Regulatory Income / (expense) (net of tax)  563.23  480.98 

Net Profit / (Net Loss) excluding regulatory Income  (441.07)  (221.81)

Number of Weighted Average Equity  Shares, outstanding during 
the year for basic / diluted EPS

No.  4,02,08,23,535  4,02,08,23,535 

Nominal Value of Equity Shares `  10.00  10.00 

Basic / Diluted earnings per share before net movement in 
regulatary Deferral Balance

`  (1.10)  (0.55)

(B) after net movement in regulatary Deferral Balance

Profit / (Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders  122.16  259.17 

Number of Weighted Average Equity  Shares, outstanding during 
the year for basic EPS

No.  4,02,08,23,535  4,02,08,23,535 

Nominal Value of Equity Shares `  10.00  10.00 

Basic / Diluted Earnings per Share after net Movement in 
Regulatary Deferral Balance

`  0.30  0.64 

31

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 36 “Impairment of Assets”, Transmission Cash Generating Unit 
(“TCGU”)  which includes carrying value of Transmission License having indefinite useful life being Transmission 
License (` 981.62 Crores),  has been tested for impairment  as at 31 March, 2022 wherein, recoverable amount of 
the TCGU has been determined applying value in use approach. The  value in use of the TCGU has been determined 
using Discounted Cash Flow Method (DCF).

In deriving the  recoverable amount of the TCGU a discount rate ( post tax ) of 9.10% (31 March, 2021: 8.75%) 
per annum  has been used. In arriving at the recoverable amount of the TCGU , financial projections have been 
developed  for 6 years (31 March, 2021: 6 years) and thereafter in perpetuity considering a terminal growth rate of 
1.5% (31 March, 2021: 2%) per annum.

Based on the results of the TCGU impairment test, the estimated value in use of the TCGU was higher than its 
carrying amount, hence impairment provision recorded during the current year is ` Nil (31 March, 2021 - ` Nil) Crore. 
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which recoverable amount is 
based would not cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the fair value of the Transmission License.

The key assumptions used in determining the recoverable amount of TCGU are as follows :  

 (i) Discount Rate: 9.10% (31 March, 2021: 8.75%) Post-Tax Discount rate has been derived based on current cost 
of borrowing and equity rate of return in line with the current market expectations 

 (ii) Capital expenditure / Capitalisation: Capital expenditure and capitalisation for 6 years (31 March, 2021: 6 years) 
is estimated based on management projections subject to regulatory approval and thereafter ` 500 Crores per 
annum (31 March, 2021: ` 325 Crores per annum)
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32 leases

(i) Disclosure under ind as 116 leases:

a) The following is the movement in Lease liabilities during the year ended 31 March, 2022

(` in Crores)

 as at  
31 march, 2022 

as at  
31 march, 2021

opening Balance  93.59  104.02 

Interest on Lease Liabilities  6.25  6.92 

Lease Liabilities on account of Leases entered / terminated during 
the year

 (32.63)  9.36 

Payments of Lease Liabilities / Other Adjustments  (22.37)  (26.71)

closing Balance (refer note 19)  44.84  93.59 

b) Where the Company is a leassee :

The Company has taken office premises on lease. Generally leases are renewed on mutual consent and at 
a prevalent market price and sub lease is restricted.

   i Interest Expenses on lease liabilities amounts to ` 6.25 Crores (31 March, 2021 ` 6.92 Crores)

   ii The expense relating to payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability and 
recognised as expenses in the statemet of profit and loss during the year is as follows :

    Low Value leases  -  Immaterial

    Short-term leases -  ` 12.62 Crores (31 March, 2021  ` 11.35 Crores)

   iii Total Cash outflow for leases amounts to ` 34.99 Crores (31 March, 2021 ` 38.06 Crores) during the 
year including cash outflow short term and low value leases.

  c) The Company had a 25 year long term Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with Vidharbha Industries Power 
Limited (VIPL), wherein the Company has committed to purchase the entire output generated from VIPL’s 
generating station located at Butibori. In terms of the PPA, the Company subject to a minimum guaranteed 
plant availability (determined on a yearly basis) is liable to pay subject to MERC approval a fixed monthly 
capacity charge and a variable charge towards the cost of fuel.VIPL was obligated to make the plant 
available for generation for a minimum period of time  (determined on a yearly basis) and the option as 
regards the timing of availability was at the discretion of VIPL.

   The Company on assessment of the above arrangement has concluded, that considering  the Company 
does not have the right to direct the use of the asset , the above arrangement does not qualify to be lease 
under IND AS 116.  

   During FY 2019-20, the Company had terminated the above PPA due to non-performance of obligations 
under the PPA by VIPL, such termination has been upheld by MERC  / Appellate Tribunal of Electricity 
(“ATE”). VIPL has filed an appeal before the Hon’ble Supreme Court against the said order issued by the 
ATE. The proceedings are ongoing with the Hon’ble Supreme Court.    

33 contingent liaBilities anD commitments

(` in Crores)

 as at  
31 march, 2022 

as at  
31 march, 2021

(a) contingent liabilities :

Claims against the Company not probable and hence not acknowledged as 
debts consists of : -

(i)  Demand disputed by the Company relating to Service tax on street 
light maintaince, wheeling charges and cross subsidy surcharges - 
Refer note 3

 353.55  353.55 
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(` in Crores)

 as at  
31 march, 2022 

as at  
31 march, 2021

(ii)  Claims raised by the Government authorities towards unearned income 
arising on alleged tranfer of certain land parcels - Refer note 3

 127.65  127.65 

(iii)   Way Leave fees claims disputed by the Company relating to rates 
charged - Refer note 3

 28.43  28.43 

(iv) Property related disputes  - Refer note 3  2.59  2.59 

(v) Other claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts.  2.12  2.12 

(vi)  Claims raised by Vidharbha Industries Power Limited (VIPL) in respect 
of increase in fuel cost for the financial year ended 31 March, 2019 - 
Refer Note 3

 1,381.28  1,381.28 

(vii)  Claims pretaining to interest in respect of certain regulatary Liabilities 
-Refer Note 3

 @@  @@ 

(viii) Liability in respect of disposal of bottom Ash  @@  @@ 

(ix) Liability in respect of termination of power purhcas lease agreement  @@  @@ 

 1,895.62  1,895.62 

@@ Amount not determinable

notes:

 1 Amounts in respect of employee related claims/disputes, consumer related litigation, regulatory matters is 
not ascertainable.       

 2 Future cash flows in respect of above matters are determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions 
pending at various forums/authorities.       

 3 In terms of the Share Purchase Agreement entered into by the Company, ATL with RINFRA, in the event the 
above matters are decided against the Company and are not recoverable from the consumers, the same 
would be recovered from RINFRA.       

 4 The above Contingent Liabilities to the extent pertaining to Regulated Business, which on unfavourable 
outcome are recoverable from consumers subject to MERC approval.

 The Company, in respect of the above mentioned Contingent Liabilities has assessed that it is only possible but 
not probable that outflow of economic resources will be required. 

(` in Crores)

 as at  
31 march, 2022 

as at  
31 march, 2021

(B) capital commitments :

(i)  Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital 
account and not provided for

699.48  364.49 

 699.48  364.49 

(c) other commitments :

  (i) In terms of the MERC RPO obligation regulations, the Company is required to procure on an annual basis 
a certain quantum of power generated from renewable sources, as at 31 March, 2022 the Company has an 
cumulative outstanding commitment to procure renewable power of 5038 Mu’s (31 March, 2021 - 4256 
Mu’s) 

   The Company to meet its past and future RPO commitment, has entered into through a competitive bid, 
a long term 25 years PPA of 700 MW with a group entity (Adani Hybrid Energy Jaisalmer Four Limited) to 
purchase 700 MW of Wind Solar Hybrid Renewable Power at ` 3.24 per unit.  The Company has purchased 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

186

Financial Statements



292.95 Mus of Solar Hybrid from Adani Hybrid Energy Jaisalmer Four Limited during the year ended 31 
March, 2022.      

The Company in its MYT petition had requested MERC to allow it to carry forward its unmet RPO obligation 
to the next control period, so as to allow it to fulfil its past obligation from the above arrangement entered 
into. MERC has directed the Company to file a separate petition in respect of the same wherein appropriate 
view would be taken. The management is of the view that MERC would approve the above request and 
there would be no adverse financial implications of the non-compliance by the Company of its past RPO 
obligations.

34  transaction WitH strucK oFF comPanies 

(` in Crores)
name of the struck off company nature of 

transactions with 
struck off company

Balance 
outstanding

relation with the struck 
off company, if any, to 
be disclosed 

as at 31 march, 2022
Payables 
Silent Sentinels Electrical Consultant Private 
Limited

Purchase of Service  0.01 Vendor 

receivables
M S Gem Printers Private Limited Sale of Power  0.13 Consumer
B B Consulting N Eng Private Limited Sale of Power  0.01 Consumer
Uday Real Tdrs PrivateLimited Sale of Power  0.01 Consumer
Unilink Tel Services (I) Private Limited Sale of Power  0.02 Consumer
Flex Foot Wear India Private Limited Sale of Power  0.01 Consumer
Kool Dring & Pack Private Limited Sale of Power  0.02 Consumer
SSV Developeres & Indian Holiday Resort 
Private Limited

Sale of Power  0.10 Consumer

Others - 361 Parties < 50K Sale of Power  0.09 Consumer
as at 31 march, 2021
Payables
Silent Sentinels Electrical Consultant Private 
Limited

Purchase of Service  0.01 Vendor  

receivables
Bharti Infratel Services Limited Sale of Power  0.04 Consumer
Interjewel Private Limited Sale of Power  0.02 Consumer
Kunjan Silks Private Limited Sale of Power  0.01 Consumer
Gem Printers Private Limited Sale of Power  0.13 Consumer
B.B.Consulting 'N' Engineering Private Limited Sale of Power  0.01 Consumer
Uday Realtors Private Limited Sale of Power  0.01 Consumer
Unilink Tele Services (India) Private Limited Sale of Power  0.02 Consumer
Navdurga Developments Private Limited Sale of Power  0.01 Consumer
Flex Foot Wear India P.Limited Sale of Power  0.01 Consumer
SSV Developeres & Indian Holiday Resort 
Private Limited

Sale of Power  0.11 Consumer

Others - 354 Parties < 50K Sale of Power  0.09 Consumer

35

ATL has acquired the control of the Company w.e.f. 29 August, 2018, through its purchase from Reliance 
Infrastructure Limited (“RINFRA”), of the equity shares of the Company. In accordance with Share 
Purchase Agreement, any incremental adjustment, arising as a result of the MERC MYT order for the 
period 01 April, 2017 to 28 August, 2018 is to the account of R-infra. MERC in its MYT order has provided 
for recovery of certain regulatory assets in subsequent years subject to final truing up adjustments. 
Such recoverable amounts are mainly on account of various components such as annual surplus, capex disallowances, 
MAT credit etc. Pending final truing up by MERC, the amount recoverable from RINFRA have not been accounted 
for as at 31 March, 2022 and would be accounted for as and when such amount is finally determined.
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36  relateD PartY Disclosure

as per the ind as 24, disclosure of transactions with related parties, are given below:
name of related parties & description of relationship
(a) ultimate Holding entity S. B. Adani Family Trust (SBAFT)
(B) Holding company Adani Transmission Limited
(c) subsidiary company Adani Electricity Mumbai Infra Limited 

AEML SEEPZ Limited (w.e.f. 08 December, 2020) 
(D) Key management Personnel: Mr. Kandarp Patel, Managing Director & CEO

Mr. Kunjal Mehta, Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 02 May, 2022) 
Mr. Rakesh Tiwary, Chief Financial Officer (upto 31 March, 2022) 
Mr. Jaldhi Shukla, Company Secretary
Mr. Anil Sardana, Director
Mr. Sagar Adani , Director
Mr. K Jairaj, Independent Director
Ms. Chitra Bhatnagar, Independent Director (upto 27 October, 
2021)
Ms. Chandra Iyengar (w.e.f  27 October, 2021)
Mr.Quinton Choi, Non Executive Director - (w.e.f  01 July, 2020)
Mr. Kenneth McLaren, Non Executive Director - (w.e.f 22 
October, 2020)

(e) Entity having significant influence Qatar Holding LLC
(F) Enterprises over which (A) or (B) or (D) or (E) above have significant influence :

(where transactions have taken place during the year and previous year / balance outstanding)
Adani Power Limited 
Adani Enterprises Limited 
Adani Properties Private Limited 
Karnavati Aviation Private Limited 
Adani Power (Mundra) Limited 
Adani Green Energy Limited 
Mundra Solar Private Limited 
Sunbourne Developers Private Limited 
Adani Institute For Education & Research 
Adani Township & Real Estate Company Limited 
AEML Infrastructure Limited 
Maharashtra Eastern Grid Power Transmission Co. Limited 
Power Distribution Services Limited 
Adani Power Maharashtra Limited 
Adani Total Gas Limited 
Adani Hybrid Energy Jaisalmer Four Limited 
Adani Foundation 
Adani Hospitals Mundra Private Limited 
Mumbai International Airport Limited (w.e.f 13 July, 2021) 
Adani Transmission (India) Limited 
Superheights Infraspace Private Limited 
Adani Power Rajasthan Limited 
Ahmedabad International Airport Limited 
Mangaluru International Airport Limited 
Adani Ports And Special Economic Zone Limited 
Valuable Properties Private Limited 
Adani Krishnapatnam Port Limited 

(g) Employee Benefits Funds : AEML Gratuity Fund 
AEML Superannuation Fund 
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(` in Crores)
nature of transaction name of related Party For the year ended 

31 march, 2022 
For the year ended 

31 march, 2021 
Reimbursement of Expenses Adani Transmission Limited  -   0.35
Inter Corporate Deposit (ICD) 
Received Back 

Adani Properties Private Limited  -    580.00 

Interest expenses on Shareholders 
Affiliated Debts

Qatar Holding LLC  134.47  131.87 

Interest Income on ICD  (Loans) Adani Properties Private Limited  114.40  116.87 
Investment in Equity share capital AEML SEEPZ Limited  -    0.01 
Earnest Money Deposit (EMD) 
received

Adani Enterprises Limited  -    6.84 

Earnest Money Deposit (EMD) 
Given Back

Adani Enterprises Limited  -    6.64 

Contribution to Employee Benefits AEML Gratuity Fund  1.08  0.96 
AEML Superannuation Fund  7.76  7.91 

Reimbursement of Expenses-
Given

Adani Electricity Mumbai Infra 
Limited

 -    15.50 

Purchase of  Services Karnavati Aviation Private Limited  9.00  9.00 
Adani Township & Real Estate 
Company Limited

 -    0.20 

Adani Enterprises Limited  86.02  71.30 
Power Distribution Services Limited  15.00  14.90 
Mundra Solar Private Limited  0.00  -   
Adani Hospitals Mundra Private 
Limited

 0.90  -   

Services Given Adani Institute For Education & 
Research

 0.07  0.01 

Sale of Goods Adani Power (Mundra) Limited  -    0.02 
Adani Transmission (India) Limited  0.01 

Purchase of  PPE Mundra Solar Private Limited  -    0.47 
Employee advance transferred In Maharashtra Eastern Grid Power 

Transmission Co. Limited
 -    0.04 

Employee advance transferred Out Adani Electricity Mumbai Infra 
Limited

 -    0.94 

Employees benefits Received Adani Enterprises Limited  -    8.26 
Adani Power Maharashtra Limited  -    0.05 
Adani Total Gas Limited  0.02  0.59 

Employees benefits Transferred Adani Electricity Mumbai Infra 
Limited

 -    14.92 

Adani Enterprises Limited  0.02  -   
Adani Power Rajasthan Limited  0.01  -   
Ahmedabad International Airport 
Limited

 0.10  -   

Mangaluru International Airport 
Limited

 0.03  -   

Adani Ports And Special Economic 
Zone Limited

 0.01  -   

Valuable Properties Private Limited  0.03  -   
Adani Green Energy Limited  0.01  -   
Adani Power (Mundra) Limited  0.01  -   
Mumbai International Airport Limited  0.34  -   
Adani Krishnapatnam Port Limited  0.22  -   
Maharashtra Eastern Grid Power 
Transmission Co. Limited

 0.04  -   

Adani Power Limited  0.27  -   
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(` in Crores)
nature of transaction name of related Party For the year ended 

31 march, 2022 
For the year ended 

31 march, 2021 
Advance - Received Back AEML Infrastructure Limited  0.05  3.36 
Payment made on behalf of Group 
Companies

AEML Infrastructure Limited  0.07  0.05 
Adani Electricity Mumbai Infra 
Limited

 0.91  0.46 

Power Distribution Services Limited  0.54  0.68 
AEML Seepz Limited  0.05  -   

Payment made on behalf of Group 
Companies-Received Back

AEML Infrastructure Limited  0.08  -   
Adani Electricity Mumbai Infra 
Limited

 1.32  -   

Power Distribution Services Limited  1.21  -   
Advance paid towards Purchase of 
property - Received back

Sunbourne Developers Private 
Limited

 271.00  -   

Towards acquisition of leasehold 
land

Superheights Infraspace Private 
Limited

 510.00  -   

Advance paid towards Purchase 
of Power

Adani Enterprises Limited  1,313.31  700.00 

Advance paid towards Purchase of 
Power-Received back

Adani Enterprises Limited  607.22  250.00 

Corporate Social Responsibility 
Contribution

Adani Foundation  6.13  2.25 

Interest Income Adani Enterprises Limited 50.12  34.90 
Purchase of  Power (net of 
discount)

Adani Enterprises Limited (excluding 
banking transactions)

 1,284.73  360.70 

Adani Hybrid Energy Jaisalmer Four 
Limited

 93.87  -   

Rent Paid Mumbai International Airport Limited 1.09  -   
Remuneration paid Mr. Kanderp Patel  4.61  3.55 

Mr. Rakesh Tiwary  1.88  1.49 
Employee Loan given Mr. Rakesh Tiwary  0.50  0.20 
Sitting Fees Mr. K Jairaj  0.06  0.05 

Ms. Chitra Bhatnagar 0.01 0.01
Ms. Chandra Iyengar 0.02  -   

(` in Crores)
closing Balance name of related Party as at  

31 march, 2022
as at  

31 march, 2021
Balance Payable Mundra Solar Private Limited  0.10  0.01 

Adani Transmission Limited  -    2.72 
Karnavati Aviation Private Limited  3.00  0.75 
Power Distribution Services Limited  13.73  6.56 
Adani Hybrid Energy Jaisalmer Four 
Limited

 42.66  -   

Adani Enterprises Limited  303.97  -   
Superheights Infraspace Private 
Limited

 79.00  -   
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(` in Crores)
closing Balance name of related Party as at  

31 march, 2022
as at  

31 march, 2021
Mumbai International Airport Limited  0.34  -   
Adani Power Rajasthan Limited  0.01  -   
Ahmedabad International Airport 
Limited

 0.10  -   

Mangaluru International Airport 
Limited

 0.03  -   

Adani Ports And Special Economic 
Zone Limited

 0.01  -   

Valuable Properties Private Limited  0.03  -   
Adani Power (Mundra) Limited  0.01  -   
Adani Krishnapatnam Port Limited  0.22  -   
Adani Power Limited  0.27  -   
Maharashtra Eastern Grid Power 
Transmission Co. Limited

 0.04  -   

Balance  Receivable Adani Enterprises Limited  -    278.43 
Adani Green Energy Limited  0.15  0.16 

Adani Properties Private Limited*  1,040.00  1,040.00 
Sunbourne Developers Private 
Limited

 -    271.00 

AEML Infrastructure Limited  0.04  0.10 
Adani Electricity Mumbai Infra 
Limited

 0.05  1.77 

AEML SEEPZ Limited  0.05  -   
Adani Power Maharashtra Limited  -    0.05 
Adani Total Gas Limited  -    0.59 

Investment in Equity Shares of 
Subsidiary

Adani Electricity Mumbai Infra 
Limited

 0.01  0.01 

AEML SEEPZ Limited  0.01  0.01 
Employee Loan Balance 
Receivable

Mr. Rakesh Tiwary  0.62  0.18 

Shareholders Affiliated Debt  
payable

Qatar Holding LLC  2,137.35  2,061.70 

Interest accrued but not due on 
Shareholders Affiliated Debt 

Qatar Holding LLC  53.28  51.40 

* The Company has provided long-term intercorporate deposit at rates comparable to the average commercial rate 
of interest.

note:

All the above transactions are executed at arm’s length basis.

The above disclosure does not include transaction with / as public utility services viz, electricity, telecommunications 
etc. in the normal course of business.

Key Managerial Personnel are entitled to post-employment benefits and other long term employee benefits 
recognised as per Ind AS 19 - ‘Employee Benefits’ in the financial statements. As these employee benefits are lump 
sum amounts provided on the basis of actuarial valuation, the same is not included above.
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37 Disclosure unDer inD as 19 “emPloYee BeneFits”:

1 Defined Contribution Plan

(ii) Superannuation fund

(iii) State defined contribution plans

- Employer’s contribution to Employees’ state insurance

-  Employers’ Contribution to Employees’ Pension Scheme 1995

The provident fund and the state defined contribution plan are operated by the Regional Provident Fund 
Commissioner and the superannuation fund is administered by the trustees of the AEML Superannuation 
Scheme. Under the schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost 
to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The Company has no obligation other than the 
contribution to the fund.  

The Company has recognised the following amounts as expense in the financial statements for the year:

(` in Crores)

Particulars 31 march, 2022 31 march, 2021

Contribution to Provident Fund  43.46  38.13 

Contribution to Employees Superannuation Fund  7.76  7.91 

Contribution to Employees Pension Scheme  6.83  6.90 

2 Defined Benefit Plan

gratuity

The Company operates a funded gratuity plan in the form of a Trust, governed by Trustees approinted by the 
Company and administered by Life Insurance corporation. Every employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 
fifteen days salary last drawn for each completed year of service in line with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 
or Company scheme whichever is beneficial. The same is payable at the time of separation from the Company 
or retirement, whichever is earlier. The benefits vest after five years of continuous service.

Particulars gratuity for the 
year ended 

31 march, 2022

gratuity for the  
year ended 

31 march, 2021

Starting Period 01 april, 2021 01 april, 2020

Date of Reporting march 31, 2022 march 31, 2021

Principal assumptions in actuarial valuation

Rate of Discounting 6.98% 6.86%

Rate of Salary Increase 10.25% 9.75%

Rate of Employee Turnover 1.00% 0.40%

Mortality Rate During Employment Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

2012-14 (Urban) 

 Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

(2006-08)  

(` in Crores)

Change in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation  march 31, 2022  march 31, 2021 

Present value of Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year  649.75  645.00 

Liability Transferred in  -    5.15 

Liability Transferred Out  (1.12)  (9.07)

Interest Cost  44.57  44.11 

Current Service Cost  36.82  35.40 
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(` in Crores)

Change in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation  march 31, 2022  march 31, 2021 

Benefit Paid From the Fund  (29.57)  (36.60)

Actuarial (Gain) / Losses on Obligation- Due to Change in Financial 
Assumptions

 20.06  (1.18)

Actuarial (Gain) / Losses on Obligation- Due to Change in Demographic 
Assumptions

 12.79  6.91 

Actuarial (Gain) / Losses on Obligation-Due to Experience  (51.17)  (39.97)

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the year 682.13  649.75 

change in the Fair Value of Plan assets

Fair Value of Plan Asset at the beginning of the year  485.77  488.88 

Interest Income  33.32  33.43 

Benefit Paid From the Fund  (29.57)  (36.60)

Contribution by the Employer  1.09  0.96 

Return on Plan Assets Excluding Interest Income  (1.15)  (0.90)

Fair Value of Plan asset at the end of the year  489.46  485.77 

amount recognised in the Balance sheet

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the year  682.13  649.75 

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year  489.46  485.77 

Funded Status (Deficit)  (192.67)  (163.98)

net (liability) recognised in the Balance sheet  (192.67)  (163.98)

Provisions

current  32.57  31.96 

non-current  160.10  132.02 

Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Current Service Cost  36.82  35.40 

Net Interest Cost  11.25  10.68 

expenses recognised  48.07  46.08 

expenses recognised in other comprehensive income (oci)

Actuarial (Gains) / Losses on Obligation for the year  (18.32)  (34.24)

Return on Plan Assets Excluding Interest Income  1.15  0.90 

net expenses for the year recognised in oci  (17.17)  (33.34)

major categories of plan assets 

Government Securities 81.02% 70.07%

Debt and other Instruments 10.71% 23.85%

Equity Instruments 8.27% 6.08%

Total 100% 100%

Expected Contribution for next financial year  32.57  31.96 

Expected Maturity Analysis of undiscounted defined Benefit 
obligation is as follows

Within one year  35.07  27.46 

Between 2 to 5 years  174.27  144.68 

Between 6 to 10 years  366.92  347.73 

Beyond 10 years  803.48  839.47 

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation  10.00  11.00 
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(` in Crores)

Change in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation  march 31, 2022  march 31, 2021 

sensitivity analysis

Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions  682.13  649.75 

assumptions – Discount rate

sensitivity level 1.00% 1.00%

Impact on defined benefit obligation –in% increase (7.91%) (8.46%)

Impact on defined benefit obligation –in ` Crores  (53.93)  (54.94)

Impact on defined benefit obligation –in% decrease 9.03% 9.71%

Impact on defined benefit obligation –in ` Crores  61.62  63.10 

assumptions – Future salary increase

sensitivity level 1.00% 1.00%

Impact on defined benefit obligation –in% increase 8.49% 9.22%

Impact on defined benefit obligation –in ` Crores  57.90  59.92 

Impact on defined benefit obligation –in% decrease (7.60%) (8.20%)

Impact on defined benefit obligation –in ` Crores  (51.83)  (53.30)

assumptions – employee turnover

sensitivity level 1.00% 1.00%

Impact on defined benefit obligation –in% increase (1.72%) (1.72%)

Impact on defined benefit obligation –in ` Crores  (11.72)  (11.19)

Impact on defined benefit obligation –in% decrease 1.90% 0.74%

Impact on defined benefit obligation –in ` Crores  12.96  4.81 

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions 
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. 
When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the 
same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method 
at the end of the reporting year) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised 
in the balance sheet. 

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to 
the prior period. 

3 risk exposure:

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which 
are detailed below:

Asset volatility:

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to government bond yield. If plan 
assets underperform this yield, it will result in deficit. These are subject to interest rate risk. To offset the risk, 
the plan assets have been deployed in high grade insurer managed funds.

Inflation rate risk:

Higher than expected increase in salary and medical cost will increase the defined benefit obligation.

Demographic risk:

This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, 
withdrawal, disability and retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligations is not 
straight forward and depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting criterion.
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38 regulatorY DeFerral account

(` in Crores)

Particulars  as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

regulatory Deferral account - liability

Regulatory Liabilities  271.56  271.56 

regulatory Deferral account - assets

Regulatory Assets  1,121.92  439.45 

Net Regulatory Assets/(Liabilities)  850.36  167.89 

rate regulated activities

 1 As per the Ind AS-114 ‘Regulatory Deferral Accounts’, the business of electricity distribution is a Rate Regulated 
activity wherein Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (MERC), the regulator determines Tariff to be 
charged from consumers based on prevailing regulations in place.  

 2 MERC Multi Year Tariff Regulations, 2015 (MYT Regulations), is applicable for the period beginning from 01 
April, 2016 to 31 March, 2020. 

  MERC Multi Year Tariff Regulations, 2019 (MYT Regulations), is applicable for the period beginning from 01 
April, 2020 to 31 March, 2024. These regulations require MERC to determine tariff in a manner wherein the 
Company can recover its fixed and variable costs including assured rate of return on approved equity base, 
from its consumers. The Company determines the Revenue, Regulatory Assets and Liabilities as per the terms 
and conditions specified in MYT Regulations.  

 3 Reconciliation of Regulatory Assets/Liabilities of distribution business as per Rate Regulated Activities is as 
follows:

(` in Crores)

Particulars  as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

A Opening Regulatory Assets (Net)  167.89 (256.60)

add: 

B  Income recoverable/(reversible) from future tariff / Revenue Gap for the 
year

1  For Current Year  682.47  582.81 

2  For Earlier Year  -    -   

Total a ( 1 + 2 )  682.47  582.81 

less: 

C Recovered / (refunded) during the year ^  -    158.32 

D Net Movement during the year ( C - D )  682.47  424.49 

e closing Balance  ( a - e)  850.36  167.89 

^ Includes ` 143.98 Crores recovered during 31 March, 2021 on account of final truing up for 2017-18 and 2018-19
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39 Financial instruments.

1 Fair Value measurement

(` in Crores)

Particulars  31 march, 2022  31 march, 2021 

 Book Value  Fair Value  Book Value  Fair Value 

Financial assets 

Investment 

- Investment in Tresury Bills at FVTPL  24.84  24.84  -    -   

- Government Securities  204.62  188.31  204.95  198.81 

Trade Receivables  485.85  485.85  578.06  578.06 

Loans Given  1,075.41  1,075.41  1,079.83  1,079.83 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  74.41  74.41  151.89  151.89 

Other Balances with Bank  624.48  624.48  886.56  886.56 

Derivative instruments designated in 
hedge accounting relationship    165.25  165.25  143.13  143.13 

Other Financial Assets  1,158.57  1,158.57  987.79  987.79 

total Financial assets  3,813.43  3,797.12  4,032.21  4,026.07 

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings (Including Interest accrued & 
Current Maturities) - Fixed Rate  11,978.56  11,117.56  9,572.93  9,670.04 

Borrowings (Including Interest accrued & 
Current Maturities) - Floating Rate  -    -    1,987.69  1,987.69 

Lease Liability obligation  44.84  44.84  93.59  93.59 

Trade Payables  1,523.17  1,523.17  1,219.61  1,219.61 

Derivative instruments designated in 
hedge accounting relationship    123.09  123.09  94.19  94.19 

Other Financial Liabilities  805.03  805.03  687.51  687.51 

total Financial liabilities  14,474.69  13,613.69  13,655.52  13,752.63 

Above excludes carrying value of investment in subsidiary accounted at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27.  
The management assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalents, other balances with bank, trade 
receivables, loans, trade payables, other financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts 
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could 
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. The following methods and assumptions were 
used to estimate the fair values.

Fair value of the Govt. securities, mutual funds are based on the price quotations near the reporting date. 

The fair value of loans from banks and other financial liabilities, as well as other non-current financial liabilities 
is estimated by discounting future cash flow using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk 
and remaining maturities.

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments with various counterparties, principally banks and 
financial institutions with investment grade credit ratings. Foreign exchange forward contracts are valued 
using valuation techniques, which employs the use of market observable inputs. The most frequently applied 
valuation techniques include forward pricing and swap models using present value calculations. The models 
incorporate various inputs including the credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward 
rates, yield curves of the respective currencies, currency basis spreads between the respective currencies, 
interest rate curves and forward rate curves of the underlying currency. All derivative contracts are fully 
collateralised, thereby, eliminating both counterparty and the Company’s own non-performance risk.
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 2 The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are 
either observable or unobservable and consists of the following three levels

  level 1 :

Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

level 2 :

Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
directly or indirectly observable.

level 3 :

Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable.       

(` in Crores)

Particulars Fair Value Hierarchy as at 31 march, 2022
Date of 

Valuation
quoted prices 

in active 
markets 
(level 1)

Significant 
observable 

inputs 
(level 2)

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs 
(level 3)

total

asset measured at Fair Value
FVTPL financial investments  - In 
Tresuary bills

31 March, 2022  24.84  -    -    24.84 

asset for which Fair Value are 
disclosed
Amortised Cost financial 
investments:

- Government Securities 31 March, 2022  188.31  -    -    188.31 

Derivative instruments designated 
in hedge accounting relationship  
Derivative financial assets 31 March, 2022  -    165.25  -    165.25 

total   213.15  165.25  -    378.40 
liabilities measured at fair values 
Derivative instruments designated 
in hedge accounting relationship  
Derivative financial Liabilities 31 March, 2022  -    123.09  -    123.09 

liabilities for which fair values are 
disclosed
Borrowings (Including Interest 
accrued & Current Maturities) - 
Fixed Rate

31 March, 2022  8,897.51  2,220.05  -    11,117.56 

Borrowings (Including Interest 
accrued & Current Maturities) - 
Floating Rate

31 March, 2022  -    -    -    -   

total   8,897.51  2,220.05  -    11,117.56 

(` in Crores)

Particulars Fair Value Hierarchy as at 31 march, 2021
Date of 

Valuation
quoted prices 

in active 
markets 
(level 1)

Significant 
observable 

inputs 
(level 2)

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs 
(level 3)

total

asset measured at Fair Value
FVTPL financial investments  - 
Mutual Funds

31 March, 2021  -    -    -    -   
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(` in Crores)

Particulars Fair Value Hierarchy as at 31 march, 2021
Date of 

Valuation
quoted prices 

in active 
markets 
(level 1)

Significant 
observable 

inputs 
(level 2)

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs 
(level 3)

total

asset for which Fair Value are 
disclosed
Amortised Cost financial 
investments:

- Government Securities 31 March, 2021  198.81  -    -    198.81 

Derivative instruments designated 
in hedge accounting relationship  
Derivative financial assets 31 March, 2021  -    143.13  -    143.13 

total   198.81  143.13  -    341.94 
liabilities measured at fair values 
Derivative instruments designated 
in hedge accounting relationship  
Derivative financial Liabilities 31 March, 2021  -    94.19  -    94.19 

liabilities for which fair values are 
disclosed
Borrowings (Including Interest 
accrued & Current Maturities) - 
Fixed Rate

31 March, 2021  7,372.03  2,298.00  -    9,670.04 

Borrowings (Including Interest 
accrued & Current Maturities) - 
Floating Rate

31 March, 2021  -    1,987.69  -    1,987.69 

total   7,372.03  4,285.70  -    11,657.73 

There has been no transfer between level 1 and level 2 during the period

3 capital management & gearing ratio

The Company manages its capital structure in a manner to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going 
concern while optimising the return to stakeholders through the appropriate debt and equity balance. The 
Company’s capital structure is represented by equity (comprising issued capital, retained earnings and other 
reserves) and debt. The Company’s management reviews the capital structure of the Company on an annual 
basis. As part of this review, the management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each 
class of capital. The Company’s objective is to ensure that the gearing ratio (debt equity ratio) is around 70 : 30

gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows :

(` in Crores)

 as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

Debt  11,978.56  11,560.62 

Less : Cash & Bank Balance  1,215.23  1,516.44 

net debt  10,763.33  10,044.18 

Total Capital  4,694.81  4,710.35 

Capital & net debt  15,458.14  14,754.53 

Net debt to Total Capital plus net debt ratio (%) 70% 68%

(i)  Debt is defined as Non-current borrowings (including current maturities) and Current borrowings.
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(ii)  Equity is defined as Equity share capital and other equity including reserves and surplus.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims 
to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that 
define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to 
immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no significant breaches in the financial covenants of 
any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current year.

4 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and 
other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations/projects 
The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, investment including mutual funds, trade and other 
receivables, and cash and cash equivalents which is derived from its operations. 

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is mainly exposed to risks resulting from exchange rate 
fluctuation (currency risk), interest rate movements (interest rate risk) collectively referred as Market Risk, 
Credit Risk and Liquidity Risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these 
risks. It manages its exposure to these risks through the use of derivative financial instruments for hedging 
transactions. It uses derivative instruments such as Cross Currency Swaps, Full Currency swaps, Interest rate 
swaps and foreign currency Future Option contracts to manage these risks. These derivative instruments 
reduce the impact of both favorable and unfavorable fluctuations.

The Company’s risk management activities are subject to the management, direction and control of Central 
Treasury team of the Company under the framework of Risk Management Policy for Currency and Interest rate 
risk, as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The Company’s Central Treasury team ensures 
appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company through appropriate policies & procedures 
and financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk 
objectives. It is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes is undertaken.

The decision of whether and when to execute derivative financial instruments along with its tenure can vary 
from period to period depending on market conditions and the relative costs of the instruments. The tenure 
is linked to the timing of the underlying exposure, with the connection between the two being regularly 
monitored. All derivative contracts are executed with counterparties that are creditworthy. The outstanding 
derivatives are reviewed periodically to ensure that there is no inappropriate concentration of outstanding to 
any particular counterparty. 

a. market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk, and currency risk. Financial 
instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings. The sensitivity analysis in interest rate and 
foreign currency risk sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2022.  

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to 
floating interest rates of the debt and derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign 
currencies are all constant as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2022.

i. Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risks arising from its exposure to the USD.Foreign currency risks 
arise from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities, when they are denominated in 
a currency other than Indian Rupee. Exposures on foreign currency loans are managed through the Company 
wide hedging policy, which is reviewed periodically to ensure that the results from fluctuating currency 
exchange rates are appropriately managed. The Company’s exposure with regards to foreign currency risk is 
given below.

The following table shows foreign currency exposures in US Dollar on financial instruments at the end of the 
reporting period  
(Refer Note 39 (5))
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Foreign currency exposures

Particulars as at 31 march, 2022  as at 31 march, 2021 

Foreign currency 
(in millions)

` crore Foreign currency 
(in millions)

` crore

in  usD

(i)   Interest accrued but not due  14.66  111.12  12.96  94.75 

(ii)  Buyers Credit  -    -    12.63  92.35 

(iii) Import Creditors and Acceptances  14.38  108.99  0.69  5.04 

(iv) Bond  1,000.00  7,579.25  1,000.00  7,311.00 

(iv) Bond - Sustainability Linked Notes  300.00  2,273.78  -    -   

(v)  Shareholders Affiliated Debts  282.00  2,137.35  282.00  2,061.70 

(vi) Term Loans from Banks  -    -    175.00  1,279.43 

Derivatives

- Call Options  (582.00)  (4,411.12)  (582.00)  (4,255.00)

- Cross Currency Swaps  (400.00)  (3,031.70)  (575.00)  (4,203.83)

- Forward coupon  (2.26)  (17.13)  (12.63)  (92.34)

- Forward principal  (300.00)  (2,273.78)  -    -   

- Coupon Only Swaps  (5.38)  (40.78)  (5.98)  (43.72)

- Principal Only Swaps  (300.00)  (2,273.78)  (300.00)  (2,193.30)

total  21.40  162.20  7.67  56.08 

in  euro

(i)   Import Creditors and Acceptances  0.01  0.09  0.02  0.18 

total  0.01  0.09  0.02  0.18 

note : 

The Company has executed 4 year cross currency swaps derivative contract of USD 300 mn which will be 
effective from 22 July 2022 to hedge outstanding Sustainibility linked bond of USD 300 mn which is not 
included in above figures.

(i) Foreign currency sensitivity analysis      

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rates, with 
all other variables held constant on the Company’s profit before tax and pre-tax equity is as under:

(` in Crores)

Effect on profit before tax and  
consequential impact on equity

as at 31 march, 2022  as at 31 march, 2021

appreciate Depreciate appreciate Depreciate

Rupee appreciate / (depreciate) by ` 1 against USD / 
EURO / GBP

 2.14  (2.14)  0.77  (0.77)

Rupee appreciate / (depreciate) by ` 2 against USD / 
EURO / GBP

 4.28  (4.28)  1.53  (1.53)

Rupee appreciate / (depreciate) by ` 3 against USD / 
EURO / GBP

 6.42  (6.42)  2.31  (2.31)

Notes: 1) +/- Gain/Loss

ii. interest rate risk management       

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on short-term and medium-term floating rate borrowings and 
on the refinancing of fixed rate debt. The Company’s policy is to  borrow long term debt with fixed interest 
rate The short term borrowings of the Company are mainly floating rate rupee denominated working capital 
borrowings.        
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The long-term borrowings of the Company are by way of Senior Secured Notes (SSN) and Shareholder’s 
Affiliated Debts which carry fixed rate of interest till maturity. Further during the year the Company issued 
the Sustainability Linked Bond (SLB) of USD 300 million through 10-year notes on 15 July, 2021 under USD 2 
billion Global Medium-Term Notes program (GMTN)  which carry fixed rate of interest till maturity with certain 
Sustainability Performance Targets (SPTs), non-attainment of which will result in increase in fixed rate of 
interest by 0.15% p.a, for SPT 1 in March 2027 and further 0.15% p.a. for SPT 2 for March 2029.

(i) interest rate sensitivity:       

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on average outstanding exposure of borrowings 
during the year that have floating interest rates.

If the interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower and all the other variables were held constant, 
the effect on Interest expense for the respective financial years and consequent effect on Company’s profit in 
that financial year would have been as below:

(` in Crores)

as at 31 march, 2022  as at 31 march, 2021*

50 bps        
increase

50 bps 
decrease

50 bps 
increase

50 bps 
decrease

Interest expense on loan  4.60  (4.60)  6.75  (6.75)

Effect on profit / (loss) before tax  (4.60)  4.60  (6.75)  6.75 

*In Previous Year reporting, sensitivity of interest rate change of ` 3.95 Crs was detrimined on the basis of 
working capital outstanding as on March 31 2021. 

B. credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer 
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily 
trade receivables and other financial assets) and from its financing activities, including loans to others, deposits 
with banks, financial institutions & others, foreign exchange transactions and other financial assets.

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to 
customer credit risk defined in accordance with this assessment.

Credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits with banks with 
high credit ratings assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include 
investment in liquid mutual fund units and  quoted bonds issued by government. Counterparty credit limits are 
reviewed by the Company’s management on a regular basis. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of 
risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

(` in Crores)

Particulars  as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

Trade receivables  485.85  578.06 

Loans  1,075.41  1,079.83 

Other financial assets  1,323.82  1,130.92 

total  2,885.08  2,788.81 

Refer Note 12 for credit risk and other information in respect of trade receivables. Moreover, given the diverse 
nature of the consumer profile of the Company, trade receivables are spread over a number of customers with 
no significant concentration of credit risk. No single customer accounted for 10.0% or more of revenue basis in 
any of the years presented. The history of trade receivables shows a negligible provision for bad and doubtful 
debts compared to the volume/value of sales recorded. Other receivables as stated above are due from the 
parties / banks under normal course of the business having sound credit worthiness. and as such the Company 
believes exposure to credit risk to be minimal.

The Company has not acquired any credit impaired asset.
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c. liquidity risk management       

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments 
associated with financial instruments that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity 
risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its fair value The Company has an 
established liquidity risk management framework for managing its short term, medium term and long term 
funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from 
mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities The Company manages the liquidity risk by 
maintaining adequate funds in cash and cash equivalents The Company also has adequate credit facilities 
agreed with banks to ensure that there is sufficient cash to meet all its normal operating commitments in a 
timely and cost-effective manner. 

(` in Crores)
contractual maturities of Financial 
liabilities

less than 1 
year

1 to 5 years more than 5 
years

total

as at 31 march, 2022
Borrowings**  637.18  2,093.10  13,625.30  16,355.58 
Trade Payables  1,490.95  -    32.22  1,523.17 
Lease Liabilities  18.59  22.75  3.50  44.84 
Other Financial Liabilities  862.10  66.02  -    928.12 
total  3,008.82  2,181.87  13,661.02  18,851.71 
as at 31 march, 2021 
Borrowings**  1,493.62  3,015.70  11,015.70  15,525.02 
Trade Payables  1,187.68  -    31.93  1,219.61 
Lease Liabilities  42.89  46.64  4.06  93.59 
Other Financial Liabilities  718.58  63.12  -    781.70 
total  3,442.77  3,125.46  11,051.69  17,619.92 

**The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial liabilities 
including interest that will be paid on those liabilities upto the maturity of the instruments, ignoring the call 
and refinancing options available with the Company. The amounts included above for variable interest rate 
instruments for non-derivative liabilities is subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those 
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

5 Derivative Financial instrument

The Company uses derivatives instruments as part of its management of  risks relating to exposure to fluctuation 
in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Company does not acquire derivative financial 
instruments for trading or speculative purposes neither does it enter into complex derivative transactions to 
manage the above risks. The derivative transactions are normally in the form of  forward currency contracts, 
cross currency swaps, options and interest rate swaps to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks, 
respectively and are subject to the Company’s guidelines and policies.

The fair values of all derivatives are separately recorded in the balance sheet within current and non current 
assets and liabilities. Derivative that are designated as hedges are classified as current or non current depending 
on the maturity of the derivative.     

The use of derivative can give rise to credit and market risk. The Company tries to control credit risk as far 
as possible by only entering into contracts with stipulated / reputed banks and financial institutions. The 
use of derivative instrument is subject to limits, authorities and regular monitoring by appropriate levels of 
management. The limits, authorities and monitoring systems are periodically reviewed by management and the 
Board. The market risk on derivative is mitigated by changes in the valuation of underlying assets, liabilities or 
transactions, as derivatives are used only for risk management purpose.

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, cross currency 
swaps, options, interest rate futures and interest rate swaps  for hedging the liabilities incurred/recorded  and 
accounts for them as cash flow hedges and states them at fair value. The effective portion of the gain or loss 
on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion 
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is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss. Amounts recognised in OCI are transferred to 
profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or 
financial expense is recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. These hedges have been effective for the year 
ended 31 March, 2022 and 31 March, 2021.       

The fair value of the Company’s derivative positions recorded under derivative financial assets and derivative 
financial liabilities are as follows :-

(` in Crores)
Derivative Financials Instruments as at 31 march, 2022  as at 31 march, 2021

assets liabilities assets liabilities
current
cashflow hedge*

-Call Options  58.10  68.76  137.21  87.50 
-Cross Currency Swaps  47.39  21.74  30.36  5.91 
-Forward  -    32.59  -    0.78 
-Coupon Only Swaps  (5.79)  -    (3.81)  -   
-Principal Only Swaps  65.55  -    (20.63)  -   

total  165.25  123.09  143.13  94.19 

*Refer statement of profit and loss and statement of changes in equity for the changes in the fair value of 
cashflow hedges

Derivative contracts entered into by the company and outstanding as at Balance sheet date :

To hedge Currency risks and interest related risks, the Company has entered into various derivative Contracts. 
The category wise break-up of the amount outstanding as at Balance Sheet date is given below :-

(` in Crores)
Particulars as at 31 march, 2022  as at 31 march, 2021

Foreign 
currency 

(in millions)

` crore Purpose Foreign 
currency 

(in millions)

` crore Purpose

in usD
-Call Options  582.00  4,411.12 Hedging of 

foreign currency 
borrowing 
principal

 582.00  4,255.00 Hedging of foreign 
currency borrowing 
principal & interest 
liability

-Cross Currency 
Swaps*

 700.00  5,305.48 Hedging of 
foreign currency 
borrowing 
principal & 
interest liability

 575.00  4,203.83 Hedging of foreign 
currency borrowing 
principal & interest 
liability

-Forward  305.80  2,317.73 Hedging of 
foreign currency 
borrowing 
principal & 
interest liability

 12.63  92.34 Hedging of foreign 
currency borrowing 
principal liability - 
Buyers credit

-Coupon Only 
Swaps

 600.00  4,547.55 Hedging of 
foreign currency 
borrowing interest 
liability

 600.00  4,386.60 Hedging of foreign 
currency borrowing 
interest liability

-Principal Only 
Swaps

 300.00  2,273.78 Hedging of 
foreign currency 
borrowing 
principal liability 

 300.00  2,193.30 Hedging of foreign 
currency borrowing 
principal liability 

 total  2,487.80  18,855.66  2,069.63  15,131.07 

* The Company has executed 4 year cross currency Swaps derivative contract of USD 300 mn which will be 
effective from 22 July, 2022 to hedge outstanding Sustainibility linked bond of USD 300 mn which are inculded 
in above table.
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40 ratios:

(` in Crores)
name of ratio Particulars numerator / Denominator 

considered
 as at  

31 march, 2022 
 as at  

31 march, 2021 
% change 

in ratio
remarks

Current Ratio ratio  0.77  0.82 -6%
Numerator a. Inventories 

b. Current Investments 
c.  Trade Receivables & 

Unbilled Revenue

d. Cash and Bank balances 
e. Current Loans 
f. Security Deposit 
g. Other Financial Assets 
h. Other Current Assets

 2,190.62  2,693.05 

Denominator a.  Current Borrowings 
(Including Current 
Maturities of Long term 
borrowing)

b. Trade Payables 
c. Other Financial Liabilities 
d. Current Provision 
e. Other Current Liabilities 
f. Lease Liability 
g. Current tax liability

 2,843.18  3,277.28 

Debt- Equity 
Ratio

ratio  2.53  2.43 4%
Numerator Borrowings  

(Current & Non Current)  
(Including Current Maturities 
of Long term borrowing)

 11,864.65  11,461.38 

Denominator a. Equity Share Capital 
b. Other Equity

 4,694.81  4,710.35 

Debt Service 
Coverage 
Ratio

ratio  1.70  1.85 -8%
Numerator Profit after Tax before 

exceptional items, 
taxes, Depreciation and 
Amortisation Expenses  and 
Finance Costs (EBIDTA )

 1,934.12  2,000.71 

Denominator a.  Interest on Loan and Lease 
Payments

b.  Current Maturities of Long 
term loan (Installments)

 1,138.31  1,078.70 

Return on 
Equity Ratio

ratio  0.03  0.06 -54% Due to 
increase in 
finace cost 
as a result 

of  increase 
in debt in 

Current year 
and Increase 
in deferred 

tax  assets in 
previous year

Numerator Profit for the year after tax 
before Other Comprehensive 
Income / Expenses

 122.2  259.2 

Denominator a. Equity Share Capital 
b. Other Equity

 4,702.58  4,617.34 
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(` in Crores)
name of ratio Particulars numerator / Denominator 

considered
 as at  

31 march, 2022 
 as at  

31 march, 2021 
% change 

in ratio
remarks

Inventory 
Turnover Ratio

Ratio  6.87  3.43 100% Due to 
increase 
in fuel 

consumption  
for increased 
generation 

and decrease 
in average 

inventory of 
fuel.

Numerator a. Cost of fuel  
b. Purchase of Traded Goods

 1,066.75  974.02 

Denominator Average Traded Inventories 
excluding stores inventories

 155.18  283.57 

Trade 
Receivables 
turnover ratio

ratio  6.68  5.62 19%

Numerator a.  Income from Sale of Power 
and Transmission Charges

b. Sale of Coal Rejects / Fly 
Ash

c. Street Light Maintenance 
Charges

d.  Income in respect of 
Services rendered

e. Sale of Traded Goods 
f. Misc. Revenue

 6,892.50  6,018.07 

Denominator Average Trade receivables 
(including Unbilled revenue)

 1,031.29  1,070.28 

Trade payables 
turnover ratio

ratio  4.51  3.57 26% Due to 
increase 
in fuel 

consumption  
for increased 
generation 

and decrease 
in average 

trade 
payables.

Numerator a. Cost Of Power Purchased 
b. Cost of Fuel 
c. Transmission Charges 
d. Purchases of traded goods 
e. Other Expenses

 5,119.30  4,119.72 

Denominator Average Trade payables 
(excluding provision for 
salary, wages and bonus 
provision)

 1,134.29  1,154.07 

Net capital 
turnover ratio

ratio (10.59) (10.35) 2%

Numerator Total Revenue from Operation  6,908.94  6,049.27 
Denominator Working Capital  (current 

assets minus current 
liabilities)

 (652.56)  (584.23)

Net profit ratio ratio  0.02  0.04 (59%) Due to 
increase in 
finace cost 
as a result 

of  increase 
in debt in 

Current year, 
Increase in 

deferred tax  
assets in 

previous year

Numerator Profit for the year after tax 
before Other Comprehensive 
Income / Expenses

 122.16  259.17 

Denominator Total Revenue from Operation  6,908.94  6,049.27 
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(` in Crores)
name of ratio Particulars numerator / Denominator 

considered
 as at  

31 march, 2022 
 as at  

31 march, 2021 
% change 

in ratio
remarks

Return on 
Capital 
employed

ratio  0.09  0.09 (3%)
Numerator Profit before tax and Interest 

expenses
 1,431.50  1,433.30 

Denominator a. Networth 
b.Total Debt 
c.Deffered tax Liability"

 16,738.81  16,249.90 

Return on 
investment

Ratio  0.09  0.10 (13%)
Numerator Income From Investments, 

Intercorporate deposits, Bank 
Deposits

 235.67  273.42 

Denominator Average Investments 
(including Intercorporate 
deposits, Bank Deposits)

 2,632.58  2,671.87 

41

The chief operating decision maker evaluates the Company’s performance and applies the resources to whole of 
the Company business viz. “Generation, Transmission and Distribution of Power” as an integrated utility. Hence the 
Company does not have any reportable segment as per lnd AS- 108 “Operating Segments

42 signiFicant eVents aFter tHe rePorting PerioD

There were no significant adjusting events that occurred subsequent to the reporting period other than the 
events disclosed in the relevant notes.

As per our attached report of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & sells llP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
chartered accountants aDani electricitY mumBai limiteD
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 117366W/W-100018

mohammed Bengali anil sardana Kandarp Patel
Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. 105828 DIN: 00006867 DIN.: 02947643

Kunjal mehta Jaladhi shukla
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 2 May, 2022 Date : 2 May, 2022
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inDePenDent auDitor’s rePort

to the members of adani electricity mumbai limited

rePort on tHe auDit oF tHe consoliDateD 
Financial statements

opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements of Adani Electricity Mumbai Limited  
(“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries, (the  Holding 
Company and its subsidiaries together  referred  to  as “the  
Group”) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet 
as at  31st March 2022, and the Consolidated Statement 
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, and based on 
the reports of the other auditors on separate financial 
statements of a subsidiary as explained in the Other 
Matters section below, the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements give the information required by 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under 
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (‘Ind 
AS’), and other accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group 
as at 31st March 2022, and their consolidated profit, 
their consolidated total comprehensive expense, their 
consolidated cash flows and their consolidated changes 
in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the Act 
(SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for 
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent  of  the  Group 
in  accordance  with  the  Code  of  Ethics  issued  by  
the  Institute  of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the consolidated financial statements 
under the provisions of the  Act and the Rules made 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 
and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence obtained by us, is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements.

inFormation otHer tHan tHe Financial 
statements anD auDitor’s rePort tHereon

• The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is 
responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included 
in the Directors’ report, but does not include the 
consolidated financial statements, standalone 
financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon.

• Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements 
does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

• In connection with our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information, compare with the financial 
statements of the subsidiaries audited by the other 
auditors, to the extent it relates to these entities 
and, in doing so, place reliance on the work of other 
auditors and consider whether the other information 
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. Other information so far 
as it relates to the subsidiaries is traced from their 
financial statements audited by the other auditors. 

• If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

management’s resPonsiBilitY For tHe 
consoliDateD Financial statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible 
for the matters stated in section  134(5) of the  Act with  
respect  to  the  preparation  of  these  consolidated  
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial 
performance including other comprehensive income, 
consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in 
equity of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS and 
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 
The respective Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group are responsible for  maintenance 
of  adequate accounting records in accordance  with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets 
of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds  
and  other  irregularities;  selection  and  application  of  
appropriate accounting  policies;  making  judgments  
and  estimates  that  are  reasonable  and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
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presentation of the  financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for 
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as 
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated  financial statements, 
the respective Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group  are responsible for assessing 
the  ability of the respective entities to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the  respective Board of Directors  
either intends to liquidate their respective entities or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 
do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing 
the financial reporting process of the Group.

auDitor’s resPonsiBilitY For tHe auDit oF tHe 
consoliDateD Financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the consolidated financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

 The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial 
control relevant to the audit in order to design 

 audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the Holding Company has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the 
management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the 
consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence 
regarding the financial information of the entities 
or business activities within the Group to express an 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 
We are responsible for the direction, supervision 
and performance of the audit of the financial 
statements of such entities or business activities 
included in the consolidated financial statements 
of which we are the independent auditors. For the 
other entities or business activities included in the 
consolidated financial statements, which have been 
audited by the other auditors, such other auditors 
remain responsible for the direction, supervision 
and performance of the audit carried out by them. 
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
consolidated financial statements that, individually 
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic 
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
consolidated financial statements may be influenced. 
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We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and 
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate 
the effect of any identified misstatements in the 
consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
of the Holding Company and such other entities included 
in the consolidated financial statements of which we 
are the independent auditors regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with 
a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

otHer matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of a 
subsidiary (Adani Electricity Mumbai Infra Limited) 
whose financial statements reflect total assets 
of Rs.222.66 crores as at 31st March, 2022, total 
revenues of Rs. Nil and net cash inflows amounting 
to Rs. 15.15 crores for the year ended on that 
date, as considered in the consolidated financial 
statements. These financial statements have been 
audited by other auditors whose reports have 
been furnished to us by the Management and our 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in 
so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures 
included in respect of this subsidiary, and our report 
in terms of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, 
in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is 
based solely on reports of the other auditors. 

 Our opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements above and our report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in 
respect of the above matters with respect to our 
reliance on the work done and the reports of the 
other auditors.

rePort on otHer legal anD regulatorY 
requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on 
our audit and on the consideration of the reports

of the other auditors on the separate financial 
statements of the subsidiary referred to in the Other 
Matters section above we report that:

 a) We have sought and obtained all the 
information and explanations which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary 
for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements. 

 b) In our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law relating to preparation of the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements 
have been kept so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books, returns and the 
reports of the other auditors.

 c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 
including Other Comprehensive Income, the 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with 
the relevant books of account maintained for 
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements. 

 d) In our opinion, the aforesaid  consolidated  
financial  statements  comply  with  the  Ind AS 
specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

 e) On the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors of the Holding 
Company as on 31st March, 2022 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors of the Company 
and the reports of the statutory auditors of the 
subsidiary companies, none of the directors of 
the Group companies incorporated in India is 
disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 
(2) of the Act.

 f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over  financial reporting and  
the  operating  effectiveness of  such  controls,  
refer  to  our  separate  Report  in “Annexure A” 
which is based on the auditors’ reports of the 
Holding company and the subsidiary companies 
incorporated in India. Our report expresses 
an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and 
operating effectiveness of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of those 
companies.
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  With respect to the other matters to be 
included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with the requirements of section 197(16) of 
the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid 
by the Holding Company to its directors during 
the year is in accordance with the provisions of 
section 197 of the Act.

 g) With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,  
2014,as amended in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us: 

i) The consolidated financial statements 
disclose the impact of pending litigations 
on the consolidated financial position of 
the Group.

ii) Provision has been made in the 
consolidated financial statements, 
as required under the applicable law 
or accounting standards, for material 
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts.

iii) There were no amounts which were 
required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the 
Holding Company, and its subsidiary 
companies incorporated in India.

  (iv) (a) The respective Managements of 
the Company and its subsidiaries 
which are companies incorporated 
in India whose financial statements 
have been audited under the Act 
have represented to us and the 
other auditors of such subsidiaries 
respectively that, to the best of their 
knowledge and belief, as disclosed 
in the notes to the accounts, no 
funds (which are material either 
individually or in the aggregate) have 
been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind 
of funds) by the Company or any of 
such subsidiaries to or in any other 
person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), 

    with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Intermediary shall, directly 
or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the Company or any of such 
subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) 
or provide any guarantee, security 
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries.   

   (b) The respective Managements of 
the Company and its subsidiaries 
which are companies incorporated 
in India whose financial statements 
have been audited under the Act 
have represented to us and the 
other auditors of such subsidiaries 
respectively that, to the best of their 
knowledge and belief, as disclosed 
in the notes to accounts, no funds 
(which are material either individually 
or in the aggregate) have been 
received by the Company or any of 
such subsidiaries from any person(s) 
or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded 
in writing or otherwise, that the 
Company or any of such subsidiaries 
shall, directly or indirectly, lend or 
invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

   (c)  Based on the audit procedures that 
has been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances 
performed by us and those performed 
by the auditors of the subsidiaries 
which are companies incorporated 
in India whose financial statements 
have been audited under the Act, 
nothing has come to our or other 
auditor’s notice that has caused us 
or the other auditors to believe that 
the representations under sub-clause 
(i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any 
material misstatement.
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  iv) The Company and its subsidiaries which 
are companies incorporated in India 
whose financial statements have been 
audited under the Act, has not declared 
or paid interim or final dividend during the 
year or previous year.

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 
3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, 
to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to 
the information and explanations given to us, and 
based on the CARO reports issued by the auditors 
of the subsidiaries included in the consolidated

 financial statements of the Company, to which 
reporting under CARO is applicable, provided to 
us by the Management of the Company and based 
on the identification of matters of qualifications 
or adverse remarks in their CARO reports by the 
respective component auditors and provided to us, 
we report that the auditors of such companies have 
not reported any qualifications or adverse remarks 
in their CARO report.

For Deloitte Haskins & sells llP 
Chartered Accountants

           (Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

        mohammed Bengali
(Partner)

Place: Mumbai (Membership No. 105828)
Date: 02 May, 2022 (UDIN: 22105828AIHSLT9325)
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annexure “a” to tHe inDePenDent auDitor’s rePort 
(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even 
date) 

rePort on tHe internal Financial controls 
oVer Financial rePorting unDer clause (i) oF 
suB-section 3 oF section 143 oF tHe comPanies 
act, 2013 (“tHe act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind 
AS financial statements of the Company as of and for 
the year ended 31st March, 2022, we have audited the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
Adani Electricity Mumbai Limited (hereinafter referred to 
as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary companies, 
which are companies incorporated in India, as of that 
date.

management’s resPonsiBilitY For internal 
Financial controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding 
company and its subsidiary companies, which are 
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the respective Companies 
considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

auDitor’s resPonsiBilitY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding 
Company and its subsidiary companies, which are 
companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the 
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
and the reports of the other auditors on the adequacy 
and operating effectiveness of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the subsidiaries, 
which are companies incorporated in India, in terms 
of it being referred to in the Other Matters paragraph 
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the  internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting of the Holding Company 
and its subsidiary companies, which are companies 
incorporated in India.

meaning oF internal Financial controls oVer 
Financial rePorting

A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect 

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of 
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements.
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inHerent limitations oF internal Financial 
controls oVer Financial rePorting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud 
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the 
risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

opinion

In  our opinion to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us and based on 
the consideration of the reports of the other auditors as 
regards the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting in so 
far as it relates to a subsidiary company referred to in the 
Other Matters paragraph below, the Holding Company 
and its subsidiary companies, which are companies 
incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, 
an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls 
over financial reporting were operating effectively as 

at March 31, 2022, based on the criteria for internal 
financial control over financial reporting established 
by the respective companies considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.

other matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act 
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar 
as it relates to a subsidiary company (Adani Electricity 
Mumbai Infra Limited), which is company incorporated 
in India, is based solely on the reports of the statutory 
auditors of such company incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above 
matters.

For Deloitte Haskins & sells llP 
Chartered Accountants

           (Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

        mohammed Bengali
(Partner)

Place: Mumbai (Membership No. 105828)
Date: 02 May, 2022 (UDIN: 22105828AIHSLT9325)
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consoliDateD Balance sHeet
AS AT 31 MARCH, 2022

 (` in Crores)
Particulars note  as at  

31 march, 2022 
 as at  

31 march, 2021 
assets
non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 5  13,487.71  12,985.27 
Capital Work-In-Progress 5c  489.94  387.14 
Right-of-Use Assets 5a  592.79  141.49 
Intangible Assets 5b  1,038.19  1,004.30 
Intangible Assets Under Development 5d  -    15.41 
Financial Assets
(i) Investments 6a  204.62  204.95 
(ii) Loans 7  1,068.94  1,073.84 
(iii) Other Financial Assets 8  731.13  639.82 
Income Tax Assets (net) 9a  4.00  3.93 
Other Non-current Assets 10  72.45  288.56 
total non-current assets  17,689.77  16,744.71 
current assets
Inventories 11  204.49  193.50 
Financial Assets
(i) Investments 6b  24.84  -   
(ii) Trade Receivables 12  485.85  576.29 
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 13  90.10  152.42 
(iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above 14  624.48  886.56 
(v) Loans 7  7.10  12.77 
(vi) Other Financial Assets 8  623.59  491.10 
Other Current Assets 10  146.26  385.49 
total current assets  2,206.71  2,698.13 
total assets before regulatory Deferral account  19,896.48  19,442.84 
regulatory Deferral account - assets  1,121.92  439.45 
total assets  21,018.40  19,882.29 
equitY anD liaBilities
equity
Share Capital 15  4,020.82  4,020.82 
Other Equity 16  673.91  689.53 
Instrument Entirely Equity in Nature 15a  104.72  -   
total equity  4,799.45  4,710.35 
liabilities
non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities  
(i) Borrowings 17  11,956.68  10,555.82 
(ii) Trade Payables 18

(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and  -    -   
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 

small enterprises.
 32.22  31.93 

(iii) Lease Liabilities 19  26.25  50.70 
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 20  67.78  63.55 
Provisions 21  587.19  557.12 
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 29  179.35  78.17 
Other Non Current Liabilities 22  245.47  282.89 
total non-current liabilities  13,094.94  11,620.18 
current liabilities
Financial Liabilities 
(i) Borrowings 23  -    916.68 
(ii) Trade Payables 18

(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and  25.07  28.99 
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As per our attached report of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & sells llP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
chartered accountants aDani electricitY mumBai limiteD
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 117366W/W-100018

mohammed Bengali anil sardana Kandarp Patel
Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. 105828 DIN: 00006867 DIN.: 02947643

Kunjal mehta Jaladhi shukla
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 2 May, 2022 Date : 2 May, 2022

 (` in Crores)
Particulars note  as at  

31 march, 2022 
 as at  

31 march, 2021 
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 

small enterprises.
 1,465.88  1,161.15 

(iii) Lease Liabilities 19  18.59  42.89 
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 20  977.51  817.82 
Provisions 21  66.28  58.55 
Current Tax Liabilities 9b  2.13  -   
Other Current Liabilities 22  296.99  254.12 
total current liabilities  2,852.45  3,280.20 
total liabilities before regulatory Deferral account  15,947.39  14,900.38 
regulatory Deferral account - liabilities  271.56  271.56 
total equity and liabilities  21,018.40  19,882.29 
See accompanying notes forms part of the financial statements  -    -   

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Contd.)
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consoliDateD statement oF ProFit anD loss
FOR THE yEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2022

 (` in Crores)
Particulars note For the year ended 

31 march, 2022 
For the year ended 

31 march, 2021 
income :
Revenue from Operations 24  6,908.94  6,049.27 
Other Income 25  409.65  421.67 
total income  7,318.59  6,470.94 
expenses :

Cost Of Power Purchased  2,736.41  1,914.51 
Cost of Fuel  1,065.99  972.56 
Transmission Charges  477.84  468.52 
Purchases of traded goods  0.76  1.46 
Employee Benefits Expense 26  798.68  856.17 
Finance Costs 27  1,160.38  1,096.98 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 5,5a&5b  651.58  644.56 
Other Expenses 28  838.30  762.67 

total expenses  7,729.94  6,717.43 
Profit/(Loss) Before Movement in Regulatary Deferral Balance, 
exceptional items and tax

 (411.35)  (246.49)

Add/(Less): Net Movement in Regulatory Deferral Balance  682.47  582.81 
Profit Before Exceptional Items and Tax                                   271.12  336.32 
Exceptional items  -    -   
Profit Before Tax        271.12  336.32 
tax expense: 29

Current Tax  47.78  49.40 
Deferred Tax  101.18  27.75 

 148.96  77.15 
Profit after tax total a  122.16  259.17 
other comprehensive income / (expense)
(a)     Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

-Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans  17.09  33.34 
-Income Tax Impact  (3.00)  (5.83)

(b)     Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
- Effective portion of gains and losses on designated portion 
of hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge

 (151.87)  (100.66)

other comprehensive expense total B  (137.78)  (73.15)
total comprehensive income Total (A+B)  (15.62)  186.02 
earnings Per share (ePs) (in `) 30
(Face Value ` 10 Per share)
Basic / Diluted earnings per Equity Share before net Movement 
in Regulatary Deferral Balance

 (1.10)  (0.55)

Basic / Diluted earnings per Equity Share after net Movement in 
Regulatary Deferral Balance

 0.30  0.64 

See accompanying notes forms part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & sells llP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
chartered accountants aDani electricitY mumBai limiteD
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 117366W/W-100018

mohammed Bengali anil sardana Kandarp Patel
Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. 105828 DIN: 00006867 DIN.: 02947643

Kunjal mehta Jaladhi shukla
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 2 May, 2022 Date : 2 May, 2022
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a. equitY sHare caPital

(` in Crores)

Particulars  no. shares amount
Balance as at 01 april, 2020 4,02,08,23,535  4,020.82 
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year  -   -
Balance as at 31 march, 2021  4,02,08,23,535  4,020.82 
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the current year  -    -   
Balance as at 31 march, 2022  4,02,08,23,535  4,020.82 

B. otHer equitY

For the period ended 31 march, 2022 (` in Crores)

Particulars  reserves and surplus items of 
other 

compre-
hensive 
income

total

capital 
reserve

contingency 
reserve 

Fund

share 
Premium 
account

retained 
earnings

cashflow 
Hedge 

reserve
Balance as at 01 april, 2020  230.78  196.95  120.43  (31.41)  (13.24)  503.51 
Profit for the year  -    -    -    259.17  -    259.17 
Other comprehensive Income / (Expense) for the 
year  -    -    27.51  (100.66)  (73.15)
total comprehensive income / (expense) for the 
year  -    -    -    286.68  (100.66)  186.02 
Transfer to Contingency Reserve  22.74  (22.74)  -   
Balance as at 31 march, 2021  230.78  219.69  120.43  232.53  (113.90) 689.53 
Balance as at 01 april, 2021  230.78  219.69  120.43  232.53  (113.90) 689.53 
Profit for the year  -    -    -    122.16  -    122.16 
Other comprehensive Income / (Expense) for the 
year  -    -    -    14.09  (151.87) (137.78)
total comprehensive income / (expense) for the 
year  -    -    -   136.25  (151.87) (15.62)
Transfer to Contingency Reserve  -    25.74  -    (25.74)  -    -   
Balance as at 31 march, 2022  230.78  245.43  120.43  343.04  (265.77)  673.91 
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

consoliDateD statement oF cHanges in equitY 

As per our attached report of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & sells llP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
chartered accountants aDani electricitY mumBai limiteD
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 117366W/W-100018

mohammed Bengali anil sardana Kandarp Patel
Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. 105828 DIN: 00006867 DIN.: 02947643

Kunjal mehta Jaladhi shukla
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 2 May, 2022 Date : 2 May, 2022
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(` in Crores)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

a. cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax  271.12  336.32 

Adjustments for:

Interest Income  (309.34)  (334.32)

Delayed Payment Charges  (22.90)  (27.00)

Unrealised Foreign Exchange Gain from Borrowings net of Hedging  155.64  166.80 

Amortisation of Consumer Contribution  (10.30)  (9.22)

Gain On Sale / Fair Value Of Current Investments Measured at FVTPL  (1.13)  (39.73)

Gain On Sale / Fair Value Of Current Investments Measured at FVTPL - 
Contingency Reserve Fund

 -    (1.33)

Finance Costs  1,004.74  930.18 

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense  651.58  644.56 

(Profit)/Loss on sale of Fixed Assets (Net)  (0.42)  (1.87)

Sundry credit balances written back  (57.41)

Provisions no longer required written back  (38.74)

Bad Debts Written Off  18.31  22.52 

Operating Profit before working capital changes  1,661.15  1,686.91 
Changes in Working Capital:

Adjustments for (Increase) / Decrease in Assets :

Trade Receivables  103.77  (46.81)

Inventories  (10.99)  317.92 

Financial Assets - Current / Non Current  (132.43)  40.61 

Other Assets  - Current / Non Current  240.98  (74.09)

Regulatory Deferral Account - Assets  (682.47)  (191.72)

Adjustment for Increase / (Decrease) in Liabilities :

Trade Payables  369.84  (250.68)

Financial Liabilities - Current / Non Current  (6.04)  (71.15)

Provisions - Current / Non Current  52.42  342.27 

Other Liabilities  - Current / Non Current  (14.42)  (30.85)

Regulatory Deferral Account - Liability  -    (232.77)

cash generated from operations  1,581.81  1,489.64 
Tax paid (Net)  (48.72)  (83.37)

net cash from operating activities (a)  1,533.09  1,406.27 

B. cash flow from investing activities
Capital expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment  & Intangible Assets  (1,413.01)  (1,215.27)
Proceeds from Sale of Proeprty, Plant and Equipment  8.46  4.30 
(Purchase) / Sale of Mutual Funds / Other Investments-Net  (27.41)  21.87 
Bank balances not considered as Cash & Cash Equivalents  237.28  (773.13)
Advances - Given  (607.22)  -   
Advances - received back  607.22  -   
Loans (given) / repaid  (net)  10.26  584.34 
Delayed payment charges received  22.90  27.00 
Interest Received  300.50  298.28 

net cash used in investing activities (B)  (861.02)  (1,052.61)
c. Cash flow from financing activities

consoliDateD statement oF casH FloW
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW (Contd.)

(` in Crores)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

Increase in Service Line Contribution  25.33  14.29 

Proceeds from Long-term borrowings  2,293.24  778.66 

Repayment of Long-term borrowings  (1,404.41)  (33.33)

Proceeds from Short-term borrowings  1,535.54  3,673.70 

Repayment of Short-term borrowings  (2,418.89)  (3,775.66)

Proceeds from issue of Optionally convertible Debentures  158.98  -   

Payment of Lease Liability Obligation  (16.12)  (10.43)

Interest of Lease Liability Obligation  (6.25)  (6.92)

Interest & Other Borrowing Cost  (901.81)  (964.25)

Net cash used in financing activities (C)  (734.39)  (323.94)

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (62.32)  29.72 

cash and cash equivalents as at 001 april, (opening Balance)  152.42  122.70 

cash and cash equivalents as at 31 march, (closing Balance)  90.10  152.42 

 as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

cash and cash equivalents includes

Balances with banks 

- In current accounts  80.20  105.05 

- Fixed Deposits  -    20.00 

Cash On Hand  0.80  2.40 

Cheques / Drafts On Hand  9.10  24.97 

total cash & cash equivalents  90.10  152.42 

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & sells llP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
chartered accountants aDani electricitY mumBai limiteD
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 117366W/W-100018

mohammed Bengali anil sardana Kandarp Patel
Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. 105828 DIN: 00006867 DIN.: 02947643

Kunjal mehta Jaladhi shukla
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 2 May, 2022 Date : 2 May, 2022
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notes to consoliDateD Financial statements
FOR THE yEAR ENDED ON 31 MARCH, 2022 

1 corPorate inFormation

 Adani Electricity Mumbai Limited (“”AEML””) (“The 
Company”) is a public limited company incorporated 
and domiciled in India having  its registered office at 
Adani Corporate House, Shantigram, Near Vaishno Devi 
Circle, S. G. Highway, Khodiyar, Ahmedabad 382421, 
Gujarat, India. It is subsidiary of Adani Transmission 
Limited (ATL) (“”the Holding Company””) and ultimate 
holding entity is S. B. Adani Family Trust (SBAFT).  
The integrated Mumbai Generation, Transmission 
and Distribution (GTD) Business, under a license, 
transmits and distributes electricity to consumers 
in and around suburbs of Mumbai inclusive 
of areas covered under the Mira Bhayender 
Municipal Corporation, making it the country’s 
largest private sector integrated power utility. 
The Tariff to be charged to the consumers is regulated 
by Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission 
(“”MERC””).  

 The Company has incorporated wholly owned 
subsidiary AEML SEEPZ Limited (“ASL”) for the 
purpose of distribution of electricity to Santacruz 
Electronic Export Processing Zone (“SEEPZ”) and 
Adani Electricity Mumbai Infra Limited  (AEMIL) for 
the purpose of carrying out works like infrastructure 
development, transmission line development along 
with the commissioning of HVDC.  

 The Company, AEMIL and ASL is together referred 
to as “the Group” in these Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

 These financial statements of the Group for the year 
ended 31 March, 2022 were authorised for issue by 
the board of directors on 02 May, 2022.

2 summarY oF signiFicant accounting 
Policies

2.1 statement of compliance

 The financial statements of the Group have been 
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (IndAS) as notified under the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with 
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) (as 
amended from time to time).

2.2 Basis of preparation and presentation 

 The financial statements have been prepared on a 
historical cost basis except for the following assets 
and liabilities which have been measured at fair value.

 •   certain financial assets and liabilities that are 
measured at fair value;  

 •   defined benefit plans - planned assets measured 
at fair value; 

 The financial statements have been prepared in 
“Indian Rupees” which is also the Group’s functional 
currency and all amounts, are rounded to the nearest 
Crore with two decimals, (Transactions below  
` 50,000.00 denoted as ` 0.00), unless otherwise 
stated.

 Accounting policies have been consistently applied 
except where a newly issued accounting standard is 
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting 
standard requires a change in the accounting policy 
hitherto in use.

2.3 Current versus Non-Current Classification 

 The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance 
sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An 
asset is treated as current when it is:

• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or 
consumed in normal operating cycle; or

• Held primarily for the purpose of trading; or 

• Expected to be realised within twelve months 
after the reporting period; or

• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from 
being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 
least  twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating 
cycle; or 

• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or 

• It is due to be settled within twelve months after 
the reporting period; or 

• There is no unconditional right to defer the 
settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period

 The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-
current. 

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as 
non-current assets and liabilities respectively. 

 The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition 
of assets for processing and their realisation in cash 
and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve 
months as its operating cycle.

2.4 Basis of consolidation

 The Group consolidates all entities which are 
controlled by it. The consolidated financial statements 
comprise the financial statements of the Company
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 and its subsidiary. Control exists when the parent 
has power over the entity, is exposed, or has rights, to 
variable returns from its involvement with the entity 
and has the ability to affect those returns by using its 
power over the entity. Power is demonstrated through 
existing rights that give the ability to direct relevant 
activities, those which significantly affect the entity’s 
returns. The entities are consolidated from the date 
control  commences until the date control ceases.

 The consolidated financial statements of the Group 
companies are consolidated on a line-by-line basis 
and intra-group balances and transactions including 
unrealised gain/loss from such transactions are 
eliminated upon consolidation. These consolidated 
financial statements are prepared by applying uniform 
accounting policies in use at the Group. Profit or loss 
on each component of other comprehensive income 
(OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent 
of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even 
if this results in the non-controlling interest having a 
deficit balance.

 Changes in the Group’s holding that do not result 
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity 
transactions. The carrying amount of the Group’s 
holding and the non-controlling interests are adjusted 
to reflect the changes in their relative holding. Any 
difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value 
of the consideration paid or received is recognised 
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the 
Company. 

 The details of subsidiary included in consolidation 
and it’s shareholding therein is as under: The reporting 
date for the subsidiary is 31 March, 2022

name of company 
& country of 
incorporation

relationship shareholding 
as on 31 

march, 2022

Adani Electricity 
Mumbai Infra 
Limited, India

Subsidiary 100%

AEML SEEPZ 
Limited, India

Subsidiary 100%

 AEMIL has been incorporated on 03 January, 2020 and 
ASL has been incorporated on 08 December 2020. The 
Audited Financial Statements of these subsidiaries, 
from date of incorporation till the reporting date, have 
been considered for consolidation.

 Business combination and goodwill  

 The Group accounts for its business combinations 
under acquisition method of accounting. Acquisition 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

related costs are recognised in statement of profit 
and loss as incurred. The acquiree’ s identifiable 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet 
the condition for recognition are recognised at their 
fair values at the acquisition date.

 If the initial accounting for a business combination 
is incomplete as at the reporting date in which the 
combination occurs, the identifiable assets and 
liabilities acquired in a business combination are 
measured at their provisional fair values at the date 
of acquisition. Subsequently adjustments to the 
provisional values are made within the measurement 
period, if new information is obtained about facts and 
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date 
and, if known, would have resulted in the recognition 
of those assets and liabilities as of that date; otherwise 
the adjustments are recorded in the period in which 
they occur. 

 Purchase consideration paid in excess of the fair 
value of net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. 
Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities 
exceed the cost of acquisition, after reassessing the 
fair values of the net assets and contingent liabilities, 
the excess is recognised as capital reserve.

 The interest of non-controlling shareholders is initially 
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling 
interests’ proportionate share of the acquiree’s 
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement 
basis is made on an acquisition-by acquisition basis. 
Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of 
non-controlling interests is the amount of those 
interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling 
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity of 
subsidiaries. 

 Business combinations arising from transfers of 
interests in entities that are under the common control 
are accounted at historical costs. The difference 
between any consideration given and the aggregate 
historical carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
of the acquired entity are recorded in shareholders’ 
equity.

 Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess 
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred 
and the amount recognised for non-controlling 
interests and any previous interest held, over the net 
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If 
the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess 
of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group 
re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of 
the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed 
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and reviews the procedures used to measure 
the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition 
date. If the reassessment still results in an excess 
of the fair value of net assets acquired over the 
aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is 
recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) and 
accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, 
if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, 
the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as 
capital reserve, without routing the same through 
OCI. 

 After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost 
less any accumulated impairment losses. For the 
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in 
a business combination is, from the acquisition date, 
allocated to each of the Group’s cash generating units 
that are expected to benefit from the combination, 
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of 
the acquiree are assigned to those units. 

 A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been 
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more 
frequently when there is an indication that the unit 
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the 
cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, 
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the 
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit 
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based 
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any 
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or 
loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not 
reversed in subsequent periods.

2.6 1 Property, plant and equipment (“PPe”)

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost 
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. 

In respect of Property, Plant and Equipment 
(“Assets”) pertaining to Mumbai Generation, 
Transmission and Distribution business acquired 
from Reliance Infrastructure Limited under a 
Court sanctioned scheme of arrangement with 
an appointed date of 01 April, 2018, in line with 
the requirements of the Court Scheme, the Group 
has accounted for such Assets at their respective 
fair values as at 01 April, 2018 based on valuation 
done by a Government registered valuer. 

Subsequent additions to the assets on or after 
01 April, 2018 are accounted for at cost. Cost 
includes purchase price (net of trade discount 
& rebates) and any directly attributable cost 

of bringing the asset to its working condition 
for its intended use and for qualifying assets, 
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with 
IndAS 23. Capital work-in-progress is stated at 
cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. 
When significant parts of plant and equipment 
are required to be replaced at intervals, the 
Group depreciates them separately based on 
their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major 
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in 
the carrying amount of the plant and equipment 
as a replacement if the recognition criteria are 
satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs 
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss 
as incurred.

Decapitalisation

An item of property, plant and equipment is 
derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected to arise from 
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss 
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item 
of property, plant and equipment is determined 
as the difference between the sales proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the asset and is 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation

Depreciation commences when an asset is 
ready for its intended use. Freehold land is not 
depreciated. 

Regulated Assets: Subject to the below, 
depreciation on property, plant and equipment 
in respect of Mumbai Generation, Transmission 
and Distribution business of the Group is covered 
under Part B of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 
2013, and has been provided on the straight line 
method at the rates and using the methodology 
as notified by the regulator.  

For certain types of assets in respect of which 
useful life is not specified in MERC Multi Year 
Tariff Regulations (“MYT regulations”), useful life 
as prescribed under Schedule-II of Companies 
Act, 2013 is considered. 

In respect of assets (other than Dahanu Thermal 
Power Station-DTPS) which have been accounted 
at fair value, considering life as specified in MYT 
regulations, depreciation is provided on Straight 
Line Method (considering a salvage value of 
5%)  over their balance useful life.  In respect of 
DTPS based on technical evaluation, the balance 
useful life has been determined as 15 years as on 
01 April, 2018.
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Salvage value in respect of assets which have not 
been accounted at fair value has been considered 
at 10% except in respect of  Furniture & Fixture, 
Vehicles, Office Equipment and Electrical 
Installations which has been considered at 5%  
and Computers & Software at Nil (Consequent 
to amendment in tariff regulations, the Company 
has changed the Salvage value of  Computers 
from 5% to Nil  w.e.f. 01 April, 2020). 

The estimated useful lives, residual values and 
depreciation method are reviewed at the end 
of each reporting period, and the effect of 
any changes in estimate is accounted for on a 
prospective basis.

Estimated useful lives of assets other than assets 
at DTPS  are as follows:-

type of assets useful lives

Building 30-60 Years

Plant and Equipment (Except 
Meters & Batteries)*

25-35 Years

Plant and Equipment - Meters* 10 Years

Plant and Equipment - 
Batteries*

5 Years

Distribution Line / Transmission 
Cable 

35 Years

Street Light 25 Years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years

Office Equipment 5 Years

Computers, Servers & Related 
Network

6 Years

Vehicles 8 - 10 Years

 * Consequent to amendment in tariff 
regulations, w.e.f. 01 April, 2020 the Company 
has changed the useful life (years) in respect of 
meters (from 25 to 10), batteries (from 25 to 5), 
Computers (from 3 to 6) and Substations put to 
use post 01 April, 2016 (Plant & Equipment) (from 
25 to 35).

2 intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any.

In respect of Intangible Asset (“Assets”) 
pertaining to Mumbai Generation, Transmission 
and Distribution business acquired from Reliance 
Infrastructure Limited under a Court sanctioned 

scheme of arrangement with an appointed date 
of 01 April, 2018, in line with the requirements 
of the Court Scheme, the Group has accounted 
for such Assets at their respective fair values 
as at 01 April, 2018 based on valuation done by 
professional valuation firm.  

Subsequent additions to the assets on or after 01 
April, 2018 are accounted for at cost.

Derecognition of intangible assets.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, 
or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses 
arising from derecognition of an intangible 
asset, measured as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount 
of the asset, and are recognised in statement of 
profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

useful life

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised 
over the useful economic life and assessed for 
impairment whenever there is an indication 
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The 
amortisation period and the amortisation method 
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are 
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting 
period. Changes in the expected useful life or 
the expected pattern of consumption of future 
economic benefits embodied in the asset are 
considered to modify the amortisation period 
or method, as appropriate, and are treated 
as changes in accounting estimates. The 
amortisation expense on intangible assets with 
finite lives is recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss unless such expenditure forms 
part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible Assets with Indefinite lives are not 
amortised but are tested for impairment on 
annual basis.

Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets 
are as follows

type of assets useful lives

Transmission License Indefinite

Computer Software 3 years

Consequent to amendment in tariff regulations, 
the Company has changed the Salvage value of 
Computers Software from 1% to Nil w.e.f. 001 
April, 2020.
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 3 intangible assets under Development - 
software

Development costs that are directly attributable 
to the design and testing of identifiable and 
unique software products controlled are 
recognised as intangible assets where the 
following criteria are met:

  •  it is technically feasible to complete the 
software so that it will be available for use

  • management intends to complete the 
software and use or sell it

  • there is an ability to use or sell the software

  • it can be demonstrated how the software 
will generate probable future economic 
benefits

  • adequate technical, financial and other 
resources to complete the development 
and to use or sell the software are available, 
and

  • the expenditure attributable to the 
software during its development can be 
reliably measured.

  Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as 
part of the software include employee costs and 
an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

  Capitalised development costs are recorded as 
intangible assets and amortised from the point 
at which the asset is available for use.

 4 impairment of PPe and intangible assets

PPE (including CWIP) and intangible assets 
with definite lives, are reviewed for impairment, 
whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that their carrying values may not be 
recoverable. Intangible assets having indefinite 
useful lives are tested for impairment, at-least 
annually and whenever circumstances indicate 
that it may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the 
recoverable amount (that is, higher of the fair 
value less costs to sell and the value-in-use) is 
determined on an individual asset basis, unless 
the asset does not generate cash flows that 
are largely independent of those from other 
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is 
determined at the cash generating unit (“CGU”) 
level to which the said asset belongs. If such 
individual assets or CGU are considered to be 

  impaired, the impairment to be recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss is measured by 
the amount by which the carrying value of the 
asset / CGU exceeds their estimated recoverable 
amount and allocated on pro-rata basis.

Impairment losses are reversed in the statement 
of profit and loss and the carrying value is 
increased to its revised recoverable amount 
provided that this amount does not exceed the 
carrying value that would have been determined 
had no impairment loss been recognised for the 
said asset / CGU in previous years.

2.7 cash & cash equivalents 

Cash & cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, 
cash at bank and short term deposit with an original 
maturity of three months or less, which are subject 
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash 
& cash equivalents include balance with banks 
which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.  
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash 
& cash equivalents consists of cash at banks and short 
term deposits as defined above, as they are considered 
an integral part of the Group cash management.

2.8 cash Flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, 
where by profit before tax is adjusted for the effects 
of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or 
accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or 
payments and item of income or expenses associated 
with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows 
from operating, investing and financing activities of 
the Group are segregated.

2.9 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to 
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability 
or equity instrument of another entity.  

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised 
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments.  

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially 
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of 
financial assets and financial liabilities are added 
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial 
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial 
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable 
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial 
liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss 
are recognised immediately in the statement of profit 
and loss.
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2.10 Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial 
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade 
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are 
purchases or sales of financial assets that require 
delivery of assets within the time frame established 
by regulation or convention in the market place. 
All recognised financial assets are subsequently 
measured in their entirety at either amortised cost 
or fair value, depending on the classification of the 
financial assets.

1 Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest rate 
method if these financial assets are held within a 
business whose objective is to hold these assets 
in order to collect contractual cash flows and 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding.

 2 Financial assets at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVtoci)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair 
value through other comprehensive income if it 
is held within a business model whose objective 
is achieved by both collecting contractual 
cash flows and selling financial assets and the 
contractual terms of the financial asset give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition, the Group makes an 
irrevocable election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis to present the subsequent 
changes in fair value in other comprehensive 
income pertaining to investments in equity 
instruments, other than equity investment 
which are held for trading. Subsequently, they 
are measured at fair value with gains and losses 
arising from changes in fair value recognised in 
other comprehensive income and accumulated 
in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments through 
other comprehensive income’. The cumulative 
gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on 
disposal of the investments. 

 3 Financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss (FVtPl)

All financial assets that do not meet the criteria 
for amortised cost are measured at FVTPL.

4 impairment of investments

The Group reviews its carrying value of 
investments carried at cost annually, or 
more frequently when there is indication for 
impairment. If the recoverable amount is less 
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is 
accounted in the statement of profit and loss.

5 Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part 
of a financial asset or part of a group of similar 
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. 
removed from the Group balance sheet) when:

  - the right to receive cash flows from the 
asset have expired, or

  - the Group has transferred its right to receive 
cash flows from the asset or has assumed 
an obligation to pay the received cash flows 
in full without material delay to a third 
party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; 
and either (a) the Group has transferred 
substantially all the risks and rewards of 
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all 
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its right to 
receive cash flows from an asset or has entered 
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates 
if and to what extent it has retained the risks 
and rewards of ownership. When it has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred 
control of the asset, the Group continues to 
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of 
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, 
the Group also recognises an associated liability. 
The transferred asset and the associated liability 
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights 
and obligations that the Group has retained.

6 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each date of balance 
sheet whether a financial asset or a group of 
financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires 
expected credit losses to be measured through 
a loss allowance. The Group recognises lifetime 
expected losses for all contract assets and / or 
all trade receivables that do not constitute a 
financing transaction. For all other financial 
assets, expected credit losses are measured at 
an amount equal to the 12 month expected
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credit losses or at an amount equal to the life 
time expected credit losses if the credit risk on 
the financial asset has increased significantly 
since initial recognition.

2.11 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

1 Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group 
are classified as either financial liabilities or as 
equity in accordance with the substance of the 
contractual arrangements and the definitions of 
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

2 equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that 
evidences a residual interest in the assets of an 
entity after deducting all of its liabilities.  Equity 
instruments issued by the Group are recognised 
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue 
costs.

3 Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. Gains and losses are recognised in 
statement of profit and loss when the liabilities 
are derecognised as well as through the Effective 
Interest Rate (EIR) amortisation process. 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on acquisition 
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance 
costs in the statement of profit and loss.

4 Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the 
obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial 
liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the 
terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification 
is treated as the derecognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The 
difference in the respective carrying amounts is 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

 5 Compound financial instruments

The component parts of compound financial 
instruments (optionally convertible debentures) 
issued by the Group are classified separately as 
financial liabilities and equity in accordance with 
the substance of the contractual arrangements 
and the definitions of a financial liability and 

an equity instrument. A conversion option 
that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed 
amount of cash or another financial asset 
for a fixed number of the Company’s own 
equity instruments is an equity instrument. 
At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability 
component is estimated using the prevailing 
market interest rate for similar non-convertible 
instruments. This amount is recognised as 
a liability on amortised cost basis using the 
effective interest method until extinguished upon 
conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date. 
The conversion option classified as equity is 
determined by deducting the amount of the 
liability component from the fair value of the 
compound financial instrument as a whole. This is 
recognised and included in equity, net of income 
tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. 
In addition, the conversion option classified as 
equity will remain in equity until the conversion 
option is exercised, in which case, the balance 
recognised in equity will be transferred to other 
component of equity. When the conversion 
option remains unexercised at the maturity date 
of the convertible note, the balance recognised 
in equity will be transferred to retained earnings. 
No gain or loss is recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the 
conversion option.

2.12 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Group determines classification of financial 
assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After 
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for 
financial assets which are equity instruments and 
financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt 
instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is 
a change in the business model for managing those 
assets. Changes to the business model are expected 
to be infrequent. The Group’s senior management 
determines change in the business model as a result 
of external or internal changes which are significant 
to the Group’s operations. Such changes are evident 
to external parties. A change in the business model 
occurs when the Group either begins or ceases to 
perform an activity that is significant to its operations. 
If the Group reclassifies financial assets, it applies the 
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification 
date which is the first day of the immediately next 
reporting period following the change in business 
model. The Group does not restate any previously 
recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains 
or losses) or interest.
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2.13 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and 
the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if 
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset 
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle 
the liabilities simultaneously.

2.14 inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined 
on weighted average basis. Net realisable value 
represents the estimated selling price for inventories 
less all estimated costs of completion and costs 
necessary to make the sale. Cost of inventory 
includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in 
bringing the inventories to their present location and 
condition. Unserviceable/damaged stores and spares 
are identified and written down based on technical 
evaluation.

2.15 Foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company is Indian 
Rupee ` Income and expenses in foreign currencies 
are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date 
of the transaction. Foreign currency denominated 
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the 
exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date 
and exchange gains and losses arising on settlement 
and restatement are recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured 
in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are not 
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss in 
the period in which they arise except for exchange 
differences on foreign currency borrowings relating 
to assets under construction for future productive 
use, which are included in the cost of those assets 
when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest 
costs on those foreign currency borrowings.

2.16  Derivative financial instruments and hedge 
accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement:

In order to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange 
and interest rate risks, the Group enters into forward, 
option, swap contracts and other derivative financial 
instruments. The Group does not hold derivative 
financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Such derivative financial instruments are initially 
recognised at fair value on the date on which 

a derivative contract is entered into and are 
subsequently re-measured at fair value. 

Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the 
fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when 
the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair 
value of derivatives are taken directly to the statement 
of profit and loss, except for the effective portion of 
cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and 
later reclassified to the statement of profit and loss 
when the hedge item affects profit or loss. When the 
hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or 
non-financial liability, the amounts recognised as OCI 
are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the 
non-financial asset or liability.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are 
classified as: 

Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to 
changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or 
liability or an Unrecognised firm commitment.

Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to 
variability in cash flows that is either attributable to 
a particular risk associated with a recognised asset 
or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction 
or the foreign currency risk in an Unrecognised firm 
commitment. 

The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified 
as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining 
maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 months; 
it is classified as a current asset or liability when the 
remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 
months.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group 
formally designates and documents the hedge 
relationship to which the Group wishes to apply 
hedge accounting.

The documentation includes the Group’s risk 
management objective and strategy for undertaking 
hedge, the hedging/ economic relationship, the 
hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk 
being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will 
assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging 
instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to 
changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows 
attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are 
expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting 
changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed 
on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually 
have been highly effective throughout the financial 
reporting periods for which they were designated.
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Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge 
accounting are accounted for, as described below:

i) Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are 
designated and qualify as fair value hedges are 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss 
immediately, together with any changes in the 
fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are 
attributable to the hedged risk.

When an Unrecognised firm commitment is 
designated as a hedged item, the subsequent 
cumulative change in the fair value of the 
firm commitment attributable to the hedged 
risk is recognised as an asset or liability with 
a corresponding gain or loss recognised in 
statement of profit and loss.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the 
Group revokes the hedge relationship, the 
hedging instrument or hedged item expires or is 
sold, terminated, or exercised or no longer meets 
the criteria for hedge accounting.

ii) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the 
hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the 
cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective 
portion is recognised immediately in the 
statement of profit and loss.

Amounts recognised in OCI are transferred to 
profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects 
profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial 
income or financial expense is recognised or 
when a forecast sale occurs. When the hedged 
item is the cost of a non-financial asset or non-
financial liability, the amounts recognised as OCI 
are transferred to the initial carrying amount of 
the non-financial asset or liability.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, 
terminated or exercised without replacement 
or rollover (as part of the hedging strategy), 
or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or 
when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for 
hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss 
previously recognised in OCI remains separately 
in equity until the forecast transaction occurs or 
the foreign currency firm commitment is met.

2.17 revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised 
when control of the goods or services are transferred 
to the customer at an amount that reflects the 
consideration to which the Group expects to be 
entitled in exchange for those goods or services

1 Transmission of Power 

Revenue from transmission of power is recognised 
net of cash discount over time for transmission 
of electricity. The Group as per the prevalent 
tariff regulations is required to recover its 
Annual Revenue Requirement (‘ARR’) comprising 
of expenditure on account of operations and 
maintenance expenses, financing costs, taxes 
and assured return on regulator approved 
equity with additional incentive for operational 
efficiencies.

Input method is used to recognise revenue 
based on the Group’s efforts or inputs to the 
satisfaction of a performance obligation to 
deliver power 

As per tariff regulations, the Group determines 
ARR and any surplus/shortfall in recovery of the 
same is accounted as revenue.

2 Sale of Power - Distribution

Revenue from sale of power is recognised net 
of cash discount over time for each unit of 
electricity delivered at the pre determined rate. 
Sales of power under Deviation settlement 
mechamism is recognised at variable cost.

3 Rendering of Services

Revenue from a contract to provide services is 
recognised over time based on output method 
where direct measurements of value to the 
customer based on survey’s of performance 
completed to date. Revenue is recognised net of 
cash discount at a point in time at the contracted 
rate.

 4 Interest on Overdue Receivables / Delay Payment 
Charges

Consumers are billed on a monthly basis 
and are given average credit period of 15 to 
30 days for payment. No delayed payment 
charges (‘DPC’) / interest on arrears (‘IOA’) is 
charged for the initial 15-30 days from the 
date of invoice to customers. Thereafter, 
DPC / IOA is charged at the rate prescribed in 
the tariff order on the outstanding amount. 
Revenue in respect of delayed payment charges 
and interest on delayed payments leviable as per 
the relevant contracts are recognised on actual 
realisation or accrued based on an assessment 
of certainty of realisation supported by either an 
acknowledgement from customers or on receipt 
of favourable order from regulator / authorities.
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5 Sale of Traded Goods : 

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when 
the goods are delivered and titles have passed, 
at which time all the following conditions are 
satisfied:

  •  The Group has transferred to the buyer the 
significant risks and rewards of ownership 
of the goods;

  •  the amount of revenue can be measured 
reliably; and

  •  it is probable that the economic benefits 
associated with the transaction will flow to 
the Group.

There is no significant judgement involved while 
evaluating the timing as to when customers 
obtain control of promised goods and services.

6 Amortisation of Service Line Contribution

Contributions by consumers towards items of 
property, plant and equipment, which require 
an obligation to provide electricity connectivity 
to the consumers, are recognised as a credit to 
deferred revenue. Such revenue is recognised 
over the useful life of the property, plant and 
equipment.

7 Interest income:

Interest income from a financial asset is 
recognised when it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount 
of income can be measured reliably. Interest 
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference 
to the principal outstanding and at the effective 
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that 
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts 
through the expected life of the financial asset 
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial 
recognition.

2.18 regulatory Deferral account

The Group determines revenue gaps (i.e. surplus/
shortfall in actual returns over returns entitled) in 
respect of its regulated operations in accordance 
with the provisions of Ind AS 114 “Regulatory Deferral 
Accounts” read with the Guidance Note on Rate 
Regulated Activities issued by ICAI and based on 
the principles laid down under the relevant Tariff 
Regulations/Tariff Orders notified by the Electricity 
Regulator and the actual or expected actions of the 
regulator under the applicable regulatory framework. 
Appropriate adjustments in respect of such revenue 
gaps are made in the regulatory deferral account of the 
respective year for the amounts which are reasonably 

determinable and no significant uncertainty exists 
in such determination. These adjustments/accruals 
representing revenue gaps are carried forward as 
Regulatory deferral accounts debit/credit balances 
(Regulatory Assets/Regulatory Liabilities) as the case 
may be in the financial statements, which would be 
recovered/refunded through future billing based 
on future tariff determination by the regulator in 
accordance with the electricity regulations

The Group presents separate line items in the balance 
sheet for:

 i. the total of all regulatory deferral account debit 
balances; and 

 ii. the total of all regulatory deferral account credit 
balances.

A separate line item is presented in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss for the net movement in regulatory 
deferral account. Regulatory assets/ liabilities on 
deferred tax expense/income is presented separately 
in the tax expense line item 

2.19 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of qualifying assets, which 
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period 
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are 
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as 
the assets are substantially ready for their intended 
use or sale.

Substantial time is defined as  time  required  for 
commissioning of the assets considering industry  
benchmarks/MERC tariff regulations.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment 
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on 
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing 
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in statement 
of profit and loss in the period in which they are 
incurred. Borrowing cost also includes exchange 
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment 
to the borrowing costs.

2.20Employee benefits

1 Defined contribution plan:

Payments to defined contribution retirement 
benefit plans are recognised as an expense when 
employees have rendered service entitling them 
to the contributions.

2 Defined benefit plans:

The cost of providing benefits under the defined 
benefit plan is determined using the projected 
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unit credit method. Remeasurements, comprising 
of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the 
asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net 
interest on the net defined benefit liability and 
the return on plan assets (excluding amounts 
included in net interest on the net defined 
benefit liability), are recognised immediately in 
the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or 
credit to retained earnings through OCI in the 
period in which they occur. Remeasurements are 
not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent 
periods. Past service costs are recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss on the earlier of:

 - The date of the plan amendment or 
curtailment, and 

 - The date that the Group recognises related 
restructuring costs

  Net interest is calculated by applying the 
discount rate to the net defined benefit liability 
or asset. The Group recognises the following 
changes in the net defined benefit obligation as 
an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

 - Service costs comprising current service 
costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on 
curtailments and non routine settlements; 
and

 - Net interest expense or income.

  A liability for a termination benefit is recognised 
at the earlier of when the entity can no longer 
withdraw the offer of the termination benefit 
and when the entity recognises any related 
restructuring costs

  The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan 
and the present value of the gratuity obligation 
are determined using actuarial valuations. An 
actuarial valuation involves making various 
assumptions that may differ from actual 
developments in the future. These include 
the determination of the discount rate, future 
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the 
complexities involved in the valuation and its 
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is 
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. 
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting 
date.

  The parameter most subject to change is the 
discount rate. In determining the appropriate 
discount rate for plans operated in India, the 
management considers the interest rates of 
government bonds. The mortality rate is based 
on publicly available mortality tables. Those 

mortality tables tend to change only at interval in 
response to demographic changes. Future salary 
increases and gratuity increases are based on 
expected future inflation rates.

 3 Current and other non-current employee 
benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing 
to employees in respect of wages and salaries, 
annual leave and sick leave in the period the 
related service is rendered at the undiscounted 
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in 
exchange for that service. 

Liabilities recognised in respect of current 
employee benefits are measured at the 
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected 
to be paid in exchange for the related 
service. 

Liabilities recognised in respect of other non-
current employee benefits are measured at 
the present value of the estimated future cash 
outflows expected to be made by the Group in 
respect of services provided by employees up to 
the reporting date.

 4 Short-term and other long-term employee 
benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing 
to employees in respect of wages and salaries, 
annual leave and sick leave in the period the 
related service is rendered at the undiscounted 
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in 
exchange for that service. Liabilities recognised 
in respect of short-term employee benefits are 
measured at the undiscounted amount of the 
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for 
the related service. Liabilities recognised in 
respect of other long-term employee benefits are 
measured at the present value of the estimated 
future cash outflows expected to be made by 
the Group in respect of services provided by 
employees up to the reporting date.

2.21 leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses 
whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract 
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the 
right to control the use of an identified asset for a 
period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease 
liability at the lease commencement date except for 
leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term 
leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and 
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low value leases, the lease payments associated with 
these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term.  

Lease term is a non-cancellable period together with 
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the 
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option; 
and  periods covered by an option to terminate the 
lease if the Group is reasonably certain not to exercise 
that option. 

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, 
which comprises the initial amount of the lease 
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or 
before the commencement date, plus any initial direct 
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle 
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the 
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less 
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset 
is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line 
method from the commencement date to the end of 
the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership 
of the underlying asset to the Group by the end of 
the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset 
reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase 
option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be 
depreciated over the useful life of the underlying 
asset. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically 
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for 
certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present 
value of the lease payments to be paid over the 
lease term at the commencement date, discounted 
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if 
that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group’s 
incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group 
uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount 
rate. Subsequently, the lease liability is measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.22 taxation

Tax on Income comprises current tax and deferred 
tax. These are recognised in Statement of Profit and 
Loss except to the extent that it relates to a business 
combination, or items recognised directly in equity or 
in other comprehensive income.

1 Current tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are 
measured at the amount expected to be recovered 
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax 
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount 
are those that are enacted or substantively 
enacted, at the reporting date in the countries 
where the Group operates and generates taxable 
income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised 
outside statement of profit and loss is recognised 
outside statement of profit and loss (either 
in other comprehensive income or in equity). 
Current tax items are recognised in correlation 
to the underlying transaction either in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity. 
Management periodically evaluates positions 
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations 
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to 
interpretation and establishes provisions where 
appropriate.

2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary 
differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities in the financial statements 
and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax 
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable 
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are 
generally recognised for all deductible temporary 
differences to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profits will be available against which 
those deductible temporary differences can be 
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities 
are not recognised if the temporary difference 
arises from the initial recognition of assets and 
liabilities in a transaction other than a business 
combination that affects neither the taxable 
profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is 
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow 
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. 
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed 
at each reporting date and are recognised to the 
extent that it has become probable that future 
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset 
to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured 
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
period in which the liability is settled or the asset 
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted by 
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside 
profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss 
(either in other comprehensive income or in 
equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in 
correlation to the underlying transaction either 
in OCI or directly in equity.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when 
they relate to income taxes levied by the same 
taxation authority and the relevant entity intends 
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a 
net basis.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative 
Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws 
in India, which is likely to give future economic 
benefits in the form of availability of set off 
against future income tax liability. Accordingly, 
MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the 
balance sheet when the asset can be measured 
reliably and it is probable that the future 
economic benefit associated with the asset will 
be realised. The Group reviews the “MAT credit 
entitlement” asset at each reporting date and 
writes down the asset to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that it will pay normal tax during 
the specified period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax 
losses (excluding unabsorbed depreciation) to 
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit 
will be available against which the losses can be 
utilised. Significant management judgement is 
required to determine the amount of deferred tax 
assets that can be recognised, based upon the 
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits 
together with future tax planning strategies.

2.23 earnings per share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by 
dividing the net profit attributable to the equity 
holders of the Group by the weighted average number 
of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted 
earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the 
net profit attributable to the equity holders of the 
Group by the weighted average number of equity 
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per 
equity share and also the weighted average number 
of equity shares that could have been issued upon 
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for 
the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been 
actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market 
value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive 
potential equity shares are deemed converted as of 
the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later 
date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined 
independently for each period presented.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive 
equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all 
periods presented for any share splits and bonus 
shares issues including for changes effected prior to 
the approval of the financial statements by the Board 
of Directors.

2.24Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent 
assets.

1 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has 
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as 
a result of a past event, it is probable that the 
Group will be required to settle the obligation and 
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of 
the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the 
best estimate of the consideration required to 
settle the present obligation at the end of the 
reporting period, taking into account the risks 
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 
When a provision is measured using the cash 
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, 
its carrying amount is the present value of those 
cash flows (when the effect of the time value of 
money is material).

Present obligations arising under onerous 
contracts are recognised and measured as 
provisions with charge to statement of profit and 
loss. An onerous contract is considered to exist 
where the Group has a contract under which the 
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations 
under the contract exceed the economic benefits 
expected to be received from the contract

2 Contingent liability

A possible obligation that arises from past events 
and the existence of which will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of 
one or more uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the enterprise are disclosed 
as contingent liability and not provided for. 
Such liability is not disclosed if the possibility of 
outflow of resources is remote.

3 Contingent assets

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises 
from past events and whose existence will 
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the 
entity. Contingent assets are not recognised 
but disclosed only when an inflow of economic 
benefits is probable.

2.25 Dividend distribution to equity shareholders of the 
group

The Group recognises a liability to make dividend 
distributions to its equity holders when the 
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no 
longer at its discretion. As per the corporate laws in 
India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved 
by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is 
recognised directly in equity.

In case of Interim Dividend, the liability is recognised 
on its declaration by the Board of Directors.
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3.1 stanDarDs issueD But not eFFectiVe
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new 
standard or amendments to the existing standards 
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, 
MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from 
01 April, 2022, as below:

Ind AS 16 – Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds 
beflore intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from 
deducting from the cost of property, plant and 
equipment amounts received from selling items 
produced while the Company is preparing the asset  
for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise 
such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. 
The Group does not expect the amendments to have 
any impact in its recognition of its property, plant and 
equipment in its financial statements.

 Ind AS 37 – Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets – Onerous Contracts - Costs of 
Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of 
fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate 
directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly 
to a contract can either be incremental costs of 
fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct 
labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that 
relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment 
is essentially a clarification and the Company does 
not expect the amendment to have any impact in its 
financial statements. The Group has evaluated the 
amendment and expect the amendment to have no 
impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 103 – business Combination - Reference to 
Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition 
as part of applying the acquisition method, the 
identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities assumed 
must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in 
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 
under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual 
Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These 
changes do not significantly change the requirements 
of Ind AS 103. The Group does not expect the 
amendment to have any significant impact in its 
financial statements.

Ind AS 107 – Financial Instruments - Annual 
Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes 
when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in 
assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. 
The Group does not expect the amendment to have 
any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 116 – Leases  - Annual Improvements to Ind 
AS (2021)

The amendments remove the illustration of the 
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the 
lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion 
regarding the treatment of lease incentives that 
might arise because of how lease incentives were 
described in that illustration. The Group does not 
expect the amendment to have any significant impact 
in its financial statements.

4 critical accounting JuDgements anD KeY
sources oF estimation uncertaintY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, 
management of the Group is required to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not 
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on historical 
experience and other factors that are considered 
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are 
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the 
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that 
period, or in the period of the revision and future 
periods if the revision affects both current and future 
periods. Detailed information about each of these 
estimates and judgements is included in relevant 
notes together with information about the basis of 
calculation for each affected line item in the financial 
statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements 
are:

Estimation of current tax and deferred tax expense  
- Note 29

Estimates used for impairment of transmission license 
- Note 31

Assessment of lease classification in respect of long 
term power purchase agreement  - Note 32 (I) (c)

Judgement to estimate the amount of provision 
required or to determine required disclosure related 
to litigation and claims against the Group  - Note 33

Estimation of defined benefit obligation - Note 37

For the purpose of captilisation of borrowing cost,  
substantial time is defined as  time  required  for 
commissioning of the assets considering industry  
benchmarks/MERC tariff regulations.   

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. 
They are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectations of future events that 
may have a financial impact on the Group and that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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5a rigHt oF use 

(` in Crores)

Particulars right of use

 land  Building  right of Way  total 

gross carrying amount 

As at 01 April, 2020  13.75  129.30  40.16  183.21 

Additions  -    14.14  -    14.14 

Derecognition  -    4.78  -    4.78 

closing gross carrying amount as on 31 march, 2021  13.75  138.66  40.16  192.57 

accumulated amortisation & impariment

As at 01 April, 2020  0.32  23.80  1.80  25.92 

Amortisation charge of the year  0.36  22.99  1.81  25.16 

Derecognition  -    -    -    -   

closing accumulated amortisation as on 31 march, 2021  0.68  46.79  3.61  51.08 

net carrying amount - 31 march, 2021  13.07  91.87  36.55  141.49 

gross carrying amount 

As at 01 April, 2021  13.75  138.66  40.16  192.57 

Additions  510.32  -    -    510.32 

Derecognition  -    36.57  -    36.57 

closing gross carrying amount as on 31 march, 2022  524.07  102.09  40.16  666.32 

accumulated amortisation & impariment

As at 01 April, 2021  0.68  46.79  3.61  51.08 

Amortisation charge of the year  3.63  19.74  3.02  26.39 

Derecognition  -    3.94  -    3.94 

closing accumulated amortisation as on 31 march, 2022  4.31  62.59  6.63  73.53 

net carrying amount - 31 march, 2022  519.76  39.50  33.53  592.79 

5B  intangiBle assets

(` in Crores)

Particulars   computer 
software  

 transmission 
license  

 total 

gross carrying amount

As at 001 April, 2020  24.20  981.62  1,005.82 

Additions  18.94  -    18.94 

Disposal  -    -    -   

closing gross carrying amount as on 31 march, 2021  43.14  981.62  1,024.76 

accumulated amortisation & impairment

As at 01 April, 2020  14.24  -    14.24 

Amortisation charge for the year  6.22  -    6.22 

Eliminated on disposal of assets  -    -    -   

closing accumulated amortisation as on 31 march, 2021  20.46  -    20.46 

net carrying amount - 31 march, 2021  22.68  981.62  1,004.30 

gross carrying amount

As at 001 April, 2021  43.14  981.62  1,024.76 

Additions  49.51  -    49.51 
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Particulars   computer 
software  

 transmission 
license  

 total 

Disposal  -    -    -   

closing gross carrying amount as on 31 march, 2022  92.65  981.62  1,074.27 

accumulated amortisation & impariment

As at 001 April, 2021  20.46  -    20.46 

Amortisation charge for the year  15.62  -    15.62 

Eliminated on disposal of assets  -    -    -   

closing accumulated amortisation as on 31 march, 2022  36.08  -    36.08 

net carrying amount - 31 march, 2022  56.57  981.62  1,038.19 

notes: 

(i)  The above Intangible Assets are other than internally generated Intangible Assets.    

(ii)  Transmission License was acquired as part of the business acquisition. The License is valid for 25 years 
from 16 August, 2011 to 15 August, 2036. The license can be further extended at minimal cost, considering 
similar extensions have happened in the past. Based on an analysis of all of the relevant factors, the license is 
considered by the Company as having an indefinite useful life, as there is no foreseeable limit to the period over 
which the transmission business related assets are expected to generate net cash inflows for the Company. 

(iii)  Further during the year, the Company had entered into memorandum of understanding in name of the 
Company with M/s. Superheights Infraspace Private Limited (SIPL) (related party) for an amount of ` 510.00 
Crores towards acquiring leasehold rights of land parcel at BKC, Mumbai for construction of Extra High Voltage 
(EHV) Substation to meet the incremental load requirement. The Company has obtained possession of the said 
land after giving capital advance of ` 431.00 Crores and commenced substantial pre-construction activities.   
The leasehold land amounting to ` 510.00 Crores is included in the right of use assets. The Company will 
enter into formal lease agreement on completion of the construction of the substation as per the applicable 
regulatory requirements.    

(iv)  Transmission License is pledged as security with the Lenders against borrowings.

(` in Crores)

Depreciation / amortisation For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

Depreciation on Tangible Assets  612.82  613.18 

Amortisation on Intangible Assets  15.62  6.22 

Amortisation on Right of Use  26.39  25.16 

total  654.83  644.56 

Less : Transferred to Capital work in progress  (3.25)  -   

Net depreciation charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss         Total  651.58  644.56 
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5c caPital WorK-in-Progress

(a) capital-work-in progress ageing schedule:

(` in Crores)

Particulars amount in cWiP for a period of  total 

<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years  > 3 years 

as at 31 march, 2022

- Projects in progress  387.63  54.52  8.62  36.98  487.75 

- Projects temporarily suspended  0.22  0.87  0.95  0.15  2.19 

total  387.85  55.39  9.57  37.13  489.94 

as at 31 march, 2021

- Projects in progress  309.55  28.64  23.51  24.56  386.26 

- Projects temporarily suspended  0.21  0.51  0.07  0.09  0.88 

total  309.76  29.15  23.58  24.65  387.14 

(b) capital-work-in progress, which has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan: 

(` in Crores)

cWiP to be completed in  total 

<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years  > 3 years 

as at 31 march, 2022

- Projects in progress

220kV 120MVAR Reactor at AEML Gorai  0.19  -    -    -    0.19 

- Projects temporarily suspended

Low Tension network projects  0.17  -    -    0.17 

total  0.36  -    -    -    0.36 

as at 31 march, 2021

- Projects in progress

Low Tension network projects  0.15  -    -    -    0.15 

- Projects temporarily suspended

Low Tension network projects  0.25  -    -    -    0.25 

total  0.40  -    -    -    0.40 

Cost Overruns upto (+-) 10% are envisaged by the management’s original plan, and hence not considered in above table.

(c) capital-work-in progress, whose completion is overdue compared to its original plan:

(`in Crores)

cWiP to be completed in  total 

<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years  > 3 years 

as at 31 march, 2022

- Projects in progress

Main Plant DPR Jobs  0.23  -    -    -    0.23 

Main Plant Non DPR Jobs  0.01  -    -    -    0.01 

11KV Substation jobs  0.06  -    -    -    0.06 

Receiving Station Jobs  0.82  -    -    -    0.82 

Low Tension Network jobs  0.02  -    -    -    0.02 

Others Non DPR Jobs  0.06  -    -    -    0.06 
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(` in Crores)

cWiP to be completed in  total 

<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years  > 3 years 

- Projects temporarily suspended

Receiving Station Jobs  0.05  -    -    -    0.05 

total  1.25  -    -    -    1.25 

As at 31 March, 2021

- Projects in progress

Main Plant DPR Jobs  0.68  -    -    -    0.68 

- Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   

total  0.68  -    -    -    0.68 

Time Overruns due to delay in statutory approvals and right of way issues, and approved by the management’s 
revised plan are not considered in above table.

5D  intangiBle assets unDer DeVeloPment aging scHeDule:

 (a) intangible assets under Development ageing schedule:

(` in Crores)

Particulars amount in cWiP for a period of  total 

<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years  > 3 years 

as at 31 march, 2022

- Projects in progress  -    -    -    -    -   

- Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   

total  -    -    -    -    -   

as at 31 march, 2021

- Projects in progress  12.76  2.65  -    -    15.41 

- Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   

total  12.76  2.65  -    -    15.41 

(b)  intangible assets under Development, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its 
original plan:

(` in Crores)

cWiP to be completed in  total 

<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years  > 3 years 

as at 31 march, 2022  -    -    -    -    -   

as at 31 march, 2021  -    -    -    -    -   

6 inVestments

 6.a non-current investments (` in Crores)

Face Value 
of ` unless 
otherwise 

specifie

no of shares  as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

(` in crores) (` in crores)

investment in government securities at 
amortised cost
contingency reserve investments (quoted)
contingency reserve investments (quoted)
7.16% Central Government of India - 2050 100 (100) 1,87,50,000  201.78  202.07 
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Face Value 
of ` unless 
otherwise 

specifie

no of shares  as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

(` in crores) (` in crores)

(1,87,50,000)
9.23% Central Government of India - 2043 100 (100) 2,20,000  2.84  2.88 

(2,20,000)
total  204.62  204.95 
aggregate market Value of quoted 
investments  188.31  198.81 
aggregate carrying Value of quoted 
investments  204.62  204.95 
aggregate amount of impairment in the value 
of investments  -    -   

 6.B current investments

Face Value 
of  ` unless 
otherwise 

specifie

no of units  as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

(` in crores) (` in crores)

contingency reserve investments

Investment in Tresury Bills at FVTPL (Quoted) 
100 
(Nil)

25,00,000 
(Nil)  24.84  -   

 24.84  -   
aggregate carrying Value of unquoted 
investments  24.84  -   
aggregate market Value of unquoted 
investments  24.84  -   

7 loans   - at amortiseD cost

Particulars  non-current current 
 as at  

31 march, 2022 
as at 

31 march, 2021
as at 

31 march, 2022
as at 

31 march, 2021
(` in crores) (` in crores) (` in crores) (` in crores)

Housing loans to employee against 
hypothecation of the property 
(Secured, considered good)

 20.17  26.32 3.49  3.74 

Inter Corporate Deposit given to related party 
(Unsecured, considered good)  1,040.00  1,040.00  -   -

Loans Given 
(Unsecured, considered good) - - -  6.05 

Loans to employees   
(Unsecured, considered good)  8.77  7.52 3.61  2.98 

 1,068.94  1,073.84  7.10  12.77 

type of Borrowers amount of loan or advance  
in the nature of loan  

outstanding

Percentage to the total 
loans and advances  

in the nature of loans

 as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

 as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

(` in crores) (` in crores) (` in crores) (` in crores)

Promoter  -    -    -    -   
Director  -    -    -    -   
Key Managerial Personnel  0.62  0.18 0.06% 0.02%
Related Party  1,040.00  1,040.00 96.65% 95.71%
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(i)  Loans to Key Managerial Personnels are not repayable on demand and has defined repayments schedule and 
as per the Company’s Employees Loan Policy 

(ii)  Inter Corporate Deposit given to related party is for a period of 3 years and repayable on demand or on 
maturity of 3 years wichever is erlier. 

8 otHer Financial assets - at amortiseD cost

(` in Crores)

Particulars  non-current current
 as at  

31 march, 2022 
 as at  

31 march, 2021 
 as at  

31 march, 2022 
 as at  

31 march, 2021 
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise 
stated)
Security Deposits - Unsecured

Considered Good  49.54  18.70  -    -   
Considered doubtful  1.05  1.05  -    -   

 50.59  19.75  -    -   
Less : Provision For Doubtful Deposits  (1.05)  (1.05)  -    -   
total  49.54  18.70  -    -   
*Fixed Deposit with Banks  516.34  477.99  -    -   
#Derivative instruments designated in hedge 
accounting relationship (Refer Note No. 39)  165.25  143.13  -    -   

Unbilled Revenue  -    -    507.56  491.10 
Other Financial Assets  -    -    116.03  -   

 731.13  639.82  623.59  491.10 

note :  

*Represents deposits towards Debt Service Reserve Account (DSRA), Capex Reserve Account (CRA) and Margin money. 

#Refer footnote to Note 17 for security/charges created on hedging instruments.   

 9a. income tax assets (net)

 as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

Income Tax Assets (net)  4.00  3.93 
 4.00  3.93 

 9b current tax liabilities (` in Crores)

 as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

Current Tax Liabilities  2.13  -   
 2.13  -   

10 otHer assets (unsecured, considered good)

(` in Crores)

non-current current
as at 

31 march, 2022
as at 

31 march, 2021
as at 

31 march, 2022
as at 

31 march, 2021
Advance to Suppliers  -    -    125.18  366.43 
Balances with Government authorities  -    -    0.05  4.51 
Prepaid Expenses  1.32  2.72  16.84  8.81 
#Capital advances  69.10  283.50  -    -   
Advance to Employees  2.03  2.34  4.19  5.74 

 72.45  288.56  146.26  385.49 

# Capital Advance  of ` 271.00 Crores given to Sunbourne Developers Private Limited (SDPL) (related party) towards 
property in BKC in earlier years is returned on cancellation of relevant agreement during the year.
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11 inVentories (stated at lower of cost and net realisable Value)

(` in Crores)

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

Fuel  127.40  128.06 
Fuel - In Transit  35.83  19.06 
Stores & spares  41.26  46.38 

 204.49  193.50 

Above inventories are pledged as security with the Lenders against borrowings (Refer Note No 17).

12 traDe receiVaBles

(` in Crores)

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

(unsecured otherwise stated)  450.49  534.54 
Unsecured, considered good  35.36  41.75 
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk  1.39  1.39 
Credit Impaired  487.24  577.68 
Less : Provision for doubtful Trade receivables  (1.39)  (1.39)

 485.85  576.29 

note :

(i)     The Company holds security deposit in respect of trade receivables - Refer Note No 20    
      

(ii)    Above trade receivables are pledged as security with the Lenders against borrowings (Refer Note No 17).  
        

(iii)   As at 31 March, 2022 - ` 77.15 Crores (31 March, 2021 : ` 69.55 Crores) is due from Maharashtra State Electricity 
Transmission Company Limited and ` 43.70 Crores (31 March, 2021 : ` 49.51 Crores) is due from Municipal 
Corporation of Greater Mumbai which represents Company’s large customer who owes more than 5% of the 
total balance of trade receivables. 

(iv)  The average credit period for the Company’s receivables from its transmission and distribution (including street 
light maintenance ) business is in the range of 15 to 30 days. No interest or delayed payment is charged on 
trade receivables till the due date. Thereafter, one time delayed payment charges at the rate of 1.25% & interest 
after 30 / 60 days from bill date is charged in the range of 12% to 15% per annum 

(v)   In case of transmission business, regulator approved tariff is receivable from long-term transmission customers 
(LTTCs) and Discoms that are highly rated companies or government parties. Counterparty credit risk with 
respect to these receivables is very minimal. 

(vi)  The Company considers for impairment its receivables from customers in its Mumbai distribution business. 
The risk of recovery in these businesses is reduced to the extent of security deposits already collected and 
held as collateral. Balance amount receivable over and above the deposit is assessed for expected credit loss 
allowances. The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance 
for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss 
experienced and adjusted for forward- looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on 
ageing of the days the receivables are due. 

12.1 trade receivables ageing schedule

Particulars outstanding for following periods from due date of receipt
not Due less than  

6 months
6 months 

- 1 year
1-2 years 2-3 

years
more than 

3 years
total

as at 31 march, 2022 
(i)     Undisputed Trade receivables – 

considered good  244.67  160.47  1.97  40.61  -    -    447.72 
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Particulars outstanding for following periods from due date of receipt
not Due less than  

6 months
6 months 

- 1 year
1-2 years 2-3 

years
more than 

3 years
total

(ii)    Undisputed Trade Receivables 
– which have significant 
increase in credit risk  6.25  18.08  3.87  7.12  -    -    35.32 

(iii)   Undisputed Trade Receivables 
– credit impaired  -    -    -    1.39  -    -    1.39 

(iv)   Disputed Trade Receivables 
considered good  0.60  1.66  0.36  0.15  -    -    2.77 

(v)    Disputed Trade Receivables - 
which have significant increase 
in credit risk  0.01  0.03  -    -    -    -    0.04 

(vi)   Disputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(vii) Provision for Doubtful Debts  -    -    -   (1.39)  -    -    (1.39)
total  251.53  180.24  6.20  47.88  -    -    485.85 
as at 31 march, 2021
(i)    Undisputed Trade receivables – 

considered good  187.16  260.57  83.25  0.92  -    -    531.90 
(ii)   Undisputed Trade Receivables – 

which have significant increase 
in credit risk  2.67  19.39  8.70  10.98  -    -    41.74 

(iii)   Undisputed Trade Receivables 
– credit impaired  -    -    1.39  -    -    -    1.39 

(iv)   Disputed Trade Receivables 
considered good  0.87  1.15  0.33  0.29  -    -    2.64 

(v)   Disputed Trade Receivables - 
which have significant increase 
in credit risk  -    0.01  -    -    -    -    0.01 

(vi)   Disputed Trade Receivables – 
credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(vii) Provision for Doubtful Debts  -    -   (1.39)  -    -    -    (1.39)
total  190.70  281.12  92.28  12.19  -    -    576.29 

 12.2 movement in the allowance for doubtful trade receivables

 as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

(` in Crores) (` in Crores)
Balance at the beginning of the year  1.39  64.70 
Add/(Less) : Provision made / (Written off) during the year (net of recoveries)  -   (63.31)
Balance at the end of the year  1.39  1.39 

 The concentration of credit risk is very limited due to the fact that the large customers are mainly government 
bodies / departments and remaining customer base is large and widely dispersed and secured with security deposit.

13 casH anD casH equiValents - at amortiseD cost

(` in Crores)

 as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

Balances with banks 
- In current accounts  80.20  105.05 
- Fixed Deposits  -    20.00 
Cash On Hand  0.80  2.40 
Cheques / Drafts On Hand  9.10  24.97 
total cash & cash equivalents as per statement of cash Flows  90.10  152.42 
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reconciliation of liabilities from Financing activities

Particulars   as at  
01 april, 2021 

cash flows non-cash 
transaction

 as at  
31 march, 2022 Proceeds repayment

Non-current Borrowings  
(including Current Maturities of Non-
current Borrowings)  10,589.15  2,347.90  (1,404.41) 424.04  11,956.68 
Current Borrowings 
(Excluding Bank Overdraft)  883.35  1,535.54  (2,418.89) - -
total  11,472.50  3,883.44  (3,823.30) 424.04  11,956.68 

reconciliation of liabilities from Financing activities   

Particulars   as at  
01 april, 2020 

cash flows non-cash 
transaction

 as at  
31 march, 2021 Proceeds repayment

Non-current Borrowings  
(including Current Maturities of Non-
current Borrowings)  10,184.03  778.66  (33.33) (340.21)  10,589.15 
Current Borrowings    
(Excluding Bank Overdraft)  985.31  3,673.70  (3,775.66) -  883.35 
total  11,169.34  4,452.36  (3,808.99) (340.21)  11,472.50 

note: :  
Note : Non-cash transactions represents movement in revaluation of foreign currency borrowings.

14 BanK Balance otHer tHan casH anD casH equiValents - at amortiseD cost

(` in Crores)
 as at  

31 march, 2022 
 as at  

31 march, 2021 
*** Bank Deposits with Original Maturity of more than 3 months but less than 
12 months 
(Towards Debt Service Reserve Account)

 624.48  886.56 

 624.48  886.56 

*** Includes deposits placed towards Margin Money and Debt Service Reserve Account (DSRA) amounting to ` Nil 
(31 March, 2021: ` 3.70 Crores). 

15 sHare caPital

(` in Crores)
 as at  

31 march, 2022 
 as at  

31 march, 2021 
authorised share capital 
5,00,00,00,000 (5,00,00,00,000) equity shares of ` 10 each.  5,000.00  5,000.00 

 5,000.00  5,000.00 
issued, subscribed and Paid-up share capital
40,20,23,535 (4,02,08,23,535) fully paid up equity shares of ` 10 each.  4,020.82  4,020.82 

 4,020.82  4,020.82 

a. reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year  
equity shares  as at  

31 march, 2022 
 as at  

31 march, 2021 
 no. shares  no. shares 

At the beginning of the Year  4,02,08,23,535  4,02,08,23,535 
Issued during the year  -    -   
Outstanding at the end of the year  4,02,08,23,535  4,02,08,23,535 

 Details of shares alloted for consideration other than cash    

During the year ended 31 March, 2020 62,07,73,535 numbers Equity Shares of ` 10 each at a premium of ` 1.94 per 

share, have been issued through Preferential allotment to Parent Company on conversion of intercorporate deposit 

(including interest accrued) ` 460.25 Crores and unsecured perpetual Instrument.
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b. terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares 
is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend if proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the 
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company the holders of 
the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential 
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

c. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company 
equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid as at 31 march, 2022 as at 31 march, 2021

no. shares % held no. shares % held
Adani Transmission Limited and its nominees 
(Promoters) ##  3,01,15,96,827 74.90%  3,01,15,96,827 74.90%

Qatar Holding LLC##  1,00,92,26,708 25.10%  1,00,92,26,708 25.10%
 4,02,08,23,535 100.00%  4,02,08,23,535 100.00%

## Shares Pledged

No. of equity  shares pledged to Lenders - 
100% (PY 100%)  4,02,08,23,529  4,02,08,23,529 

In terms of Shareholders Agreement entered into between the Company, Adani Transmission Limited (“ATL”) and 
Qatar Holding (QH), a subsidiary of Qatar Investment Authority (“QIA”) during 2019-20, QH had acquired from ATL 
25.1% stake in the Company and had provided Shareholders Affiliated Debt of US$ 282 million to the Company.

15a instrument entirelY equitY in nature 

(` in Crores)
as at 

31 march, 2022
as at 

31 march, 2021
10,471,850 (Nil) 11% Optionally convertible debentures classified as Equity of  
` 100 each  104.72  -   

 104.72  -   

The Group has issued unlisted unsecured 11% optionally convertible debentures (OCD) of nominal value of ̀  100 each 
to WRSS XXI (A) Transco Limited and Lakadia Banaskantha Transco Limited, which shall be optionally converted at 
the option of the issuer in to equity shares of the Company after expiry of 4 years from 29 November, 2021, the date 
of allotment or at the option of holder in event of default. The holder can call upon the issuer to redeem OCD in full 
on completion of 4 years and the issuer also is entitled to voluntarily redeem OCD in full upon mutual discussion and 
agreement with the holders. The OCD rank pari pasu over other but will be subordinated to the any Senior Secured 
Loan availed by the Company. Interest on OCD is repayable on maturity. The OCD amounting to ` 159.38 Crores has 
been fair valued at the balance sheet date and accordingly ` 54.66 Crores has been classified as debt component 
and ` 104.72 Crores as equity component..

16 otHer equitY

(` in Crores)

 as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

a. capital reserve  230.78  230.78 

Capital Reserve represents the gain arising on accounting of business combination, wherein on the acquisition-
date the net amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed exceeded the consideration 
amount paid.           

(` in Crores)
b. effective portion of cashflow Hedge as at 

31 march, 2022
as at 

31 march, 2021
Opening Balance  (113.90)  (13.24)
Add : Effective portion of cash flow hedge for the year  (151.87)  (100.66)
Closing Balance  (265.77)  (113.90)
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The cash flow hedging reserve represents the cumulative effective portion of gains or losses arising on changes in 
fair value of designated portion of hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges. The cumulative gain or 
loss arising on changes in fair value of the designated portion of the hedging instruments that are recognised and 
accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve will be reclassified to profit or loss only when the 
hedged transaction affects the profit or loss, or included as a basis adjustment to the non-financial hedged item.

c. contingency reserve Fund as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

Opening Balance  219.69  196.95 
Transfer from Retained Earnings  25.74  22.74 
Closing Balance  245.43  219.69 
As per the provisions of MERC MYT Regulations read with Tariff orders passed by MERC, the Company being a 
Distribution and Transmission Licensee, makes an appropriation to the Contingency Reserve Fund to meet with 
certain exigencies. Investments have been made in Securities issued by Government of India.

d. share Premium acount  120.43  120.43 

Securities Premium Reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares and is utilised in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

e. retained earnings as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

(Retained Earnings are the profits of the Company earned till date net of 
appropriations)
Opening Balance  232.53  (31.41)
Add : Profit for the year  122.16  259.17 
Other Comprehensive Income arising from remeasurement  
of Defined Benefit Plans(net of tax)  14.09  27.51 

Transfer to Contingency Reserve Fund  (25.74)  (22.74)
Closing Balance  343.04  232.53 
total  673.91  689.53 

17 BorroWings (at amortised cost)

non-current $$$ current*
as at  

31 march, 2022
as at  

31 march, 2021
as at  

31 march, 2022
as at  

31 march, 2021
secured

Rupee Term Loans from Banks - 8.50%  -    33.33  -    33.33 
External Commercial Borrowings in 
Foreign Currency

Senior Secured Note - 3.949%  7,512.41  7,235.63  -    -   
Term Loans from Banks - 2.99938% 
(3.9466%)  -    1,248.77  -    -   

Sustainability Linked Notes - 3.867%  2,246.10 
unsecured

External Commercial Borrowings in 
Foreign Currency 

Shareholders Affiliated Debts - 6.365%  2,106.14  2,026.97  -    -   
@Inter Corporate Deposit from related party  37.37  11.12  -    -   
@@ 11% Optionally Convertible Debentures  54.66  -    -    -   
total  11,956.68  10,555.82  -    33.33 
* Amount disclosed under the head “Current Borrowings” (Refer Note 23)

$$$ Incudes processing fees netted of ` 125.72 Crores (31 March, 2021 - ` 140.76 Crores)    

@  The inter corporate deposit outstanding on 31 March, 2021 is at 11.05% from a fellow subsidiary company and is 
repayable by July 2027. (31 March, 2021: from parent compnay at 11.00% and repayable by March 2023)

@@ Optionally convertible debentures includes accrued interest of ` 0.40 Crores as per terms of the agreement. 
Also refer note 15a for rate of interest and terms of repayment.
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notes

Borrowings security terms of repayment of 
Borrowings

Rupee Term 
Loans from Banks 
- 8.50% 

a)      a first pari passu mortgage over certain Identified Immovable 
Properties;

b)      a first pari passu charge on the movable assets of the Project (both 
present and future); 

c)      a first pari passu charge on all book debts, operating cash flows, 
receivables (excluding Past Period Regulatory Assets, monies in the 
Debenture Liquidity Account and the post distribution cash flows), 
commissions or revenues whatsoever arising out of the Project (both 
present and future); 

d)      a first pari passu charge on the Accounts under the Project Accounts 
Deed (except the Excluded Accounts (which means the AEML 
PPRA Account, the Debenture Liquidity Account, each of the AEML 
Post Distribution Cash Flow Accounts; any accounts opened for 
the purpose of managing any Excluded Cash Flows; and the AEML 
Distributions Account)) and amounts lying to the credit of such 
Accounts (both present and future); 

e)      a first pari passu assignment in relation to Transmission License and 
Distribution License, subject to approval from the MERC; 

f)       a pledge over 100%  of the entire paid up equity and preference share 
capital of the Company; 

g)      a non-disposal undertaking over immovable properties other than 
certain identified immoveable properties; 

h)      a non-disposal undertaking over the immoveable and moveable 
assets (including all book debts, operating cash flows, receivables, 
commissions or revenues whatsoever) of the Service Company (both 
present and future); and 

i)       a non-disposal undertaking over 100% of the equity and preference

share capital of the Service Company. 

In addition to the aforesaid, the Collateral shall also include such security 
interest as may be required to be created by other group entities of the 
Issuer in the future, and such collateral may be shared in the same manner 
as aforementioned with other lenders of the Company, and such future 
obligors.

Ranking of Security

The Collateral will be a first charge ranking pari passu among the debt 
security holders, without any preference or priority and shall rank pari passu 
with all the senior secured debt of the Company in accordance with the 
Senior Secured Note Documents and the intercreditor agreement.

During the year, the Company 
prepaid Rupee term loans from 
Banks in full. As at 31 March, 2021, 
the terms of repayment were : 
two equal annual instalments of  
` 33.33 Crores starting from March 
2021.

Senior Secured 
Note - 3.949% 
(and related 
hedging 
instruments)

By way of bullet payment in 
February 2030 with an obligation 
to prepay the debt on occurrence 
of certain events. The Company 
can voluntarily prepay the Bond on 
payment of premium.

Term Loans from 
Banks - 2.99938% 
(3.9466%) (and 
related hedging 
instruments)

During the year, the Company 
prepaid term loans from Banks. 
As at 31 March, 2021, the terms of 
repayment were as  given below:  
By way of bullet payment with an 
obligation to prepay the debt on 
occurrence of certain events. The 
Company can voluntarily prepay 
the Term Loan either in full or 
part. 
The Future annual repayment 
obligations on principal amount 
are as under:- 
a)    1 Installment amounitng to  ` 

511.77 Crores in 2022-23. 

b)    2 Installment of amounting to 
` 767.65 Crores in 2022-23.

Impact of recognition of 
borrowings at amortised cost 
using effestive interest method 
was ` (30.65) Crores. 

Sustainability 
Linked Notes 
- 3.87% (and 
related hedging 
instruments)

By way of bullet payment in 
July 2031 with an obligation to 
prepay the debt on occurrence of 
certain events. The Company can 
voluntarily prepay the Bond on 
payment of premium.

Buyers credit As at 31 March, 2022 there are no 
working capital and buyers credit 
outstanding. For working capital 
or buyers credit outstanding on 31 
March, 2021, the rate of interest 
for Secured  loans from banks 
ranged from 1.55% to 5.7%.

Working capital 
short term loan 

Shareholders 
Affiliated Debts - 
6.365%

(i)         First-ranking fixed charge over all its present and future right, title, 
benefit and interest in the Excluded Loan Accounts

(ii)      First-ranking floating charge over all of its present and future right, title, 
benefit and  interest in the equity distribution account

Shareholders Affiliated Debts 
are repayable commencing from 
February 2027 through February 
2040 with an obligation to 
prepay the debt on occurrence of 
certain events. The Company can 
voluntarily prepay the debt on 
payment of premium.

Working capital 
short term loan 

Unsecured loans from banks As at 31 March, 2022 there are no 
working capital outstanding. For 
working capital outstanding on 31 
March, 2021, the rate of interest 
for Unsecured loans from banks 
was 4.25%
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18 traDe PaYaBles

(` in Crores)

non-current current 
as at  

31 march, 2022
 as at  

31 march, 2021 
as at  

31 march, 2022
 as at  

31 march, 2021 
(A)   total outstanding dues of micro 

enterprises and small enterprises; and  -    -    25.07  28.99 
(B)   total outstanding dues of creditors 

other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises.  32.22  31.93  1,465.88  1,161.15 

 32.22  31.93  1,490.95  1,190.14 

This information as required to be disclosed under Micro and Small Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues 
(including interest on outstanding dues), which are outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date. The above information 
has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the 
Company. This has been relied upon by the auditors. 

(` in Crores)

as at  
31 march, 2022

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

(a)   the principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each 
accounting year (including payable for Property, Plant & equipment)  104.41  28.41 

(b)   Interest due on principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the 
end of each accounting year  0.62  0.58 

(c)      the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), 
along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 
appointed day during each accounting year. - -

(d)  the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 
year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;  0.62  0.58 

(e)   the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 
accounting year; and  0.62  0.58 

(f)  the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually 
paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible 
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006.  0.62  0.58 

trade Payables ageing schedule
Particulars outstanding for following periods from due date of payment*

not Due <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years more than 
3 years

 total 

as at 31 march, 2022
(a)   MSME  9.77  9.49  2.10  2.46  1.25  25.07 
(b)   Others  160.59  1,058.51  127.80  49.58  9.55  1,406.03 
(c)   Disputed dues – MSME  -    -    -    -    -    -   
(d)   Disputed dues - Others  -    92.07  -    -    -    92.07 
total  170.36  1,160.07  129.90  52.04  10.80  1,523.17 
as at 31 march, 2021 
(a) MSME  18.15  8.53  1.56  0.43  0.32  28.99 
(b) Others  57.22  807.06  263.92  23.56  41.32  1,193.08 
(c) Disputed dues – MSME  -    -    -    -    -    -   
(d) Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -    -   
total  75.37  815.59  265.48  23.99  41.64  1,222.07 
* Ageing for provisions have been considered based on transaction date.
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19 lease liaBilities

(` in Crores)

non-current current

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

Lease Obligation  26.25  50.70  18.59  42.89 

 26.25  50.70  18.59  42.89 

20 otHer Financial liaBilities (at amortised cost)

(` in Crores)

non-current current

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  1.58  0.43  113.91  99.24 

Payable towards purchase of PPE  -    -    316.64  191.58 

Security Deposit from Consumers  -    -    471.70  474.80 

Regulatory Liabilities other than Distribution  -    -    2.94  6.53 

Security Deposit from Customers / Vendors  0.18  -    15.25  7.99 

Other Financial Liabilities  -    -    -    6.61 

#Derivative Instruments designated in hedge 
accounting relationship  66.02  63.12  57.07  31.07 

 67.78  63.55  977.51  817.82 

 # Refer footnote to Note 17 for security/charges created on hedging instruments.

21 ProVisions

(` in Crores)

non-current current

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

Provision for Gratuity  168.77  141.09  34.01  31.96 

Provision for Compensated absences  399.55  396.02  29.11  23.61 

Provision for Other Employment Benefits  18.87  20.01  3.16  2.98 

total  587.19  557.12  66.28  58.55 

22 otHer liaBilities

(` in Crores)

non-current current

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

Deferred Revenue - Service Line Contributions 
from Consumers  245.47  231.77  11.12  9.78 

Statutory dues payable  -    -    215.95  183.38 

Advances From Customer  -    51.12  66.74  58.39 

Other Payables  -    -    3.18  2.57 

 245.47  282.89  296.99  254.12 
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23 BorroWings (at amortised cost)

(` in Crores)

as at 
31 march, 2022

as at 
31 march, 2021

secured loans from banks

Current maturities of long-term borrowings  -    33.33 

Buyers credit  -    92.35 

Working capital short term loan   -    486.00 

unsecured loans

Working capital short term loan   -    305.00 

 -    916.68 

 security and rate of interest

 (i)   For Security of Current maturities of long-term borrowings,Short Term Loans, Buyers Credit and Working Capital 
Loans - (Refer Note No 17)          

 (ii)  As at 31 March, 2022 there are no working capital or short term loans or buyers credit outstanding. For working 
capital and buyers credit outstanding on 31 March, 2021, the rate of interest for Secured / unsecured  loans 
from banks ranged from 1.55% to 5.70%. 

 (iii)  The Company has been sanctioned working capital from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The 
Company in this regard has been duly submitting with all such banks from whom such facilities are taken, the 
quarterly statements comprising details of said current assets viz. raw material, stores and spares, finished 
goods, advances for power purchases and coal, book debts (including unbilled revenue) and other receivable 
(<90 days) reduced by relevant trade payables (i.e net of provisions, regulatory payables and other payables). 
The said quarterly statements are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company of 
the respective quarters based on draft figures at the point of time of reporting and there are no material 
discrepancies.

24 reVenue From oPerations

(` in Crores)

For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

a)  income from sale of Power and transmission charges 

Income from Sale of Power and Transmission Charges (Net)  6,673.94  5,881.61 

(Less)/Add: Income to be adjusted in future tariff determination (Net)  3.59  21.97 

 6,677.53  5,903.58 

b)  other operating income

Insurance Claim Received  2.55  0.01 

Income in respect of Services rendered  42.04  6.55 

Sale of Coal Rejects / Fly Ash  16.59  8.94 

Street Light Maintenance Charges  141.77  101.83 

Amortisation of Service Line Contribution  10.30  9.22 

Miscellaneous Revenue  17.40  17.51 

 230.65  144.06 

c)  sale of traded goods

Sale of Traded Goods  0.76  1.63 

 0.76  1.63 

total  6,908.94  6,049.27 
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 Details of revenue from contracts with customers (disagrregated by type and nature of prodcut or services)

(` in Crores)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

Income from Sale of Power  6,334.58  5,566.00 

Income from Transmission Charges (Net)  342.95  337.58 

Income in respect of Services rendered  42.04  6.55 

Sale of Coal Rejects / Fly Ash  16.59  8.94 

Street Light Maintainence Charges  141.77  101.83 

Sale of Traded Goods  0.76  1.63 

Add:  Cash  Discount/Rebates  etc  31.29  26.54 

total revenue as per contracted Price  6,909.98  6,049.07 

transaction Price - remaining Performance obligation

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be 
recognised as at the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognise 
these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed 
the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts as the revenue recognised corresponds 
directly with the value to the customer of the entity’s performance completed to date.  

There are no aggregate value of performance obligations that are completely or partially unsatisfied as of 31 March, 
2022, other than those meeting the exclusion criteria mentioned above.

contract Balances 

(` in Crores)

For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

contract assets

Recoverable from Consumers 

Non-current  -    -   

Current  -    -   

Total Contract Assets  -    -   

contract liabilities

Liabilities towards Consumers

Non-current  -    -   

Current  2.94  6.53 

Total Contract Liabilities  2.94  6.53 

receivables

Trade Receivables (Gross)  487.24  577.68 

Unbilled Revenue for passage of time  507.56  491.10 

(Less): Allowance for Doubtful Debts  (1.39)  (1.39)

net receivables  993.41  1,067.39 

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. Contract 
liability is the entity’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the entity has received 
consideration from the customer in advance. Contract assets are transferred to receivables when the rights 
become unconditional and contract liabilities are recognised as revenue as and when the performance obligation 
is satisfied. 
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Significant changes in the contract assets and the contract liabilities balances during the year are as follows :

(` in Crores)
Particulars For the year ended 

31 march, 2022 
For the year ended 

31 march, 2021 
opening Balance
Recoverable from consumers  -    -   
Liabilities towards consumers  116.04  155.47 

A  116.04  155.47 
Income to be adjusted in future tariff determination in respect of earlier 
year 

 -    (9.55)

Income to be adjusted in future tariff determination (Net)  (3.59)  (12.42)
Adjusted on completion of performace obiligation/Others  (42.77)  (17.46)

B  (46.36)  (39.43)
closing Balance
Recoverable from consumers  -    -   
Liabilities towards consumers  69.68  116.04 

(A+B)  69.68  116.04 

25 otHer income

(` in Crores)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

a) interest income
On Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost

Bank Deposits  106.31  98.59 

Overdue Trade Receivables  22.45  30.00 

Contingency Reserve Fund Investment - Non Current  13.30  3.84 

Contingency Reserve Fund Investment - Current  0.53  13.06 

Other Investments  -    23.74 

On Intercorporate Deposits*  114.40  116.87 

Other interest  51.50  47.24 

Interest on Security Deposits - Lease  0.85  0.98 

b) gain/(loss) on investments
Gain On Sale / Fair Value Of Current Investments Measured at FVTPL  1.13  39.73 

Gain On Sale / Fair Value Of Current Investments Measured at FVTPL - 
Contingency Reserve Fund 

 -    1.33 

c) other non-operating income 
Bad Debts Recovery  4.95  3.00 

Sale of Scrap  11.79  8.63 

Rental Income  0.27  0.21 

Delayed Payment Charges  22.90  27.00 

Foreign Exchange Gain (net)  -    4.96 

Profit / (Loss) on Sale of Assets  0.42  1.87 

Incentive Received  1.44 

Sundry credit balances written back  57.41 

Miscellaneous Income  -    0.62 

total  409.65  421.67 

*Interest Income on Inter Corporate Deposit amounting to ` 0.68 Crores (31 March, 2021: ` 0.32 Crores) has been 
taken to capital work in progress.       
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26 emPloYee BeneFits exPenses

(` in Crores)
Particulars For the year ended 

31 march, 2022 
For the year ended 

31 march, 2021 
#Salaries, Wages & Bonus  686.41  784.79 
Contribution To Gratuity  48.07  46.08 
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds  57.52  52.18 
Contribution to Superannuation Fund  7.76  7.96 
Compensated absences  42.00  56.86 
Staff Welfare Expenses  99.02  90.09 

 940.78  1,037.96 
Less : Staff Cost Capitalised  (142.10)  (181.79)
total  798.68  856.17 

#Net of wage provisions no longer required written back of ` 38.74 Crores (31 March, 2021 : Nil).

27  Finance costs

(` in Crores)
Particulars For the year ended 

31 march, 2022 
For the year ended 

31 march, 2021 
a)  interest expense 

 Borrowings -  amortised cost
 Rupee Term Loans  5.14  8.53 
 $ Senior Secured Note   322.04  315.66 
 $ Shareholders Affiliated Debts    138.00  135.66 
 $ External Commercial Borrowings (Note 1 below)  47.99  42.02 
 $ Sustainability Linked Notes  66.12  -   
 Working Capital Loans  44.44  78.32 
 Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Gain(net)-Borrowings (Note 3 below)  155.64  166.80 
 Interest - Hedging Cost  400.24  348.42 
 Interest on Intercorporate Deposit - Parent Company  -    0.46 
 others 
 Security Deposits From Consumers at amortised cost  18.71  21.06 
 Interest on lease obligation  6.25  6.92 
 Interest - Others  0.24  1.48 

 1,204.81  1,125.33 
Less : Interest Cost Capitalised  (45.88)  (30.69)

 1,158.93  1,094.64 
b)  other Borrowing costs 

 Other Finance Cost  1.45  2.34 
 total  1,160.38  1,096.98 

note :

$ In Foreign Currency,

 1 Includes ` 28.45 Crores (31 March, 2021: ` Nil) (unamortised upfront fees) charged off on settlment of External 
Commercial Borrowings.     

 2 The weighted average capitalisation rate on the Company’s general borrowings is 8.76% (31 March, 2021: 
7.98%) per annum.     

 3 Including Mark to Market gain of ` 252.56 Crores (31 March, 2021: loss of ` 512.11 Crores) on Derivative 
Instruments designated in hedge accounting relationship.
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28 otHer exPenses

(` in Crores)
Particulars For the year ended 

31 march, 2022 
For the year ended 

31 march, 2021 
Consumption Of Stores & Spares  56.59  37.82 
Repairs & Maintenance 

 -  Plant & Machinery  367.77  355.36 
 -  Buildings  20.22  17.83 
 -  Others  26.18  13.36 
@Short Term Lease Rental of Land,Building,Plant & Machinery Etc  12.62  11.35 
Vehicle Hire Charges  16.97  19.57 
Rates and Taxes  19.44  20.38 
Legal & Professional Expenses  149.40  118.79 
Directors' Sitting Fees  0.08  0.06 
Bank Charges  6.04  9.62 
@@Payment to Auditors  1.74  1.60 
Communication Expenses  7.96  9.68 
Travelling  & Conveyance Expenses  8.45  10.57 
Insurance Expenses  9.76  23.73 
License fees  1.74  1.65 
Security Charges  31.17  32.25 
Seminar & Training Expenses  3.17  2.10 
Software Expenses  18.15  13.05 
Baddebt Write off  (Refer Note 12.2)  18.31  22.52 
Bill Print/Collection/ Distribution  11.88  9.95 
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Loss(net)  1.20  -   
Call Center Expenses  8.37  3.64 
Donations  0.30  -   
@@@Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses  5.69  3.56 
Electricity Expenses  0.51  0.41 
Printing & Stationery  1.38  1.60 
Advertisement & Publicity  9.26  3.50 
Water charges  3.68  4.17 
Other Miscellaneous Expenses  20.27  14.55 
total  838.30  762.67 

@ Lease Rentals inrespect of low value assets is immaterial.

@@ (i) Payment to auditors

(` in Crores)
For the year ended 

31 march, 2022 
For the year ended 

31 march, 2021 
as auditor:  1.32  1.25 
Statutory Audit Fees  0.14  0.10 
#Other Services  0.01  -   
Out of Pocket Expenses  0.27  0.24 
Applicable taxes   1.74  1.60 

 1.74  1.60 

#Excluding fees of ` 1.25 Crores (plus taxes 0.22 Crores) for services towards Sustainability linked bond issue which 
is netted off in borrowings for purposes of calculating Effective Interest Rate.

@@@ Details of corporate social responsibilities under section 135 of companies act
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Particulars For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

(i)   Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year  5.65  3.56 

(ii)  Total of previous years shortfall amounts  0.72  -   

(iii) Amount of expenditure incurred:

      (a)   Construction or acquisition of any assets  -    -   

      (b)   on purpose other than (a) above  0.28  0.59 

        -    Donation to related party trust (not controlled by the Company)  6.13  2.25 

total amount of expenditure incurred  6.41  2.84 

(iv)  (Excess) / Shortfall at the end of the year -0.04  0.72 

(v)   Provision made towards CSR expenditure  -    0.72 

 (vi)  Reason for shortfall : Nil (31 March, 2021 : Company intended to spend the unutilised amount in subsequent 
year and had deposited the amount with Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility Account)  

 (vii)  Nature of CSR activities : Primary Education, Community Health and Sanitation, Sustainable Livelihood 
Development and Urban / Rural Infrastructure Development.

29 tax exPenses

1 Income Taxes recognised in the statement of profit & loss

(` in Crores)

For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

Current Income Tax  (MAT)  47.78  49.40 

Deferred Tax  101.18  27.75 

 148.96  77.15 

2 income tax recognised in other comprehensive income  

(` in Crores)

For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

Current Income Tax 

-Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans  3.00  5.83 

Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income  3.00  5.83 

Bifurcation of the income tax recognised in other comprehensive income 
into:

Items that will be reclassified to statement of profit and loss  -    -   

Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss  3.00  5.83 

 3.00  5.83 

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit Before Tax        271.12  336.32 

income tax using the company's domestic tax rate  94.74  117.52 

tax effect of :

-  Non deductible Expenses  2.09  1.24 

-  MAT credit not recognised  47.78  49.40 

-  Tax on other Items  4.35  (0.85)

- Deferred Tax Asset on unabsorbed Depreciation in respect of earlier years  -    (90.16)

Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss  148.96  77.15 
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notes

 a The tax rate used for the years 31 March, 2022 and 31 March, 2021 reconciliations above is the corporate tax 

rate of 34.944%  payable by corporate entities in India on taxable profits under the Indian tax law. 

 b The rate used for calculation of Deferred tax is 34.944%, being statutory enacted rate at respective Balance 

Sheet date.      

 c The Union Cabinet on 20 November, 2019 approved the proposal for introducing the Taxation Laws 

(Amendment) Bill, 2019 in order to replace the Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, on 25 November, 2019, the 

Taxation Laws (Amendment) Bill, 2019 (Bill) was introduced which received the assent of the President of India 

on 12 December 2019. The Taxation Laws Amendment Bill  inserted Section 115BAA in the Income Tax Act, 1961 

which provides domestic companies a non-reversible option to pay corporate tax at reduced rates effective 01 

April, 2019 subject to certain conditions. The Company has decided not to avail the benefit provided under the 

above Bill, however the Company would evaluate its option in the future based on business developments.

unrecognised unused tax credits

(` in Crores)
For the year ended 

31 march, 2022 
For the year ended 

31 march, 2021 
Unrecognised Tax Credits  50.78  55.23 

 50.78  55.23 

The expiry of unrecognised unused MAT credits is as described below:

(` in Crores)
as at 

 31 march, 2022
as at  

31 march, 2021
Within One Year  -    -   
Greater than one year, less than five years  -    -   
Greater than five years  194.01  143.23 
No expiry date  -    -   
total  194.01  143.23 

3 Deferred tax

(` in Crores)
For the year ended 

31 march, 2022 
For the year ended 

31 march, 2021 
Deferred tax Assets  1,335.37  1,088.71 
Deferred tax Liabilities  1,514.72  1,166.88 
net Deferred tax assets  / (liabilities)  (179.35)  (78.17)

2021-22

 opening Balance  recognised in 
Profit & Loss 

 closing Balance 

Deferred tax assets in relation to
Allowance for Doubtful Debts, Deposits, Advances and 
property tax payable

 5.67  2.03  7.70 

Provisions for employee benefits and others  201.89  12.69  214.58 
Unabsorbed Depreciation  881.16  231.94  1,113.10 

 1,088.71  246.66  1,335.37 
Deferred tax liabilities in relation to
Property, Plant & Equipment  1,166.88  347.84  1,514.72 

 1,166.88  347.84  1,514.72 
Deferred tax asset/(liability) (net)  (78.17)  (101.18)  (179.35)
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2020-21

 opening Balance  recognised in 
Profit & Loss 

 closing Balance 

Deferred tax assets in relation to

Allowance for Doubtful Debts, Deposits and Advances  -    5.67  5.67 

Provisions for employee benefits and others  -    201.89  201.89 

Unabsorbed Depreciation  764.89  116.27  881.16 

 764.89  323.82  1,088.71 

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to

Property, Plant & Equipment  815.31  351.57  1,166.88 

 815.31  351.57  1,166.88 

Deferred tax asset/(liability) (net)  (50.42)  (27.75)  (78.17)

30 earnings Per sHare (ePs)

(` in Crores)

For the year ended 
31 march, 2022 

For the year ended 
31 march, 2021 

a.     Before net movement in regulatary Deferral Balance

Profit / (Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders  122.16  259.17 

Add/(Less): Net Movement in Regulatory Deferral Balance  682.47  582.81 

Income tax on Regulatory Income / (expense)  (119.24)  (101.83)

Regulatory Income / (expense) (net of tax)  563.23  480.98 

Net Profit / (Net Loss) excluding regulatory Income  (441.07)  (221.81)

Number of Weighted Average Equity  Shares, outstanding during 
the year for basic / diluted EPS

No  4,02,08,23,535  4,02,08,23,535 

Nominal Value of Equity Shares `  10.00  10.00 

Basic / Diluted earnings per share before net movement in 
regulatary Deferral Balance

`  (1.10)  (0.55)

(B) after net movement in regulatary Deferral Balance

Profit / (Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders  122.16  259.17 

Number of Weighted Average Equity  Shares, outstanding during 
the year for basic EPS

No.  4,02,08,23,535  4,02,08,23,535 

Nominal Value of Equity Shares `  10.00  10.00 

Basic / Diluted earnings per share after net movement in 
regulatary Deferral Balance

`  0.30  0.64 

31

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 36 “Impairment of Assets”, Transmission Cash Generating Unit 
(“TCGU”)  which includes carrying value of Transmission License having indefinite useful life being Transmission 
License (` 981.62 Crores),  has been tested for impairment  as at 31 March, 2022 wherein, recoverable amount of 
the TCGU has been determined applying value in use approach. The  value in use of the TCGU has been determined 
using Discounted Cash Flow Method (DCF).

In deriving the  recoverable amount of the TCGU a discount rate ( post tax ) of 9.10% (31 March, 2021: 8.75%) 
per annum  has been used. In arriving at the recoverable amount of the TCGU , financial projections have been 
developed  for 6 years (31 March, 2021: 6 years) and thereafter in perpetuity considering a terminal growth rate of 
1.5% (31 March, 2021: 2%) per annum.
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Based on the results of the TCGU impairment test, the estimated value in use of the TCGU was higher than its 
carrying amount, hence impairment provision recorded during the current year is ` Nil (31 March, 2021 - ` Nil) Crore. 
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which recoverable amount is 
based would not cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the fair value of the Transmission License.

The key assumptions used in determining the recoverable amount of TCGU are as follows :  

 (i) Discount Rate: 9.10% (31 March, 2021: 8.75%) Post-Tax Discount rate has been derived based on current cost 
of borrowing and equity rate of return in line with the current market expectations 

 (ii) Capital expenditure / Capitalisation: Capital expenditure and capitalisation for 6 years (31 March, 2021: 6 years) 
is estimated based on management projections subject to regulatory approval and thereafter ` 500 Crores per 
annum (31 March, 2021: ` 325 Crores per annum)

32 leases

(i) Disclosure under ind as 116 leases:

a) The following is the movement in Lease liabilities during the year ended 31 March, 2022

(` in Crores)

 as at  
31 march, 2022 

as at  
31 march, 2021

opening Balance  93.59  104.02 

Interest on Lease Liabilities  6.25  6.92 

Lease Liabilities on account of Leases entered / terminated during 
the year

 (32.63)  9.36 

Payments of Lease Liabilities / Other Adjustments  (22.37)  (26.71)

Closing Balance (refer note 19)  44.84  93.59 

b) Where the group is a leassee :

The Company has taken office premises on lease. Generally leases are renewed on mutual consent and at 
a prevalent market price and sub lease is restricted.      

Interest Expenses on lease liabilities amounts to ` 6.25 Crores (31 March, 2021 ` 6.92 Crores)  

The expense relating to payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability and recognised 
as expenses in the statemet of profit and loss during the year is as follows :.        
 Low Value leases  -  Immaterial     

 Short-term leases -  ` 12.62 Crores (31 March, 2021  ` 11.35 Crores)

   Total Cash outflow for leases amounts to ` 34.99 Crores (31 March, 2021 ` 38.06 Crores) during the year 
including cash outflow short term and low value leases.

  c) The Group had a 25 year long term Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with Vidharbha Industries Power 
Limited (VIPL), wherein the Group has committed to purchase the entire output generated from VIPL’s 
generating station located at Butibori. In terms of the PPA, the Group subject to a minimum guaranteed 
plant availability (determined on a yearly basis) is liable to pay subject to MERC approval a fixed monthly 
capacity charge and a variable charge towards the cost of fuel.VIPL was obligated to make the plant 
available for generation for a minimum period of time  (determined on a yearly basis) and the option as 
regards the timing of availability was at the discretion of VIPL.

   The Group on assessment of the above arrangement has concluded, that considering  the Group does not 
have the right to direct the use of the asset , the above arrangement does not qualify to be lease under 
IND AS 116.  

   During FY 2019-20, the Group had terminated the above PPA due to non-performance of obligations 
under the PPA by VIPL, such termination has been upheld by MERC  / Appellate Tribunal of Electricity 
(“ATE”). VIPL has filed an appeal before the Hon’ble Supreme Court against the said order issued by the 
ATE. The proceedings are ongoing with the Hon’ble Supreme Court.    
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33 contingent liaBilities anD commitments

(` in Crores)
 as at  

31 march, 2022 
as at  

31 march, 2021
(a) contingent liabilities :
Claims against the Group not probable and hence not acknowledged as 
debts consists of : -
(i)  Demand disputed by the Group relating to Service tax on street light 

maintaince, wheeling charges and cross subsidy surcharges - Refer 
note 3

 353.55  353.55 

(ii)  Claims raised by the Government authorities towards unearned income 
arising on alleged tranfer of certain land parcels - Refer note 3

 127.65  127.65 

(iii)    Way Leave fees claims disputed by the Group relating to rates charged 
- Refer note 3

 28.43  28.43 

(iv) Property related disputes  - Refer note 3  2.59  2.59 
(v) Other claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts.  2.12  2.12 
(vi)  Claims raised by Vidharbha Industries Power Limited (VIPL) in respect 

of increase in fuel cost for the financial year ended 31 March, 2019 - 
Refer Note 3

 1,381.28  1,381.28 

(vii)  Claims pretaining to interest in respect of certain regulatary Liabilities 
-Refer Note 3

 @@  @@ 

(viii) Liability in respect of disposal of bottom Ash  @@  @@ 
(ix) Liability in respect of termination of power purchase lease agreement  @@  @@ 

 1,895.62  1,895.62 

@@ Amount not determinable

notes:

 1 Amounts in respect of employee related claims/disputes, consumer related litigation, regulatory matters is 
not ascertainable.     

 2 Future cash flows in respect of above matters are determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions 
pending at various forums/authorities.     

 3 In terms of the Share Purchase Agreement entered into by the Company, ATL with RINFRA, in the event the 
above matters are decided against the Company and are not recoverable from the consumers, the same 
would be recovered from RINFRA.     

 4 The above Contingent Liabilities to the extent pertaining to Regulated Business, which on unfavourable 
outcome are recoverable from consumers subject to MERC approval.

 The Group, in respect of the above mentioned Contingent Liabilities has assessed that it is only possible but not 
probable that outflow of economic resources will be required. 

(` in Crores)
 as at  

31 march, 2022 
as at  

31 march, 2021
(B) capital commitments :
(i)  Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital 

account and not provided for
712.37  377.37 

 712.37  377.37 

(c) other commitments :

  (i) In terms of the MERC RPO obligation regulations, the Company is required to procure on an annual basis 
a certain quantum of power generated from renewable sources, as at 31 March, 2022 the Company has an 
cumulative outstanding commitment to procure renewable power of 5038 Mu’s (31 March, 2021 - 4256 
Mu’s)

   The Company to meet its past and future RPO commitment, has entered into through a competitive bid, 
a long term 25 years PPA of 700 MW with a group entity (Adani Hybrid Energy Jaisalmer Four Limited) to 
purchase 700 MW of Wind Solar Hybrid Renewable Power at ` 3.24 per unit.  The Company has purchased 
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292.95 Mus of Solar Hybrid from Adani Hybrid Energy Jaisalmer Four Limited during the year ended 31 
March, 2022.

   The Company in its MYT petition had requested MERC to allow it to carry forward its unmet RPO obligation 
to the next control period, so as to allow it to fulfil its past obligation from the above arrangement entered 
into. MERC has directed the Company to file a separate petition in respect of the same wherein appropriate 
view would be taken. The management is of the view that MERC would approve the above request and 
there would be no adverse financial implications of the non-compliance by the Company of its past RPO 
obligations.

34 transaction WitH striKe oFF comPanies

name of the struck off company nature of 
transactions with 
struck off company

Balance 
outstanding

relation with the struck 
off company, if any, to 
be disclosed

as at 31 march, 2022
Payables
Silent Sentinels Electrical Consultant Private 
Limited

Purchase of Service  0.01 Vendor 

receivables
M S Gem Printers Private Limited Sale of Power  0.13 Consumer
B B Consulting N Eng Private Limited Sale of Power  0.01 Consumer
Uday Real Tdrs PrivateLimited Sale of Power  0.01 Consumer
Unilink Tel Services (I) Private Limited Sale of Power  0.02 Consumer
Flex Foot Wear India Private Limited Sale of Power  0.01 Consumer
Kool Dring & Pack Private Limited Sale of Power  0.02 Consumer
SSV Developeres & Indian Holiday Resort 
Private Limited

Sale of Power  0.10 Consumer

Others - 361 Parties < 50K Sale of Power  0.09 Consumer
as at 31 march, 2021
Payables 
Silent Sentinels Electrical Consultant Private 
Limited

Purchase of Service  0.01 Vendor

receivables
Bharti Infratel Services Limited Sale of Power  0.04 Consumer
Interjewel Private Limited Sale of Power  0.02 Consumer
Kunjan Silks Private Limited Sale of Power  0.01 Consumer
Gem Printers Private Limited Sale of Power  0.13 Consumer
B.B.Consulting 'N' Engineering Private Limited Sale of Power  0.01 Consumer
Uday Realtors Private Limited Sale of Power  0.01 Consumer
Unilink Tele Services (India) Private Limited Sale of Power  0.02 Consumer
Navdurga Developments Private Limited Sale of Power  0.01 Consumer
Flex Foot Wear India P.Limited Sale of Power  0.01 Consumer
SSV Developeres & Indian Holiday Resort 
Private Limited

Sale of Power  0.11 Consumer

Others - 354 Parties < 50K Sale of Power  0.09 Consumer

35
ATL has acquired the control of the Company w.e.f. 29 August, 2018, through its purchase from Reliance 
Infrastructure Limited (“RINFRA”), of the equity shares of the Company. In accordance with Share 
Purchase Agreement, any incremental adjustment, arising as a result of the MERC MYT order for the 
period 01 April, 2017 to 28 August, 2018 is to the account of R-infra. MERC in its MYT order has provided 
for recovery of certain regulatory assets in subsequent years subject to final truing up adjustments. 
Such recoverable amounts are mainly on account of various components such as annual surplus, capex disallowances, 
MAT credit etc. Pending final truing up by MERC, the amount recoverable from RINFRA have not been accounted 
for as at 31 March, 2022 and would be accounted for as and when such amount is finally determined.
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36 relateD PartY Disclosure

As per the Ind AS 24, disclosure of transactions with related parties, are given below:
name of related parties & description of relationship
(a) ultimate Holding entity S. B. Adani Family Trust (SBAFT)
(B) Holding company Adani Transmission Limited
(c) Key management Personnel: Mr. Kandarp Patel, Managing Director & CEO

Mr. Kunjal Mehta, Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 02 May, 
2022)  
Mr. Rakesh Tiwary, Chief Financial Officer (upto 31 March, 2022) 
Mr. Jaldhi Shukla, Company Secretary
Mr. Anil Sardana, Director 
Mr. Sagar Adani , Director
Mr. K Jairaj, Independent Director
Ms. Chitra Bhatnagar, Independent Director (upto 27 October, 
2021)
Ms. Chandra Iyengar (w.e.f  27 October, 2021)
Mr.Quinton Choi, Non Executive Director - (w.e.f  01 July, 2020)
Mr. Kenneth McLaren, Non Executive Director - (w.e.f 22 
October, 2020)

(D) Entity having significant influence Qatar Holding LLC
(e) Enterprises over which (A) or (B) or (C) or (D) above have significant influence :

(where transactions have taken place during the year and previous year / balance outstanding)
 Adani Power Limited 
 Adani Enterprises Limited 
 Adani Properties Private Limited 
 Karnavati Aviation Private Limited 
 Adani Power (Mundra) Limited 
 Adani Green Energy Limited 
 Mundra Solar Pv Limited 
 Sunbourne Developers Private Limited 
 Adani Institute For Education & Research 
 Adani Township & Real Estate Company Limited 
 AEML Infrastructure Limited 
 Maharashtra Eastern Grid Power Transmission Co. Limited 
 Power Distribution Services Limited 
 Adani Power Maharashtra Limited 
 Adani Total Gas Limited 
 Adani Hybrid Energy Jaisalmer Four Limited 
 Adani Foundation 
 Adani Hospitals Mundra Private Limited 
 Mumbai International Airport Limited (w.e.f 13 July, 2021) 
 Adani Transmission (India) Limited 
 Superheights Infraspace Private Limited 
 Adani Power Rajasthan Limited 
 Ahmedabad International Airport Limited 
 Mangaluru International Airport Limited 
 Adani Ports And Special Economic Zone Limited 
 Valuable Properties Private Limited 
 Adani Krishnapatnam Port Limited 
 ATL HVDC Limited 
 WRSS XXI Transco Limited 
 Lakadia Banaskantha Transco Limited 

(G) Employee Benefits Funds :  AEML Gratuity Fund 
 AEML Superannuation Fund 
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(` in Crores)
nature of transaction name of related Party For the year ended 

31 march, 2022 
For the year ended 

31 march, 2021 
Reimbursement of Expenses Adani Transmission Limited  -   0.35
Inter Corporate Deposit (ICD) 
Received

Adani Transmission Limited  23.89  10.12 
ATL HVDC Limited  37.37  -   

Interest Expenses on ICD Adani Transmission Limited  1.22  0.46 
ATL HVDC Limited  1.76  -   

Amount received towards issue of  
Opitonal Convertiable Debendures 

WRSS XXI Transco Limited  18.25  -   
Lakadia Banaskantha Transco 
Limited

 140.73  -   

Interest Expenses on Optioanl 
Covertiable Debendures

WRSS XXI Transco Limited  0.14  -   
Lakadia Banaskantha Transco 
Limited

 0.31  -   

Inter Corporate Deposit (ICD) 
Repaid

Adani Transmission Limited  35.01  -   

Inter Corporate Deposit (ICD) 
Received Back 

Adani Properties Private Limited  -    580.00 

Interest expenses on Shareholders 
Affiliated Debts

Qatar Holding LLC  134.47  131.87 

Interest Income on ICD  (Loans) Adani Properties Private Limited  114.40  116.87 
Earnest Money Deposit (EMD) 
received

Adani Enterprises Limited  6.84 

Earnest Money Deposit (EMD) 
Given Back

Adani Enterprises Limited  -    6.64 

Contribution to Employee Benefits AEML Gratuity Fund  1.08  0.96 
AEML Superannuation Fund  7.76  7.91 

Purchase of  Services Karnavati Aviation Private Limited  9.00  9.00 
Adani Township & Real Estate 
Company Limited

 -    0.20 

Adani Enterprises Limited  86.02  71.30 
Power Distribution Services Limited  15.00  14.90 
Mundra Solar Pv Limited  0.00  -   
Adani Hospitals Mundra Private 
Limited

 0.90  -   

(` in Crores)
nature of transaction name of related Party For the year ended 

31 march, 2022 
For the year ended 

31 march, 2021 
Services Given Adani Institute For Education & 

Research
 0.07  0.01 

Sale of Goods Adani Power (Mundra) Limited  -    0.02 
Adani Transmission (India) Limited  0.01  -   

Purchase of  PPE Mundra Solar Pv Limited  -    0.47 
Employee advance transferred In Maharashtra Eastern Grid Power 

Transmission Co. Limited
 -    0.04 

Employees benefits Received Adani Enterprises Limited  -    8.26 
Adani Power Maharashtra Limited  -    0.05 
Adani Total Gas Limited  0.02  0.59 

Employees benefits Transferred Adani Enterprises Limited  0.02  -   
Adani Power Rajasthan Limited  0.01  -   
Ahmedabad International Airport 
Limited

 0.10  -   

Mangaluru International Airport 
Limited

 0.03  -   
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(` in Crores)
nature of transaction name of related Party For the year ended 

31 march, 2022 
For the year ended 

31 march, 2021 
Adani Ports And Special Economic 
Zone Limited

 0.01  -   

Valuable Properties Private Limited  0.03  -   
Adani Green Energy Limited  0.01  -   
Adani Power (Mundra) Limited  0.01  -   
Mumbai International Airport Limited  0.34  -   
Adani Krishnapatnam Port Limited  0.22  -   
Maharashtra Eastern Grid Power 
Transmission Co. Limited

 0.04  -   

Adani Power Limited  0.27  -   
Advance - Received Back AEML Infrastructure Limited  0.05  3.36 
Payment made on behalf of Group 
Companies

AEML Infrastructure Limited  0.07  0.05 
Power Distribution Services Limited  0.54  0.68 

Payment made on behalf of Group 
Companies-Received Back

AEML Infrastructure Limited  0.08  -   
Power Distribution Services Limited  1.21  -   

Advance paid towards Purchase of 
property - Received back

Sunbourne Developers Private 
Limited

 271.00  -   

Towards acquisition of leasehold 
land

Superheights Infraspace Private 
Limited

 510.00  -   

Advance paid towards Purchase 
of Power

Adani Enterprises Limited  1,313.31  700.00 

Advance paid towards Purchase of 
Power-Received back

Adani Enterprises Limited  607.22  250.00 

Corporate Social Responsibility 
Contribution

Adani Foundation  6.13  2.25 

Interest Income Adani Enterprises Limited 50.12  34.90 
Purchase of  Power (net of 
discount)

Adani Enterprises Limited (excluding 
banking transactions)

 1,284.73  360.70 

Adani Hybrid Energy Jaisalmer Four 
Limited

 93.87  -   

Rent Paid Mumbai International Airport Limited 1.09  -   
Remuneration paid Mr. Kanderp Patel  4.61  3.55 

Mr. Rakesh Tiwary  1.88  1.49 
Employee Loan given Mr. Rakesh Tiwary  0.50  0.20 
Sitting Fees Mr. K Jairaj  0.06  0.05 

Ms. Chitra Bhatnagar 0.01 0.01
Ms. Chandra Iyengar 0.02  -   

(` in Crores)
closing Balance name of related Party as at  

31 march, 2022
as at  

31 march, 2021
Balance Payable Mundra Solar Pv Limited  0.10  0.01 

Adani Transmission Limited  -    2.72 
Karnavati Aviation Private Limited  3.00  0.75 
Power Distribution Services Limited  13.73  6.56 
Adani Hybrid Energy Jaisalmer Four 
Limited

 42.66  -   

Adani Enterprises Limited  303.97  -   
Superheights Infraspace Private 
Limited

 79.00  -   
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(` in Crores)
closing Balance name of related Party as at  

31 march, 2022
as at  

31 march, 2021
ATL HVDC Limited  38.95  -   

Adani Transmission Limited  -    11.55 

Mumbai International Airport Limited  0.34  -   

Adani Power Rajasthan Limited  0.01  -   

Ahmedabad International Airport 
Limited

 0.10  -   

Mangaluru International Airport 
Limited

 0.03  -   

Adani Ports And Special Economic 
Zone Limited

 0.01  -   

Valuable Properties Private Limited  0.03  -   

Adani Power (Mundra) Limited  0.01  -   

Adani Krishnapatnam Port Limited  0.22  -   

Adani Power Limited  0.27  -   

Maharashtra Eastern Grid Power 
Transmission Co. Limited

 0.04  -   

Balance  Receivable Adani Enterprises Limited  -    278.43 

Adani Green Energy Limited  0.15  0.16 

Adani Properties Private Limited*  1,040.00  1,040.00 

Sunbourne Developers Private 
Limited

 -    271.00 

AEML Infrastructure Limited  0.04  0.10 

Adani Power Maharashtra Limited  -    0.05 

Adani Total Gas Limited  -    0.59 

Optionally convertible debentures 
payable (including Interest 
accrued but not due on OCD)

WRSS XXI Transco Limited  18.38  -   

Lakadia Banaskantha Transco 
Limited

 141.00  -   

Employee Loan Balance 
Receivable

Mr. Rakesh Tiwary  0.62  0.18 

Shareholders Affiliated Debt  
payable

Qatar Holding LLC  2,137.35  2,061.70 

Interest accrued but not due on 
Shareholders Affiliated Debt 

Qatar Holding LLC  53.28  51.40 

* The Company has provided long-term intercorporate deposit at rates comparable to the average commercial rate 

of interest.

note:

All the above transactions are executed at arm’s length basis.

The above disclosure does not include transaction with / as public utility services viz, electricity, telecommunications 

etc. in the normal course of business.   

Key Managerial Personnel are entitled to post-employment benefits and other long term employee benefits 

recognised as per Ind AS 19 - ‘Employee Benefits’ in the financial statements. As these employee benefits are lump 

sum amounts provided on the basis of actuarial valuation, the same is not included above.
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37 Disclosure unDer inD as 19 “emPloYee BeneFits” :

1 Defined Contribution Plan

(i) Provident fund

(ii) Superannuation fund

(iii) State defined contribution plans

-  Employer’s contribution to Employees’ state insurance

-  Employers’ Contribution to Employees’ Pension Scheme 1995

The provident fund and the state defined contribution plan are operated by the Regional Provident Fund 
Commissioner and the superannuation fund is administered by the trustees of the AEML Superannuation 
Scheme. Under the schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to 
the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The Group has no obligation other than the contribution 
to the fund.  

The Group has recognised the following amounts as expense in the Statement of Profit or loss or capital 
working process in financial statements for the year:

(` in Crores)

Particulars 31 march, 2022 31 march, 2021

Contribution to Provident Fund  44.03  38.32 

Contribution to Employees Superannuation Fund  7.96  7.96 

Contribution to Employees Pension Scheme  6.89  6.92 

2 Defined Benefit Plan

gratuity

The Company operates a funded gratuity plan in the form of a Trust, governed by Trustees approinted by the 
Company and administered by Life Insurance corporation. Every employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 
fifteen days salary last drawn for each completed year of service in line with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 
or Company scheme whichever is beneficial. The same is payable at the time of separation from the Company 
or retirement, whichever is earlier. The benefits vest after five years of continuous service.

Particulars gratuity for the 
year ended 

31 march, 2022

gratuity for the  
year ended 

31 march, 2021

Starting Period 01 april, 2021 01 april, 2020

Date of Reporting 31 march, 2022 31 march, 2021

Principal assumptions in actuarial valuation

Rate of Discounting 6.98% 6.86%

Rate of Salary Increase 10.25% 9.75%

Rate of Employee Turnover 1.00% 0.40%

Mortality Rate During Employment Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

2012-14 (Urban) 

 Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

(2006-08) 

(` in Crores)

Change in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 31 march, 2022 31 march, 2021

Present value of Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year  658.82  645.00 

Liability Transferred in  -    5.15 

Liability Transferred Out  (1.12)  -   
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(` in Crores)

Change in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 31 march, 2022 31 march, 2021

Interest Cost  45.19  44.11 

Current Service Cost  37.16  35.40 

Benefit Paid From the Fund  (29.57)  (36.60)

Actuarial (Gain) / Losses on Obligation- Due to Change in Financial 
Assumptions

 20.01  (1.18)

Actuarial (Gain) / Losses on Obligation- Due to Change in Demographic 
Assumptions

 12.80  6.91 

Actuarial (Gain) / Losses on Obligation-Due to Experience  (51.05)  (39.97)

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the year 692.24  658.82 

change in the Fair Value of Plan assets

Fair Value of Plan Asset at the beginning of the year  485.77  488.88 

Interest Income  33.32  33.43 

Benefit Paid From the Fund  (29.57)  (36.60)

Contribution by the Employer  1.09  0.96 

Return on Plan Assets Excluding Interest Income  (1.15)  (0.90)

Fair Value of Plan asset at the end of the year  489.46  485.77 

amount recognised in the Balance sheet

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the year  692.24  658.82 

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year  489.46  485.77 

Funded Status (Deficit)  (202.78)  (173.05)

net (liability) recognised in the Balance sheet  (202.78)  (173.05)

Provisions

current  34.01  31.96 

non-current  168.77  141.09 

Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Current Service Cost  36.82  35.40 

Net Interest Cost  11.25  10.68 

expenses recognised  48.07  46.08 

amount recognised to capital Work in Progress  0.96  -   

expenses recognised in other comprehensive income (oci)

Actuarial (Gains) / Losses on Obligation for the year  (18.24)  (34.24)

Return on Plan Assets Excluding Interest Income  1.15  0.90 

net expenses for the year recognised in oci  (17.09)  (33.34)

major categories of plan assets 

Government Securities 81.02% 70.07%

Debt and other Instruments 10.71% 23.85%

Equity Instruments 8.27% 6.08%

Total 100% 100%

Expected Contribution for next financial year  32.57  31.96 

Expected Maturity Analysis of undiscounted defined Benefit 
obligation is as follows

Within one year  35.07  27.46 

Between 2 to 5 years  174.27  144.68 
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(` in Crores)

Change in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 31 march, 2022 31 march, 2021

Between 6 to 10 years  366.92  347.73 

Beyond 10 years  803.48  839.47 

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation  10.00  11.00 

sensitivity analysis

Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions  692.24  658.82 

assumptions – Discount rate

sensitivity level 1.00% 1.00%

Impact on defined benefit obligation –in % increase -7.94% -8.34%

Impact on defined benefit obligation –in ` Crores  (54.94)  (54.94)

Impact on defined benefit obligation –in % decrease 9.12% 9.58%

Impact on defined benefit obligation –in ` Crores  63.10  63.10 

assumptions – Future salary increase

sensitivity level 1.00% 1.00%

Impact on defined benefit obligation –in% increase 8.66% 9.10%

Impact on defined benefit obligation –in ` Crores  59.92  59.92 

Impact on defined benefit obligation –in% decrease -7.70% -8.09%

Impact on defined benefit obligation –in ` Crores  (53.30)  (53.30)

assumptions – employee turnover

sensitivity level 1.00% 1.00%

Impact on defined benefit obligation –in% increase -1.62% -1.70%

Impact on defined benefit obligation –in ` Crores  (11.19)  (11.19)

Impact on defined benefit obligation –in% decrease 0.69% 0.73%

Impact on defined benefit obligation –in ` Crores  4.81  4.81 

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions 
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. 
When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the 
same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method 
at the end of the reporting year) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised 
in the balance sheet. 

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to 
the prior period.. 

3 risk exposure:

Through its defined benefit plans, the Group is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are 
detailed below:

Asset volatility:

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to government bond yield. If plan 
assets underperform this yield, it will result in deficit. These are subject to interest rate risk. To offset the risk, 
the plan assets have been deployed in high grade insurer managed funds.

Inflation rate risk: 

Higher than expected increase in salary and medical cost will increase the defined benefit obligation. 

Demographic risk: 

This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, 
withdrawal, disability and retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligations is not 
straight forward and depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting criterion.
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38 regulatorY DeFerral account

(` in Crores)

Particulars  as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

regulatory Deferral account - liability

Regulatory Liabilities  271.56  271.56 

regulatory Deferral account - assets

Regulatory Assets  1,121.92  439.45 

Net Regulatory Assets/(Liabilities)  850.36  167.89 

rate regulated activities

 1 As per the Ind AS-114 ‘Regulatory Deferral Accounts’, the business of electricity distribution is a Rate Regulated 
activity wherein Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (MERC), the regulator determines Tariff to be 
charged from consumers based on prevailing regulations in place.

 2 MERC Multi Year Tariff Regulations, 2015 (MYT Regulations), is applicable for the period beginning from 01 
April, 2016 to 31 March, 2020. 

  MERC Multi Year Tariff Regulations, 2019 (MYT Regulations), is applicable for the period beginning from 01 
April, 2020 to 31 March, 2024. These regulations require MERC to determine tariff in a manner wherein the 
Company can recover its fixed and variable costs including assured rate of return on approved equity base, 
from its consumers. The Company determines the Revenue, Regulatory Assets and Liabilities as per the terms 
and conditions specified in MYT Regulations.  

 3 Reconciliation of Regulatory Assets/Liabilities of distribution business as per Rate Regulated Activities is as 
follows:

(` in Crores)

Particulars  as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

A Opening Regulatory Assets (Net)  167.89 (256.60)

add: 

B  Income recoverable/(reversible) from future tariff / Revenue Gap for the 
year

1   For Current Year  682.47  582.81 

2   For Earlier Year  -    -   

Total a ( 1 + 2 )  682.47  582.81 

less: 

C Recovered / (refunded) during the year ^  -    158.32 

D Net Movement during the year ( C - D )  682.47  424.49 

e closing Balance  ( a - e)  850.36  167.89 

^ Includes ` 143.98 Crores recovered during 31 March, 2021 on account of final truing up for 2017-18 and 2018-19
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39 Financial instruments

1 Fair Value measurement

(` in Crores)

Particulars  31 march, 2022  31 march, 2021 

 Book Value  Fair Value  Book Value  Fair Value 

Financial assets 

Investment 

- Investment in Tresury Bills at FVTPL  24.84  24.84  -    -   

- Government Securities  204.62  188.31  204.95  198.81 

Trade Receivables  485.85  485.85  576.29  576.29 

Loans Given  1,076.04  1,076.04  1,086.61  1,086.61 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  90.10  90.10  152.42  152.42 

Other Balances with Bank  624.48  624.48  886.56  886.56 

Derivative instruments designated in 
hedge accounting relationship    165.25  165.25  143.13  143.13 

Other Financial Assets  1,189.47  1,189.47  987.79  987.79 

total Financial assets  3,860.65  3,844.34  4,037.75  4,031.61 

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings (Including Interest accrued & 
Current Maturities) - Fixed Rate  12,072.17  11,211.17  9,584.48  9,681.59 

Borrowings (Including Interest accrued & 
Current Maturities) - Floating Rate  -    -    1,987.69  1,987.69 

Lease Liability obligation  44.84  44.84  93.59  93.59 

Trade Payables  1,523.17  1,523.17  1,222.07  1,222.07 

Derivative instruments designated in 
hedge accounting relationship    123.09  123.09  94.19  94.19 

Other Financial Liabilities  806.71  806.71  687.51  687.51 

total Financial liabilities  14,569.98  13,708.98  13,669.53  13,766.64 

Above excludes carrying value of investment in subsidiary accounted at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27. 

The management assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalents, other balances with bank, trade 
receivables, loans, trade payables, other financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts 
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments. 

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could 
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. The following methods and assumptions were 
used to estimate the fair values.

Fair value of the Govt. securities, mutual funds are based on the price quotations near the reporting date. 

The fair value of loans from banks and other financial liabilities, as well as other non-current financial liabilities 
is estimated by discounting future cash flow using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk 
and remaining maturities.  

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments with various counterparties, principally banks and 
financial institutions with investment grade credit ratings. Foreign exchange forward contracts are valued 
using valuation techniques, which employs the use of market observable inputs. The most frequently applied 
valuation techniques include forward pricing and swap models using present value calculations. The models 
incorporate various inputs including the credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward 
rates, yield curves of the respective currencies, currency basis spreads between the respective currencies, 
interest rate curves and forward rate curves of the underlying currency. All derivative contracts are fully 
collateralised, thereby, eliminating both counterparty and the Company’s own non-performance risk.
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 2 The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are 
either observable or unobservable and consists of the following three levels

  level 1 :

Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

level 2 :

Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
directly or indirectly observable.

level 3 :

Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable.

(` in Crores)

Particulars Fair Value Hierarchy as at 31st march.2022
Date of 

Valuation
quoted prices 

in active 
markets 
(level 1)

Significant 
observable 

inputs 
(level 2)

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs 
(level 3)

total

asset measured at Fair Value
FVTPL financial investments  - In 
Tresuary bills 31 March, 2022  24.84  -    -    24.84 

asset for which Fair Value are 
disclosed
Amortised Cost financial 
investments:

- Government Securities 31 March, 2022  188.31  -    -    188.31 

Derivative instruments designated 
in hedge accounting relationship  
Derivative financial assets 31 March, 2022  -    165.25  -    165.25 

total   213.15  165.25  -    378.40 
liabilities measured at fair values 
Derivative instruments designated 
in hedge accounting relationship  
Derivative financial Liabilities 31 March, 2022  -    123.09  -    123.09 

liabilities for which fair values are 
disclosed
Borrowings (Including Interest 
accrued & Current Maturities) - 
Fixed Rate 31 March, 2022  8,897.51  2,313.66  -    11,211.17 

Borrowings (Including Interest 
accrued & Current Maturities) - 
Floating Rate 31 March, 2022  -    -    -    -   

total   8,897.51  2,313.66  -    11,211.17 

(` in Crores)

Particulars Fair Value Hierarchy as at 31st march.2021
Date of 

Valuation
quoted prices 

in active 
markets 
(level 1)

Significant 
observable 

inputs 
(level 2)

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs 
(level 3)

total

asset measured at Fair Value
FVTPL financial investments  - 
Mutual Funds

31 March, 2021  -    -    -    -   
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(` in Crores)

Particulars Fair Value Hierarchy as at 31st march.2021
Date of 

Valuation
quoted prices 

in active 
markets 
(level 1)

Significant 
observable 

inputs 
(level 2)

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs 
(level 3)

total

asset for which Fair Value are 
disclosed
Amortised Cost financial 
investments:

- Government Securities 31 March, 2021  198.81  -    -    198.81 

Derivative instruments designated 
in hedge accounting relationship  
Derivative financial assets 31 March, 2021  -    143.13  -    143.13 

total   198.81  143.13  -    341.94 
liabilities measured at fair values 
Derivative instruments designated 
in hedge accounting relationship  
Derivative financial Liabilities 31 March, 2021  -    94.19  -    94.19 

liabilities for which fair values are 
disclosed
Borrowings (Including Interest 
accrued & Current Maturities) - 
Fixed Rate

31 March, 2021  7,372.03  2,309.55  -    9,681.59 

Borrowings (Including Interest 
accrued & Current Maturities) - 
Floating Rate

31 March, 2021  -    1,987.69  -    1,987.69 

total   7,372.03  4,297.25  -    11,669.28 

There has been no transfer between level 1 and level 2 during the period

3 capital management & gearing ratio

“The Company manages its capital structure in a manner to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going 
concern while optimising the return to stakeholders through the appropriate debt and equity balance. The 
Company’s capital structure is represented by equity (comprising issued capital, retained earnings and other 
reserves) and debt. The Company’s management reviews the capital structure of the Company on an annual 
basis. As part of this review, the management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each 
class of capital. The Company’s objective is to ensure that the gearing ratio (debt equity ratio) is around 70 : 30

gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows :

(` in Crores)

 as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

Debt  12,072.17  11,572.17 

Less : Cash & Bank Balance  1,230.92  1,516.97 

net debt  10,841.25  10,055.20 

Total Capital  4,799.45  4,710.35 

Capital & net debt  15,640.70  14,765.55 

Net debt to Total Capital plus net debt ratio (%) 69% 68%
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(i)  Debt is defined as Non-current borrowings (including current maturities) and Current borrowings.

(ii) Equity is defined as Equity share capital and other equity including reserves and surplus.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims 
to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that 
define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to 
immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no significant breaches in the financial covenants of 
any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current year.

4 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and 
other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations/projects 
The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, investment including mutual funds, trade and other 
receivables, and cash and cash equivalents which is derived from its operations.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is mainly exposed to risks resulting from exchange rate 
fluctuation (currency risk), interest rate movements (interest rate risk) collectively referred as Market Risk, 
Credit Risk and Liquidity Risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these 
risks. It manages its exposure to these risks through the use of derivative financial instruments for hedging 
transactions. It uses derivative instruments such as Cross Currency Swaps, Full Currency swaps, Interest rate 
swaps and foreign currency Future Option contracts to manage these risks. These derivative instruments 
reduce the impact of both favorable and unfavorable fluctuations.

The Company’s risk management activities are subject to the management, direction and control of Central 
Treasury team of the Company under the framework of Risk Management Policy for Currency and Interest rate 
risk, as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The Company’s Central Treasury team ensures 
appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company through appropriate policies & procedures 
and financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk 
objectives. It is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes is undertaken.

The decision of whether and when to execute derivative financial instruments along with its tenure can vary 
from period to period depending on market conditions and the relative costs of the instruments. The tenure 
is linked to the timing of the underlying exposure, with the connection between the two being regularly 
monitored. All derivative contracts are executed with counterparties that are creditworthy. The outstanding 
derivatives are reviewed periodically to ensure that there is no inappropriate concentration of outstanding to 
any particular counterparty. 

a. market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk, and currency risk. Financial 
instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings. The sensitivity analysis in interest rate and 
foreign currency risk sections relate to the position as at 31 March, 2021 and 31 March, 2022.  

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to 
floating interest rates of the debt and derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign 
currencies are all constant as at 31 March, 2021 and 31 March, 2022.

i. Foreign currency risk 

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risks arising from its exposure to the US$.Foreign currency risks 
arise from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities, when they are denominated 
in a currency other than Indian Rupee. Exposures on foreign currency loans are managed through the 
Company wide hedging policy, which is reviewed periodically to ensure that the results from fluctuating 
currency exchange rates are appropriately managed. The Company’s exposure with regards to foreign 
currency risk is given below.        

The following table shows foreign currency exposures in US Dollar on financial instruments at the end of the 
reporting period  
(Refer Note 39 (5))

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd.)

271

Financial Statements



Foreign currency exposures

Particulars as at 31 march, 2022  as at 31 march, 2021 

Foreign currency 
(in millions)

` crore Foreign currency 
(in millions)

` crore

in  us$

(i)   Interest accrued but not due  14.66  111.12  12.96  94.75 

(ii)  Buyers Credit  -    -    12.63  92.35 

(iii) Import Creditors and Acceptances  14.38  108.99  0.69  5.04 

(iv) Bond  1,000.00  7,579.25  1,000.00  7,311.00 

(iv) Bond - Sustainability Linked Notes  300.00  2,273.78  -    -   

(v)  Shareholders Affiliated Debts  282.00  2,137.35  282.00  2,061.70 

(vi) Term Loans from Banks  -    -    175.00  1,279.43 

Derivatives 

- Call Options  (582.00)  (4,411.12)  (582.00)  (4,255.00)

- Cross Currency Swaps  (400.00)  (3,031.70)  (575.00)  (4,203.83)

- Forward coupon  (2.26)  (17.13)  (12.63)  (92.34)

- Forward principal  (300.00)  (2,273.78)  -    -   

- Coupon Only Swaps  (5.38)  (40.78)  (5.98)  (43.72)

- Principal Only Swaps  (300.00)  (2,273.78)  (300.00)  (2,193.30)

total  21.40  162.20  7.67  56.08 

in  euro

(i)   Import Creditors and Acceptances  0.01  0.09  0.02  0.18 

total  0.01  0.09  0.02  0.18 

note : 

The Company has executed 4 year cross currency swaps derivative contract of US$ 300 mn which will be 
effective from 22 July 2022 to hedge outstanding Sustainibility linked bond of US$ 300 mn which is not 
included in above figures.

(i) Foreign currency sensitivity analysis      

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in US$ exchange rates, with 
all other variables held constant on the Company’s profit before tax and pre-tax equity is as under:

(` in Crores)

Effect on profit before tax and  
consequential impact on equity

as at 31 march, 2022  as at 31 march, 2021

appreciate Depreciate appreciate Depreciate

Rupee appreciate / (depreciate) by ` 1 against US$ / 
EURO / GBP

 2.14  (2.14)  0.77  (0.77)

Rupee appreciate / (depreciate) by ` 2 against US$ / 
EURO / GBP

 4.28  (4.28)  1.53  (1.53)

Rupee appreciate / (depreciate) by ` 3 against US$ / 
EURO / GBP

 6.42  (6.42)  2.31  (2.31)

Notes: 1) +/- Gain/Loss

ii. interest rate risk management       

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on short-term and medium-term floating rate borrowings and 
on the refinancing of fixed rate debt. The Company’s policy is to  borrow long term debt with fixed interest 
rate The short term borrowings of the Company are mainly floating rate rupee denominated working capital 
borrowings.
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The long-term borrowings of the Company are by way of Senior Secured Notes (SSN) and Shareholder’s 
Affiliated Debts which carry fixed rate of interest till maturity. Further during the year the Company issued 
the Sustainability Linked Bond (SLB) of US$ 300 million through 10-year notes on 15 July, 2021 under US$ 2 
billion Global Medium-Term Notes program (GMTN)  which carry fixed rate of interest till maturity with certain 
Sustainability Performance Targets (SPTs), non-attainment of which will result in increase in fixed rate of 
interest by 0.15% p.a, for SPT 1 in March 2027 and further 0.15% p.a. for SPT 2 for March 2029.

(i) interest rate sensitivity:       

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on average outstanding exposure of borrowings 
during the year that have floating interest rates.

If the interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower and all the other variables were held constant, 
the effect on Interest expense for the respective financial years and consequent effect on Company’s profit in 
that financial year would have been as below:

(` in Crores)

as at 31 march, 2022  as at 31 march, 2021

50 bps        
increase

50 bps 
decrease

50 bps 
increase

50 bps 
decrease

Interest expense on loan  4.78  (4.78)  6.77  (6.77)

Effect on profit / (loss) before tax  (4.78)  4.78  (6.77)  6.77 

*In Previous Year reporting, sensitivity of interest rate change of ` 3.95 Crores was detrimined on the basis of 
working capital outstanding as on March 31 2021. 

B. credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer 
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily 
trade receivables and other financial assets) and from its financing activities, including loans to others, deposits 
with banks, financial institutions & others, foreign exchange transactions and other financial assets.

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to 
customer credit risk defined in accordance with this assessment.

Credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits with banks with 
high credit ratings assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include 
investment in liquid mutual fund units and  quoted bonds issued by government. Counterparty credit limits are 
reviewed by the Company’s management on a regular basis. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of 
risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

(` in Crores)

Particulars  as at  
31 march, 2022 

 as at  
31 march, 2021 

Trade receivables  485.85  576.29 

Loans  1,076.04  1,086.61 

Other financial assets  1,354.72  1,130.92 

total  2,916.61  2,793.82 

Refer Note 12 for credit risk and other information in respect of trade receivables. Moreover, given the diverse 
nature of the consumer profile of the Company, trade receivables are spread over a number of customers with 
no significant concentration of credit risk. No single customer accounted for 10.0% or more of revenue basis in 
any of the years presented. The history of trade receivables shows a negligible provision for bad and doubtful 
debts compared to the volume/value of sales recorded. Other receivables as stated above are due from the 
parties / banks under normal course of the business having sound credit worthiness. and as such the Company 
believes exposure to credit risk to be minimal.

The Company has not acquired any credit impaired asset.
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c. liquidity risk management       

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments 
associated with financial instruments that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity 
risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its fair value The Company has an 
established liquidity risk management framework for managing its short term, medium term and long term 
funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from 
mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities The Company manages the liquidity risk by 
maintaining adequate funds in cash and cash equivalents The Company also has adequate credit facilities 
agreed with banks to ensure that there is sufficient cash to meet all its normal operating commitments in a 
timely and cost-effective manner. 

(` in Crores)
contractual maturities of Financial 
liabilities

less than 1 
year

1 to 5 years more than 5 
years

total

as at 31 march, 2022
Borrowings**  647.27  2,222.06  13,625.30  16,494.62 
Trade Payables  1,490.95  -    32.22  1,523.17 
Lease Liabilities  18.59  22.75  3.50  44.84 
Other Financial Liabilities  863.60  67.78  -    931.38 
total  3,020.41  2,312.59  13,661.02  18,994.01 
as at 31 march, 2021
Borrowings**  1,495.27  3,028.04  11,015.70  15,539.02 
Trade Payables  1,190.14  -    31.93  1,222.07 
Lease Liabilities  42.89  46.64  4.06  93.59 
Other Financial Liabilities  718.58  63.55  -    782.13 
total  3,446.88  3,138.23  11,051.69  17,636.81 

**The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial liabilities 
including interest that will be paid on those liabilities upto the maturity of the instruments, ignoring the call 
and refinancing options available with the Company. The amounts included above for variable interest rate 
instruments for non-derivative liabilities is subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those 
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

5 Derivative Financial instrument

The Company uses derivatives instruments as part of its management of  risks relating to exposure to fluctuation 
in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Company does not acquire derivative financial 
instruments for trading or speculative purposes neither does it enter into complex derivative transactions to 
manage the above risks. The derivative transactions are normally in the form of  forward currency contracts, 
cross currency swaps, options and interest rate swaps to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks, 
respectively and are subject to the Company’s guidelines and policies.

The fair values of all derivatives are separately recorded in the balance sheet within current and non current 
assets and liabilities. Derivative that are designated as hedges are classified as current or non current depending 
on the maturity of the derivative.     

The use of derivative can give rise to credit and market risk. The Company tries to control credit risk as far 
as possible by only entering into contracts with stipulated / reputed banks and financial institutions. The 
use of derivative instrument is subject to limits, authorities and regular monitoring by appropriate levels of 
management. The limits, authorities and monitoring systems are periodically reviewed by management and the 
Board. The market risk on derivative is mitigated by changes in the valuation of underlying assets, liabilities or 
transactions, as derivatives are used only for risk management purpose.   

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, cross currency 
swaps, options, interest rate futures and interest rate swaps  for hedging the liabilities incurred/recorded  and 
accounts for them as cash flow hedges and states them at fair value. The effective portion of the gain or loss 
on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion 
is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss. Amounts recognised in OCI are transferred to 
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profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or 
financial expense is recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. These hedges have been effective for the year 
ended 31 March, 2022 and 31 March, 2021.     

The fair value of the Company’s derivative positions recorded under derivative financial assets and derivative 
financial liabilities are as follows :-

(` in Crores)
Derivative Financials Instruments as at 31 march, 2022  as at 31 march, 2021

assets liabilities assets liabilities
current
cashflow hedge*

-Call Options  58.10  68.76  137.21  87.50 
-Cross Currency Swaps  47.39  21.74  30.36  5.91 
-Forward  -    32.59  -    0.78 
-Coupon Only Swaps  (5.79)  -    (3.81)  -   
-Principal Only Swaps  65.55  -    (20.63)  -   

total  165.25  123.09  143.13  94.19 

* Refer statement of profit and loss and statement of changes in equity for the changes in the fair value of 
cashflow hedges

Derivative contracts entered into by the company and outstanding as at Balance sheet date :

To hedge Currency risks and interest related risks, the Company has entered into various derivative Contracts. 
The category wise break-up of the amount outstanding as at Balance Sheet date is given below :-

(` in Crores)
Particulars as at 31 march, 2022  as at 31 march, 2021

Foreign 
currency 

(in millions)

` crore Purpose Foreign 
currency 

(in millions)

` crore Purpose

in us$
-Call Options  582.00  4,411.12 Hedging of 

foreign currency 
borrowing 
principal

 582.00  4,255.00 Hedging of foreign 
currency borrowing 
principal & interest 
liability

-Cross Currency 
Swaps*

 700.00  5,305.48 Hedging of 
foreign currency 
borrowing 
principal & 
interest liability

 575.00  4,203.83 Hedging of foreign 
currency borrowing 
principal & interest 
liability

-Forward  305.80  2,317.73 Hedging of 
foreign currency 
borrowing 
principal & 
Interest liability 

 12.63  92.34 Hedging of foreign 
currency borrowing 
principal liability - 
Buyers credit

-Coupon Only 
Swaps

 600.00  4,547.55 Hedging of 
foreign currency 
borrowing 
principal & 
interest liability

 600.00  4,386.60 Hedging of foreign 
currency borrowing 
principal liability - 
Buyers credit

-Principal Only 
Swaps

 300.00  2,273.78 Hedging of 
foreign currency 
borrowing 
principal liability

 300.00  2,193.30 Hedging of foreign 
currency borrowing 
principal liability

 total  2,487.80  18,855.66  2,069.63  15,131.07 

* The Company has executed 4 year cross currency Swaps derivative contract of US$ 300 mn which will be 
effective from 22 July 2022 to hedge outstanding Sustainibility linked bond of US$ 300 mn which are inculded 
in above table.
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40 The chief operating decision maker evaluates the Company’s performance and applies the resources to whole of
the Company business viz. “Generation, Transmission and Distribution of Power” as an integrated utility. Hence the 
Company does not have any reportable segment as per lnd AS- 108 “Operating Segments

41 Additional information of net assets and share in profit or loss contributed by various entities as recognised under
Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013

31 march, 2022

(` in Crores)
sr. 
no

 name of the entity as% of 
consoli- 

dated  
net  

assets as  
on  

31 march, 
2022

amount 
(`)

as% of 
consoli- 

dated  
Profit or 
loss for  

the period 
ended   

31 march, 
2022

amount 
(`)

as% of  
consoli- 

dated  
other  

compre- 
hensive  
income  
for the  
period  
ended  

31 march, 
2022

amount 
(`)

as% of  
consoli- 

dated  
total  

compre- 
hensive  

income for  
the period 

ended  
31 march, 

2022

amount 
(`)

1 Adani Electricity Mumbai 
Limited

97.82%  4,694.81 100.00%  122.16 99.94%  (137.70) 99.50%  (15.54)

subsidiaries (indian)
2 Adani Electricity Mumbai 

Infra Limited
2.18%  104.65 0.00%  -   0.06%  (0.08) 0.50%  (0.08)

3 AEML SEEPZ Limited 0.00%  0.01 0.00%  -   0.00%  -   0.00%  -   
total 100.00%  4,799.47 100.00%  122.16 100.00%  (137.78) 100.00%  (15.62)
Less: Adjustment of 
Consolidation

 0.02 

consolidated net assets / 
Profit after tax 

4,799.45  122.16  (137.78)  (15.62)
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31 march, 2021 

(` in Crores)
sr. 
no

 name of the entity as% of 
consoli- 

dated  
net  

assets as  
on  

31 march, 
2021

amount 
(`)

as% of 
consoli- 

dated  
Profit or  
loss for  
the year 

ended   
31 march, 

2021

amount 
(`)

as% of 
consoli- 

dated  
other  

compre- 
hensive  
income 

for  
the year  

ended  
31 march,  

2021

amount 
(`)

 as% of  
consoli- 

dated  
total  

compre- 
hensive  

income for  
the year  

ended  
31 march,  

2021

amount 
(`)

1 Adani Electricity Mumbai 
Limited

100.00%  4,710.35 100.00%  259.17 100.00%  (73.15) 100.00%  186.02 

subsidiaries (indian)
2 Adani Electricity Mumbai 

Infra Limited
0.00%  0.01 0.00%  -   0.00%  -   0.00%  -   

3 AEML SEEPZ Limited 0.00%  0.01 0.00%  -   0.00%  -   0.00%  -   
total 100.00%  4,710.37 100.00%  259.17 100.00%  (73.15) 100.00%  186.02 
Less: Adjustment of 
Consolidation

 0.02 

consolidated net assets / 
Profit after tax 

 4,710.35  259.17  (73.15)  186.02 

42 signiFicant eVents aFter tHe rePorting PerioD

There were no significant adjusting events that occurred subsequent to the reporting period other than the 
events disclosed in the relevant notes.

As per our attached report of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & sells llP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
chartered accountants aDani electricitY mumBai limiteD
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 117366W/W-100018

mohammed Bengali anil sardana Kandarp Patel
Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. 105828 DIN: 00006867 DIN.: 02947643

Kunjal mehta Jaladhi shukla
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 2 May, 2022 Date : 2 May, 2022
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Notice is hereby given that the 14th Annual General 
Meeting of the Members of Adani Electricity Mumbai 
Limited will be held on wednesday, 27 July, 2022 at 11.00 
a.m. through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual 
Means to transact the following businesses:

orDinarY Business:

1.  To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial 
Statements of the Company for the financial year 
ended on 31 March, 2022 and the Reports of the 
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2.  To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Anil Sardana 
(DIN 00006867), who retires by rotation under the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and being 
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

sPecial Business

3.  appointment of mrs. chandra iyengar (Din: 
02821294) as Director of the company

  To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modification(s), the following resolution as 
an ordinary resolution:

  “resolVeD tHat pursuant to the provisions 
of Sections 149 and 152 read with Schedule IV 
and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as 
‘the Act’) (including any statutory modification 
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 
force), and the relevant Rules made there under, 
as amended from time to time, Mrs. Chandra 
Iyengar (DIN: 02821294) who was appointed as an 
Additional Director of the Company pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 161 of the Act and Articles 
of Association of the Company and in respect 
of whom the Company has received a Notice in 
writing from a Member under Section 160 of the Act 
proposing her candidature for appointment as an 
Independent Director, be and is hereby appointed 
as an Independent Director (Non-Executive) of the 
Company to hold office for five consecutive years 
with effect from 27 October, 2021 and shall not be 
liable to retire by rotation in accordance with the 
provisions of Companies Act, 2013.”

notice

aDani electricitY mumBai limiteD

4. Ratification of Remuneration to Cost Auditors

  To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following 
resolution as an ordinary resolution:

  “resolVeD tHat pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 148 and all other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 
thereof, for the time being in force) (hereinafter 
referred to as ‘the Act’) and the relevant Rules 
there under, as amended from time to time, M/s 
Devarajan Swaminathan and Co, Cost Accountants 
(Firm Registration Number 100669) appointed 
as the Cost Auditors of the Company for audit of 
the cost accounting records of the Company for 
the financial year ending 31 March, 2023, be paid 
remuneration of ` 2,00,000/- plus applicable taxes 
and out of pocket expenses, if any.”

  resolVeD FurtHer tHat the Board of Directors 
of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do 
all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, 
proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

For and on behalf of the Board

          Sd/-
        Jaladhi shukla
     Company Secretary

Date: 2 May, 2022
Place: Ahmedabad

Registered Office:

Adani Corporate Office
Shantigram, Near Vaishno Devi Circle
S G Highway, Ahmedabad 382421
CIN: U74999GJ2008PLC107256

attachments:

(i) annexure a: Explanatory Statement;

(ii)  annexure B: Details of Directors seeking 
Appointment / Re-appointment
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notes:

1.  The Explanatory Statement as required pursuant to 
the provisions of Section 102(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“companies act”), is annexed as annexure 
a hereto and forms a part of this notice.

2.  Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated 08 
April 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated 13 April, 
2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated 05 May, 
2020 and Circular No. 02/2021 dated 13 January, 
2021 and Circular No. 21/2021 dated 14 December, 
2021 and 02/2022 dated 5 May, 2022, physical 
attendance of the Members to the EGM/AGM 
venue is not required and Annual General Meeting 
(AGM) be held through Video Conferencing (VC) 
or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) which allows 
two way teleconferencing or webex for the ease of 
participation of the members. Hence, Members can 
attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through 
VC/OAVM.

3.  The Company has arranged VC / OAVM facility 
for the members to participate and vote in the 
forthcoming AGM through MS Teams. The members 
can participate and vote in the ensuing AGM 
through the same.

4.  Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated 08 
April 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and 
cast vote for the members is not available for this 
AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and 113 
of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of the 
members may be appointed for participation and 
voting in the meeting held through VC or OAVM.

5.  The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM 
mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled 
time of the commencement of the Meeting by 
following the procedure mentioned in the Notice.

6.  Sub-section (1) of section 107 provides that voting 
in the first instance shall be done by show of hands 
unless a poll under section 109 is demanded. A poll 
can be demanded under section 109 of the Act 
without going through the formality of a show of 
hands. The members can convey their vote on the 
designated email address – jaladhi.shukla@adani.
com when a poll is required to be taken during the 
meeting on any resolution.

7.  Corporate members are requested to authorise their 
representative to attend and vote at the Annual 
General Meeting, pursuant to Section 113 of the 
Companies Act.

NOTICE (Contd.)
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item no. 3

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 27 October, 
2021, pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 and 
161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), the Articles of 
Association of the Company, appointed Mrs. Chandra 
Iyengar (DIN: 02821294) as an Additional Director 
(Independent Non-Executive) of the Company subject 
to the approval of the members at the general meeting. 
According to the provisions of Section 161 of the 
Companies Act 2013, she holds office as Director only 
up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Company has received a notice in writing from a 
member proposing the candidature of Mrs. Chandra 
Iyengar (DIN: 02821294) for office of Director of the 
Company under the provisions of Section 160 of the Act. 
In terms of provisions of Section 152 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Act read with rules made there 
under, the appointment of director requires approval of 
members. The Company has received a declaration from 
Mrs. Chandra Iyengar (DIN: 02821294) confirming that 
she meets the criteria of independence as prescribed 
under the Act. Mrs. Chandra Iyengar (DIN: 02821294) is 
also not disqualified from being appointed as a Director 
in terms of Section 164 of the Act.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 read 
with Schedule IV of the Act, the appointment of Mrs. 
Chandra Iyengar (DIN: 02821294) as an Independent 
Director is now being placed before the Members for 
their approval for a term of five years w.e.f. 27 October 
2021.

In the opinion of the Board, Mrs. Chandra Iyengar (DIN: 
02821294) fulfils the conditions for her appointment 
as an Independent Director as specified in the Act and 
she is independent of the management and possesses 
appropriate skills, experience and knowledge. Mrs. 
Chandra Iyengar (DIN: 02821294) is not related to any 
other Director and Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company.

Mrs. Chandra Iyengar holds degree in MA from Miranda 
House, New Delhi and is an officer of the 1973 batch of 
the Indian Administrative Services (IAS). Over the course 

annexure a

annexure to notice

exPlanatorY statement Pursuant to section 102 oF tHe comPanies act, 2013

of her career, she has led several departments in the 
Government of

Maharashtra and the Government of India, such as 
Women & Child Development, Higher & Technical 
Education, Rural Development, and Health. As the 
Secretary for Women & Child Development for the 
Government of Maharashtra, she was responsible for 
drafting and implementing the first-ever state policy 
for women’s empowerment in India. She has served 
as Additional Chief Secretary – Home Ministry for the 
Government of Maharashtra and as a Director on the 
Board of Bharat Heavy Electricals Limited (BHEL) 
and also as a Chairperson for the Maharashtra Energy 
Regulatory Commission (MERC).

Accordingly, Mrs. Chandra Iyengar (DIN: 02821294) is 
proposed to be appointed as an Independent Director of 
the Company. Keeping in view the above, it is proposed 
to seek approval of the members to appoint Mrs. Chandra 
Iyengar (DIN: 02821294) as an Independent Director on 
the Board of the Company.

The terms and conditions for appointment of Mrs. 
Chandra Iyengar (DIN: 02821294) as an Independent 
Director of the Company shall be open for inspection by 
the members at the Registered Office of the Company 
during normal business hours on any working day.

The Board of Directors accordingly recommend the 
resolution as set out at Item No. 3 of the accompanying 
Notice for the approval of the Members.

Except Mrs. Chandra Iyengar (DIN: 02821294) none 
of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company or their relatives is concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the said resolution,

item no 4:

The Board of Directors have approved the appointment 
and remuneration of M/s Devarajan Swaminathan and Co, 
Cost Accountants (Firm Registration Number 100669), 
as the Cost Auditors for audit of the cost accounting 
records of the Company for the financial year ending 
31 March, 2023, at a remuneration of ` 2,00,000/- plus 
applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses, if any.
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ANNExuRE A (Contd.)

In terms of the provisions of Section 148(3) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, remuneration payable to the 
Cost Auditor needs to be ratified by the Members of the 
Company.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company and their relatives are, in any way, concerned 
or interested financially or otherwise in this resolution 
set out at Item no. 4 of the Notice.

The Board accordingly recommends the Ordinary 
Resolution set out at Item No.4 of the accompanying 
Notice for approval of the Members.

For and on behalf of the Board

         Sd/-
         Jaladhi shukla
     Company Secretary

Date: 2 May, 2022
Place: Ahmedabad

Registered Office:
Adani Corporate Office
Shantigram, Near Vaishno Devi Circle
S G Highway, Ahmedabad 382421
CIN:U74999GJ2008PLC107256
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